Public Document Pack

Friday, 4 September 2020
Dear Sir/Madam
A meeting of the Environment and Climate Change Committee will be held on Monday, 14
September 2020 on Microsoft Teams Meeting, commencing at 7.00 pm.
Should you require advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please
contact the Interim Monitoring Officer at your earliest convenience.
Yours faithfully

Chief Executive
To Councillors:

L A Ball BEM
R H Darby
S Easom
L Fletcher
T Hallam
R I Jackson
P Lally

R D MacRae
G Marshall
P Roberts-Thomson
H E Skinner (Chair)
D K Watts (Vice-Chair)
R D Willimott

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies and notification of substitutes.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are requested to declare the existence and nature
of any disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest in
any item on the agenda.

3.

MINUTES

(Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 15
June 2020.
Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB

www.broxtowe.gov.uk

4.

CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREEN FUTURES
PROGRAMME UPDATE

(Pages 5 - 272)

To provide an update for on the progress made with the
Council’s Climate Change and Green Futures Programme.

5.

CLEAN AND GREEN -BULKY WASTE COLLECTION

(Pages 273 - 276)

To seek approval from Members to use funding from the
Clean and Green initiative to reduce the lead time for the
bulky waste collection service.

6.

IMPROVING THE BOROUGH RECYCLING RATE AND
PROVIDING MORE OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS
TO RECYCLE

(Pages 277 - 284)

To inform Members of the opportunities and ways to
improve recycling in the Borough and seek approval for a
change in the delivery of the kerbside textile collection
service.

7.

QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS ON NOTING REPORTS

7.1

Noting Reports

(Pages 285 - 302)

 Performance Management – Review of Business Plan
Progress – Environment and Climate Change
 Pride in Parks – Play Area and Parks/Open Space
Improvements
 Air Quality Annual Status Report 2020

8.

WORK PROGRAMME
To consider items for inclusion in the Work Programme for
future meetings.

(Pages 303 - 304)

Agenda Item 3
ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 15 JUNE 2020
Present:
Councillors:

Councillor H E Skinner, Chair
L A Ball BEM
R H Darby
S Easom
L Fletcher
T Hallam
R I Jackson
P Lally
R D MacRae
G Marshall
P Roberts-Thomson
P D Simpson
D K Watts

An apology for absence was received from Councillor R D Willimott.

28

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

29

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2020 were confirmed as a correct
record.

30

PRIDE IN PARKS - PLAY AREA AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE IMPROVEMENTS
In 2018 funding had been allocated to undertake improvements to the Borough
owned play areas that were identified as high priority sites in the Play Strategy and
to the Town and Parish Councils that maintain their own parks and outdoor
recreational facilities to enable improvement and renovation works to be
undertaken at these sites. Members noted the improvements made. A colleague
within the Environment department had recently achieved the 35-year service
award. It was confirmed that the Human Resources department would send a long
service letter to the employee.

31

CLEAN AND GREEN
During the week commencing 23 March 2020 an additional litter pick took place
between the IKEA roundabout and the M1 roundabout. Both sides of the road
received a full cleanse and sweep. Waste Days had been restricted due to the
Covid-19 lockdown. Members discussed the volume of litter parks since the reopening of fast food outlets. Literature would be prepared to highlight the issue

Page 1

with the fast food chains. It was confirmed that litter picks could go ahead and
support would be given to residents wanting to be involved. Further to the issue
the Strategic Director presented information regarding Carbon Footprints.

32

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT - REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN PROGRESS ENVIRONMENT
The Committee was updated on the Environment Business Plan. An extra team
had been allocated to the garden waste collection service. The number of
subscriptions to the scheme had exceeded expectations. The issue of difficult
waste such as tyres was discussed.

33

CAPACITY FOR BURIALS AT CEMETERIES AND CHURCHYARDS
The Committee noted the short, medium and long term capacities at the 10 burial
grounds in Broxtowe and the capacity for new burials. Chilwell Muslim Section had
not had any burials for five years which had been due to initial ground water
problems. Nottingham City had traditionally been the location of choice for burials.
It was hoped this situation would change.

1.

2.

34

RESOLVED to:
Cease using Beeston Cemetery for new burials once all of the
remaining grave spaces have been allocated and utilise Chilwell
Cemetery as the alternative.
Enter into initial negotiations with the owners of the land to the east of
Stapleford Cemetery with regards to a price for the land and a potential
timescale to undertake a possible extension of the burial ground.

AIR QUALITY STATUS REPORT
It is a requirement of DEFRA that all local authorities in England produce an
Annual Status Report (ASR) in respect of air quality. This is intended to aid local
transparency, increase accessibility of air quality to the wider public audience and
encourage buy-in to delivering air quality improvement measures by those best
placed to assist. Members discussed the ASR recently submitted by Broxtowe.
There was currently no local equipment to monitor air quality. It was hoped that
local areas would work together to purchase this. The Committee discussed how
residents could be encouraged to walk and cycle more.
RESOLVED that the 2020 Air Quality Status Report be approved for
submission to DEFRA.

35

HOME COMPOSTING
A kerbside garden waste collection service was currently provided with around
20,000 residents subscribing to the scheme. The materials collected as part of the
garden waste collection are composted using an outdoor windrow system. Due to
biosecurity reasons food waste collected on a commercial scale (not individual

Page 2

households) can only be composted using enclosed invessel systems.
Subsequently the Council did not provide a kerbside collection service for
composting of food waste. Home composting would provide residents the
opportunity to dispose of food waste in an environmentally friendly way. The
Committee discussed ways to help residents with composting. Home stop off kits
were proposed.
RESOLVED that the actions outlined in the recommendations for
inclusion in the Climate Change and Green Futures action plan be approved.

36

WORK PROGRAMME
RESOLVED that the Work Programme be approved.

37

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED that, under Section 100A of the Local Government Act,
1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the
Act.

38

CAPACITY FOR
APPENDIX 3

BURIALS AT CEMETERIES AND CHURCHYARDS -

Members considered further information with regards to the capacity for burials at
cemeteries and churchyards.

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREEN FUTURES PROGRAMME UPDATE
1.

Purpose of report
To provide an update for Members on the progress made with the Council’s
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme.

2.

Background
Members will recall the report to the November 2019 Environment and Climate
Change Committee explaining the Climate Change and Green Futures
Programme approach.
The report provided detailed data analysis of the
Council’s carbon footprint 2009/10 and the footprint of the wider Broxtowe
Borough 2017. It also introduced the programme, explained the initial 15 project
strands and presented a number of actions linked to each strand. At the time
Members were asked to note the report.

3.

Moving Forward
Circulated with the agenda is the updated Climate Change and Green Futures
Programme report. The report contains the Climate Change Strategy, along with
a report on each of the other 14 project strands including additional strategic
actions. It contains a foreword from the Chair of the Environment and Climate
Change Committee, an Executive Summary, a summary of all strategic actions
from project strands and progress made, a Timeline graphically illustrated to
show the progress that the Council has made since the first Carbon
Management Plan was adopted in 2009/10, and the Communications Plan and
detailed Campaign Plan for the overall programme of activity.
The document provides Members, employees, businesses, and Council
residents with a comprehensive document, that while dynamic in nature, has
collated the Council’s approach to Climate Change and Green Futures. It details
the Council’s new Carbon Management Plan and provides a single point of
information.
Members will note that along with the Climate Change Strategy at Strand 01 the
Transport and Fleet Strategy 2020-2024 is also included at Strand 03. Members
are therefore asked to approve both the Climate Change Strategy and the
Transport and Fleet Strategy.

4.

Financial implications
There are no current financial implications. However, as the Climate Change
and Green Futures Programme matures any emerging financial implications will
be reported to the Committee.
Recommendation
The Committee is asked to:
1. NOTE the progress of the Climate Change and Green Futures Programme.
2. RESOLVE that the Climate Change Strategy be approved.
3. RESOLVE that the Transport and Fleet Strategy be approved.
Background papers
Nil

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Climate Change
AND GREEN FUTURES
P R O G R A M M E

Page 7

www.broxtowe.gov.uk

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
Foreword

1

Executive Summary

3

Climate Change Strategy (Strand 01)

10

Summary of Strategic Actions from Project Strands

20

Communications Plan and Methodology

41

Project Strands
02 Fuel

47

03 Transport and Fleet Strategy

53

04 Energy and Building Infrastructure

64

05 Employee and Business Mileage

69

06 Water Courses

74

07 Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors

79

08 Tree Planting

87

09 Recycling

92

10 Housing Delivery

99

11 Housing Improvements

105

12 Core Strategy / Planning

110

13 Technology

117

14 Air Quality

123

15 Hospitality / Support

128

Appendices
1. Carbon Trust Foot Print Assessment 2018/19
1.1 Carbon Footprint Presentation

134
157

2. Climate Change Campaign Plan

172

3. Water Courses Trent Gateway Masterplan 2020

182

4. Environment and Climate Change Committee - November 2019

234

5. Green Futures Resource Pack

250

6. Carbon Neutral Inforgraphic

262

Page 8

<< page >>

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 01

Foreword

Climate change is one of the biggest challenges we face not just as a Borough, but nationally
and worldwide.
As a Council, we have achieved a great deal over

An Officer-led Climate Change Working Group has

the last 11 years with 60 projects completed as part

been established to deliver the programme and it

of a Carbon Management Plan that reduced our

will be underpinned by a strong communications

carbon footprint by 45% since 2009.

strategy to ensure we can bring residents,
employees and other stakeholders on the journey

However, our foot needs to remain firmly on the

with us.

pedal in order to protect the environment for
future generations. In July 2019, we declared a

I know that climate change is a very important

Climate Change Emergency and committed to

issue for many local people and it truly is a

the ambitious reduction of the Borough’s carbon

collaborative effort. Everyone has the power to

emissions to net zero by 2027.

make changes which will help us make huge
strides towards protecting and enhancing the

As part of this commitment, a new Environment

environment for future generations to come.

and Climate Change Committee was established
to ensure that this important issue remained at
the forefront of Council services and to oversee
delivery of a new climate change programme.
This Climate Change and Green Futures

Councillor Helen Skinner

Programme will allow us to Act now, to reduce

Chair of the Environment and

the Council’s carbon footprint and influence,

Climate Change Committee

encourage and assist households, businesses and
schools within the Borough to strive towards the
same goal. It is a living document which will be
continually reviewed and adapted as we continue
on our journey to becoming carbon neutral.

Page 9

11

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council

Executive
Summary
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 10

3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Executive
Summary
Contents
1.0

Introduction

5

2.0

Vision

5

3.0

Key Achievements

6

3.1

Timeline 2009/10 to 2019/20

6

4.0

Broxtowe Borough Carbon Footprint 2005-2017

8

5.0

Climate Change Strategy

8

6.0

Future stands

9

4

Page 11

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Executive
Summary
1.0 Introduction
In July 2019, the Council declared a ‘Climate Change Emergency’ and committed to
achieving net carbon zero by 2027.
The Council along with many other

are developing strategies to build sustainability.

organisations recognise that the cost of

This strategy aims to build our response to

inaction far exceeds the cost of action. A

climate change into the organisational culture;

conversation involving the whole community

embedding de-carbonising services, building

including businesses, schools and residents is

resilience and managing physical risks.

starting and needs to continue in order to help

In addition, the strategy looks to work with the

manage the risks and address the human and

wider community in Broxtowe; with businesses,

environmental impacts of climate change.

schools and residents to enable them to

Globally 2019 was the second-hottest year

respond to the climate agenda, to do the right

on record. From the extensive wildfires in

thing in terms of the careful use of resources,

Australia, to devastating flooding in Britain, the

reusing and recycling where possible, being

manifestations of climate change are evident

prepared and resilient as a community in order

and are continuing in 2020.

to become more resilient to extreme weather
and natural disasters.

2.0 Vision
In the Corporate Plan 2020 - 2024 Broxtowe
Borough Council’s vision is “A greener, safer,
healthier Broxtowe where everyone prospers”.
The key Environmental objective in achieving
this vision
Over the past year many aspects have shifted
rapidly in respect to climate change: particularly

■

emissions to zero and start implementing

policy-making and public sentiment – the
Council needs to use this opportunity to leverage
the positives that comes about as a result of
this paradigm shift. Most organisations are

Develop plans to reduce our carbon
them.

■

Invest in our parks and open spaces.

■

Increase recycling and composting.

considering the climate impact of decisions and

Page 12

5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

The strategic vision for the Climate Change

5,000

Strategy is to:

4,242

Act now! to reduce the Council’s carbon

4,000

footprint to net zero by 2027 and influence,

45%

encourage and assist households,
Emissions (tCO2e)

businesses and schools within the Borough
to strive towards the same goal

3.0 Key Achievements

3,000

2,328
2,000

1,000

In 2009 the Council worked with the Carbon Trust
to create a Carbon Management Plan that looked
to reduce the organisation’s CO2 emissions by

0

25% by 2015 and a minimum of 34% by 2020.
The baseline CO2 emissions for the Council in
2009/10 was 4242 tonnes.

2009/10

2018/19

Buildings

Fleet

Business Travel

The exercise was repeated in 2019/20 with the
Carbon Trust using the full data set from 2018/19.
The CO2 emissions for the Council in 2018/19

3.1 Timeline 2009/10 to
2019/20

was 2328 tonnes a reduction of 45%.
The importance of establishing a sound

The following timeline aims to capture and

foundation based on accurate data cannot be

illustrate significant achievements during this

under estimated. By working with the Carbon
Trust the Council is looking to continue to build on
this foundation in order to measure progress now
and in the future.

time period. Demonstrating that the activity of
the Council in addressing the Climate Change
agenda has been proactive and long term.

The target reduction of CO2 emissions for the

More details of these achievement can be found

Council was 34% by 2020. A reduction of 45%

within later sections of this document.

was achieved by 31 March 2019 as illustrated in
the graph opposite.

6

Page 13

SOLD

WATER COURSES:

2018 Clean
and Green
Programme
adopted

Town Hall

Housing
Committee
approve
Housing
Delivery
Plan

HOUSING DELIVERYl

ENERGY

Install new CHP
unit Bramcote
Leisure Centre

ENERGY:

WATER COURSES:

Project to remove
non-native goldfish
went viral with
excellent positive
publicity

Council Offices
solar panels
installed

2014

Council Offices part
leased to
Nottinghamshire Police

BUILDING:

2010

November
2019
The Climate
Change and
Green Future
programme
started

500 free fruit trees
given away end of
2019 along with
introduction of
pocket orchards

TREE PLANTING:

HOUSING IMPROVEMENTS:

2021

£900,000 investment
in replacement existing
heating systems saving
an estimated 314.6 tonne
of CO2e, 285 properties

2020

2050
UK Net
Zero
Target

2022

2012

2027
Broxtowe
Net Zero
Target

2023

r
2011 - 2015 Labour / L i b e

Business mileage
rate changed
to 45p per mile

2011

BUSINESS MILEAGE:

Service
AIR QUALITY
Virtualisation
Air monitoring
Project 53/74
management area
servers
revoked
virtualised
(72%)

TECHNOLOGY:

2019 - 2023 Labour / Liberal
2011 Democrats
- 2015 Labour // Independents
Liberal Democrats

Carbon Footprint:
2,328 tonnes
of CO2e a reduction
of 45% since 2009/10

Carbon Footprint Exercise
2019/20

CLIMATE CHANGE
EMERGENCY
declared 17th July 2019

First two
electric
vehicles
procured

TRANSPORT:

2019

Installed 28 electric
charge points

TRANSPORT:

SOLD

Cavendish
Lodge

SOLD

ASSET RATIONALISATION

2018 Introducing community
clean teams and engagement
with infant schools

ASSET RATIONALISATION

2018

2015

100,000 planted by
end of 2014/15

TREE PLANTING

2009

Created Green
Infrastructure
Strategy

MEADOW PLANTING

14 Devonshire
Avenue

SOLD

ASSET RATIONALISATION

2018 the concept of using
annual meadow seeds was
extended to parks and
green spaces

Eastwood
Cash
Office Closed

2008

Pride in Parks programme
adopted along with Play Strategy

2017

In 2017 working with Notts
Wildlife Trust on the
‘’Wetland Landscapes for
All’’ project various schemes
were undertaken at Brinsley
Headstocks, Toton Fields
and Hall om Wong.

Tree
Planting
Strategy
adopted
2018

TREE PLANTING:

Eastwood
Cash Office

ASSET RATIONALISATION

ENERGY:

Council Offices
LED lighting
installed

2007

First Carbon Footprint
4242 tonnes of CO2e

Worked with the
Carbon Trust
to create a Carbon
Management Plan

2007
- 2007
2011
Liberal
/ /Labour
2011
- 2015
Labour
/ Democrats
Liberal
Democrats
- 2011
Liberal
Democrats
Labour

Launch initiative to
plant 100,000 trees

TREE PLANTING

Timeline

Climate Change and Green Futures

2015 - 2019 Conservatives

al

o c r ats
TECHNOLOGY:

Printer estate
reduced from
76 to 26
multi-functional
devices

De
m

Page 14
7

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.0 Broxtowe Borough
Carbon Footprint 2005-2017

strategy continues to emerge, as the science
around the climate change agenda develops, as
funding opportunities arise and as social capital

The wider Borough of Broxtowe is calculated to

is identified.

have emitted 493.6 kt CO2e in 2017 (source:
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy

The members of the Steering Group for the

Department: UK local authority carbon dioxide
emissions national statistics). The breakdown of
CO2 from the key sectors is shown in the table

Domestic

Nondomestic

Transport

objectives:
2017

Sector Description

185.2 kt
CO2e

This is the heat and
electricity usage from
domestic dwellings
in Broxtowe Borough
including social
housing

174.5 kt
CO2e

133.9 kt
CO2e

The usage from
commercial, industrial,
retail and public
sector properties

Head of Environment

■

Head of Housing

■

Head of Public Protection

■

Head of Property

■

Head of Neighbourhood and Prosperity

The programme currently contains the following
project strands:

played its part in the implementation of the Tram
extension. It is anticipated that the impact of the
tram will be more clearly seen in the 2018 and
2019 statistics once available.

5.0 Climate Change Strategy
The intention moving forward is to deliver the
emerging strategic actions as part of the Climate

the project strands within the programme as the

■

Climate Change Committee as required.

communities in relation to the environment and

expected that further actions will be added to

Strategic Director

Management Team and the Environment and

Carbon from all
vehicles including
cars, LGVs,
motorcycles, buses
and HGVs

Change and Green Futures Programme. It is

■

Reports will be generated for the General

The Council has continued to work with its

8

the Council to demonstrate a truly authority
wide approach to delivery of the programme

below.
Sector

programme have been taken from across

■

Climate Change Strategy

■

Fuel

■

Transport and Fleet Strategy

■

Energy and Building Infrastructure

■

Employee and Business Mileage

■

Water Courses

■

Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors

■

Tree Planting

■

Recycling

■

Housing Delivery

■

Housing Improvements

■

Core Strategy / Planning

■

Technology

■

Air Quality

■

Hospitality / Support Services

Page 15

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

A section within this document has been

■

allocated to each of the strands. Each

Health Impact of Climate Change:
•

section will introduce the strand and provide

Analyse available data sets to inform
approach.

where possible context in terms of what has

•

already been achieved, what is currently being

Use results of above analysis to inform
the wider communications plan /

achieved and what actions are intended for the

campaign – messages such as “stay

future. In addition, each strand will look where

cool” targeted at more at risk groups, for

appropriate at culture, technology, education,

example the elderly, ensure care sector

and organisation to see how these areas can

is included.

be leveraged / challenged in order to influence
positive behavioural change of our residents,
schools and businesses.
■

Communications and engagement are also

•

Urban planting to cool town centres.

•

Nutrition linked to food security.

Ethical Investments

key to the delivery of the overall strategy
and therefore has been allocated an entire
section within the document to promote the
communication methodology, Communication
Plan and the Communication Campaign Plan,
a copy of this latter document can be found in
Appendix 2.

6.0 Future Strands
As highlighted in section 5 above new strands
will be added to the programme as the strategy
emerges, strands that have already been
identified include:
■

Risk, Mitigation and Adaptation – with
appropriate actions appearing in project
strands as required, for example: Water
course management – potential requirement
to increase capacity of specific drainage
systems.

Page 16

9

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council
STRAND 01

Climate Change
Strategy
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

10

Page 17

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND001
STRAND

Climate Change
Strategy
Contents
1.0

Introduction

12

2.0

Vision

12

3.0

Key Achievements
3.1 Carbon Management Plan 2009/10

13
13

3.2 Carbon Footprint Assessment 2018/19

14

3.3 Timeline 2009/10 to 2019/20

15

4.0

Broxtowe Borough Carbon Footprint 2005-2017

17

5.0

Climate Change Strategy

18

6.0

Future Strands

19

7.0

Strategic Actions

19

Page 18

11

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
STRAND01
01
STRAND

Climate Change
Strategy

1.0 Introduction

In July 2019, the Council declared a ‘Climate Change Emergency’ and committed to
achieving net carbon zero by 2027. The Council along with many other organisations
recognise that the cost of inaction far exceeds the cost of action.
A conversation involving the whole community

strategies to build sustainability. This strategy

including businesses, schools and residents is

aims to build our response to climate change

starting and needs to continue in order to help

into the organisational culture; embedding de-

manage the risks and address the human and

carbonising services, building resilience and

environmental impacts of climate change.

managing physical risks.

Globally 2019 was the second-hottest year

In addition, the strategy looks to work with the

on record. From the extensive wildfires in

wider community in Broxtowe; with businesses,

Australia, to devastating flooding in Britain, the

schools and residents to enable them to

manifestations of climate change are evident

respond to the climate agenda, to do the right

and are continuing in 2020.

thing in terms of the careful use of resources,
reusing and recycling where possible, being
prepared and resilient as a community.

2.0 Vision
In the Corporate Plan 2020 - 2024 Broxtowe
Borough Council’s vision is “A greener, safer,
healthier Broxtowe where everyone prospers”.
Over the past year many aspects have
shifted rapidly in respect to climate change:
particularly policy-making and public sentiment
– the Council needs to use this opportunity

The key Environmental objective in achieving
this vision is to “protect the environment for the
future” with the three priorities being to: ■

Develop plans to reduce our carbon
emissions to zero and start implementing

to leverage the positives that comes about

them.

as a result of this paradigm shift. Most
organisations are considering the climate

■

Invest in our parks and open spaces.

impact of decisions and are developing

■

Increase recycling and composting.

12

Page 19

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

The strategic vision for the Climate Change

Baseline Summary CO2 emissions (tonnes)

Strategy is to:

and costs for 2009/10

Act now! to reduce the Council’s carbon

Category

footprint to net zero by 2027 and influence,

Depot, Kimberley
including
offices

encourage and assist households,
businesses and schools within the Borough

tCO2e
2009/10
246

Pavilions

to strive towards the same goal

97

6

2

73

2

1,524

36

Other buildings include
toilets and cemetery
chapels

170

4

482

11

emissions by 25% by 2015 and a minimum of

Office Buildings
including the Town Hall,
Council Offices, Cash
Offices, Cavendish
Lodge, 14 Devonshire

34% by 2020. The baseline CO2 emissions for

Crematorium

474

11

3,066

72

1,049

25

127

3

Buildings

Museums

%

3.0 Key Achievements
In 2009 the Council worked with the Carbon
Trust to create a Carbon Management Plan
that looked to reduce the organisation’s CO2

Leisure Centres

Total

table and pie chart in section 3.1 below).

Transport

the Council in 2009/10 was 4242 tonnes (see

The exercise was repeated in 2019/20 with

Grand Total

Fleet
Business

4,242 100

the Carbon Trust using the full data set from
2018/19. The CO2 emissions for the Council in

Depot
6%

2018/19 was 2328 tonnes a reduction of 45%
(see table and pie chart in section 3.2 below).

Transport
Business
3%
Transport
Fleet
25%

Leisure
Centres
36%

The importance of establishing a sound
foundation based on accurate data cannot be
under estimated. By working with the Carbon
Trust the Council is looking to continue to build
on this foundation in order to measure progress
now and in the future.

3.1 Carbon Management
Plan 2009/10

Crematorium
11%

The Carbon Management plan was developed
in 2009 as a result of the Council working with
the Carbon Trust. The plan provided a baseline
and a list of projects to be delivered between
2009/10 and 2014/15. Extracts of the plan are

Pavilions
2%
Museum
2%

Other Buildings
(e.g. Toilets)
4%

Office Building
11%

provided below for information.

Page 20

13

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
A total of 37 quantified projects and a further 23

Baseline Summary CO2 emissions (tonnes)

unquantified projects were identified as part of

and costs for 2018/19

the Carbon Management Plan. Many of these
projects and more were successfully delivered
including for example: ■

Rationalisation of buildings

■

Introduction of photo voltaic cells on the

Depot, Kimberley
including
offices

■

Replacement of bulbs with LED lighting

Leisure Centres

■

More accurate metering

■

Virtualisation of much of the core ICT estate

■

Reduction in printing devices

■

Redesign of the fleet replacement

60

2.6

12

0.5

708 30.4

Other buildings include
toilets and cemetery
chapels

3

0.1

77

3.3

programme resulting in extending the life of

Office Buildings
including the Town Hall,
Council Offices, Cash
Offices, Cavendish
Lodge, 14 Devonshire

vehicles

Crematorium

Installation of combined heat and power units

308 13.2

Total
Transport

Redesign of refuse rounds resulting in
reduction of fuel usage

■

Buildings

Museums

%

265 11.4

Pavilions

Council Offices

■

tCO2e
2018/19

Category

1,433 61.6
Fleet

831 35.7

Business

64

Grand Total

3.2 Carbon Footprint
Assessment 2018/19

Depot
11.4%

2,328 100
Transport
Business
2.7%

In order to understand the progress made
against the high level targets set in the Carbon
Management Plan, the Council engaged the
Carbon Trust again in 2019/20 following the

2.7

Transport
Fleet
35.7%

Leisure
Centres
30.4%

adoption by Full Council 17 July 2019 of a
Climate Change Emergency motion. The data
used was the last full financial year of fuel and
energy data available, namely up to 31 March
2019. A more detailed report from the Carbon
Trust is provided in Appendix 1 – this document

Crematorium
13.2%

explains what is meant and covered by Scope
1, 2 and 3, how the Council has been measured
and what are its results.

Pavilions
2.6%
Museum
0.5%

14

Page 21

Other Buildings
(e.g. Toilets)
0.1%

Office Building
3.3%

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

The target reduction of CO2 emissions for the
Council was 34% by 2020. A reduction of 45%
was achieved by 31 March 2019 as illustrated in
the graph below.

5,000

4,242
4,000

Emissions (tCO2e)

45%
3,000

2,328
2,000

3.3 Timeline 2009/10 to
2019/20

1,000

The following timeline aims to capture and
illustrate significant achievements during this

0

2009/10

2018/19

Buildings

Fleet

time period. Demonstrating that the activity of
the Council in addressing the Climate Change
agenda has been proactive and long term.

Business Travel

More details of these achievement can be found
within later sections of this document.

Page 22

15

2008

TREE PLANTING

ASSET RATIONALISATION

SOLD

14 Devonshire
Avenue

2009
BUILDING:

2010

First Carbon Footprint
4242 tonnes of CO2e

TREE PLANTING

100,000 planted by
end of 2014/15

2015
Created Green
Infrastructure
Strategy

2020

2021
HOUSING IMPROVEMENTS:

£900,000 investment
in replacement existing
heating systems saving
an estimated 314.6 tonne
of CO2e, 285 properties

TECHNOLOGY:

2022

2027
Broxtowe
Net Zero
Target

2023

2012

l
ra
2011 - 2015 Labour / L i b e

Business mileage
rate changed
to 45p per mile

BUSINESS MILEAGE:

2011

Service
AIR QUALITY
Virtualisation
Project 53/74 Air monitoring
management area
servers
revoked
virtualised
(72%)

2014

Project to remove
non-native goldfish
went viral with
excellent positive
publicity

WATER COURSES:

Council Offices
solar panels
installed

ENERGY:

Council Offices part
leased to
Nottinghamshire Police

2007
- 2007
2011
Liberal
/ /Labour
2011
- 2015
Labour
/ Democrats
Liberal
Democrats
- 2011
Liberal
Democrats
Labour

Launch initiative to
plant 100,000 trees

Worked with the
Carbon Trust
to create a Carbon
Management Plan

Climate Change and Green Futures

2007

ENERGY:

Council Offices
LED lighting
installed

2017
MEADOW PLANTING

ENERGY

Install new CHP
unit Bramcote
Leisure Centre

2018 the concept of using
annual meadow seeds was
extended to parks and
green spaces

Eastwood
Cash
Office Closed

Pride in Parks programme
adopted along with Play Strategy

2018

November
2019
The Climate
Change and
Green Future
programme
started

TREE PLANTING:

500 free fruit trees
given away end of
2019 along with
introduction of
pocket orchards

2050
UK Net
Zero
Target

2019 - 2023 Labour / Liberal
2011 Democrats
- 2015 Labour // Independents
Liberal Democrats

Carbon Footprint:
2,328 tonnes
of CO2e a reduction
of 45% since 2009/10

Carbon Footprint Exercise
2019/20

2018 Introducing community
clean teams and engagement
with infant schools
ASSET RATIONALISATION

SOLD

Cavendish
Lodge
TRANSPORT:

Installed 28 electric
charge points

ASSET RATIONALISATION

SOLD

Town Hall

2019
TRANSPORT:

First two
electric
vehicles
procured
HOUSING DELIVERYl

Housing
Committee
approve
Housing
Delivery
Plan

CLIMATE CHANGE
EMERGENCY
declared 17th July 2019

Page 23

c r ats

mo
TECHNOLOGY:

Printer estate
reduced from
76 to 26
multi-functional
devices

De

Timeline

ASSET RATIONALISATION

SOLD

Eastwood
Cash Office

TREE PLANTING:

Tree
Planting
Strategy
adopted
2018

In 2017 working with Notts
Wildlife Trust on the
‘’Wetland Landscapes for
All’’ project various schemes
were undertaken at Brinsley
Headstocks, Toton Fields
and Hall om Wong.

WATER COURSES:

2018 Clean
and Green
Programme
adopted

2015 - 2019 Conservatives

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.0 Broxtowe Borough Carbon Footprint 2005-2017
The wider Borough of Broxtowe is calculated to have emitted 493.6 kt CO2e in 2017 (source: Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy Department: UK local authority carbon dioxide emissions national statistics).
The breakdown of CO2 from the key sectors is shown in the table below.
Sector

2017

Sector Description

Domestic

185.2 kt CO2e

This is the heat and electricity usage from domestic dwellings in
Broxtowe Borough including social housing

Non-domestic

174.5 kt CO2e

The usage from commercial, industrial, retail and public sector
properties

Transport

133.9 kt CO2e

Carbon from all vehicles including cars, LGVs, motorcycles, buses
and HGVs

The graph below provides a summary of the Borough of Broxtowe’s carbon emissions from 2005 to 2017
(released in 2019 by the Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy - BEIS). The trends show
that emission have fallen 25.4% from nearly 640.5 kt CO2e in 2005 (5.9 tCO2e per capita) to 493.6 kt CO2e
in 2017 (4.4 tCO2e per capita).

Broxtowe Borough Council CO2 Emissions bt Sector and Fuel

The Council has continued to work with its

Note: A Committee on Climate Change progress

communities in relation to the environment and

report to parliament notes that the national

played its part in the implementation of the Tram

reductions have mostly been a result of the

extension. It is anticipated that the impact of the

reduction in carbon from electricity generation

tram will be more clearly seen in the 2018 and

for domestic and commercial sectors, due to the

2019 statistics once available.

increasing level of renewable generation and

Page 24

17

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

reduction in the use of coal. Energy efficiency

■

Climate Change Strategy

has also reduced overall demand for electricity

■

Fuel

■

Transport and Fleet Strategy

■

Energy and Building Infrastructure

■

Employee and Business Mileage

■

Water Courses

■

Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors

■

Tree Planting

■

Recycling

■

Housing Delivery

■

Housing Improvements

■

Core Strategy / Planning

■

Technology

■

Air Quality

■

Hospitality / Support Services

and gas over the period by 20% and 30%
respectively. However, efficiency in gas use has
stalled in the last 5 years. Reductions in other
sectors such as transport and heat have been
much smaller.
www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-localauthority-and-regional-carbon-dioxideemissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2017

5.0 Climate Change Strategy
The intention moving forward is to deliver the
emerging strategic actions as part of the Climate
Change and Green Futures Programme. It is
expected that further actions will be added to
the project strands within the programme as the
strategy continues to emerge, as the science
around the climate change agenda develops, as
funding opportunities arise and as social capital
is identified.

A section within this document has been
allocated to each of the strands. Each section
will introduce the strand and where possible
provide context in terms of what has already
been achieved, what is currently being

The members of the Steering Group for the

achieved and what actions are intended for the

programme have been taken from across

future. In addition, each strand will look where

the Council to demonstrate a truly authority

appropriate at culture, technology, education,

wide approach to delivery of the programme

and organisation to see how these areas can

objectives:

be leveraged / challenged in order to influence

■

Strategic Director

positive behavioural change of our residents,

■

Head of Environment

schools and businesses.

■

Head of Housing

■

Head of Public Protection

■

Head of Property

■

Head of Neighbourhood and Prosperity

Communications and engagement are also
key to the delivery of the overall strategy
and therefore has been allocated an entire
section within the document to promote the

Reports will be generated for the General

communication methodology, Communication

Management Team and the Environment and

Plan and the Communication Campaign Plan,

Climate Change Committee as required.

a copy of this latter document can be found in

The programme currently contains the following

Appendix 2.

project strands:

18

Page 25

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

6.0 Future Strands

•

approach.

As highlighted in section 5 above new strands

•

will be added to the programme as the strategy

campaign – messages such as “stay

identified include:

cool” targeted at more at risk groups, for

Risk, Mitigation and Adaptation – with

example the elderly, ensure care sector

appropriate actions appearing in project

is included.

strands as required for example: water course
management – potential need to increase the
capacity of specific drainage systems.
■

Use results of above analysis to inform
the wider communications plan /

emerges, strands that have already been
■

Analyse available data sets to inform

Health Impact of Climate Change:

■

•

Urban planting to cool town centres.

•

Nutrition linked to food security.

Ethical Investments

7.0 Strategic Actions
In considering the Climate Change Strategy the table below presents the strategic actions to be adopted
the period 2020 until 2024 that will assist in enabling the Council to achieve net carbon zero by 2027.
Strand 04

Climate Change Strategy

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Establish a baseline for CO2 emissions for 2018/19 focusing on
level 1 and level 2 emission sources. Compare with previous
baseline and report position

Strategic
Director / Head
of Environment

March 2020

Action 2

Ensure methodology followed in strategic action 1 is repeatable
for subsequent years moving forward, allowing progress to be
measured more accurately.

Strategic
Director / Head
of Environment

March 2020

Action 3

Establish a baseline for CO2 emissions based on level 3 emission
sources (e.g. impact of supply chain, housing stock, employee
travel to and from work)

Strategic
Director / Head
of Environment

March 2021

Action 4

Deliver the Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Strategic
Director

Ongoing

Action 5

Creation of a Climate Change Strategy and Carbon Management
Plan (CMP)

Strategic
Director

June 2020

Action 6

Develop further strategic actions following the carbon footprint
analysis and partnership engagement.

Strategic
Director / Head
of Environment

On-going

Action 7

Using the principle of Carbon Budgeting create an approach that
aligns with the budget process and determines and informs the
level of CO2e anticipated from investments in service provision.

Strategic
Director

March 2022

Action 8

Investigate what funding opportunities exist to assist with the create of
Ecoteams within Broxtowe.

Head of
Environment

March 2022

Action 9

Support the delivery of the actions in the Local Energy Partnership
(LEP) Energy Strategy.

Head of
Environment /
Head of Property

Page 26

On-going

19

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council

Summary of
Actions
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

20

Page 27

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Summary of
Actions
Contents
Climate Change Strategy

22

Fuel

23

Transport & Fleet

24

Energy & Building Infrastructure

26

Employee & Buisiness Mileage

28

Water Courses

29

Meadow Planting & Wildlife Corridors

30

Tree Planting

32

Recycling

33

Housing Delivery

34

Housing Improvements

35

Core Planning

37

Technology

38

Air Quality

39

Hospitality & Support Services

40

Page 28

21

STRAND 14

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Summary of Actions
STRAND 01

Climate Change
Strategy
Strand 01

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Establish a baseline for CO2 emissions for
2018/19 focusing on level 1 and level 2 emission
sources. Compare with previous baseline and
report position.

Strategic Director
/ Head of
Environment

March
2020

Completed
February 2020

Action 2

Ensure methodology followed in strategic action
1 is repeatable for subsequent years moving
forward, allowing progress to be measured more
accurately.

Strategic Director
/ Head of
Environment

March
2020

Completed
February 2020

Action 3

Establish a baseline for CO2 emissions based on
level 3 emission sources (e.g. impact of supply
chain, housing stock, employee travel to and
from work).

Strategic Director
/ Head of
Environment

March
2021

Action 4

Deliver the Climate Change and Green Futures
Programme .

Strategic Director

Ongoing

Action 5

Creation of a Climate Change Strategy and
Carbon Management Plan (CMP).

Strategic Director

June 2020

Action 6

Develop further strategic actions following
the carbon footprint analysis and partnership
engagement.

Strategic Director
/ Head of
Environment

On-going

Action 7

Using the principle of Carbon Budgeting create
an approach that aligns with the budget process
and determines and informs the level of CO2e
anticipated from investments in service provision.

Strategic Director

March
2022

Action 8

Investigate what funding opportunities exist to
assist with the create of Ecoteams within Broxtowe.

Head of
Environment

March
2022

Action 9

Support the delivery of the actions in the Local
Energy Partnership (LEP) Energy Strategy.

Head of
Environment / Head
of Property

On-going

22

Page 29

September 2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 02

Fuel
Strand 02

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of
Environmental
Services

August
2020

Completed July
2020

Action 2

Reschedule the dry recycling rounds in order to
deliver economies in regards to fuel usage and
better utilisation of vehicles in the fleet.

Transport and
Stores Manager

March
2021

Action 3

Reschedule the green waste rounds in order to
deliver economies in regards to fuel usage and
better utilisation of vehicles in the fleet.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2021

Action 4

Technology: Introduction of electric vehicles
where practical and economic aligned to the
capital replacement programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

Action 5

Technology: Proactively monitor vehicle
emissions utilising the Fuel Monitoring IT
System utilising analysis to inform capital
replacement programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

Action 6

Technology: Utilising data from the on board
Vehicle Monitoring IT System ( for example
recording harsh braking, excessive speeding
and harsh cornering) inform the delivery of a
programme of driver training – this will address
safety, fuel economy, extended vehicle life and
reduced emissions.

Transport and
Stores Manager

November
2020

Action 7

Technology: Introduction of electric solutions
for plant equipment where practical and
economic aligned to the capital replacement
programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

Page 30

23

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 03

Transport & Fleet
Strand 03

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Create a new Transport and Fleet Strategy with
a focus where economically appropriate on
electric vehicles.

Transport and
Stores Manager

August
2020

Completed
August 2020

Action 2

Develop a plan for the further introduction of
appropriate infrastructure to support potential
growth in the electric fleet and growth in
domestic use of electric vehicles.

Transport and
Stores Manager

March
2022

Action 3

Using available data, produce a report on
vehicle types registered in the Borough along
with scenarios indicating the behavioural
change necessary to help achieve net zero by
2027.

Head of
Environmental
Services

March
2022

Action 4

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

August
2020

Action 5

Technology - The Council has a fleet of 8
small vans (Below 2 Tonnes). Two of these
vehicles have already been replaced with all
electric vehicles and over the period to 2024
the remaining 6 vehicles where practical and
economic (As they reach a life of 12 years) will
be replaced with all electric models.

Transport and
Stores Manager

2021-2024

Action 6

Capital Investment- The Capital Vehicle
replacement programme for those HGV's
(Refuse Freighters 26 Tonnes) identified
for replacement will be replaced with Euro
standard engines (Euro 6 onwards). Before
purchasing consideration will be given based
on practicality and economics of the adoption
of new technologies that have come to market
this includes potential electric and hydrogen
propulsion methods.

Transport and
Stores Manager

2021-2024

Action 7

Technology - For small plant such as hedge
trimmers, blowers, and strimmers where
practical and economic these will be replaced
with electric powered units. Technological
developments in this field are rapid and
the Grounds Maintenance Manager has
been tasked with keeping abreast of new
developments and trialling new developments
as they come to market.

Transport and
Stores Manager

2021-2024

24

Page 31

Completed
August 2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Transport & Fleet
Strand 03

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 8

Technology -Working pro-actively with the
Nottingham Vehicle Consortium (District
Councils) and industry suppliers a watching
brief will be maintained on new and developing
technologies this includes IT developments,
and the move towards electric and hydrogen
traction for heavy goods vehicles. Decisions
on purchasing new technologies will depend
on practical and economic factors when
consideration is being given with regards to
acquisition of this new technology.

Transport and
Stores Manager

Through to
2024

Action 9

Green number plates. The Department of
Transport / GOV.UK is currently consulting on
the introduction of green number plates as a
means of differentiating vehicles whose carbon
footprint is low or negligible based on their
environmental impact and tailpipe emissions.
If adopted the council will wish to provide
community leadership by displaying such
number plates on its vehicles that meet such
low emission standards

Transport and
Stores Manager

2020

Page 32

Completed

25

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 04

Energy & Building
Infrastructure
Strand 04

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
in regards to energy consumption / creation
to inform the approach moving forward and
to inform the overarching communications
programme.

Head of Property
Services

July 2020

Completed July
2020

Action 2

Determine and report on approaches that will
assist in reducing the organisations energy
consumption further.

Head of Property
Services

December
2020

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to
date in regards to building infrastructure to
inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Capital Works
Manager

July 2020

Action 4

Determine and report on approaches that
will further assist the Council’s building
infrastructure reduce its carbon emission.

Head of Property
/ Capital Works
Manager

December
2020

Action 5

Leisure Centres (708t CO2e 2018/19):
Replace the Combined heating and Power
(CHP) system at Bramcote (already budgeted
for in 2020/21).

Head of Property
Services

October
2020

Action 6

Leisure Centres (708t CO2e 2018/19):
Proceed with the Leisure Facilities Strategy
which may lead to more efficient new buildings
(longer term and requires very significant
funding).

Head of Property
Services

December
2020

Action 7

Bramcote Crematorium (308t CO2e
2018/19): Replace cremators with more
efficient new ones and install heat exchanger
(funding should become available from a land
sale in 2021/22).

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

Action 8

Kimberley Depot (265t CO2e 2018/19):
Investigate reasons for recent increased of gas
usage and introduce counter-measures.

Head of Property
Services

March
2021

Action 9

Kimberley Depot (265t CO2e 2018/19):
Introduce more LED lighting (within existing
approved budgets).

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

26

Page 33

Completed July
2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Energy & Building Infrastructure
Strand 04

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 10

Council Offices (77t CO2e 2018/19): Ensure
heating and insulation is optimised (within
existing approved budgets).

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

Action 11

Sports Pavilions (60t CO2e 2018/19):
Continue with ad-hoc replacement of heating,
hot water and lighting systems as older lessefficient systems become due for replacement
(within existing approved budgets).

Head of Property
Services

On-going

Action 12

Water: implementation of taps in all Council
owned building to reduce water consumption,
metered bills and cost.

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

Action 13

Investigate further opportunities for the
installation of solar panels on Council Buildings
for example the Depot.

Head of Property
Services

August
2021

Action 14

Investigate the energy management
arrangements at the Crematorium in order to
identify opportunities to redirect excess energy
for heating and lighting.

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

Action 15

Investigate the opportunity to create a
woodland burial site – achieving eco burials
within a woodland setting.

Head of Property
Services

March
2022

Page 34

Completed

27

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
STRAND 05

Employee &
Business Mileage
Strand 05

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date in regards
to the reduction in business mileage to inform the
approach moving forward and to inform the overarching
communications programme.

Payroll and Job
Evaluations
Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 2

Determine and report on approaches that may assist
in reducing the Council’s carbon emission impact of
business mileage.

Payroll and Job
Evaluations
Manager

October
2020

Action 3

Create a baseline in regards to employee home to work
mileage to inform the approach moving forward and to
inform the overarching communications programme.

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 4

Determine and report on approaches that will further
assist the reduction in the carbon emission impact of
employee home to work travel.

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 5

Leverage the new technologies and agile working
arrangements widely implemented and utilised during the
COVID-19 emergency in order to reduce the impact that
employees travelling to work has on the environment.

Strategic Director /
Heads of Service

March
2021

Action 6

Employee Benefits: Consider the implementation of a car
leasing scheme enabling employees access to a new
vehicle. Include the promotion of electric vehicles within
the scheme.

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 7

Capture the achievements in order to inform the
communications programme and promote what GOOD
looks like to Business within the Borough.

Strategic Director

On-going

Action 8

Consider the introduction of Cycle To Work promotion
(leave the car at home week / day).

HR Manager
/ Corporate
Communications
Manager

March
2021

Action 9

Consider approaching public transport organisations to
determine what promotions can be targeted at Broxtowe
employees for example Green Travel Deals.

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 10

Consider the promotion of approaches that would allow
employees to lease / purchase a more environmentally
sustainable vehicle.

Head of Protection
and HR

August
2021

Action 11

Review the Council’s mileage claim system to consider
how it may be used to make it more financially attractive
to employees that have an electric vehicle.

Head of Protection
and HR

March
2022

28

Page 35

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 06

Water Courses
Strand 06

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Discussions will take place with the County
Council and other partners as to the on-going
management of the blue infrastructure in
Broxtowe.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn
2020 and
then ongoing

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

July 2020

Completed July
2020

Action 3

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Water Courses project strand delivery.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

July 2020

Completed July
2020

Action 4

Undertake a detailed assessment of the brooks
that the Council is responsible for to carry out a
flood risk assessment and look at opportunities
for biodiversity enhancement.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Summer
2020
Summer
2021

Action 5

Further meetings will be held with the
Environment Agency on the Trent Gateway
Project looking to develop the initiatives on the
section of the river within Broxtowe.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn
2020 and
ongoing
with 2 or 3
meetings a
year

Action 6

Meetings with landowners to ensure that
appropriate maintenance is taking place.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

On-going

Action 7

Clarify ownership responsibility for the
boundaries of the 6 brooks in Borough Council
responsibility.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn
2020

Action 8

Identify risks and any mitigation that affect the
water courses and any appropriate adaptations
that can be implemented or promoted.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March
2021

Page 36

29

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 07

Meadow Planting &
Wildlife Corridors
Strand 07

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the
Green Infrastructure Strategy 2015 - 2030.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2022

Action 2

Determine and report how the green and
blue infrastructure can be enhanced to help
protect the environment for our native wildlife
corridors.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2021

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors project
strand delivery.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 5

Improvements to the existing meadow
grassland at Archers Field Recreation Ground,
Stapleford with scarification of the existing
grassland and over seeding with a dedicated
wild flower mix to create two large wild flower
meadows.

Park and Open
Space Manager

May 2020

Scarification
and seeding
completed May
2020

Action 6

Introduction of strategic areas of annual
wildflower planting on highway verges at
Gin Close Way, Awsworth, Bilborough Road,
Nuthall, Narrow Lane, Watnall.

Park and Open
Space Manager

May 2020

Cultivation
of ground
and seeding
completed May
2020

Action 7

Introduction of additional areas of annual wild
flower planting on parks and green spaces at
Coronation Park, Eastwood and Inham Nook
Recreation Ground, Chilwell.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

May 2020

Cultivation
of ground
and seeding
completed May
2020

Action 8

Review of the Local Nature Reserve
Management Plan for King George V Park,
Bramcote to identify acid grassland areas and
a strategic approach to their management.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

August
2020

Action 9

Identify further areas for annual seed,
wildflower seed and bird crop seed sowing on
parks and green spaces and highway verges at
strategic locations.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

Summer
2020

30

Page 37

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Meadow Planting & Wildlife Corridors
Strand 07

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 10

Assess sites for species rich grasslands that
with a change in management could become
more favourable for biodiversity. This will be
done working with the County Biodiversity
Officer and Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust.
Significant sites that offer further potential
include the Nottingham Canal, Bramcote Hills
Park acid grassland, Colliers Wood with the
introduction of yellow rattle to keep grasses
down and over seeding with native species.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

Review
Summer
2021 and
Implement
Spring
2022

Action 11

Identify areas within woodlands with potential
to improve ground flora.

Parks and Open
Spaces Managerr

Review
Summer
2022 and
Implement
Spring
2023

Action 12

Opportunities to undertake grass cutting and
collection will be further explored utilising
the additional revenue budget to fund the
expensive grass collection and disposal.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

Review
Summer
2021 and
Implement
Spring
2022

Action 13

The Management Plans for the Local Nature
Reserve will continue to be assessed and
opportunities for changes to maintenance
schedules for grass areas considered to help
enhance and improve areas of grassland
meadow.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

Review
Summer
2022 and
Implement
Spring
2023

Action 14

Opportunities arising from the Green
Infrastructure Strategy will continue to be
monitored.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

Review
Summer
2020 and
Implement
Spring
2021

Action 15

Consider opportunities to increase the number
of allotments.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2022

Action 16

Work with allotment holders to create
composting ambassadors.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2022

Action 17

Consider how the Council may create / support
the provision of community food planting areas
in addition to the current allotment provision.

Parks and Open
Spaces Manager

March
2023

Page 38

Completed

31

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 08

Tree Planting
Strand 08

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the Tree
Planting Strategy 2018. Including Specimen
tree planting schemes using large trees.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March
2020

Action 3

Determine and report on how the Tree Planting
Strategy can be enhanced to help provide
greater opportunities to encourage residents,
schools and businesses to plant more trees
and look at innovative ways.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Summer
2021

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Tree Planting project strand delivery.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March
2020

Action 5

Second tree giveaway event with small
ornamental trees suitable for gardens.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

January /
February
2021

Action 6

Create additional pocket orchard at an
allotment site or appropriate community site.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 7

Identify a site for new hedge planting in excess
of 50m.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 8

Identify opportunities to implement new pocket
parks taking advantage of central government
funding.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 9

Implement appropriate signage including
the potential for information boards in parks,
explaining how and why the Council manages
the environment in the way that it does.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn 2021

Action 10 Undertaken planting work to enhance existing
woodlands.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 11

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

32

Creation of new woodland copses protected by
fencing.

Page 39

Completed

Completed
March 2020

Completed
March 2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 09

Recycling
Strand 09

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to embed the intent within the Single
Use Plastics Policy 2018 including for example
reducing the use of plastic bags in refuse and
the wider Council.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2021

Action 2

Develop a programme of activity to ensure that
additional resources are immediately effective
from appointment.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 4

Work with the Nottinghamshire Joint Waste
Management Group to lobby for additional
materials to be recycled.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2021

Action 5

Develop further video and educational material
for schools, businesses, households, and
employees in order to encourage behavioural
change in regards to recycling.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2021

Action 6

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Recycling project strand delivery.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2020

Completed
March 2020

Action 7

Create of a new recycling officer role whose
purpose is to promote the principles of the
Waste Hierarchy, promote good recycling
behaviour and responsible waste management
practices.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

June 2020

Completed June
2020

Action 8

Work in partnership with charities, for example
on Clean and Green Bulky Waste days, to
promote the reuse of items as an alternative to
disposal.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

Ongoing

Action 9

Evaluate the refuse and recycling rounds to
consider whether further efficiencies can be
made by round reconfiguration to reduce the
use of fuel and vehicle emissions.

Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

March
2022

Action 10 National Waste Strategy: Implement the
statutory measures aimed at increasing
recycling for example this may result in
additional infrastructure and resources being
needed for such as food waste collection and
disposal.

Head of
Environment /
Waste Services and
Strategy Manager

Summer
2021

Page 40

Completed

33

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 10

Housing Delivery
Strand 10

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Ongoing

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the
Housing Delivery Plan 2019 – 2029.

Head of Housing
Services

Action 2

Research eco-friendly methods of construction.

Head of Housing
Services

Action 3

Identification of potential solutions to reduce
on-going energy use, including:
• Air Source Heat Pumps
• Ground Source Heat Pumps
• PV Panels
• Water Conservation
• Energy efficient lighting
• Small wind turbines

Head of Housing
Services

December
2020

Action 4

Review of existing environmental solutions
included in new build developments at
Broxtowe Borough Council in last ten years,
including survey of tenant experience.

Head of Housing
Services

September
2020

Action 5

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Housing
Services

June 2020

Action 6

Determine and report on how the Housing
Delivery Plan can reduce carbon impact for all
new developments.

Head of Housing
Services

December
2020

Action 7

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Housing Delivery project strand delivery.

Head of Housing
Services

June 2020

Action 8

Analysis of repairs and maintenance costs for
our properties with energy efficient features,
since they were built.

Head of Housing

September
2020

34

Page 41

Completed

Completed June
2020

Completed June
2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 11

Housing
Improvements
Strand 11

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Formulate the appropriate response to the
outcome of the stock condition survey.

Capital Works
Manager

October
2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Capital Works
Manager

July 2020

Action 3

Research alternatives to conventional heating
systems and report finding.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2020

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Housing Improvements project strand delivery.

Capital Works
Manager

July 2020

Action 5

Install external wall insulation to the remaining
94 solid wall properties – this requires careful
assessment as most of them are hard to treat
as they are in Eastwood’s conservation area.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

Action 6

Stock Condition Survey: act on
recommendation to install external wall
insulation to 53 steel-framed properties in the
short term 1 – 5 years.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

Action 7

Consider how best to address the 30 properties
remaining with less-efficient gas boilers and
implement the solution / solutions.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2022

Action 8

Consider how best to address the 285
properties remaining with less efficient allelectric systems. In the short term these will
primarily be replaced with high heat retention
storage heaters, but air source heat pumps will
also be trialed at suitable properties.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

Action 9

The two new dementia-friendly bungalows at
Willoughby Street, Beeston will have air source
heat pumps with under floor heating and PV on
the roof.

Capital Works
Manager

March
2021

Page 42

Completed

Completed July
2020

Completed July
2020

35

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Housing Improvements
Strand 11

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 10

Trial emerging technology: The future of the
gas network is under review. Gas boilers are
being developed to work on both hydrogen and
gas. There is a stock of over 4000 gas boilers
in domestic properties. In the short term high
efficiency condensing boilers will continue to
be used, but emerging solutions will also be
trialed.

Capital Works
Manager

Ongoing

Action 11

Consideration will be given to retro-fitting of PV
panels – especially to stock that is not subject
to right to buy.

Capital Works
Manager

Summer
2021

Action 12

Loft insulation will continue to be upgraded to
the very latest standards every time that other
work is undertaken in a property.

Capital Works
Manager

Ongoing

36

Page 43

Completed

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 12

Core Strategy
and Planning
Strand 12

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Include proposals relating to energy efficiency
and climate change as part of ongoing work
on implementing Policy 17 of the Part 2 Local
Plan, ‘Place-making, design and amenity’.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

December
2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

June 2020

Action 3

Gather evidence, including viability evidence,
to inform ACS policies that will enforce /
expand on NPPF requirements regarding
energy efficiency and climate change.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

May 2021

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of
the Core Strategy / Planning project strand
delivery.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

May 2021

Action 5

Ensure that all Neighbourhood Plans include
reference to policies regarding climate change
and climate change mitigation.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

Ongoing

Action 6

Engaging with and ensuring the adoption of a
Toton Masterplan which contains innovative
proposals for an advanced model of living and
working which is highly sustainable.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

March
2021

Action 7

Complete the review of the Aligned Core
Strategy.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

December
2022

Action 8

Approve the council’s participation in a new
development corporation which will include
ambitious proposals for the development of an
international centre for zero carbon futures.

Chief Executive

March
2021

Page 44

Completed

Completed June
2020

37

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 13

Technology
Strand 13

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions contained within
the ICT Strategy 2017-2021.

ICT Manager

Ongoing

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Strategic Director

June 2020

Action 3

Monitor technology development to ensure
the Council is able to take advantage of
developments that are economically and
environmentally advantageous.

Strategic Director /
ICT Manager

Ongoing

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Technology project strand delivery.

Strategic Director

June 2020

Action 5

Continue to deliver the actions contained
within the Digital Strategy 2020-2024 including
building on the existing digital culture to
enhance the digital awareness, increase the
number of digital services for customers,
Members and employees.

Strategic Director
/ ICT Manager
/ Corporate
Communications
Manager

Ongoing

Action 6

Work with all parts of the organisation to
leverage the benefits achieved through the use
of technology during the COVID-19 emergency.

Strategic Director

August
2021

38

Page 45

Completed

Completed June
2020

Completed June
2020

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Air Quality
Strand 14

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to provide an annual Air Quality
Status Report for the Borough which is fit for
purpose.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

Ongoing

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

May 2020

Action 3

Continue to work with relevant partners in
order to bring about improvements in local air
quality.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

Ongoing

Action 4

Review the NO2 diffusion tubes network; take
proactive action to discontinue sites where the
annual air quality levels are comfortably below
the objective, and relocate them to new sites
within the Borough allowing the identification of
“problem‟ areas to be focussed on.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March
2021

Action 5

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Air Quality project strand delivery.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

October
2020

Action 6

To encourage employees of BBC to purchase
hybrid vehicles and electric vehicles for their
personal and business use.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March
2021

Action 7

Investigate the installation of vertical gardens,
using moss to absorb CO2 and particulate
matter.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March
2022

Page 46

Completed

Completed May
2020

39

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 15

Hospitality &
Support Services
Strand 15

Action

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Completed

Action 1

Determine and report on approaches that can
further reduce the use of single use resources
in both the areas of hospitality and support
services.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Completed May
2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Completed May
2020

Action 3

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Hospitality / Support project strand delivery.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Completed May
2020

Action 4

Investigate the use of environmentally-friendly
cleaning products using only naturally derived
materials which has a less damaging effect on
the environment.

Head of
Administration

March
2021

40

Page 47

Broxtowe Borough Council

Communications
Plan
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 48

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Communications
Plan
Contents
1.0

Introduction

43

2.0

Context

43

3.0

Communications Plan

43

3.1

Situation analysis

43

3.2

Audiences

44

3.3

Branding

44

3.4

Launch

44

3.5

Objectives

44

3.6

Key messages

45

3.7

Tactics

45

3.8

Measures of success

45

3.9

Responsibilities

45

3.10 Budget

42

45

Page 49

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Communications
Plan
1.0 Introduction
This Communications and Engagement Plan outlines a multi-channel approach to promote
how the Council is taking climate change seriously and working proactively to tackle it. It also
highlights how behavioural science techniques can be used to ‘nudge’ our communities to
take action on climate change.

2.0 Context

The objectives for this priority are to “protect the

In July 2019, the Council declared a ‘Climate

environment for the future” by:

Change Emergency’ and committed to becoming

■

net carbon neutral by 2027.

Develop plans to reduce our carbon
emissions to zero and start implementing

Considerable work has taken place since 2009

them.
■

Invest in our parks and open spaces.

promotion of these has been limited.

■

Increase recycling and composting.

Climate Change is becoming an increasingly

3.0 Communications Plan

to reduce the Council’s carbon emissions but

important and high profile issue, not just for the
Council but for the people it serves. A Steering

3.1 Situation analysis

Group has been created to lead on a number of
strands and strategies to help reach our carbon
neutral target as part of an overarching Climate
Change Strategy.
The vision for the Climate Change Strategy is to:
Act now! to reduce the Council’s carbon
footprint to net zero by 2027 and influence,
encourage and assist households,
businesses and schools within the Borough
to strive towards the same goal
The Environment is also a key priority of the
Council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024.

Page 50

Strengths
Council is seen a
trustworthy
Lots of work
already completed

Weaknesses
Lack of promotion to
date

Opportunities
Topical issue

Threats
Lack of buy in from
stakeholders
Balancing the needs of
the campaign with all
of the Council’s other
campaigns
Ensuring a regular
flow of information is
communicated

43

Broxtowe Borough Council

3.2

Audiences

Campaign activity will be adapted to suit the

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

3.5

Objectives

1. Develop a communications programme

variety of groups that the Council needs to

to raise awareness of what the Council is

communicate with e.g. age groups, ethnic

doing to tackle climate change and reduce

groups, businesses and internal stakeholders.

its carbon emissions

In addition, audiences will be divided into three

■ Develop a ‘did you know’ multi-channel
campaign to showcase past achievements

main categories:
1. Already engaged with Climate Change

and current progress
■ Use storytelling techniques to engage

Promote and reward behaviour and

residents in what we are doing and how they

encourage them to support others

can contribute e.g. infographics, video

2. Want to engage but need support

■ Audit existing materials and national
campaigns that can be utilised

Ensure information and support is available
to help them change their behaviour and
celebrate their success
3. Not engaged and unlikely to engage on this
subject
Understand the reasons why they aren’t
engaged

3.3

Branding

A clear and consist brand will be developed
for the campaign called ‘Green Futures’. This

2. Use the EAST framework to ‘nudge’
residents and encourage them to change
their behaviour to reduce their carbon
footprint
■ Make information about recycling easy to
find, understand and act upon
■ Make being more conscious about recycling
an attractive proposition
■ Create social opportunities to promote
recycling and other positive actions

will help bring all the activities together and
also helps to support the idea of shared goals

■ Ensure that messages about recycling are
timely

between the Council and residents.
The Green Futures Campaign also links in with

3. Use the EAST framework to ‘nudge’

the Pride in Parks Campaign and overarching

businesses and encourage them to change

Clean and Green campaign. These links will

their behaviour to reduce their carbon

be highlighted in promotional material where

footprint

appropriate.

3.4

Launch

■ Make information about recycling easy to
find, understand and act upon
■ Make being more conscious about recycling

The Green Futures campaign has been
gradually introduced in communication content
for several months but a long term campaign is
expected to commence early in 2020.

an attractive proposition
■ Create social opportunities to promote
recycling and other positive actions
■ Ensure that messages about recycling are
timely

44

Page 51

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4. Educate and encourage internal

Make it

stakeholders to help them reduce their
carbon footprint
■ Create a hospitality framework
■ Review internal bins
■ Training sessions

ATTRACTIVE

Allowing people to
‘go with the flow’ by
removing or reducing
effort, stops.

Presenting benefits
in a way that
maximizes perceived
value. This includes
increasing the
silence of your offer.

Make it

Make it

■ Intranet page
■ Promotional campaign

Make it

EASY

SOCIAL

■ Member Briefing pack

Harnessing social /
peer ‘pressure’ by
showing desired
behaviours are are
supported by others
in a social group and
encouraging share
commitments .

5. Educate younger generations so thinking
about the environment becomes second
nature
■ Face to face engagement with schools
■ Utilise the Broxtowe Youth Mayor and
Broxtowe Youth Voice

TIMELY
Prompting when
people are likely to
be most receptive
and structuring/
phasing benefits to
make them more
immediate.

3.8 Measures of success

■ Training, resource packs and lesson plans

See detailed Communications Campaign Plan

3.6

Key messages

document in Appendix 2. This document provides

■ The Council takes climate change seriously
and is taking steps to protect the environment

the communications campaign, further information

for the future.

can be found in Appendix 6.

■ We can and should all make small changes
to help tackle climate change.

3.7

measures of success for appropriate elements of

3.9 Responsibilities
The Corporate Communications Team will lead
on implementation of the Communications Plan

Tactics

in conjunction with the Steering Group and other

The Council will utilise a range of
communications tools and channels including:
Digital

Print

Video
Social media
Email Me
Website
Intranet
Internal
newsletters
Briefing
packs

External
newsletters
Press
releases
Photo
opportunities

Face to Face
Direct
engagement
with
stakeholder
groups
Training

relevant Officers.

3.10 Budget
It is expected that most costs can be met within
existing communications budgets. Proposed
activities which require additional funding will be
highlighted.

In addition, the Government Behavioural
Insights Team’s EAST framework will be utilised
to encourage behaviour change amongst
stakeholders.

Page 52

45

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Project Strands
02 Fuel
03 Transport and Fleet Strategy
04 Energy and Building Infrastructure
05 Employee and Business Mileage
06 Water Courses
07 Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors
08 Tree Planting
09 Recycling
10 Housing Delivery
11 Housing Improvements
12 Core Strategy / Planning
13 Technology
14 Air Quality
15 Hospitality / Support

Page 53

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 02

Fuel

Page 54

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 02

Fuel
Contents
1.0

Introduction

49

2.0

Transport Fuel

49

3.0

Net Carbon Zero
3.1 Fuel Details

49
50

4.0

Achievements

50

5.0

Strategic Actions

51

48

Page 55

<< page >>

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 02

Fuel
1.0

Introduction

The Council’s Corporate Plan for the period 2020 to 2024 identifies a vision for the
Council of developing a “greener, safer, healthier Broxtowe where everyone prospers.”
The priority for the Environment is to “Protect the

3.0 Net Carbon Zero

Environment for the Future” to which is linked to

Calculating the carbon footprint of transport fuel

the aim to reduce the Council’s carbon emissions.

used by the Council comes under Scope 1 of the

The Corporate plan sets a target for the Council
of being a carbon net zero organisation by

analysis (see Appendix 1 for more details and
explanation of Scope 1, 2 and 3) and is defined
as direct emissions from controlled or owned

2027. To achieve this the Climate Change and
Green Futures programme has been developed

resources.

which aims to leverage the power of the whole

The Council’s vehicle and plant fleet are critical

organisation for the purpose of reducing the

assets that are required for delivering statutory

Council’s carbon footprint.

and income generating services; these include
waste, recycling, glass, trade and garden

The Climate Change and Green Futures
programme consists of 15 strands, one of which
covers fuel.

2.0

collections, maintenance of public buildings,
grounds maintenance, street cleansing,
maintenance of Council housing stock.
The table below details the quantities of transport

Transport Fuel

fuel use for transport purposes during the periods

The Council’s emissions from transport fuel

2018-2020:

account for 36% (831TCO2e) of the Council’s
total emissions with the majority of this figure
arising from the running of the refuse and
cleansing fleet.
A “Net Carbon Zero” is defined as achieving a
balance between CO2 emitted against a similar
quantity of CO2 absorbed from the atmosphere
with the primary purpose of assisting in reducing
the impact of global warming caused by the

Fleet Fuel Consumption

Diesel Litres
Gas / Oil Litres

greenhouse effect of carbon dioxide.

Petrol Litres

Page 56

Quantity
2018/19

Quantity
2019/20

299,191

308,647

16,802

16,471

8,225

11,016

49

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

3.1 Fuel Details

4.0 Achievements

Fuel supplied meets the following standards:

The recent Carbon Trust report compares the

■

Diesel used meets BS EN standard 590 the
standard defined for transport use in the UK
and Europe.

■

Gas Oil meets BS 2869 Class 2. Gas Oil is
a “dual purpose” fuel having a high calorific
value (heat content) and is used by the
Council in diesel engines fuelling off-thehighway equipment such as tractors.

■

Unleaded Petrol meets BS EN 228 /2012
E5 which meets the standards defined for
transport use in the UK and Europe.

Emissions from vehicles are particularly
damaging to health (carbon monoxide,
particulate matter and nitrogen oxides)
and are controlled by increasingly stringent
exhaust emission limits managed through the
requirement to fit euro standard engines and the
annual MOT process.

Council’s progress in respect to its carbon
emissions over the period 2009 to 2019 and
identifies options for reducing fleet emissions.
The trend towards fleet emission controls
started in 1970 when the first European exhaust
emissions standard for passenger cars was
introduced. The next big change occurred in
1992 with the ‘Euro 1’ standard engine requiring
the fitting of catalytic converters and the switch to
unleaded petrol.
The introduction of the Euro 6 standard engines
in 2014 saw a 55% reduction in emissions from
diesel engines compared to the Euro 5 standard
introduced in 2009.
The Council’s capital vehicle replacement
program over the period from 2009 to 2019
has ensured that the current composition of the
vehicle fleet and related emission controls have
developed such that of the 87 vehicles in the

The graph below provides comparative CO2e
emission details for the range of vehicle and
plant types operated by the Council.

fleet:
■

7 vehicles have Euro 4 engines - 9%

■

58 vehicles have Euro 5 engines - 64 %
(Improved particulate control)

800
700

■

600

22 vehicles have Euro 6 engines - 27%
(Further improvements in Nitrogen Oxide

500

emissions)

400
300

In considering fleet emissions two tables

200

identifying improvements have been developed

100

details of which are provided below:

50

D
ie
s
lo el R
rri
e ig
In
du s id
Tr M str
ac a ia
to ch l M
rs ine o
G ry- bile
as
O
il
G
M
E
Pe quip
tro m
l en
t

s
an

E
D qui
ie pm
se e
l
nt

G
M

lv
se
ie
D

R
Sw efu
ee se a
pe nd
rs

0

■

Table 1 details improvements in the Council’s
fleet emissions performance during the
period 2009 to 2019 identifying actions that

Page 57

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

the Council has taken to reduce vehicle
emissions
■

Table 2 identifies actions that are proposed
over the next five years that will assist
the Council in moving its carbon footprint
towards carbon neutral status.

Table 1- Broxtowe Council - Vehicle Emission
Improvements during the period 2009 to 2019
Achievements

Achievements

Actions

This has been achieved

Technical

through efficient rescheduling

Improve-

Improved

of the refuse collection

ments

Fuel

rounds which has reduced

Euro 5

Economy

distances travelled resulting

2009

in a reduction of fuel usage by

Euro 6

32,000 litres.

2014

The introduction of the In-Cab

Technology

ensuring effective and efficient
communication between

Regular
Maintenance

drivers and base.

Ongoing

The use of the Vehicle

optimized through improved
engine efficiencies; this has
been achieved through the
fitting at source of Euro 5 and
Euro 6 engines. Of the xx
number of vehicles in the fleet
56 vehicles have a combination

Regular maintenance

link between core property
assets and collection vehicles

Fleet design which has been

of Euro 5 and 6 engines.

IT system that provides a direct
In-Cab

Actions

ensures high levels of vehicle
performance and low levels
of emissions and to achieve
this LGV’s are serviced every
10 weeks and vans and light
commercials are serviced

Monitoring IT system which

annually

enables remote monitoring of
Vehicle

driver performance ensuring

Monitoring

compliance with road speed

– Efficient

limits and effective management

5.0 Strategic Actions

Driving

of driver performance through

The strategic actions shown in Table 2 below

2011/12

monitoring of harsh acceleration

include a recognition that until technological

and braking. (LGV’s are limited

developments allow, heavy haulage will require

to 56 MPH whilst vans and light

the continued use of diesel engines. However,

commercials are restricted to 70

fuel improvements and resource efficiencies will

MPH)

be achieved through more effective scheduling

Page 58

51

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

for dry recycling and garden waste collections. Vehicle
emissions monitoring, to provide individual measures to
reduce vehicle emissions and enable informed decision
making with regards to the vehicle capital replacements
programme. Driver behaviour training to improve safety,
fuel economy, tyre performance, extended vehicle life and
reduced emissions. Introduction of more electric vehicles
as a result of improvements in the average range before
charging, on average small Council vans drive no more
than 100 miles per week (5,000 miles per annum).

Strand 02

Fuel

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

August 2020

Action 2

Reschedule the dry recycling rounds in order to
deliver economies in regards to fuel usage and better
utilisation of vehicles in the fleet.

Transport and
Stores Manager

March 2021

Action 3

Reschedule the green waste rounds in order to
deliver economies in regards to fuel usage and better
utilisation of vehicles in the fleet.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2021

Action 4

Technology: Proactively monitor vehicle emissions
utilising the Fuel Monitoring IT System utilising
analysis to inform capital replacement programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

Action 5

Technology: Utilising data from the on board Vehicle
Monitoring IT System (for example recording harsh
braking, excessive speeding and harsh cornering)
inform the delivery of a programme of driver training
– this will address safety, fuel economy, extended
vehicle life and reduced emissions.

Transport and
Stores Manager

November
2020

Action 6

Technology: Introduction of electric vehicles and plant
where practical and economic aligned to the capital
replacement programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

Action 7

Technology: Introduction of electric solutions for plant
equipment where practical and economic aligned to
the capital replacement programme.

Transport and
Stores Manager

To be
completed
annually

52

Page 59

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 03

Transport and
Fleet Strategy

Page 60

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
STRAND 03

Transport and
Fleet Strategy
Contents
1.0

Introduction

55

2.0

Corporate Vision

55

3.0

Achievements
3.1
Fleet Policy from 2015 to 2020

56
56

4.0

Strategic Priorities for Transport and Fleet
4.1
Service Delivery
4.2
Maintaining Safety and Legal Compliance
4.3
Reduced Fleet Emissions
4.4
Fleet and Plant Procurement

57
58
59
60
61

5.0

Strategic Actions

63

54

Page 61

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 03

Transport and
Fleet Strategy
1.0

Introduction

This strategy provides a framework for the procurement and management of the Council’s
fleet and plant required to support the delivery of front line services. The services
supported include waste, recycling, garden, glass and trade collections, maintenance
of public buildings, grounds maintenance, street cleansing and maintenance of public
housing stock.

2.0

This commitment to reduce carbon emissions

Corporate Vision

The Council’s Corporate plan for the period 2020
to 2024 identifies a priority for the Environment
team of “Protecting the Environment for the
Future” to which is linked the aim to reduce the
Council’s Carbon Emissions to net zero by 2027.
A “Net Carbon Zero” is defined as achieving a
balance between CO2 emitted against a similar
quantity of CO2 absorbed from the atmosphere
with the primary purpose of assisting in reducing
the impact of global warming caused by the
greenhouse effect of carbon dioxide.

has required the Fleet and Transport section to
review and assess all new developments in fleet
and plant technology and when procuring new
vehicles and plant decisions will be made on
“Best Option” based on operational, as well as
environmental suitability and whole life cost.
The Council’s fleet and plant assets are
managed corporately by the Strategic Directors
Department. The heavy goods vehicle element
of the fleet is composed of vehicles over 3.5
tonnes made up primarily of refuse collection
vehicles.
The goods vehicle fleet is subject to the statutory
requirement for the Council to hold an Operating
Licence and employ a Transport Manager who
holds a Certificate of Professional Competence.

3.0

Achievements

The Transport and Fleet team manage a
diverse fleet of vehicles and plant consisting of

Page 62

55

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

approximately 87 vehicles and 200 plus items of

effective fleet management process

plant with a capital value of approximately £1.9

including monitoring costs associated with

million.

maintenance.
■

The chart below provides a baseline measure

freighters a mid-life refurbishment assisting

for the scale of the Council’s transport and fleet

the extension of vehicle life and for light

assets. No of vehicles represented by each slice

commercials vehicles and vans a mid-life

of the pie are shown in the diagram.
Refuse
Freighters
18

review of the vehicle’s body and paintwork in

Lorrys over
7.5 tonnes
4

order to protect against corrosion.
With the adoption of the vehicle life extension

Light
Commercials
14

Sweepers
4

The decision to implement for refuse

the total capital investment avoided based on a
twelve-year fleet cycle is £1.512 million or £625K
from the period 2015 to 2020.
The oldest vehicles in the fleet at January 2020
are just over 12 years old.
The Council has adopted a low emissions
hierarchy for new vehicle procurement. The
hierarchy provides a starting point when

Tractors
3

Large Vans
35

considering options for vehicle and plant

Small Vans
9

acquisitions.

Fleet Emissions Hierarchy
1. Battery Electric Vehicles

3.1 Fleet Policy from 2015 to

2. Electric Hybrid

2020
In 2015 a review of the mechanical worthiness of
the fleet was undertaken. The review concluded

3. Hydrogen Vehicles
4. Retrofit Options

that the operating life expectancy of fleet
assets which in 2015 was based on a 7 year

5. Petrol

replacement programme could be extended from

6. Diesel

7 to 12 years.

Euro 6

7. Diesel

Retrofit Comliant Exhaust

To support the life extension two actions were

8. Diesel
Euro 5

implemented, these being:
■

9.
Red
Diesel

The introduction of a specialist Fleet
Management IT system enabling a more

56

Page 63

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

The table below identifies the achievements made in the Broxtowe Fleet during the period 2015 to 2020
Achievements
Extension of vehicle

Actions
This has been achieved through a fundamental review of fleet mechanical

life from 7 to 12 years

worthiness giving consideration to three factors these being: 1 The condition of

2015 to 2019

the vehicles chassis, body, engine and gearbox 2 The mechanical condition of
the working elements of the vehicle i.e. the loading and packing mechanisms
3 The ongoing maintenance costs. This has reduced for a refuse freighter
the requirement for capital investment by £7k per vehicle over the twelve-year
period of life. Making a total cost avoidance saving for the fleet of 18 vehicles
of £1.512 million over a twelve-year life period. This saving figure includes the
refurbishment costs shown below.

The introduction of

The introduction of the IT Fleet management system provides a whole life man-

a dedicated IT Fleet

agement tool that plans and manages plant and vehicle maintenance and asso-

Management System in ciated costs. This initiative has enabled efficient and effective fleet management
2017 onwards

by monitoring fleet and plant costs at unit level making a saving in the region of
10-15% through centralising a wide range of key legislative and administrative
functions.

Mid Life Refurbishment

To support vehicle life extension a programme of mid life refurbishment has

2016-2019

been introduced. For the larger vehicles such as refuse freighters that has
involved major body refurbishment of packing and loading mechanisms and for
smaller light commercial vehicles repair of small scale corrosion points on the
vehicles body. The annual costs for such work being £67K

Adoption of new tech-

As part of the corporate programme to move to carbon neutral status the Coun-

nology- Electric vehi-

cil in 2019 purchased two fully electric vans. The capital investment in these

cles

vehicles being £37.6K The advantages of investing in the new technology is the
improvements in emissions and the fact that the whole life costs of electric light
commercial vehicles are lower than similar traditional fossil fuelled vehicles.
The comparison being 15p per mile for diesel against 3p per mile for electric
propulsion.

4.0 Strategic Priorities for Transport and Fleet
To achieve the Council’s vision of carbon net zero status by 2027 and focusing where economically
appropriate on the use of electric vehicles the fleet and transport strategy will develop and deliver four
strategic priorities, these being:
■

Service delivery

■

Safety and legal compliance

■

Fleet emissions

■

Fleet and plant procurement

Page 64

57

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.1 Service Delivery

will be followed:

The principle of this priority is to ensure that

■

Low emission considerations

operational front line departments are provided

■

Appropriate size, payload and gross vehicle

with the:
■

weight of vehicle considered

Correct vehicle type and plant that will

■

Manufacturer support for parts availability

■

Purchase price

■

Fuel consumption

whilst delivering services.

■

Production lead times

That the vehicles and plant provided are

■

Lifespan and replacement plan Whole life

enable them to deliver efficient and effective
services.
■
■

That staff and public safety is maintained

costs

compliant with national regulations and
statutory requirements.

The chart below provides an example of the

To meet the above objectives a rigorous

procedure followed when sourcing a refuse

selection regime based on the following criteria

collection freighter.

Example 1: Refuse Freighter
Selection criteria applied to the procurement of a Dennis Elite Refuse Collection Vehicle
Vehicle and Plant Selection
Objectives

Choice Criteria

Vehicle Chosen

Low emission onsiderations

Euro 6 engine / Electric / Hydrogen

Euro 6 based on whole life
cost

Appropriate size, payload and gross
vehicle weight of vehicle considered

Variable options in size and payload

32t 8x4 Rear Steer 14t
payload

Manufacturer support for parts
availability

Manufacturer and factor parts

A mixture of both

Purchase price

Notts. Consortium tender framework
Euro 6

£168k

Workshop preference for
maintenance

Dennis Euro 6 due to workshop
requirements

Dennis Elite Euro 6

Pre purchase trials

Through manufacturer demo.

Dennis Elite Euro 6

Driver and Operator preference for
optimum production

Through manufacturer demo.

Dennis Elite Euro 6

Fuel consumption

Dennis Euro 6

4.8 MPG

Production lead times

12 weeks

Dennis Elite Euro 6

Lifespan and replacement plan

7 years extend to 12 with mid-life

Dennis Elite Euro 6

refurbishment
Whole life costs

Dennis Euro 6

Dennis Euro 6. Electric/
Hydrogen unknown at this
point due to infrastructure
requirements.

58

Page 65

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Example 2: Light Commercial Vehicle
Selection criteria applied to the procurement of small vans
Small Van Selection Objectives

Choice Criteria

Vehicle Chosen

Low emission considerations

Euro 6 engine / Electric

Electric based on whole
life cost and emissions

Appropriate size, payload and gross
vehicle weight of vehicle considered

Sub 2 tonne Panel Van

Sub 2 Tonne Panel Van

Manufacturer support for parts
availability

Manufacturer and factor parts

A mixture of both

Purchase price

Notts. Consortium tender framework
Electric Vehicles

£18.5k

Workshop preference for
maintenance

Specialist maintenance required need
to consider training options.

Nissan NV200 Electric

Pre purchase trials

Through manufacturer demo.

Nissan NV200 Electric
Vehicle

Driver and Operator preference for
optimum production

Through manufacturer demo.

Dennis Elite Euro 6

Fuel consumption

Nissan NV200 Electric Vehicle

0.03p per mile

Production lead times

12 weeks

Nissan NV200 Electric
Vehicle

Lifespan and replacement plan

12 years with mid-life refurbishment

Nissan NV200 Electric
Vehicle

Whole life costs

Nissan NV200 Electric Vehicle

4.2 Maintaining Safety and Legal
Compliance
The purpose of this priority is to ensure that all

To meet the above objectives, the following have
been introduced:
■

record maintenance schedules and repairs,

safe and legal condition.

monitor fuel use and emissions and ensure

To meet this objective, the transport and fleet

regulatory compliance.

team will ensure:

■
■

The Fleet Management IT system is utilised
to manage vehicles and assets, control and

vehicles and plant are maintained and kept in a

■

£25.5k zero emissions.

That all vehicles and plant are compliant

■

Vehicle technicians will receive continuous

with UK transport and plant regulations

professional development ensuring

That vehicle lifespan is maximised through

professional skills keep pace with

effective planned maintenance

technological developments in vehicle
technology, this includes on board weighing

That staff and public safety is not
compromised by poorly maintained vehicles
or equipment

systems, emission control developments,
engine technology Euro 6 and 7 and electric/
hydrogen and hybrid vehicle technology.

Page 66

59

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.3 Reduced Fleet Emissions
Fuel used by the Council’s transport and plant
fleet falls under Scope 1 (see Appendix 1 for
more details and explanation of Scope 1, 2 and
3) and composes 36% of the Council of carbon
footprint in 2018/19.
The table below shows the Council’s use of
fuel for transport purposes and the related
consequence in CO2e produced:
require the continued use of diesel engines.

Tons of CO2e

However, fuel improvements and resource

700

efficiencies will be achieved through more
effective scheduling.

600

■

500

small vans and light commercials with a

400

revenue weight of less than 2.5 tonnes
electric vehicles where practical and

300

economic will be introduced.

200

■

100

For HGVs continuing dependence will
continue for the short term on Euro 6 diesel
engines.

id
lo
al
rri
M
es
- T ob
ra ile
ct M
or a
s ch
G in
as e
G
M
O ry
il
Eq
ui
pm
en
tP
et
ro
l

l
se
ie

For vans and light commercials where
practical and economically cost effective

st
ri

D

ie

se
l

R
ig

tD

■

the introduction of hybrid or full electric

In

du

G

M

Re

Eq

fu
s

e

ui

D

ie

pm
en

se

lv

Sw
ee

an

pe

s

rs

0

an
d

Alternative Technologies - When procuring

vehicles will be adopted. With respect to
To meet the objective of reducing emissions

this initiative in 2019 the transport fleet

will require a mix of initiatives and details of the

procured 2 fully (Ultra Low Electric vehicles)

proposals to achieve the required reductions are

electric vehicles and for the coming year

set under the Fuel Report part of the Climate

2020 for vehicles in the revenue category

Change and Green Futures Programme.

up to 3.5 tonnes hybrid electric vehicles

A summary of the actions to be implemented as

if economically cost effective will be
considered.

part of the Fuel Project Strand within the Climate
Change and Green Futures Programme are set

■

Vehicle Emission Monitoring - Individual

out below:

vehicle emission monitoring will be

■

adopted utilising data provided by the Fuel

Rescheduling - Until technological

Monitoring IT system.

developments allow, heavy haulage will

60

Page 67

Broxtowe Borough Council

■

■

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Driver Behaviour Training - Will be

which consists of the 9 Nottinghamshire local

introduced based on data provided by the

authorities who have joined together to jointly

Vehicle Monitoring IT system. The system

source refuse collection vehicles, panel vans

monitors drivers’ performance and uses the

and transits, tyre management, driver training

data to support a driver training programme.

and fleet software services.

For small hand operated plant battery
powered hand tools such as electric drills,
hedge trimmers, strimmers, chainsaws are
replacing traditional fossil fueled models.

■

The Nottinghamshire Group was formed in
response to the Roots Review 2009 which
looked into the arrangements by local
government for achieving efficiencies in

Mowers (including stand on and sit on
mowers), flails and similar plant; alternatives

procurement.

to fossil fuel will be considered using

Since its inception the procurement group has

the Fleet Emission Hierarchy to inform

saved over £8,000 per refuse freighter procured

procurement decisions .

and over 35% for each light commercial vehicle

4.4 Fleet and Plant Procurement
To support the investment required to fund the
Council’s transport and fleet assets the Council
through its medium terms financial strategy

sourced. For Broxtowe the savings achieved for
refuse freighters since 2015 is £48K (6 Vehicles)
and for light commercials £151K (11 Vehicles).
In procuring new replacement vehicles and

provides the necessary funding.

plant, user service departments are consulted

All vehicles and plant are purchased outright.

SMART principles of specificity, measurable,

and must provide a business case utilizing the
attainable, relevant, and time-bound before

To manage the fleet and plant procurement

vehicles and plant are purchased.

required a 5 year capital replacement
programme is in place.

When replacing an existing vehicle or item of

Details of the proposed investment programme
for the period 2021 until 2025 are provided below.
Fleet and Plant Capital Investment Amount
2020/21

£736k

2021/22

£701K

2022/23

£600K

2023/24

£584K

2024/25

£568K

plant the following criteria will be taken into
consideration:
■

Condition of existing vehicle

■

Existing fleet utilization

■

Mileage the vehicle is expected to
undertake

■

Requirements of the user departments

■

Whole life costs

■

Alternative technologies available for light
commercial vehicles with a revenue weight

To support the procurement process,

of less than 3.5 Tonnes where the potential

the Council utilises the services of the
Nottinghamshire Wide Joint Procurement Group

Page 68

exist for low emission vehicles, this may

61

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

include ultra-low electric vehicles, hybrids or
hydrogen fuel cells.
■

Types of fuel and alternatives available
– A key strategic action with respect to
the adoption of electric/hydrogen vehicle
technology is the availability of the electrical/
hydrogen infra-structure that will support the
growth in both commercial and domestic
use of electric vehicles, details of which are
provided below.

The Council has installed 28 electric vehicle
charging points in Beeston, Stapleford, Kimberley
and Eastwood with funding provided from Go Ultra
Low Cities Project.
Electric vehicle drivers can access the charge
points using an app or RFID card.
Residents and businesses with a postcode
in Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, Derby or
Derbyshire can to take advantage of the reduced
tariff of 20p per Kilowatt (correct at time of writing)
when using D2N2 charging points.
To support the Council’s own electric vehicle fleet
two twin electric vehicle charging points have
been installed, one at Kimberley Depot and one
on the Civic Offices in Beeston.

62

Page 69

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

5.0 Strategic Actions
In considering the Transport and Fleet Strategy the table below presents the strategic actions to be adopted
during the period 2020 until 2024 that will assist in enabling the Council to achieve net carbon zero by 2027.
Strand 03

Transport

Responsible
Officer

Target
Date

August
2020

March
2022

Action 1

Create a new Transport and Fleet Strategy with a focus where
economically appropriate on electric vehicles.

Action 2

Develop a plan for the further introduction of appropriate infrastructure
to support potential growth in the electric fleet and growth in domestic
use of electric vehicles.

Transport
and Stores
Manager
Transport
and Stores
Manager

Action 3

Using available data, produce a report on vehicle types registered in
the Borough along with scenarios indicating the behavioural change
necessary to help achieve net zero by 2027.

Transport
and Stores
Manager

Action 4

Capture and analyse the achievements to date to inform the approach
moving forward and the overarching communications programme.

Action 5

Technology - The Council has a fleet of 8 small vans (Below 2 Tonnes).
Two of these vehicles have already been replaced with all electric
vehicles and over the period to 2024 the remaining 6 vehicles where
practical and economic (As they reach a life of 12 years) will be
replaced with all electric models.

Transport
and Stores
Manager

20212024

Action 6

Capital Investment - The Capital Vehicle replacement programme for
those HGV's (Refuse Freighters 26 Tonnes) identified for replacement
will be replaced with Euro standard engines ( Euro 6 Onwards ).
Before purchasing consideration will be given based on practicality and
economics of the adoption of new technologies that have come to market
this includes potential electric and hydrogen propulsion methods.

Transport
and Stores
Manager

20212024

Action 7

Technology - For small plant such as hedge trimmers, blowers, and
strimmers where practical and economic these will be replaced with
electric powered units. Technological developments in this field are
rapid and the Grounds Maintenance Manager has been tasked with
keeping abreast of new developments and trialling new developments
as they come to market.

Action 8

Technology - Working pro-actively with the Nottingham Vehicle
Consortium (District Councils) and industry suppliers a watching brief
will be maintained on new and developing technologies this includes IT
developments, and the move towards electric and hydrogen traction for
heavy goods vehicles. Decisions on purchasing new technologies will
depend on practical and economic factors when consideration is being
given with regards to acquisition of this new technology.

Transport
and Stores
Manager

Through
to 2024

Action 9

Green number plates. The Department of Transport / Gov UK is currently
consulting on the introduction of green number plates as a means of
differentiating vehicles whose carbon footprint is low or negligible based
on their environmental impact and tailpipe emissions. If adopted the
council will wish to provide community leadership by displaying such
number plates on its vehicles that meet such low emission standards.

Transport
and Stores
Manager

2020

Page 70

March
2022

Head of
August
Environment 2020

Grounds
2021Maintenance 2024
Manager

63

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 04

Energy & Building
Infrastructure

Page 71

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 04

Energy & Building
Infrastructure
Contents
1.0

Introduction

66

2.0

Corporate Vision

66

3.0

Strategic Actions

67

Page 72

65

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 04

Energy & Building
Infrastructure
1.0

Introduction

This part focuses on non-HRA buildings such as the leisure centres, Bramcote
Crematorium, council offices and sports pavilions in parks. When calculating the
organisation’s carbon footprint, energy and building infrastructure comes under scope 1
of the analysis in relation to gas, and scope 2 in relation to electricity (see Appendix 1 for
more details and explanation of Scope 1, 2 and 3).

2.0

Achievements

Office Building

The comparison between 2009/10 and 2018/19

Main Council Offices

is very encouraging - equating to a 53%

Measures Taken
•

reduction (for all buildings). This is due to a
•

variety of factors including:
■

A reduction in the number of buildings;

■

Implementation of a majority of the

•

measures set out in the 2009/10 Carbon
Management Plan (CMP).
The reduction in emissions from office buildings
has been the most dramatic at minus 84% and
is due to the following measures: Office Building

Measures Taken

Cavendish Lodge,
Beeston

Leased out July 2014
and sold April 2019

14 Devonshire
Avenue, Beeston

Sold February 2015

Eastwood cash office

Closed March 2016
and sold March 2018

Part-leased to
the Police April
2014
Solar Panels
installed October
2014
LED lighting
installed 2015/16

Since March 2019 the Town Hall has also been
sold which means a further reduction in office
building carbon emissions. All other types of
building have shown a marked reduction, for
reasons including: ■

Sale/demolition/lease of buildings such as
Durban House (2016), Beeston Bus Station
Toilets (2016), Maycliffe Hall Stapleford
(2016), Eastwood Cemetery Chapel (2018);

■

Reduction in the number of cremators from
three to two at Bramcote Crematorium
(leading to more efficient operation as less
heating/cooling);

66

Page 73

Broxtowe Borough Council

■

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Ongoing small scale replacement of
heating, hot water and lighting systems at
sports pavilions (NB. Due to the fact that
there is not a 5-year payback on most of
these projects as a result of low usage they
are replaced with more efficient systems as
and when they are life-expired).

The one exception to this pattern of reduction is
Kimberley Depot where gas use has increased
over the last 3 years, only one year being a cold
winter. This is being investigated.

footprint calculation counting all of its electricity
use and the consequent CO2 emissions.
However, should the Council decide in future to
take a “market based” approach to its carbon
footprint calculation, it is in a position to offset
499 tonnes of CO2 emissions.

The Council has purchased green energy
since 2013. On the advice of Carbon Trust has
taken a “location based” approach to its carbon

3.0 Strategic Actions
In considering the Energy and Building Infrastructure the table below presents the strategic actions to be
adopted the period 2020 until 2024 that will assist in enabling the Council to achieve net carbon zero by 2027.
Strand 04

Energy and Building Infrastructure

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date in regards to energy
consumption / creation to inform the approach moving forward and to
inform the overarching communications programme.

Head of
Property
Services

July 2020

Action 2

Determine and report on approaches that will assist in reducing the
organisations energy consumption further.

Head of
Property
Services

July 2020

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to date in regards to building
infrastructure to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Capital Works
Manager

July 2020

Action 4

Determine and report on approaches that will further assist the
Council’s building infrastructure reduce its carbon emission.

Head of
Property /
Capital Works
Manager

December
2020

Action 5

Leisure Centres (708t CO2e 2018/19): Replace the Combined
heating and Power (CHP) system at Bramcote (already budgeted for
in 2020/21).

Head of
Property
Services

October
2020

Page 74

67

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Strand 04

Energy and Building Infrastructure

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Action 6

Leisure Centres (708t CO2e 2018/19): Proceed with the Leisure
Facilities Strategy which may lead to more efficient new buildings
(longer term and requires very significant funding).

Head of
Property
Services

September
2020

Action 7

Bramcote Crematorium (308t CO2e 2018/19): Replace cremators
with more efficient new ones and install heat exchanger (funding
should become available from a land sale in 2021/22).

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

Action 8

Kimberley Depot (265t CO2e 2018/19): Investigate reasons for
recent increased of gas usage and introduce counter-measures .

Head of
Property
Services

March 2021

Action 9

Kimberley Depot (265t CO2e 2018/19): Introduce more LED lighting
(within existing approved budgets).

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

Action 10

Council Offices (77t CO2e 2018/19): Ensure heating and insulation is
optimised (within existing approved budgets).

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

Action 11

Sports Pavilions (60t CO2e 2018/19): Continue with ad-hoc
replacement of heating, hot water and lighting systems as older
less-efficient systems become due for replacement (within existing
approved budgets).

Head of
Property
Services

On-going

Action 12

Water: implementation of taps in all Council owned building to reduce
water consumption, metered bills and cost.

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

Action 13

Investigate further opportunities for the installation of solar panels on
Council Buildings for example the Depot

Head of
Property
Services

August 2021

Action 14

Investigate the energy management arrangements at the Crematorium
in order to identify opportunities to redirect excess energy for heating
and lighting.

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

Action 15

Investigate the opportunity to create a woodland burial site – achieving
eco burials within a woodland setting.

Head of
Property
Services

March 2022

It can be seen from the above table that, following the dramatic reduction in office buildings, the biggest
carbon wins will come from the leisure centres, Bramcote Crematorium and Kimberley Depot and so this is
where efforts will be focused.

68

Page 75

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 05

Employee &
Business Mileage

Page 76

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 05

Employee &
Business Mileage
Contents
1.0

Introduction

71

2.0

Business Mileage

71

3.0

Employee Home to Work Mileage

72

4.0

Analysis of the Employee Wellbeing Survey

73

5.0

Strategic Actions

73

70

Page 77

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 05

Employee &
Business Mileage
1.0

Introduction

When calculating the organisation carbon footprint business mileage comes under scope
3 of the analysis (see Appendix 1 for a more detailed explanation of scopes 1,2 and 3).
Employee mileage is considered a cost to the individual rather than the organisation but
the Climate Change and Green Futures steering group determined that it was important
to understand the impact on the environment of all regular journeys.

between 2008/09 and 2018/19. It is too early to
tell whether the small increase between 2017/18
and 2018/19 will have a negative impact on the
downward trend.
Three changes have been implemented by
the Council over the last 11 years and these
change have potentially assisted the reduction in
business mileage to varying degrees.

2.0

Business Mileage

■

(HMRC rate) from August 2013.

Business mileage is mileage undertaken by
employees in their own vehicles. Data was

■

extracted from the Human Resources and
Payroll system and then analysed in order to
inform this project strand.

Mileage rate changed to 45p per mile
VAT Receipt required when claiming mileage
with effect from April 2014.

■

Mileage claimed online via HR21 (the
Council’s Human Resources IT system) with
effect from April 2018.

The table below illustrates the reductions in
business mileage that have been achieved
over the last 11 years, a reduction of 58.7%

Page 78

71

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Year

% Reduction on
previous year

Miles

2018/19

173,679

-3.48

2017/18

167,833

15.61

2016/17

198,886

9.06

2015/16

218,700

5.84

2014/15

232,262

13.39

2013/14

268,179

1.84

2012/13

273,216

21.88

2011/12

349,739

4.78

2010/11

367,310

8.31

2009/10

400,611

4.65

2008/09

420,136

-












maintained or enhanced. A survey was
therefore developed to help capture the current
baseline so that future activity can be measured
accurately. The survey was online and provided
in paper format for non-PC users. The Human
Resource department reminded managers and
employees on numerous occasions in order to
encourage completion.
The results from the survey, while not complete
in terms of representing the entire work
force (478 employees), have provided some
interesting data.
Number of employees responded:

263

Council Business Miles Per Year
500,000

Number of commuting miles in cars
(petrol and diesel):

400,000

14,294.4 per week

300,000

Number of miles on bicycles:

200,000

159 per week

100,000

Number of miles on public transport:
9
/1

18

8

1,431 per week

20

7

/1
17

20

6

/1

20

16

5

/1

20

15

4

/1
14

20

3

/1
13

20

12

/1

12

11
/

20

20

0

/1
1

10

20

/1

/0
08

20

20

09

9

0

A more detailed survey is required moving
The reduction in carbon emissions achieved
between 2009/10 (127 tCO2e), the date of our

forward and this will be captured in the Strategic
Actions section below.

first carbon footprint assessment, and 2018/19
(64 tCO2e) the date of our most recent carbon
footprint, is 49.6%.

3.0

Employee Home to Work

Mileage

4.0

Analysis of the Employee

Wellbeing Survey
During the COVID-19 emergency there was a
need for most office based employees to work
from home. The Employee Wellbeing Survey

Employee home to work mileage is not fully

conducted during the emergency lockdown

understood particularly as new initiatives such

arrangements revealed that 59% of employees

as New Ways of Working have introduced

were happy working from home, utilising the

more agile working arrangements for some
employees, where service levels can be

72

new technology platforms, for example instant
messaging and video conferencing. A strategic

Page 79

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

action moving forward will therefore be to work with employees, managers and the wider organisation to
leverage the new technologies and agile working arrangements, in order to help reduce the impact that
employee home to work mileage has on the environment.

5.0

Strategic Actions

The table details the proposed actions
Strand 05

Business Mileage

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Capture and analyse the achievements to date in
regards to the reduction in business mileage to
inform the approach moving forward and to inform the
overarching communications programme.

Payroll and Job
Evaluations
Manager

March
2020

Action 2

Determine and report on approaches that may assist
in reducing the Council’s carbon emission impact of
business mileage.

Payroll and Job
Evaluations
Manager

October
2020

Action 3

Using the current employee home to work mileage
as a baseline repeat the survey annually to inform
the approach moving forward and the overarching
communications programme.

Action 4

HR Manager

March
2021

Leverage the new technologies and agile working
arrangements widely implemented and utilised during
the COVID-19 emergency in order to reduce the
impact that employees travelling to work has on the
environment.

Strategic Director /
Heads of Service

March
2021

Action 5

Employee Benefits: Consider the implementation of a
car leasing scheme enabling employees access to a
new vehicle. Include the promotion of electric vehicles
within the scheme.

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 6

Capture the achievements in order to inform the
communications programme and promote what good
looks like to Businesses within the Borough

Strategic Director

Action 7

Introduce home to work mileage survey as part of the
induction process for all new employees

HR Manager

Action 8

Consider the introduction of Cycle To Work promotion
(leave the car at home week / day)

HR Manager
/ Corporate
Communications
Manager

March
2021

Action 9

Consider approaching public transport organisations
to determine what promotions can be targeted at
Broxtowe employees for example Green Travel Deals

HR Manager

March
2021

Action 10 Consider the promotion of approaches that would allow
employees to lease / purchase a more environmentally
sustainable vehicle

Head of Protection
and HR

August
2021

Action 11 Review the Council’s mileage claim system to consider
how it may be used to make it more financially
attractive to employees that have an electric vehicle

Head of Protection
and HR

March
2022

Page 80

On-going

September
2020

73

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 06

Water
Courses

Page 81

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 06

Water Courses
Contents
1.0

Introduction

76

2.0

Past Achievements

76

3.0

Strand Achievements

77

4.0

Strategic Actions

78

Page 82

75

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 06

Water Courses
1.0

Introduction

The responsibility for the majority of the various water pathways, be it rivers, streams,
channels, drainage ditches rests with a range of different organisations and individuals
in the borough. Maintaining, improving and enhancing these pathways involves a
partnership approach involving Nottinghamshire County Council as the lead local flood
authority, the Environment Agency, the Canal and Rivers Trust, riparian owners together
with the Borough Council. The various watercourses and their differing micro habitats are
very important for wildlife with changing water levels, marginal vegetation, together with
areas of standing water and pools.

2.0

Achievements

The Council is very proud of the Nottingham
Canal which has been a local nature reserve
since 1993. It comprises 6 miles of disused
canal from Bramcote to Eastwood and is an
important wildlife corridor forming part of the
Erewash Valley Trail.
There are 6 brooks that the Borough is
responsible for maintaining:
■

Nether Green Brook, Eastwood

■

Beauvale Brook, Eastwood

■

Daisy Farm Brook, Giltbrook

■

George Avenue Allotments Brook, Chilwell

■

Gloucester Avenue Brook, Nuthall

■

Brinsley Brook, Brinsley

In 2017 working with Notts Wildlife Trust on
the ‘’Wetland Landscapes for All’’ project
various schemes were undertaken at Brinsley
Headstocks, Toton Fields and Hall om Wong.
At Brinsley Headstocks the Council working
with the Friends Group a series of ponds
and scrapes were created which have led to
increased biodiversity and helped intercept
run off and delay it reaching the watercourse.

Over the years the Council has invested
significant funds from the annual £30,000
drainage budget to keep these brooks running
by removing debris, cutting back vegetation and
clearing silt.

76

Page 83

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

Broxtowe Borough Council

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Improvements to wildlife meadows and

is a project to create a thriving river corridor for

woodland management at this site also help

fish, wildlife and people along the River Trent

intercept and slow rainwater run-off into the

through collaboration and engagement with

brook and improve water quality. Dragonfly and

communities and partners. The river is divided

amphibian records for the site show a significant

into 6 action zones with 2 of these in the borough:

increase in species and numbers since the
ponds established. At Toton Fields Local Nature
Reserve a very similar scheme was undertaken
on areas of grassland adjacent to the River

Zone 1 Sawley to Attenborough
Zone 2 Attenborough to Colwick
The proposed work here will include:

Trent. This again was undertaken through the
Council working with the Friends Group. At Hall
om Wong Local Nature Reserve restoration of a
dew pond and introduction of native wildflowers

■

Attenborough Nature Reserve.
■
■

Enhancement of the Council’s primary Trent
Valley Green Infrastructure Corridor.

water all year round and amphibians have been
recorded breeding.

Wetland creation and enhancement to
increase biodiversity.

was carried out. Water on this site provides a
very important habitat. The pond now holds

Improved access and interpretation in the

■

Improved surfacing and new seating along
the Big Track shared pedestrian and cycle

In March 2019 a project to remove non-native

route.

goldfish went viral with excellent positive

Through the partnership the Council will be

publicity. Goldfish are a problem invasive

actively involved in promoting and developing

species, highly predatory of native wildlife and

these initiatives.

notorious for disturbing sediment. Water in
main pond is now significantly clearer, aquatic
vegetation beginning to establish and insect life/
amphibian populations are recovering. This main

The winter of 2019/20 was a particularly
challenging one for the various water courses

pond intercepts an on-site drainage brook and
the over fall outlet from the pond now allows
clearer water back into the main watercourse.

3.0

Strand Achievements

Since the adoption of the Climate Change
Emergency on 17 July 2019 opportunities to
further manage and enhance the water course
have been explored.
Working with the Environment Agency the
Council are now partners on the Trent Gateway
Landscape Vision (see Water Courses Trent
Gateway Masterplan 2020 in Appendix 3). This

Page 84

77

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

in the borough with periods of prolonged and heavy
rainfall. Overall the impact of flooding was localised but
the Council working with partners and contractors did
undertake various one-off initiatives to clear debris from
various water courses to help mitigate the potential for
flooding.
On the Nottingham Canal significant progress has been
made along sections to control reeds and vigorous
aquatic vegetation. This has created channels to allow
wildfowl to move along the corridor with the open water
very important for fish, amphibians and insect life. At
the ponds at Brinsley Headstocks there has been good
volunteer engagement to remove invasive non-native
species from the ponds and the brook.

4.0

Strategic Actions

The table below details the proposed strategic actions moving forward.
Strand 06

Water Course

Action 1

Discussions will take place with the County Council
and other partners as to the on-going management of
the blue infrastructure in Broxtowe.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn 2020
and then ongoing

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

July 2020

Action 3

Develop further strategic actions as part of the Water
Courses project strand delivery.

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

July 2020

Action 4

Undertake a detailed assessment of the brooks that
the Council is responsible for to carry out a flood risk
assessment and look at opportunities for biodiversity
enhancement

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Summer 2020
Summer 2021

Action 5

Further meetings will be held with the Environment
Agency on the Trent Gateway Project looking to
develop the initiatives on the section of the river within
Broxtowe

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn 2020
and ongoing
with 2 or 3
meetings a
year

Action 6

Meetings with landowners to ensure that appropriate
maintenance is taking place

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Ongoing

Action 7

Clarify ownership responsibility for the boundaries of
the 6 brooks in Borough Council responsibility

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

Autumn 2020

Action 8

Identify risks and any mitigation that affect the water
courses and any appropriate adaptations that can be
implemented or promoted

Parks and Green
Spaces Manager

March 2021

78

Responsible Officer

Page 85

Target Date

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 07

Meadow Planting /
Wildlife Corridor

Page 86

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change
Climate
andChange
Green Futures
And Green
Programme
Futures

STRAND 07

Meadow Planting
/ Wildlife Corridor
Contents
1.0

Introduction

81

2.0

Past Achievements

81

3.0

Strand Achievements

82

4.0

Strategic Actions

83

Thanks to
everyone involved
in the planting
of wild flowers in
the Inham Nook
park. They look
amazing.
Residents comment 2020

80

Page 87

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 07

Meadow Planting
/ Wildlife Corridor
1.0

Introduction

Creating and enhancing the meadows and wildlife corridors has many environmental
benefits providing wildlife with important connection networks and habitats. The linking of
the networks through green infrastructure also creates both economic and social benefits
for the wider community to enjoy.

2.0

Past Achievements

In 2015 the Council created its Green
Infrastructure Strategy 2015-2030. The strategy
identified 2 primary corridors and 23 secondary
corridors in the borough. The strategy has
proved a very valuable tool and has enabled the
Council’s planning team to identify any corridors
near to new application sites.
This in turn has raised the awareness of a
range of issues and opportunities associated
with relevant corridors. This then allows
appropriate mitigation to be considered and built
in as appropriate. The strategy has also been
used to identify potential projects for funding
opportunities through the Section 106 process.
All of the corridors together with their buffer
zones are detailed on the Council’s mapping
system.

Page 88

81

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Highlevel map of the corridors taken
from the Green Infrstructure Strategy

82

Page 89

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

In 2017, the Council as part of the on-going
review of opportunities to make cost savings
changed some of the seasonal bedding areas
to annual meadow plantings. These were very
well received and provide an alternative to the
traditional seasonal bedding with the added
benefit of using varieties that are very beneficial
to insects, butterflies and bees. In 2018, the
concept of using annual meadow seeds was
extended to parks and green spaces with large
beds created at Hall om Wong, Kimberley,
Mansfield Road Recreation Ground, Eastwood,
King George V Park, Bramcote and at various

At various sites bird seed crops have been
sown which provide flowers which attract nectar
and pollen feeding bees and insects and are

highway locations, with the bed on the A610
near Ikea particularly notable. The bed at Hall
om Wong was a sea of poppies in summer 2018
and a poignant backdrop to the Armed Forces

then a valuable food resource for the birds over
the winter period. This has been particularly
successful at Colliers Wood and Brinsley
Headstocks

event held there. The same site was again a
mass of colour in 2019 and the bed of rainbow
annuals has been widely used for publicity
purposes by the Council. Other good examples
include beds at Bramcote Crematorium and

Strand Achievements

Since the adoption of the Climate Change
Emergency on 17 July 2019 opportunities to

Westbourne Court.

enhance the meadow areas and wildlife corridors

In recent years a number of sites were identified
with potential to improve the meadow grassland.
Where budgets allowed, management regimes
were adjusted to maintain diversity. The most

continue to be explored.
At Brinsley Headstocks in winter 2019/20
volunteers introduced Snakes Head Fritillaries
and a native wildflower seed mix to one of the

important element of this management is the

meadows. This site is semi improved grassland,

annual cut and collection of the grass to keep

meaning it has been improved for agricultural

nutrient levels low. On fertile sites grasses

purposes in the past, to the detriment of native

and undesirable species out compete the
wildflowers. Leaving the cut grass on the ground
allows nutrients to build up at the expense of
the wildflowers. Sites where the grass has been
removed include Brinsley Headstocks, Watnall
Green and Colliers Wood.

3.0

wildflowers. This supplementary seeding will
allow wildflower populations to recover to their
more natural state. The site will now be managed
annually as a hay meadow. Last summer a few
Spotted Orchids were reported and with good
management this species should soon multiply.

Page 90

83

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

At Sandy Lane Local Nature Reserve, Bramcote an
area of acid grassland has been restored and will
now be managed to maintain this important feature.
At Toton Meadows working with the local

Just a note to say
how delighted we are with

volunteer’s, changes to the maintenance regimes of

the swathes of wild flowers

the woodland fringes has resulted in a colony of Bee

that have sprung up in our

Orchids becoming established

area of Chilwell. They are

At Colliers Wood new woodland glades have been
created by the Friends of Colliers Wood to allow

just what we need in these
strange times, so well done

areas within the woodlands to develop different
characteristics to the rest of the site to further

Broxtowe.

encourage a diverse range of wildlife and flora.

Residents comment 2020

4.0

Strategic Actions

There is an additional allocation of £15,000 in the 2020/21 revenue budget to improve and enhance
meadow planting and wildlife corridors. The table shows the schemes being undertaken this year and
proposals for future years.
Strand 07

Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridor

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the Green
Infrastructure Strategy 2015 - 2030.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2022

Action 2

Determine and report how the green and blue
infrastructure can be enhanced to help protect the
environment for our native wildlife corridors.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2021

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2020

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridors project strand
delivery.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2020

Action 5

Improvements to the existing meadow grassland
at Archers Field Recreation Ground, Stapleford
with scarification of the existing grassland and over
seeding with a dedicated wild flower mix to create
two large wild flower meadows.

Park and Open
Space Manager

May 2020

84

Page 91

Broxtowe Borough Council

Strand 07

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridor

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 6

Introduction of strategic areas of annual wildflower
planting on highway verges at Gin Close Way,
Awsworth, Bilborough Road, Nuthall, Narrow Lane,
Watnall.

Park and Open
Space Manager

May 2020

Action 7

Introduction of additional areas of annual wild flower
planting on parks and green spaces at Coronation
Park, Eastwood and Inham Nook Recreation
Ground, Chilwell

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

May 2020

Action 8

Identify further areas for annual seed, wildflower
seed and bird crop seed sowing on parks and green
spaces and highway verges at strategic locations.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Summer 2020
Summer 2021

Action 9

Review of the Local Nature Reserve Management
Plan for King George V Park, Bramcote to identify
acid grassland areas and a strategic approach to
their management.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Review
Summer 2021
and
implement
Spring 2022.
Repeat for
Summer 2022
and Spring 2023

Action 10

Identify further areas for annual seed, wildflower
seed and bird crop seed sowing on parks and green
spaces and highway verges at strategic locations.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Review
Summer 2021
and
implement
Spring 2022.
Repeat for
Summer 2020
and Spring 2023

Action 11

Assess sites for species rich grasslands that with
a change in management could become more
favourable for biodiversity. This will be done
working with the County Biodiversity Officer and
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust. Significant sites that
offer further potential include the Nottingham Canal,
Bramcote Hills Park acid grassland, Colliers Wood
with the introduction of yellow rattle to keep grasses
down and over seeding with native species.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Review Summer
2020 and
implement
Spring 2021.
Repeat for
Summer 2021
and Spring 2022

Action 12

Identify areas within woodlands with potential to
improve ground flora.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Ongoing

Page 92

85

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Strand 07

Meadow Planting / Wildlife Corridor

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 13

Opportunities to undertake grass cutting and
collection will be further explored utilising the
additional revenue budget to fund the expensive
grass collection and disposal.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Ongoing

Action 14

The Management Plans for the Local Nature
Reserve will continue to be assessed and
opportunities for changes to maintenance schedules
for grass areas considered to help enhance and
improve areas of grassland meadow.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

Review
Summer 2020
and
Implement
Spring 2021

Action 15

Consider opportunities to increase the number of
allotments.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2022

Action 16

Work with allotment holders to create composting
ambassadors.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2022

Action 17

Consider how the Council may create / support
the provision of community food planting areas in
addition to the current allotment provision.

Parks and
Open Spaces
Manager

March 2023

I would just like to say what a fantastic addition the wildflower plots
have been on Chilwell playing fields. We hoped this was what was
coming and what an utter delight the plots have turned out to be.
It’s wonderful to see such vibrant colours in the delicate flowers and
see the huge amount of invertebrate life also enjoying them.
Residents comment 2020

86

Page 93

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 08

Tree Planting

Page 94

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 08

Tree Planting
Contents
1.0

Introduction

89

2.0

Past Achievements

89

3.0

Strand Achievements

89

4.0

Strategic Actions

90

88

Page 95

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 08

Tree Planting
1.0

Introduction

Trees play an important role in absorbing carbon dioxide and removing and storing
carbon whilst releasing oxygen into the air. They also enhance the environment
through both economic, social and environmental benefits.

2.0

work undertaken in the 10 years from 2009 and

Past Achievements

the limited space available on a lot of parks and

In 2009 the Council launched an initiative

green spaces for large scale new planting.

to plant 100,000 new trees in the borough.
This scheme was completed in 2016 with an
average of 16,600 trees planted each year. It
included work with different partners to create
opportunities to plant trees on land in both
public and private ownership and included “free
tree” events and schemes to plant significant
lengths of new hedgerows. It proved to be very
successful and there are now many examples
where the planting schemes are having a
positive impact. Notable schemes would include
the new hedges planted at Colliers Wood, the

3.0

Strand Achievements

Since the adoption of the Climate Change
Emergency 17 July 2019 there have been
various new initiatives.
The autumn/winter of 2019/20 saw 2102 new
trees planted as a result of initiatives linked to
the Tree Planting Strand. Notable schemes
included:

copse areas created at Jubilee Park, Eastwood,

Free Fruit Trees – 500 apple and pear trees

Hall om Wong, Kimberley and woodland

were given away to residents of the Borough

regeneration at Bramcote Hills Park. In 2018

at 2 events in January. This proved to be very

the Council adopted the Tree Planting Strategy

popular and attracted a lot of very positive

which provides a strategic approach to planting

publicity and feedback.

trees with 3 different elements:

Community Tree Events – 700 trees were

■

Replacement planting

■

New planting programme

by local school children in an event working

■

Project planting working with partners

in partnership with Beeston and District Civic

planted at Hetley Pearson Recreation Ground

The strategy had a target of planting 1000 new

Society and Greenwood Community Forest.

trees a year. This target was increased to 2000
in 2019 and takes into account the significant

Page 96

89

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Memorial Trees – 21 trees were planted at
Brinsley Recreation Ground on 11 November
2019 to mark the 21 servicemen from Brinsley
who died in the first and second world wars.
Community Orchards – two new orchards were
created, one at Archers Field Recreation Ground
and one at Dennis Avenue Allotments

4.0

Strategic Actions

There is an additional allocation of £11,500 in the 2020/21 revenue budget to deliver further tree planting
initiatives across the borough. Over the summer officers will be working with residents, schools, businesses
and community groups to identify opportunities. These will include the following actions:
Strand 08

Tree Planting

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the Tree Planting
Strategy 2018. Including Specimen tree planting
schemes using large trees.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date to inform
the approach moving forward and the overarching
communications programme.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2020

Action 3

Determine and report on how the Tree Planting Strategy
can be enhanced to help provide greater opportunities
to encourage residents, schools and businesses to plant
more trees and look at innovative ways.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

Summer
2021

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the Tree
Planting project strand delivery.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

Action 5

Second tree giveaway event with small ornamental
trees suitable for gardens.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

January/
February
2021

Action 6

Create additional pocket orchard at an allotment site or
appropriate community site.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 7

Identify a site for new hedge planting in excess of 50m.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

90

Page 97

Broxtowe Borough Council

Strand 08

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Tree Planting

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Action 8

Identify opportunities to implement new pocket parks
taking advantage of central government funding.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 9

Implement appropriate signage including the potential
for information boards in parks, explaining how and
why the Council manages the environment in the way
that it does.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

Autumn 2021

Action 10

Undertaken planting work to enhance existing
woodlands.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Action 11

Creation of new woodland copses protected by fencing.

Parks and
Green Spaces
Manager

March 2021
March 2022
March 2023

Page 98

91

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 09

Recycling

Page 99

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 09

Recycling
Contents
1.0

Introduction

94

2.0

Achievements Recycling 2009 to 2019
2.1 Per Head / Per Household

94
96

3.0

Strand Achievements

97

4.0

Strategic Actions

97

Page 100

93

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 09

Recycling
1.0

Introduction

The Corporate Plan for 2020-24 sets out the Council’s priorities over the next four years.
The Council Vision is ‘a greener, safe, healthier Broxtowe, where everyone prospers’
The overarching aim for the Environment is to
‘protect the environment for the future’. This will
be achieved through three specific work areas.
The work area relevant to this strand within the
Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
is ‘increasing recycling and composting’.
The Council’s Corporate Plan sets a target of
achieving a recycling rate of 44% by year four
of the plan (2024). Waste analysis undertaken
by Measurement Evaluation Learning in 2014
indicated that if all the materials that could
be collected as part of the current kerbside
recycling schemes were in fact recycled, then
a recycling rate in excess of 50% could be
achieved in Broxtowe.

With the exception of the textile service all other
kerbside services were introduced prior to 2009.
The textile service was introduced in November
2014. Although it should be noted that the

2.0

Achievements Recycling 2009

to 2019
The Council provides the following kerbside
recycling opportunities for its residents:
■

Dry Recyclables (plastics bottles, yoghurt
pots, margarine/butter tubs, can/tins, paper/
cardboard)

garden waste service became a chargeable
service in 2014/15.
Graph 1 shows the tonnages collected from
the kerbside recycling collections between
2009/10 and 2019/20. As can be seen the trend
is a gradual decline in the amount of tonnage
collected from dry recyclables, an undulating
pattern with regards garden waste, which can

■

Garden Waste

be attributable to weather patterns affecting

■

Glass

growing rates and subscription numbers, a

■

Textile

94

steady increase in the kerbside glass collection

Page 101

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

with the textile collection performing at a

In direct correlation to the information shown in

constant low rate due in part to a number of

Graphs 1 and 2, Graph 3 shows the Council’s

charities providing textile collection services.

recycling rate during the same monitoring

8,000

7,763

7,597

7,256

7,000
6,000

5,497

5,555

5,161

period. Again the trend follows the garden
6,931 6,807
5,855

5,520

6,743 6,502
5,248

Tonnage

5,000

5,936

6,941
6,521

6,254 6,671
6,267 5,886
5,700
5,652

influence the tonnage from this service has on
the Council’s overall recycling rate.

4,000
3,000
2,000

waste tonnage pattern which reinforces the

1,459 1,420

1,457

1,517 1,499

1,597 1,694

1,697

2,016
1,718 1,810

3.6

7.7

9.02

3.74

6.56

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

2009/10

Dry Recyclabels

Garden

Glass

Textiles

As the figures suggest there has been a steady

5.78

decline in the Council’s recycling rate over the

2019/20

1,000

last ten or so years. The recycling rate peaked
in 2012/13 at 43.4% and has reduced to 38.75%
in 2019/20.

Graph 1: Graph to show tonnages collected of each

It is not fully understood why there has been

kerbside collection scheme between 2009/10 and 2019/20

a reduction in the recycling rate. It is likely
that there are a number of variables at play

Graph 2 shows the total tonnages collected
from the kerbside recycling collection schemes
between 2009/10 and 2019/20. As is evident
the graph somewhat mirrors the trend on the

such as lighter packaging materials, improved
purchasing behaviour and reuse of materials.
However, recycling apathy could also play a part
with the topic of recycling receiving less national

garden waste line in Graph 1 showing the

coverage in recent times. What is clear is that a

impact the garden waste tonnages have on

percentage is not the best approach to analyse

the overall amount of materials collected for

the success of recycling initiatives and it is

recycling/composting.

hoped that the new national Waste Strategy will
address this issue.

15,500
15,168

14,750

14,719

14,569

Tonnage

13,874

14,000

14,140

38.82

2017/18

13,641

13,562

38.48

2018/19

13,957

13,826

38.75

2019/20

14,393

14,303

41.07

2016/17
40.4

2015/16

13,250

40.2

2014/15

41.34

2013/14

12,500

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

2009/10

43.4

2012/13
41.98

2011/12

43.13

2010/11

43.14

2009/10

Graph 2: Graph to showing total tonnage collected from the four

36

37

38

kerbside collections between 2009/10 and 2019/20

39

40

41

42

43

44

Recycling Rate Percentage

Graph 3: Graph showing the Councils recycling rate between
2009/10 and 2019/20

Page 102

95

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Graph 4 shows the trend in the amount of
residual waste collected through the black lidded
bins. The number of households and population
in the borough will affect these figures. It is
therefore more appropriate to compare the
statistics based on the figures per head and per

23,968

23,903

22,996

22,388

22,303

21,871

21,645

22,000

21,880

22,103

23,000

A 1% decrease in the overall amount of waste
produced per person, which is positive. The
aim is to further reduce the amount of waste
produced in accordance with the principles of

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

top of the Waste Management Hierarchy (see

2011/12

20,000

2012/13

waste reduction / minimisation which sits at the
2010/11

21,000

2009/10

Tonnage

24,000

22,886

25,000

23,537

household.

illustration in section 4.0).

Graph 4: Graph showing the amount of residual waste
collected through the black bin between 2009/10 and 2019/20

in the growth in the number of households within

As shown in Graph 5 below a total of 40,348

Broxtowe, this equates to 471.3kg in 2009/10

tonnes of household waste was collected in
2009/10 compared to 40,729 tonnes in 2019/20.
Factoring in the population growth within
Broxtowe, this equates to 365.4kg in 2009/10
per head of population (population: 110,422)
compared to 361.4kg in 2019/20 (population:

38,879

40,729

39,533

38,588

39,020

39,888

38,790

39,740

40,348

39,000

purpose of this analysis, residual waste, includes
all the waste from the black lidded bins as well
other waste streams such as the bulky waste
collection service.
The difference equates to 5% increase in the
overall amount of residual waste collected per
this trend, for example, the amount of bulky
waste collected each year fluctuates dependent

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

Year

Graph 5: Graph showing the total tonnage of ALL household
waste collected per head of population between 2009/10
and 2019/20

96

495.1kg in 2019/20 (50380 properties). For the

upon the number of requests for the service.

2010/11

37,000

(48670 properties) per household compared to

household. There are many variables affecting

38,000

2009/10

Tonnage

40,000

40,234

41,205

112,698)

41,000

residual household waste was collected in 2009/10
compared to 24,943 tonnes in 2019/20. Factoring

2.1 Per Head / Per Household

42,000

As shown in Graph 6 a total of 22,938 tonnes of

The aim is to reverse the trend in the amount
of residual waste produced in accordance with,
and the promotion of, the three top principles of
the Waste Hierarchy. These principles being to
reduce, reuse and recycle.

Page 103

24,784
23,785

23,075

22,887

22,575

22,506

22800

22,597

Tonnes

23700

22,938

24600

23,561

25500

24,943

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

24,281

Broxtowe Borough Council

Waste Minimisation sits at the top of the Waste
Management Hierarchy followed by ‘reduce’
and then ‘recycling’ as the preferred options for
dealing with waste. The Council is committed
to increasing recycling but also the principles of

21900

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

waste minimisation and reuse.
2009/10

21000

4.0 Strategic Actions

The strategic actions under the Recycling
Strand aimed at improving recycling are set out

Graph 6: Graph showing the total residual household waste

in the table below. The measures demonstrate

collected per household between 2009/10 and 2019/20

how the Council will promote responsible waste
management delivering on initiatives that not
only promote recycling but also the principles of

3.0 Strand Achievements

waste reduction and reuse.

Since the Climate Change Emergency was
adopted on 17 July 2019 the focus has been on
designing approaches that will affect resident’s

Integrated Waste Management Hierarchy
Most Preferred

behaviour towards recycling in a positive
way. Two fundamental aspects of this is crew

REDUCTION

engagement and communications with the
public.

REUSE

The In-Cab IT system which enables crews to
report recycling problems has been upgraded
to the latest version. The upgrade combined

RECYCLING &
COMPOSTING

with the replacement of in-cab units has made it

RECOVER

easier for crews to report a contamination issue.

RESIDUALS

However, this information needs to be acted
upon if a difference is to be made. The approval
by Members of a new recycling role aimed

1. Cleaner production,
sustainable
consumption and
prevention.
2. Reusing waste in
its current form.
3. Processing waste
to recover
commercially
valuable products.
4. Recovering energy
from waste.
5. Safe disposal in a
landfill.

Least Preferred

at following up on the incidents reported by
the crews with the intention of educating and
engaging with residents, will help significantly
towards reducing the contamination and
increasing recycling. While appointment
to the new role has been delayed due to
the coronavirus it is hoped that this will be
addressed shortly.

Page 104

97

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Strand 09

Recycling

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to embed the intent within the Single Use
Plastics Policy 2018 including for example reducing
the use of plastic bags in refuse and the wider
Council.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2021

Action 2

Develop a programme of activity to ensure that
additional resources are immediately effective from
appointment.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2020

Action 3

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2020

Action 4

Work with the Nottinghamshire Joint Waste
Management Group to lobby for additional materials
to be recycled.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2021

Action 5

Develop further video and educational material for
schools, businesses, households, and employees in
order to encourage behavioural change in regards to
recycling.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2021

Action 6

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Recycling project strand delivery.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2020

Action 7

Create of a new recycling officer role whose purpose
is to promote the principles of the Waste Hierarchy,
promote good recycling behaviour and responsible
waste management practices

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

June 2020

Action 8

Work in partnership with charities, for example on
Clean and Green Bulky Waste days, to promote the
reuse of items as an alternative to disposal

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

Ongoing

Action 9

Evaluate the refuse and recycling rounds to consider
whether further efficiencies can be made by round
reconfiguration to reduce the use of fuel and vehicle
emissions.

Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

March 2022

Action 10 National Waste Strategy: Implement the statutory
measures aimed at increasing recycling for example
this may result in additional infrastructure and
resources being needed for such as food waste
collection and disposal.

Head of
Environment /
Waste Services
and Strategy
Manager

Summer 2021

98

Page 105

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 10

Housing
Delivery

Page 106

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 10

Housing Delivery
Contents
1.0

Introduction

101

2.0

Achievements

101

3.0

Previous Developments

102

4.0

Membership of Good Homes Alliance

102

5.0

Future Opportunities for Improvement
5.1 Analysis of Benefits and Costs
5.2 Training and Guidance for Tenants

102
102
103

6.0

Strategic Actions

104

100

Page 107

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 10

Housing Delivery
1.0

Introduction

The Housing Delivery project strand will consider how new properties can be built as energy
efficient as possible. Improvements to our current housing stock will not be considered
as part of this strand, but by the Housing Improvement project strand. There will be some
overlap between the two projects and therefore a consistency in approach is needed.

2.0

Achievements

complete. The code has not been mandatory

In June 2019 Housing Committee approved a

for new developments since 2015. It is still

new Housing Delivery Plan, which set out the

operational but is now voluntary. It provides

plan to build a minimum of 230 new Council

a good framework for the Council to assess

homes over the next ten years. Following this
an Interim Housing Delivery Manager was
appointed to deliver the plan and establish a
pipeline of schemes.

the sustainability of new developments. It is a
complex assessment, the technical guidance is
almost 300 pages, but in summary it measures
sustainability against nine categories:
■

Energy and carbon dioxide emissions

■

Water

■

Materials

■

Surface water run-off

modular housing will be considered where

■

Waste

appropriate, especially on sites which may

■

Pollution

be otherwise unsuitable for redevelopment.

■

Health and wellbeing

■

Management

■

Ecology

The Delivery Plan contained a commitment to
ensure that new Council homes built are energy
efficient:
Alternative delivery methods, such as

Irrespective of the method of construction
used, the Council will provide a sustainable
home for future residents, which is built to
provide good levels of energy efficiency and
reduced utility cost for the occupants. The
Council will aim to achieve the equivalent of
level 4 in the Code for Sustainable Homes.

For each category the code provides the known
sources of environmental impact for which
mitigation measures can be cost-effectively
implemented.

(Source: Housing Delivery Plan, p6)

3.0 Previous Developments

The Code for Sustainable Homes requires
assessment of the performance of new dwellings
both during design and once construction is

Prior to the new Housing Delivery Plan, the Prior
to the new Housing Delivery Plan, the Council

Page 108

101

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.0 Membership of Good
Homes Alliance
The Council has recently joined the Good
Homes Alliance. Members and partners
include local authorities, architects, planners,
developers, universities, urban designers,
consultants, building professionals and
suppliers.
has previously built new Council homes through
partnership work with registered providers
(housing associations). On many developments
the opportunity was taken to include energy

Geothermal
heating
Solarthermal
heating for
hot water

Solar PV
panels

Solar PV
panels
(communal
areas only)

102

Authority Vanguard membership network. One
of the main aims of the network is to share
resources and conduct further research to

efficient measures:
Energy
efficiency
measure

The Good Homes Alliance has formed a Local

facilitate local authorities in adopting enhanced
Scheme

Number
of
homes

sustainability, quality, health and performance
standards for new housing developments.
As part of our membership the following is

Hawker Close,
Chilwell

6

Sunnyside Road,
Chilwell

3

Anderson Crescent,
Beeston

4

Plumptre Gardens,
Eastwood

8

Bexhill Court, Beeston

6

Church Street,
Eastwood

2

Midland Avenue,
Eastwood

4

5.1 Analysis of Benefits and
Costs

Peatfield Court,
Stapleford

3

The first Council properties with environmental

Sherwood Rise/
Linwood Cres,
Eastwood

3

Welch Avenue,
Stapleford

6

Nottingham Road,
Stapleford

available:
■

Case studies and exemplar site visits

■

Resource library/ knowledge base

■

New research and guidance

■

Meetings and workshops

5.0 Future Opportunities for
Improvement

features were built in 2008. Since this time
very little has been done to analyse the
benefits of the various technologies which

10

were installed. The tenants who currently live
within our properties will be able to provide
useful information in regards to their experience
and assist the Council to learn from previous
developments.

Page 109

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

It is also essential to review the additional
management and maintenance costs of the
technologies installed within properties, so
that these can be included in analysis of future
developments. For example, Repairs Operatives
are not trained to repair some of the specialist
equipment and this work is currently completed
by external contractors. By reviewing the
expenditure on these properties we can review
if it would be more cost effective to train our own
Repairs Operatives.

5.2 Training and Guidance for
Tenants
It is important that tenants are shown how to use
the systems in their property correctly and that
they understand how to achieve full benefit. For
new developments the Council will write clear
guidance notes, specific to the features that are
included within the new development.

Willoughby Street in Beeston is part of phase
one of the Housing Delivery Plan. Air Source
Heat Pumps will be installed as part of a trial

Tenants will be given training as part of their
tenancy sign up and discussions around the use
of the system will form part of the 1 month, 4
months and 9 months tenancy visits completed
during the first year of a new tenancy.

5.3 Pilot of Energy Efficient
Measures

to see if these should be included in future
developments. Tenant guides and training will
also be included as part of the pilot.
Each site will be assessed to consider what
energy efficiency features should be installed.

Page 110

103

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

6.0 Strategic Actions
In summary, the Council has previously installed energy efficiency features within new developments.
Through the work of the new Interim Housing Delivery Manager there will be many opportunities to build
upon this. This needs to be informed by further research. The following actions will be taken:

Strand 09

Housing Delivery

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Ongoing

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions within the Housing
Delivery Plan 2019 – 2029 .

Head of Housing

Action 2

Research eco-friendly methods of construction.

Head of Housing

Action 3

Identification of potential solutions to reduce on-going
energy use in all Housing Delivery Plan phase 1 sites,
including:
•
Air Source Heat Pumps
•
Ground Source Heat Pumps
•
PV Panels
•
Water Conservation
•
Energy efficient lighting
•
Small wind turbines.

Head of Housing

December
2020

Action 4

Review of existing environmental solutions included
in new build developments at Broxtowe Borough
Council in last ten years, including survey of tenant
experience.

Head of Housing

September
2020

Action 5

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Housing

June 2020

Action 6

Determine and report on how the Housing Delivery
Plan can reduce carbon impact for all new
developments.

Head of Housing

December
2020

Action 7

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Housing Delivery project strand delivery.

Head of Housing

June 2020

Action 8

Analysis of repairs and maintenance costs for our
properties with energy efficient features, since they
were built

Head of Housing

September
2020

104

Page 111

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 11

Housing
Improvements

Page 112

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 11

Housing
Improvements
Contents
1.0

Introduction

107

2.0

Achievements

107

3.0

Strategic Actions

108

106

Page 113

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 11

Housing
Improvements
1.0

Introduction

This part focuses on the Council’s housing stock (HRA) buildings (4,600 homes). With the exception
of some communal areas (eg. stairwell lighting, communal lounges), the Council does not measure the
energy used in any of these homes. This is because they are all individually metered and the tenants are
responsible for paying their own energy bills and for day-to-day decisions such as whether to use heating
and to what extent. Nevertheless, the Council has a very important role to play as these 4,600 homes
make up nearly 10% of all homes in the Borough and the Council can have a major impact on reducing
tenants CO2 emissions through a variety of measures.

2.0

Achievements

The SAP comparison between 2012 and the
latest estimates is very encouraging: –
■

SAP in 2012 was averaged out at around
62.55, (environmental rating of 58.65)

■

Latest estimates are an average SAP of
68.24, (environmental rating of 66.81) – an
improvement of 9%

■

Electric Heating Replacements (Using high

(SAP stands for ‘Standard Assessment

heat retention Lot20 compliant storage

Procedure’. It is the only official, government

heaters) – 37 homes

approved system for assessing the energy rating
for a new home – a higher figure indicates a

■

(the rest of the stock had been treated prior

more energy efficient home)

to 2010)

This improvement has been achieved through
the following measures: ■

■

UPVC double-glazed Windows – 619 homes
(approximately 4100 homes were completed

Gas Heating Replacements (Mainly energyefficient Worcester condensing combination
boilers) – 3565 homes

Cavity wall and loft insulation – 79 homes

prior to 2010)
■

External Wall Insulation to solid wall
properties – 564

Page 114

107

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

■

PV (solar panels) on new builds – 24 homes

■

PV on retirement living schemes - 4
communal installations

■

Ground Source Heat Pumps on new builds
– 9 homes

Tenant (and wider public) education is also
important as, for example, improved insulation
may simply lead to homes being heated to
a higher temperature than required with less
reduction in CO2 emissions than expected.

3.0

Strategic Actions

In addition to the ongoing decarbonisation of the electricity grid the main future activities proposed are
as follows. They will be pursued using existing approved HRA budgets and external grant sources where
available/appropriate: Strand 11

Housing Improvements

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Formulate the appropriate response to the outcome
of the stock condition survey.

Capital Works
Manager

October 2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Capital Works
Manager

June 2020

Action 3

Research alternatives to conventional heating
systems and report finding.

Capital Works
Manager

December
2020

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Housing Improvements project strand delivery.

Capital Works
Manager

June 2020

Action 5

Install external wall insulation to the remaining
94 solid wall properties – this requires careful
assessment as most of them are hard to treat as
they are in Eastwood’s conservation area

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

Action 6

Stock Condition Survey: act on recommendation
to install external wall insulation to 53 steel-framed
properties in the short term 1 – 5 years

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

Action 7

Consider how best to address the 30 properties
remaining with less-efficient gas boilers and
implement the solution / solutions

Capital Works
Manager

December
2022

Action 8

Consider how best to address the 285 properties
remaining with less efficient all-electric systems. In
the short term these will primarily be replaced with
high heat retention storage heaters, but air source
heat pumps will also be trialed at suitable properties

Capital Works
Manager

December
2024

108

Page 115

Broxtowe Borough Council

Strand 11

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Housing Improvements

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 9

The two new dementia-friendly bungalows at
Willoughby Street, Beeston will have air source heat
pumps with under floor heating and PV on the roof

Capital Works
Manager

March 2021

Action 10

Trial emerging technology: The future of the gas
network is under review. Gas boilers are being
developed to work on both hydrogen and gas.
There is a stock of over 4000 gas boilers in
domestic properties. In the short term high efficiency
condensing boilers will continue to be used, but
emerging solutions will also be trialed.

Capital Works
Manager

Ongoing

Action 11

Consideration will be given to retro-fitting of PV
panels – especially to stock that is not subject to
right to buy.

Capital Works
Manager

Summer 2021

Action 12

Loft insulation will continue to be upgraded to the
very latest standards every time that other work is
undertaken in a property

Capital Works
Manager

Ongoing

Page 116

109

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 12

Core Strategy and
Planning

Page 117

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 12

Core Strategy
and Planning
Contents
1.0

Introduction

112

2.0

The Adopted Development Plan

112

3.0

Emerging Planning Policy
3.1 Monitoring
3.2 What more should we do?
3.3 Engagement
3.4 Policy Development
3.5 Monitoring

113
113
113
113
114
115

4.0

Strategic Actions

116

Page 118

111

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 12

Core Strategy
and Planning
1.0

Introduction

Planning Law in the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act and repeated in other
amended Acts since, is that planning decisions need to be taken in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
In Broxtowe the Development Plan comprises

travel demand, policy 16 for Green Infrastructure

the Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategy

and Policy 17 biodiversity, again in strategic

(ACS) which was adopted in September

terms with the detail to be added in subsequent

2014 (prepared over the Greater Nottingham

documents.

geography with each Council adopting it

Policy 1 of the P2LP requires new development

individually), and the Broxtowe Part 2 Local

to be located in areas of lowest risk of flooding

Plan (P2LP) adopted in October 2019. The ACS

and that effective sustainable drainage systems

contains the strategic policies applicable across

are provided. The detailed allocations of the

Greater Nottingham and provides a consistent

plan (Policies 2 to 7 inclusive), are made in

strategic framework, and the P2LP contains the

locations that provide the best opportunities for

more detailed policies and allocations to deliver

walking, cycling and the use of public transport,

the strategy.

are accessible to local services, and incorporate
green infrastructure provision to provide wildlife

2.0 The Adopted Development
Plan

habitat, walking and cycling routes, sustainable
drainage systems and recreation space.

Policy 1 of the ACS sets the over-arching

Policy 17 (applicable to any new development

framework regarding sustainable design and
adaption, reducing CO2 emissions, decentralised
energy generation, flood risk and sustainable
drainage with more detail to be provided in Part

requiring Planning Permission) requires a
host of standards to be met regarding place
making, design and amenity. This includes the

2 Local Plans and or other planning documents.

encouragement of walking and cycling, the use

Policy 14 provides the strategy for managing

biodiversity and for major developments a need

112

of native species for landscaping, encouraging

Page 119

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

to score highly in the governments building for
life criteria (which itself contains a number of key
sustainable development criteria).
Policy 20 relates to Air Quality and requires the
provision of Electric Vehicle Charging Points for
major developments.
Policy 28 identifies the Green Infrastructure
Assets in the Borough (drawing on evidence
in the Councils Green Infrastructure Strategy
from 2015) and includes a requirement that
development proposals that will affect these

3.1

Monitoring

assets also includes measures to enhance them.

Given the recent adoption of the P2LP there
is limited data available regarding the success

3.0

Emerging Planning Policy

There is work underway with partners

of these policies. However, there is clear
data that the allocations are coming forward
in the locations planned for with number of

beyond Broxtowe’s boundaries to prepare
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)
(to provide further detail on the Local Plan
policies) regarding development in the vicinity
of the proposed HS2 Station at Toton, and
separate work is underway being led by others
on HMA/ County wide SPD on Climate Change
issues. These SPDs cannot ‘rewrite’ the policies
referred to above, but can provide additional
detail to the way in which they’ll be applied.

applications already submitted and several more
expected soon.

3.2

What more should we do?

In order to have weight in planning decision
making, policies relating to climate change need
to be contained in the adopted Development
Plan. SPDs have an important role to play,
but if the initial policy on which it is based has
shortcomings then these can’t be rectified via an

Broxtowe are again working collaboratively with
all partners across Greater Nottingham to review
the ACS and the initial round of consultation on
this is due to start by June 2020.

SPD process. This has to be done via the review
of the Development Plan.

3.3

Engagement

The consultation mentioned above into the Core

In addition, a number of Town and Parish

Strategy will be important in shaping policy for

Councils and Neighbourhood Forums are

the future. Regrettably groups that tend to be

in the advanced stages of preparing their

more positive about embracing opportunities

Neighbourhood Plans. One at Nuthall has been

for new development and ensuring that climate

‘made’ following a referendum in December

change policies are sufficiently robust are more

2018.

difficult to reach. Those that comment as a
matter of routine on planning matters are the

Page 120

113

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

development industry and their representatives,

timing of new measures, and then the standards

who are keen for very understandable reasons

expected of new development.

not to want more regulation, and members of

3.4.1 Location of New Development to:

local communities who are directly affected
by development in terms of additional traffic,
pressures on local services and loss of open

■

Reduce the need to travel.

■

Provide the best opportunities for
sustainable forms of travel.

space, and who object to it for these reasons
■

and others.

Provide the best opportunities for use of
lower emission vehicles.

A review of the Council’s Planning Statement of
Community involvement is underway with a view
to using more modern forms of communication

This is one of the very most effective ways of
helping to achieve a net zero carbon future. If
new development is located where it is safe and

including social media, review actions for

convenient for new residents to walk or cycle to

engaging with younger and other difficult to

work, shop and spend leisure time then this will

reach members of the community, including

go a long way to reducing the number of trips

less adversarial forms of developing policy for

made by private car and will also have positive

example workshops, attendance at schools /
youth groups, and use of specialist organisations

impacts on air quality.

to reach hard to reach groups. This should be

3.4.2 Use of S106/ Planning Conditions to

complete in Autumn 2020.

ensure that measures to support reduced

3.4

emissions are provided at the right time (i.e.

Policy Development

early in the build out of development). This

This will need to reflect the outcome of the

would include:

Consultation work described above, should
be subject to testing through the plan making
process including viability testing, and should
include consideration of the merits of the
following key themes. These are split into factors

■

Cycle routes.

■

Bus lanes.

■

Electric Vehicle Charging points.

■

Green infrastructure to enable both outdoor
recreation and attractive walking routes.

around the location of new development, the
■

Any low energy infrastructure.

This timing of provision of new facilities is
important. For example, if a new cycle route
should be provided for a new development, if
this is not provided until the completion of the
development, then for large schemes residents
already living there will have got into the habit
of using other means to get around including
driving their cars for short trips. Once they are

114

Page 121

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

in this habit, it is more difficult to change it. On
the other hand, if the cycle route is provided
early, then the occupiers of the new homes will
get more used to using it early and the same
can be said for bus routes and enhanced green
infrastructure for attractive walking routes.
3.4.3 Standards expected of New Development
(when complete and during construction) to
include:
■

Production of a ‘sustainable design and
construction guide’.

■

Use of sustainability statements.

■

Efficient use of minerals.

In assessing the value of measure described

■

Incorporation of recycled materials.

above (and potentially others) consideration

■

Minimisation of waste.

■

Re-use of excavation and demolition waste.

■

Sustainable design.

■

Zero carbon development.

for residential rooms or nationally proscribed

■

Reduction in energy demand including

design standards. Any uplift in these standards

through landform, layout, orientation,

would need to be applied in a consistent way

massing and landscaping, with regard to

across the Housing Market Area and would

the efficient use of natural resources and

need to be tested for its viable delivery. The

to maximise the use of the sun’s energy for

best mechanism for achieving this is through

heating and cooling.

the review of the Core Strategy. The aim being,

Incorporation of measures that enable

to provide areas with more ambition in respects

■

will need to be given to the merit of going

Compliance with the highest national
Climate change adaptation that provides
resilience and reduces vulnerability to a
changing climate and changing weather
patterns and the full range of expected

over the environmental standards used for new

3.5

Monitoring

For all of the new measures introduced it will be
necessary to monitor these in the Council’s local
authority monitoring report liaising as appropriate

impacts.
■

to achieving carbon net zero, greater influence
developments in their Housing Market Area.

standards of water efficiency.
■

other legislation including building regulations,
the governments minimum size standards

sustainable lifestyles for building occupants.
■

beyond minimum standards required under

Prioritisation of suitable drainage systems
(SuDS) to manage surface water drainage.

with the County Council for transport use
information.

Page 122

115

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

4.0 Strategic Actions
The table below provides a list of strategic actions to move this agenda forward:
Strand 12

Core Strategy and Planning

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Include proposals relating to energy efficiency
and climate change as part of ongoing work on
implementing Policy 17 of the Part 2 Local Plan,
‘Place-making, design and amenity’

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

December
2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

May 2020

Action 3

Gather evidence, including viability evidence, to
inform ACS policies that will enforce / expand on
NPPF requirements regarding energy efficiency and
climate change.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

May 2021

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the Core
Strategy / Planning project strand delivery.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

May 2021

Action 5

Ensure that all Neighbourhood Plans include
reference to policies regarding climate change and
climate change mitigation.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

On-going

Action 6

Engaging with and ensuring the adoption of a Toton
Masterplan which contains innovative proposals for
an advanced model of living and working which is
highly sustainable.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

March 2021

Action 7

Complete the review of the Aligned Core Strategy.

Head of Planning
and Economic
Development

December
2022

Action 8

Approve the council’s participation in a new
development corporation which will include ambitious
proposals for the development of an international
centre for zero carbon futures.

Chief Executive

March 2021

116

Page 123

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change And Green Futures Programme

STRAND 13

Technology

Page 124

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
STRAND 13

Technology
Contents
1.0

Introduction

119

2.0

Achievements
2.1 Case 1: Server Virtualisation
2.2 Case 2: Multi-Functional Devices
2.3 Digital Strategy

119
119
120
120

3.0

Strand Achievements
3.1 New Ways of Working

121
121

4.0

Strategic Actions

122

118

Page 125

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 13

Technology
1.0

Introduction

The Corporate Plan for 2020-2024 sets out the Council’s priorities over the next four
years. The Council Vision is ‘a greener, safe, healthier Broxtowe, where everyone
prospers’.
One of the aims of the Corporate Plan and

housed within specialist racking within a large

that area that is relevant to the Technology

data centre. These devices required power

project strand within the Climate Change and

to operate and cooling to ensure that they

Green Futures programme is to ‘protect the

continued to operate efficiently.

environment for the future’.

The work to virtualise the Council’s server estate
began prior to 2009. By the end of the 2009/10

2.0 Achievements

financial year 53 servers had been virtualised

Through successive ICT Strategies the Council

(a total of 72%). The remaining 21 servers (a

has taken the opportunity as technology has

total of 28%) were all virtualised to the degree

developed to enhanced its ICT platforms.

possible by the end of 2012/13. The Council

These developments have often resulted in a

had, by this time, in excess of 100 virtual servers

rationalisation of devices resulting in reduced

housed on just 6 physical servers.

power consumption and in some instances
reduced cooling requirements. In order to
demonstrate this process two case studies are
provided below:
■

Server virtualisation

■

Multi-Functional Devices

2.1 Case 1: Server Virtualisation
In simple terms a server provides the core
processing power of any ICT infrastructure.
Before server virtualisation technology was

While the data is not available to easily

developed and proved to be an economically

demonstrate the reduction in power and cooling

viable solution, Council’s would purchase a

achieved from the server virtualisation project

minimum of two physical servers for each main

(the energy meters within the Town Hall did not

software system. Broxtowe had 74 servers all

allow for segregation of the billing) it is clear

Page 126

119

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

that a reduction from 74 physical servers to 6

multi-functional devices to 18, a further 30.8%

physical servers, a circa 93% reduction, would

reduction in the number of devices.

have a positive effect.

An overall reduction from in excess of 200 to 18
of at least 91%.

To further show the benefits achieved the Council
has recently relocated its data centre from the

In each of the steps taken to rationalise the

Town Hall to the Council Offices. The transfer

printing estate and enhance its functionality the

has resulted in a data centre that is less than a

technology had improved such that the energy

third of the size of the original data centre.

consumed was reduced.

Reduced electricity consumption through

Another noticeable change identified as a result

fewer, more efficient devices and smaller

of each of the changes to the printing estate

storage requirements results in a reduction

implemented over the last decade and the

in the environmental impact of providing and

enhancements in terms of storage of documents

maintaining the ICT Service.

is the reduction in the overall printing produced

2.2 Case 2: Multi-Functional Devices

by employees.

In the early 2000’s the accepted approach for

Reduced number of printing devices, reduced

delivering printing facilities in many cases was to

power consumption and reduced consumption

provide users with a small printing device. The

of paper and other consumables results in

Council had in excess of 200 laser printers.

a reduction in the environmental impact of

As the technology developed network devices
were purchased and installed to service multiple
users. This resulted in the number of devices

providing and maintaining the ICT Service.

2.3 Digital Strategy

installed falling to 76 at least a 62% reduction
A further leap was achieved when photocopiers
were capable of operating as a photocopier,
printer and scanner (these devices were
known as multi-functional devices). Previously
the printer estate and the photocopier estate

Another example of where the Council has

operated independently.

made significant strides over the last decade is

200 to 18 a
reduction of

at least 91%

in its delivery of the strategic actions associated
with its digital strategies.
During the life of the strategy, developed in
2014/15, online transaction have increased

In 2012/13 the printer estate fell from 76 devices

by 88% to 466,030 by 2019/20. The graph

to 26 multi-functional devices, a further 65.8%

illustrates the growth in digital and self-service

reduction. In 2018/19 this fell again from 26

transactions since 2011/12.

120

Page 127

301,832

282,314

163,689

200,000

136,676

300,000

115,099

400,000

247,318

437,225

500,000

466,030

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

354,490

Broxtowe Borough Council

There have been a number of achievement
delivered since the Climate Change Emergency
was adopted 17 July 2019. A number have
been referenced in this and other project strands
for example the outcome of the previous and
new Digital Strategies and the installation of
upgraded software solutions for example the In-

100,000

Transactions

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

Cab devices installed in refuse vehicles to help
2011/12

0

3.0 Strand Achievements

to deliver more efficient services.
However, the achievement that stands out in
most minds is the accelerated delivery of the

Trend

2019/20 saw an overall reduction in face to face

New Ways of Working programme.

and telephony transactions coming into the
Customer Contact Centre. While it cannot be
easily quantified this is likely to have reduced
the overall travel undertaken by residents
undertaking Council business.
Social media has also proven to be a valuable
communications vehicle. The Council’s
Facebook pages reaches on average 58,996
people each month (statistics as at 31 March
2020) and its Twitter account an average of
103,000 each month. At the end of 2019/20 the
Email Me service had 20,808 subscribers, with
86% of those surveyed feeling better informed
about the Council and its services.

3.1 New Ways of Working
During the 2020/21 financial year the task
of installing the Microsoft Teams platform
was within the Broxtowe Borough Service
Improvement (BBSi) programme.

online transaction have

increased by 88%

As a result of the COVID-19 emergency,
what should have been a 12 months phased
implementation and integration with pilot
groups, training, floor walking and face to face

With more digital and self-service transactions

support became a 2-week implementation with

resulting in fewer face to face visits being

training delivered, where necessary, through a

necessary, the likelihood is that there has been

combination of documentation, colleagues and

a reduced need for customers to travel. This

a broader constituency of support across both

will have enhanced the customer experience for

employees and Members.

many, made the Council’s service delivery more
sustainable and saved both the customer and
the Council time and money.

Page 128

121

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

How has this enabled the Council to continue to deliver services, the Democratic process and
simply remain in contact? The following statistics answer that question:

90%
36

370 Employees and
44 Members using Microsoft

of office based employees
working from home

Teams platform which enables the
Council to keep delivering services
and stay connected

laptops allocated to
priority services

100

headsets purchased, installed
and allocated

20 LIVE Committee meetings
and Full Council meetings
Over 80,000

Over 2000 virtual meetings

instant messages

Over 20,000 video calls

Source: Broxtowe Borough Council statistics as at end of July 2020

4.0 Strategic Actions
Much of the detailed work that needs to be completed in this area is already captured within key strategies
for example the Council’s ICT Strategy and Digital Strategy. These are referenced below in the list of
strategic actions that have been developed for the Technology project strand.
Strand 13

Technology

Responsible Officer

Target Date

ICT Manager

Ongoing

Action 1

Continue to deliver the actions contained within the
ICT Strategy 2017-2021

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Strategic Director

June 2020

Action 3

Monitor technology development to ensure the
Council is able to take advantage of developments
that are economically and environmentally
advantageous.

Strategic Director
/ ICT Manager

Ongoing

Action 4

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Technology project strand delivery.

Strategic Director

June 2020

Action 5

Continue to deliver the actions contained within
the Digital Strategy 2020-2024 including building
on the existing digital culture to enhance the digital
awareness, increase the number of digital services for
customers, Members and employees.

Strategic Director
/ ICT Manager
/ Corporate
Communications
Manager

Ongoing

Action 6

Work with all parts of the organisation to leverage
the benefits achieved through the use of technology
during the COVID-19 emergency.

Strategic Director

August 2021

122

Page 129

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Air Quality

Page 130

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Air Quality
Contents
1.0

Introduction

125

2.0

Air Quality Management Areas

125

3.0

Achievements

126

3.1 Planning and Policy Guidance

126

3.2 EV charging points

126

3.3 Sustainable travel information for the public

126

3.4 Vehicle emissions testing

126

3.5 Taxi licensing conditions

127

3.6 Cycle to work scheme

127

3.7 Low emission vehicle procurement

127

4.0

124

Strategic Actions

127

Page 131

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Air Quality
1.0

Introduction

Broxtowe’s Climate Change Strategy has a target of reducing the carbon footprint of the
borough in order to become net carbon zero by 2027.
The strategy sets out to encourage a low

must also be noted that ambient background

carbon economy and tackle the causes

levels are affected by emissions from domestic

of climate change. The strategic priorities

heating for example oxides of nitrogen from

encourage a reduction in emissions, energy

boilers and particulate matter from solid fuel

saving, more careful use of resources and

burners.

more generally, the adoption of the principles
of sustainability across all sectors within the
borough. These ideals have close links with
the aims of the authority’s action in respect of
air quality and most actions taken to reduce
carbon emissions are likely to have co-benefits
for air quality for example modal shift to public
transport, cycling and walking.

The 2019 nitrogen dioxide results show that
the air quality levels are below the objective
of 40µg/m³ for all of the monitoring locations
throughout the borough.
In respect of particulates, the modelled
background level provided by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra)

The main air quality issue within the borough
arises from the M1 and the A52 roads.

for the Borough of Broxtowe is modelled to be
between 8µg/m³ and 11µg/m³ for 2019, with the
annual mean for 2019 being 9.73µg/m³. The

The main pollutant of concern within the

World Health Organisation (WHO) guideline

borough is nitrogen dioxide, which is emitted

level for PM2.5 (particulate matter less than 2.5

from vehicle exhausts and is prevalent in areas

microns in diameter) is 10µg/m³.

where there are congested roads. However, it

2.0 Air Quality Management
Areas
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) are
declared when there is an exceedance or likely
exceedance of an air quality objective. Once
those levels are reduced to appropriate levels,
an AQMA can be revoked.

Page 132

125

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

There were four AQMA’s in Broxtowe. However,
three have now been revoked and there is one
remaining AQMA situated in Trowell. Monitoring
is still being undertaken in the three revoked
AQMA’s as well as the current AQMA. The
table below shows the four AQMA’s and there
locations.
AQMA
Name

Location

Date
Declared

AQMA 1 Trowell –
Iona Drive &
Tiree Close

2006

AQMA 2 Trowell –
Derbyshire
Avenue

2006

AQMA 3 Trowell –
Nottingham
Road

2006

AQMA 4 Nuthall Nottingham
Road

2006

3.0

Date
Revoked

-

permission and to encourage developers to
include sustainable travel measures as part of
the planning application.

2010

3.2

EV charging points

Developer requirements to provide of EV
2010

charging points at new development.
Broxtowe Local plan includes Policy 26 that

2017

Achievements

A lot of the issues around air quality in the
borough centre on the road network. Control
of this rests with Highways England and
Nottinghamshire County Council. As such,
there are limited actions that Broxtowe Borough
Council can take to improve air quality problems
arising from the road network. However, the
Borough Council has implemented a number of
measures in pursuit of improving local air quality.

3.1 Planning and Policy
Guidance

requires a Travel Plan to be submitted with any
planning application for 10 or more dwellings or
1,000 square metres or more floor space.

3.3 Sustainable travel
information for the public
The Council has leaflets on safe cycling on the
tram lines, bus routes, Broxtowe cycling map,
Broxtowe Country and Erewash Valley routes
and walking leaflets.
Sustainable Travel methods are also available
on the Council’s website.

3.4

Vehicle emissions testing

The Council’s fleet vehicles are annually emission
tested in house prior to MOT emission testing.

Broxtowe Part 2 of the Local Plan (2018-2028),

The Council also undertakes additional

includes Policy 20 on Air Quality.

emissions tests on all fleet vehicles if any new

This policy ensures that air quality remains an
important consideration when granting planning

126

fuel or engine components have been changed.
This is to ensure continued vehicle emission
compliance.

Page 133

Broxtowe Borough Council

3.5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Taxi licensing conditions

3.6

Cycle to work scheme

From 13 June 2018, all petrol vehicles are

Cycle to work scheme – to assist and give tax

required to meet Euro 5 standards, all new

relief on bike purchases for employees of BBC.

diesel vehicles are required to meet Euro 6
emissions.
Hybrid and Electric Vehicles to be licensed as
“Taxis” by quoting minimum 70kW and reducing
boot space requirement to allow for battery

3.7 Low emission vehicle
procurement
All new fleet vehicles procured by the Council
are Euro 6 emissions complaint.
The Council has procured two electric vans in

storage

2019.
Subject to satisfactory trials another two electric
vehicles will be purchased in 2020.

4.0

Strategic Actions

In order to further improve and influence the
improvement of Air Quality the council will take
the following strategic actions.

Strand 13

Recycling

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Continue to provide an annual Air Quality Status
Report for the Borough which is fit for purpose

Head of Public
Protection and HR

Ongoing

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

May 2020

Action 3

Continue to work with relevant partners in order to
bring about improvements in local air quality

Head of Public
Protection and HR

Ongoing

Action 4

Review the NO2 diffusion tubes network; take
proactive action to discontinue sites where the annual
air quality levels are comfortably below the objective,
and relocate them to new sites within the Borough
allowing the identification of “problem‟ areas to be
focussed on.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March 2021

Action 5

Develop further strategic actions as part of the Air
Quality project strand delivery.

Head of Public
Protection and HR

October 2020

Action 6

To encourage employees of BBC to purchase hybrid
vehicles and electric vehicles for their personal and
business use

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March 2021

Action 7

Investigate the installation of vertical gardens, using
moss to absorb CO2 and particulate matter

Head of Public
Protection and HR

March 2022

Page 134

127

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 15

Hospitality and
Support Services

Page 135

Broxtowe Borough Council

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 15

Hospitality and
Support Services
Contents
1.0

Introduction

130

2.0

Achievements - Hospitality

130

3.0

Achievements - Support Services

130

4.0

Strategic Actions

131

Page 136

129

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

STRAND 14

Hospitality and
Support Services
1.0 Introduction
The introduction of the New Ways of Working programme gave the opportunity to
review the way in which refreshments and facilities for making drinks for and by
employees, members and visitors was achieved with the aim of reducing single use
plastic, in particular. Alongside this, the way in which waste is collected throughout
the Council Offices has also be reviewed, again with the aim to reduce the amount of
plastic being used.

2.0 Achievements - Hospitality
New facilities for Members have been provided
on the ground and second floors of the Council
Offices. In both:
■

wooden stirrers are now provided rather
than plastic spoons

■

china cups/mugs and glasses have replaced
paper/plastic ones

The coffee machines purchased for the second

Plastic cups have been removed from water

floor facility and the Leader’s Office use

coolers. Staff are now encouraged to use their

recyclable pods which are taken by Support

own drinking container and glasses are available

Services to a local collection point in Beeston.

for visitors and those attending meetings

In addition, tea, coffee and sugar in the second
floor Members’ Room are now stored in airtight
containers, reducing the need for any packaging,
apart from the original delivery packaging.

3.0 Achievements - Support
Services
Plastic bags are used in both the waste and
recycling bins throughout the Council Offices.

130

Page 137

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

Broxtowe Borough Council

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

The Cleaning Team now re-use the bags
wherever possible by emptying waste and
recyclables into used bags rather than taking
out the bags every day and replacing them with
new ones. This is not only saving money, but
reducing the amount of plastic bags used.

4.0

Strategic Actions

Although some action has already been taken
to reduce single use plastics in both hospitality
and support services, there are further initiatives
which can be introduced to reduce plastic and
packaging further, for example tea, coffee and
Strand 14

sugar will continue to be replaced with loose
goods when supplies need to be replenished in
the ground floor Members’ Room and the Alder
Room.

Recycling

Responsible Officer

Target Date

Action 1

Determine and report on approaches that can further
reduce the use of single use resources in both the
areas of hospitality and support services.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Action 2

Capture and analyse the achievements to date
to inform the approach moving forward and the
overarching communications programme.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Action 3

Develop further strategic actions as part of the
Hospitality / Support project strand delivery.

Head of
Administration

May 2020

Action 4

Investigate the use of environmentally-friendly
cleaning products using only naturally derived
materials which has a less damaging effect on the
environment

Head of
Administration

March 2021

Page 138

131

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix

Page 139

Climate Change And Green Futures Programme

Appendix
1. Carbon Trust Carbon Footprint Assessment 2018/19
1.1 Carbon Footprint Presentation

134
157

2. Climate Change Campaign Plan

172

3. Water Courses Trent Gateway Masterplan 2020

182

4. Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme

234

5. Green Futures Resource Pack

250

6. Carbon Neutral Infographic

262

126

Page 140

Appendix 1.0

Carbon Trust Foot
Print Assessment
2018/19

Page 141

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council
Carbon Footprint Report - 18/19

Alp Katalan, Hector Wilson, Rob Hatcher
February 2020

Contacts
Prepared by:

Prepared for:

Alp Katalan
Analyst
Alp.Katalan@carbontrust.com
+44(0)20 7832 4578

Kevin Powell
Strategic Director
Kevin.Powell@broxtowe.gov.uk

Hector Wilson
Senior Analyst
Hector.Wilson@carbontrust.com
+44(0)20 7832 4565

Robert Hatcher
Senior Manager
Robert.Hatcher@carbontrust.com
+44(0)20 7832 4619

Name
Position
Email
Tel
1

Page 142

135

Broxtowe Borough Council Delivery Programme -

Appendix 1.0

C L I M AT E C H A N G E a n d G R E E N F U T U R E S

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Contents
1. About the Organisations
2. Executive Summary
3. Introduction and Background

4. Carbon Footprint
5. Methodology
6. Next Steps
2

1
About the Organisations

3

136

Page 143

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

About Carbon Trust

Our mission is to accelerate the move to a
sustainable, low carbon economy.
The Carbon Trust is an independent, expert
partner of leading organisations around the world,
helping them contribute to and benefit from a
more sustainable future through carbon
reduction, resource efficiency strategies and
commercialising low carbon technologies.

About Broxtowe Borough Council
The Council’s statutory remit combines responsibility for a
wide range of local government services with a focus on
the Borough of Broxtowe, one of the 7 districts which make
up the county of Nottinghamshire. It operates services
including: Planning and building control; Housing; Parking;
Waste management; Leisure facilities; and parks. Broxtowe
Borough Council has approximately 478 employees.
Broxtowe is located west of the City of Nottingham. The
Borough covers an area of 31 square miles and is home to
around 113,200 residents.

5

Page 144

137

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

2
Executive Summary

6

Executive Summary
Background
• The need for taking immediate and bold action on climate change is being
increasingly recognised by businesses, government and the general
population.
• The amount of action that needs to be taken, and the speed at which this
must be done has been recognised by the UK through its ratification of the
Paris climate agreement – to limit global temperature rise to well below 2oC.
• Consequently, the UK has declared a climate emergency, and the
independent committee on climate change has laid out what needs to be
done for the UK to become net-zero carbon by 2050.

• Broxtowe Borough Council has acknowledged their role in the need to take
action and have themselves passed a motion to develop a strategy to achieve
net zero carbon emissions.
7

138

Page 145

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Executive Summary
Aim
Ultimately, this exercise has the aim of informing Broxtowe Borough
Council’s activities to meet its objective of carbon neutrality by 2027.
Through this exercise, Broxtowe Borough Council will receive an
updated carbon footprint of their activities for 2018/19. The footprint
will include all Scope 1 (direct fuel use, such as gas and petrol) and
Scope 2 (electricity) emissions, as well as business travel emissions
(part of Scope 3 emissions).
This will also provide a basis for review/comparison with Broxtowe
Borough Council’s previous carbon footprint, conducted in 2009/10. In
this way, the Council will be able to determine what types of activities
have been most/least useful in the past decade to reduce their
emissions.

8

Executive Summary
Key Findings

2,328
tCO2e

- Broxtowe
Borough
Council’s carbon
footprint for the
FY 2018/19

• Over ¾ of Broxtowe Borough Council’s measured emissions come from Scope
1 emissions (direct emissions from the fuel consumed).
• Natural gas for heating, predominantly leisure centres, accounts for 40% of
the Council’s footprint, followed by their vehicle fleet (36%) and electricity
(just over 20%).
• Over 70% of the fleet emissions come from refuse trucks/road sweepers.
• 99.8% of all business travel miles are by petrol or diesel vehicle. The rest is
done via cycling, public transport and trains are used for business travel but
often unaccounted for.
• Broxtowe Borough Council’s carbon footprint dropped 45% from its 2009/10
emission sources. This was mainly due to the grid decarbonising, a reduction
in the number of buildings in scope, and the implementation of the 35+ CMP
recommendations. Thus already meeting the 34% reduction target by 2020.

Page 146

9

139

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

3
Introduction & Background

10

Background
• Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions produced from anthropogenic sources
and activities have resulted in an increase in the average global
temperature; and over the next century average global temperatures are
anticipated to increase by a further 2-4oC.
• This will have an inevitable effect on the planet’s climate and natural cycles.
• To combat this, nations have pledged within the Paris climate agreement to
drastically reduce emissions in order to limit the rise in average global
temperatures to well below 2oC.
• The UK has recognised the scale of the problem and as such has declared a
climate emergency, aiming to achieve net zero emissions by 2050.

11

140

Page 147

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Purpose of Our Work
•

Broxtowe Borough Council have declared their intention to become a carbon neutral
organisation and borough by 2027. In doing so, the Council are raising their carbon
management ambitions, having previously developed a carbon management plan with The
Carbon Trust in 2009/10. Whilst the carbon neutral target refers to the Council’s own estate
and operations only, ultimately the Council would also like to use their influence across the
Borough to lead by example and encourage businesses, homeowners and other key
stakeholders to take action on climate change.
• The council have been swift in taking action thus far, having implemented a list of over 60
carbon reduction projects, they have also:
• Created a new Committee focused on taking action on the Environment and Climate
Change.
• Developed a Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan.
• Established a Climate Change Steering Group to lead on 15 key areas.
• Launched its Green Futures campaign to encourage residents, businesses and community
groups in Broxtowe to do their bit.
• The first step in further developing a carbon reduction strategy has been to determine the
current emissions produced directly and indirectly by the council. This report highlights the
main emissions sources, and thus target areas where emissions should be reduced as a
priority.
12

Greenhouse Gases (GHGs)
•
•
•

•
•

Carbon dioxide is not the only greenhouse gas, there are five other key
greenhouse gases that contribute to global warming, these are: Methane, Nitrous
Oxide, Hydrofluorocarbons, Perfluorocarbons and Sulphur Hexafluoride.
Not all of these gases arise from combustion of fossil fuels, with some originating
from refrigeration/cooling, agriculture, chemical production and electrical
applications.
Each gas has its own global warming potential (GWP), by comparing each gas’s
GWP to that of Carbon Dioxide (CO2) we are able to derive a Carbon Dioxide
equivalent value (CO2e).
▪ Example: CO2 has a GWP of 1, Methane has a GWP of 24; therefore we can say
that 1 ton of methane emissions is equal to 24tCO2e.
CO2 has the lowest GWP, with some other GHGs having a GWP thousands of times
higher. However, CO2 is by far the most abundant GHG.
Hence the focus on carbon (dioxide) when discussing emissions reduction and
climate change and the use of the term carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e).
13

Page 148

141

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

GHG Protocol
•

The green house gas (GHG) protocol
is the most widely used, and
accepted
methodology
for
greenhouse gas accounting.

•

It provides a framework for
businesses, governments and entities
to measure and report greenhouse
gas emissions that support ongoing
reduction efforts in a consistent
manner.

•

The standard has been developed by
the World Resources Institute (WRI)
and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD)

•

Carbon Trust has been working with
and applying the mechanisms of the
GHG protocol for almost 20 years
including providing support to the
WRI in developing Scope 3
accounting methods.

14

4
Footprint

15

142

Page 149

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Footprint Boundary
Emission inventory and categories included for Broxtowe Borough Council’s footprint (shown below). Not all GHG
protocol categories are included, only those that were deemed relevant and where data is easily available.

Emissions
Direct

Indirect

Scope 1
Natural Gas

Fleet

Scope 2

Scope 3

Electricity

Business Travel

16

Historical Footprint
• Broxtowe Borough Council had worked previously with the Carbon Trust
in completing a similar exercise, undertaking a carbon management plan
(CMP) in the FY 2009/10.
• Within this plan the council measured their carbon footprint and used
this as a baseline for target setting and progress reporting for carbon
reduction projects.
• The carbon footprint for 2009/10 was calculated to be 4,242 tCO2e, this
took in to account a range of energy usage in buildings (namely gas and
electricity), as well as emissions from fleet and business travel.
• From this baseline the Council aimed to reduce emissions by 25% by
2015 and 34% by 2020.
• The CMP listed a total of 37 quantified projects which if were
undertaken would result in a potential reduction of 834 tCO2e; this
would equate to meeting 79% of the 2015 target.
17

Page 150

143

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

2018/19 Carbon Footprint
• The total green house gas
emissions
from
Broxtowe
Borough Council in the financial
year 2018/19 have been
measured to equal 2,328 tCO2e.
• The vast majority (see right) of
emissions fall under ‘scope 1’,
these are direct emissions from
the fuel consumed, e.g. to
power vehicle fleets and gas
boilers.
• Of the remaining emissions, 21%
is scope 2, meaning the
emissions from using electricity
(based on the grid’s carbon
intensity), and 2% from Scope 3
emissions (in this case, business
travel).

Carbon Footprint by Scope
2%

22%

Sum of Scope 1

2,328
tCO2e

Sum of Scope 2
Sum of Scope 3

76%

18

2018/19 Emissions

•

•

•

The graph opposite details the
emissions produced from individual
emissions sources/fuels, as well as by
scope.
The vast majority of the council’s
emissions
arise
from
the
consumption of gas (40%), typically
used for heating and hot water
services.
Emissions
from
electricity
consumption and fleet usage account
for 21% and 36% of the total
emissions respectively.
Business travel for Broxtowe Borough
Council accounts for a small
proportion of total emissions
(approximately 3%).

Broxtowe Borough Council’s emissions in
scope
935

1000

831

900
800
Emissions (tCO2e)

•

700

499

600
500
400
300
200
100
0

63

Business Travel
Sum of Scope 1

Electricity
Sum of Scope 2

Fleet

Gas

Sum of Scope 3

19

144

Page 151

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 1 Emissions
•

Scope 1 emissions are a result of the direct burning of fossil fuels
by the council. This arises from two measured sources: natural gas
burnt in boilers to provide heating and hot water; and the councils
owned transport fleet which burns petrol, diesel and gas oil (red
diesel) within internal combustion engines.

•

Broxtowe Borough Council’s Scope 1 emissions are split between
fleet and gas emissions, emissions from buildings’ gas
consumption are around 100 tCO2e higher than emissions from
vehicle use.
Electrification or switching to low/zero carbon fuels for the
council’s owned transport fleet and industrial machinery will be
the main option to move towards net zero in this area. UK
government policy mandates that new petrol and diesel vehicles
cannot be purchased after 2035, recently brought forward from
2040. However, cost parity and the business case is likely to
indicate Broxtowe should move to low carbon vehicles (LCVs) or
EVs much sooner (e.g. 2024). Therefore we would advocate that
Broxtowe thoroughly assess the potential for LCVs or EVs for any
new vehicles purchased from this date.

•

•

Scope 1 emissions

1766
tCO2e

47%

To reduce consumption of natural gas the council should
investigate alternative heating and hot water technologies. This
can be achieved through using heat pumps, electric boilers, or
utilising biogas or hydrogen. Heat pumps and electric boilers
require either the grid emissions to be less than natural gas
(expected in the next few years) or make use of onsite renewables
to achieve carbon emissions lower than those currently
associated with natural gas.

Gas

53%

Fleet

20

Scope 1 Emissions
Natural Gas Consumption in Buildings
•

Scope 1 emissions arising from the combustion of natural gas have
been recorded from all sites operated by the council, and include a
mix of office, parking, and recreational spaces.

•

Broxtowe borough council has combined consumption data in to 5
broad categories, this approach is advantageous in seeing overall
trends for the different building stocks. However, it is
recommended in future that the council footprints each site as a
separate data point. This way it is possible to identify particularly
poor performing sites and are able to readily account for property
rationalisation from year to year.

Natural gas emissions (tCO2e)
Bramcote & Kimberley Leisure Centres

511

Bramcote Crematorium

•

The most effective methods for reducing natural gas consumption
and associated emissions are to upgrade building fabrics; service or
replace aging boilers; adjust and monitor heating controls and
temperature set points.

•

The above energy efficiency measures should always be prioritised
in order to reduce heating demand before then upgrading to an
electric heating system, which will likely be required in future to
further reduce emissions.

Park Buildings various

•

Based on available data, the total annual spend on natural gas
consumption equals £112,312.

Museums

258

Offices, admin build

143

20

935
tCO2e

3
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

21

Page 152

145

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 1 Emissions
Fleet and Other Equipment
Note: electric
vehicles are an
effective way to
improve air
quality as well as
reducing carbon
emissions by
decreasing
harmful levels of
particulate
matter (PM)

•

•

•

The overwhelming majority of emissions
arise from the running of refuse
trucks/road sweepers – forming 74% of
all fleet emissions.
The council should consider moving from
fossil fuel based transport to electric
vehicles to radically reduce emissions; an
electric vehicle currently emits 70% fewer
emissions per mile compared to a diesel
vehicle, this will increase further as the
grid decarbonises.
The assortment of electric vehicles is
increasing, with electric HGVs and refuse
trucks entering the market. Furthermore,
range is no longer an issue for vehicles
travelling locally and there is an
increasingly strong business case for
vehicles that conduct regular journeys.

Fleet Emissions (tCO2e)
Refuse trucks or road sweepers (rigid
size)

613

Diesel van Average (up to 3.5 tonnes)

161

Gardening and Grounds Maintenance diesel

29

Diesel HGV Rigid (>3.5 - 7.5 tonnes)

13

Industrial mobile machinery - gas oil

12

Gardening and Grounds Maintenance petrol

831
tCO2e

2
0

100 200 300 400 500 600 700

22

Scope 2 Emissions
Electricity Consumption in Buildings
•

Scope 2 emissions arising from electricity consumption have been recorded
from multiple sites that have been aggregated into 8 categories, and include
a mix of offices, public buildings and facilites, lighting, and recreational
spaces.

•

The top two highest emitting sites, account for 64% of all electricity
emissions. These include: Bramcote & Kimberley Leisure Centres; and
Offices, admin build / depot offices.

•

The most effective methods for reducing electricity consumption and
associated emissions are to switch to LED lighting (this is of particular
importance to car parks and street lighting, but also relevant to all other
buildings); service or upgrade HVAC systems, upgrade appliances to energy
efficient types and make sure to switch them off when not in use.

•

•

146

Electricity emissions (tCO2e)
Bramcote & Kimberley Leisure Centres
Offices, admin build / depot offices

The council should also consider installing renewable energy generation to
provide zero carbon electricity. Building mounted and standalone Solar PV
systems will provide the council with options to relatively cost effectively
decarbonise scope 2 emissions (e.g. < 10 years simple payback)
Total annual expenditure on electricity consumption equals £214,511; this
high cost of electricity per kWh is further reasoning to deploy on-site
renewables to provide electricity.

Page 153

The Council Offices
Bramcote Crematorium
Park Buildings (various sites)
Museums & galleries

499
tCO2e

Public Conveniences

Cemeteries
0

50

100

150

200

250

23

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 2
Grid Decarbonisation
UK grid carbon intensity (kg
CO2e/kWh)

•

0.60

0.50

0.49

•

0.40
0.30

•

0.26

0.20
0.06

0.10

Source: BEIS, Annual conversion factor publications

2035

2033

2031

2029

2027

2025

2023

2021

2019

2017

2015

2013

2011

2009

0.00

•

•

The UK power sector has undergone significant changes in the last
5-10 years: coal power stations have been increasingly phased out
and replaced by renewable electricity generation sources such as
solar and offshore wind. Between January and May 2019, Britain
generated more power from clean energy than from fossil fuels for
the first time since the Industrial Revolution.
In 2010 consuming 1 kWh of electricity would result in 0.49 kgCO2e
being emitted, by 2019 this value had almost halved.
The UK plans to have coal power completely phased out by 2023,
and have offshore wind supplying 30% of all electricity by 2030.
By 2025, it is expected the emission factor for UK electricity will
approach 0.1 kgCO2e per kWh; and almost zero by 2050.
The ‘greening of the grid’ means that the council’s footprint will
naturally shrink over time. The more the council moves to electrify
its heating systems and transport, the more its footprint will
decrease over time.
24

Scope 2
Market Based versus Location Based
•

•

Location Based
Footprint:
2,328 tCO2e

Market Based
Footprint:
1,829 tCO2e

At present there are two methodologies that can be used to account for scope 2
emissions:

•

•

•

A location-based approach is the most frequently used and uses an emission factor
based on all the generating supplies of electricity to the grid (national grid). This is the
approach that has been used within this report. The introduction of any renewable
generators exporting to the grid is captured in a lower UK wide grid emission factor,
that everyone benefits from within their carbon accounting.
Alternatively, a market-based approach looks at where the consumer of electricity pays
to have their electricity come from, such that if a consumer makes the conscious
decision to purchase electricity from a ‘green’ supplier then this is accounted for in
their carbon footprint. When a market-based approach is used and the footprint
reported, the location-based footprint must always be reported alongside.

Incentivising the reporting of a location based approach is good practice as it ensures
that the challenge of reducing demand through energy efficiency is tackled first.
Moreover, reduced demand means less consumption and thus cheaper bills, whereas
simply switching to a green supplier may result in increased electricity bills.
Broxtowe Borough Council does currently purchase all of its electricity through green
tariffs, and thus under a market based approach benefits from a reduced footprint.
25

Page 154

147

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 2
Green Tariff definitions
•

Green electricity tariffs are those in which some or all of the electricity purchased from your supplier is 'matched' by
purchases of renewable energy that your energy supplier makes on your behalf. This can be through:
•
•

•

Owning renewable energy generation (e.g. solar or wind farms), or
Purchasing electricity directly from renewable energy generators, such as through contracts called Power Purchase
Agreements (PPAs), or
Buying REGO (Renewable Energy Guarantee of Origin) certificates to match what their customers use with renewable
electricity already put into the grid.

•

REGO certificates: When 1MWh of renewable electricity is created and put into the grid, the generator receives a
certificate called a REGO. The generator can then make money through either selling the electricity and/or the REGO
certificate. Energy firms buy REGO certificates to show the proportion of renewable electricity they sell. Some suppliers
will purchase any electricity, including from renewable generation, but not the accompanying certificates (for example
large commercial customers that aren't worried about proving where their electricity comes from). This leaves some
certificates unsold, which can be purchased by other energy suppliers.

•

This means that some green electricity tariffs will be based on purchasing electricity generated from fossil fuels and
unsold REGO certificates.

•

•
•

Green gas tariffs this can either mean:

That a percentage of the gas supplied is biomethane (produced through purifying biogas generated from waste through a
process called anaerobic digestion) as opposed to natural gas (a fossil fuel), or
The emissions from the natural gas are offset (such as through planting trees that soak up carbon dioxide or funding low-carbon
energy projects elsewhere to displace fossil fuels).

26

Scope 2
Green tariffs
•

Purchasing green tariffs sends a signal to your supplier and the wider industry that you
wish to avoid electricity generated from fossil fuels and demonstrates that there is a
demand for renewable energy.

•

It is also important to note that it is not technically possible for renewable power to be
directed to your buildings unless you have a direct line to a generator (e.g. solar panels
on your roof). The electricity consumed will be the same regardless of the tariff you’re
on, as it’s delivered from the grid. It’s not possible to direct ‘renewable’ electrons to
some buildings and ‘non-renewable’ electrons to others.

•

For carbon accounting purposes, switching to a green tariff would bring all of BBC’s
electricity emissions (Scope 2) to zero if taking a market-based approach, but would
keep its electricity emissions the same if taking a location-based approach
(recommended).

27

148

Page 155

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 3
Business Travel
•

99.8% of all business travel miles are by petrol or diesel
vehicle, 0.2% of business travel miles are completed using a
low carbon mode of transport.

•

Furthermore, no business travel miles were logged using
public transport or walking.

•

Broxtowe encourages employees to use public transport and
there are a number of expenses claims relating to train, tram
and bus trips. However, because their data collection
process is not based on mileage and it was only made
electronic in 2018, there is not enough data to provide a
good overview of business travel emissions form public
transport.

•

We recommend BBC to enhance other current process so
that the impact of this activity can be better understood.

•

It is suggested that the council continues encouraging its
staff to firstly reduce business travel mileage by using online
meetings, conference and/or video calls where possible, and
secondly to use low carbon modes of transport,
walking/cycling or public transport. In addition to this, the
council could also capture the distances travelled by its staff
on public transport.

Emissions (tCO2e)
0

10

20

30

Business Mileage - Average
Petrol Car

37

Business Mileage - Average
Diesel Car

Cycle

40

27

0

64
tCO2e
28

Footprint Summary Table

Category
Electricity

Scope 1

Scope 2

Scope 3

0

499.2

0

Gas

934.7

0

0

Fleet

831.0

0

0

0

0

63.4

1765.7

499.2

63.4

Business Travel
Total

29

Page 156

149

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Progress Against 2009/10
Overview

•

•
•

•

•

Broxtowe Borough Council's emission
reductions in the past decade

Since 2009/10 Broxtowe Borough Council has
achieved emissions reductions of 45%, meaning that
the council has exceeded its original CMP target of
34% reduction by 2020.
The largest absolute and relative reduction has
come from building emissions, at 1632 tCO2e
equating to a 53% reduction. This is due to a variety
of factors, including:

4500

4242

4000
3500

Emissions (tCO2e)

•

A reduction in scope of buildings,
Decarbonisation of the electricity grid over the
past decade,
Implementation of a majority of the measures set
out in the 2008/9 CMP.

↓45%

3000

2328

2500
2000
1500
1000
500

Business travel has also seen a significant reduction
as emissions have halved, and fleet emissions have
dropped by 21%.

0

2009/10
Buidlings

2018/19
Fleet

Business Travel

30

Progress Against 2009/10
Buildings

•

•

150

The building emissions are the
aggregate emissions from gas
(Scope 1) and electricity (Scope 2)
consumption.
All building sites apart from the
Depot, Kimberly buildings including
offices saw a reduction of at least
35% over the past decade.
This can be partly attributed
reduction in emissions is grid
decarbonisation, which alone is
expected
to
have
reduced
emissions by approximately 500
tCO2e.

•

Since 2009/10, Broxtowe Borough
Council have also removed three
buildings from their assets - the
Town Hall, 14 Devonshire Drive and
Cavendish Lodge – which made up
close to 11% of total emissions in
2009/10.

•

Broxtowe Borough Council has also
been extensively implementing the
35+ projects proposed under the
CMP.

Change in emissions from buildings
1800
1600
Emissions (tCO2e)

•

↓54%

1524

1400
1200
1000
800

708

600

↓84%

↓35%

482

474

400
77

200
0

Leisure
centres

↑8%
↓98%

308

246 265

170

3

↓38%
97 60

Crematorium Depot,
Other
Pavilions
Office
Kimberley buildings (inl.
buildings
including Toilets and
(inc. Town
offices
cemeteries)
Hall, Council
Offices,
Cavendish
Lodge, 14
Devonshire)
2009/10
2018/19

↓84%
73 12
Museums

31

Page 157

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

5
Methodology

32

Basic description

How to Calculate Emissions

Input data

Carbon factor

kWh (utilities)

BEIS factor
(kgCO2e/unit)

Litres or km (fuel)

OR
£ (contract value)

Carbon emissions
(kgCO2e or tCO2e)

Economic factor
(kgCO2e/£ spent)
33

Page 158

151

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Data Sources
• Emission factors for all fuels/sources and all years have been
sourced from BEIS annual emission reporting data tables.
• Activity data (fuel consumption, miles covered, etc.) has all been
collected by Broxtowe Borough Council and reviewed by the Carbon
Trust.
• Cost data has been compiled by Broxtowe Borough Council.
• Carbon Trust cannot be held responsible for any errors within the
analysis as a result of missing or incorrect data.

34

Data Quality Assessment
Data Quality Ranking

Footprint Quality Ranking

1.
2.

1.

3.
4.

5.

No data provided
Data mainly incomplete, industry
standard values have to be used.
More than 10% of data entries
missing, supporting information can
be used to fill some gaps.
Majority of data and supporting
information present; data gaps can
be
filled
with
supporting
information (i.e. floor area or cost).
All data and supporting information
present, sources referenced.

2.
3.

4.

5.

Emission factor or activity data not
available.
Heavily assumed activity data used or
assumed emission factor used due to
misalignment with activity.
Proxy value or other metric needed
(eg. EEIO or waste density) to align
emission factor to activity data that
has been assumed or calculated.
Proxy value or other metric (eg. EEIO
or waste density) needed to align
complete activity data to emission
factor.
Emission factors align directly with
complete activity data, no proxies or
assumptions needed.
35

152

Page 159

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Data Quality

Item

Data Source

Data Quality
(1-5)

Footprint
Quality (1-5)

Comment

Gas

Utility Bills

4

5

Consumption data aggregated across all sites for consumption, in future all sites should be provided as individual data points.
No proxies needed to calculate emissions.

Electricity

Utility Bills

4

5

Consumption data aggregated across all sites for consumption, in future all sites should be provided as individual data points.
No proxies needed to calculate emissions.

Fleet

Fuel Cards

4

5

Consumption data aggregated across all vehicles, in future all vehicles should be provided as individual data points. No proxies
needed to calculate emissions.

Business Travel Internal records 4

5

All data, apart from public transport mileage, provided as required. No proxies were needed to calculate footprint. In future,
the council should try to capture the mileage of its business travel through public transport to provide a more accurate picture
of this emissions category.

36

6
Next Steps

37

Page 160

153

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Model handover
• The Carbon Trust ‘footprint
calculator’ will be handed
over to the council so they
may explore the data.
• This also offers the
opportunity to undertake
carbon
footprints
yourselves in future years,
an important step in order
to understand progress
against targets.
• Carbon Trust will be on
hand to guide the process
and use of the tool.
38

Climate Action Plan
• A Climate Action Plan would quantify specific emission reduction
projects that the council can undertake in order to try and meet
their 2027 carbon neutral target.
• As part of a Climate Action Plan, it is possible to determine the ease
of reaching the carbon neutral target; thereby also determining the
likely level of offsetting the council must carry out.

• Carbon Trust would be pleased to discuss the development of a
bespoke Climate Action Plan with Broxtowe Borough Council based
on the existing and potential footprint work.

39

154

Page 161

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Re-baselining

•

•

•
•

In order to make a fair comparison with Broxtowe Borough
Council’s previous carbon footprint, this report has looked at
the carbon emissions from the same buildings as those in the
CMP from 2009/10.
The 2009/10 baseline did not consider all buildings under the
council’s ownership, buildings such as sheltered housing,
care homes and landlord’s lighting.
If accounted for, this would increase the council’s carbon
footprint by 57%, which would adversely mean that its total
footprint (Scopes 1 and 2, and business travel) will have only
reduced by 14% in net terms from their 2009/10 levels, well
below the council’s 34% target.
Going forward, the Carbon Trust recommends that Broxtowe
Borough Council use 3,652 tCO2e, which includes all
buildings, as its 2018/19 baseline emissions figure.
Conversely, if the entire building scope were to have been
accounted for in 2009/10 then the baseline footprint would
have been greater than 4,600 tCO2e; equating to an
approximate 21% reduction in emissions between 2009/10
and 2018/19.

Total Emissions (2009/10 CMP
scope vs. Full scope)
4000

3,652

↑57%

3500
3000

Emissions (tCO2e)

•

2,328

2500
2000
1500
1000

500
0

Exisitng Building Scope

Full Building Scope

Gas (Scope 1)

Electricity (Scope 2)

Fleet (Scope 1)

Business Travel

40

Scope 3 Footprinting
• The only Scope 3 emissions category that as assessed for this project
was business travel. This was because Broxtowe Borough Council
wanted an initial analysis of the same emissions categories as their
2009/10 footprint.
• For a deeper understanding of its indirect carbon footprint,
Broxtowe Borough Council could commission a Scope 3 footprint.
This is significant as for many organisations, the majority of their
GHG emissions and cost reduction opportunities lie outside their
own operations.
• This could include looking at the emissions generated from:
purchased goods; water supply and treatment; waste disposal and
treatment; upstream transportation and distribution; staff
commuting; contracted services; leased buildings; and investments.
41

Page 162

155

Appendix 1.0

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Whilst reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the information contained within this publication is correct,
the authors, the Carbon Trust, its agents, contractors and sub-contractors give no warranty and make no
representation as to its accuracy and accept no liability for any errors or omissions. All trademarks, service marks and
logos in this publication, and copyright in it, are the property of the Carbon Trust (or its licensors). Nothing in this
publication shall be construed as granting any licence or right to use or reproduce any of the trademarks, services
marks, logos, copyright or any proprietary information in any way without the Carbon Trust’s prior written permission.
The Carbon Trust enforces infringements of its intellectual property rights to the full extent permitted by law.
The Carbon Trust is a company limited by guarantee and registered in England and Wales under company number
4190230 with its registered office at 4th Floor Dorset House, Stamford Street, London SE1 9NT.
Published in the UK: 2019.
© The Carbon Trust 2019. All rights reserved.

156

Page 163

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 1.1

Carbon Trust Foot
Print Presentation

Page 164

157

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council
Carbon Footprint Presentation
Hector Wilson, Alp Katalan
Board Meeting - 23rd March 2020

Agenda
1. Scope of Works
2. Footprinting Recap
3. Results

4. Next Steps

1

158

Page 165

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

1
Scope of Works

2

Purpose of Our Work
• Broxtowe Borough Council have declared their intention to become a
carbon neutral organisation and borough by 2027
• Last completed a carbon management plan in 2009/10
• To first develop a carbon reduction strategy you need to know where to
focus efforts, thus this work has included:
• A carbon footprint of direct and indirect emissions from the council
• Analysis of progress against previous CMP
• Highlight priority areas for the council to focus their efforts on
• Provide background and supporting information around emissions
accounting and sustainability.

3

Page 166

159

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

What are Others Doing?
Nottingham City
Council

Rushcliffe Borough
Council

Carbon Neutral

Carbon Neutral

2028

2030

Declared

Proposed

Amber Valley Borough
Council
Carbon Neutral

2030
Declared

Ashfield District
Council
No target
Committed to doing
everything possible

4

Overall project approach

Kick-off and
data request

Data collection
& cleaning

Report and Tool
Deliverables

Presentation of
results

Carbon
Footprint
Calculation

5

160

Page 167

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

2
Footprinting Recap

6

Greenhouse Gases
• Greenhouse gases are not limited to CO2 and under the Kyoto
protocol we must consider the emissions of several other GHGs
when producing a footprint.
• Each GHG has a specific global warming potential (GWP).
• We measure all gases in tCO2e

GWP:

CO2

N2O

PFCs

HFCs

SF6

CH4

NF3

1

310

~10,000

1,500 –
15,000

23,900

21

17,000

From left to right: Carbon Dioxide, Nitrous oxide, Perflurocarbons, Hydrofluorocarbons, Sulphur Hexafluoride,
Methane, Nitrogen Trifluoride

Page 168

7

161

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Greenhouse Gas Protocol – Scopes 1, 2 & 3

GHG protocol
is an
internationally
recognised
carbon
accounting
standard

8

Greenhouse Gas Protocol – Scopes 1, 2 & 3

9

162

Page 169

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Footprint Boundary

Emissions
Direct

Indirect

Scope 1
Natural Gas

Scope 2

Scope 3

Electricity

Business Travel

Fleet

10

Basic description

How to Calculate Emissions

Input data

Carbon factor

kWh (utilities)

BEIS factor
(kgCO2e/unit)

Litres or km (fuel)

OR
£ (contract value)

Carbon emissions
(kgCO2e or tCO2e)

Economic factor
(kgCO2e/£ spent)
11

Page 170

163

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

3
Results

12

2018/19 Carbon Footprint

2,328
tCO2e

Sum of Scope 1
Sum of Scope 2
Sum of Scope 3

• 76% of emissions from
scope 1 – direct burning of
fossil fuels in vehicles and
boilers
• 22% from scope 2 emissions
sources – indirect emissions
relating to electricity
consumption
• 2% from business travel
scope 3 emissions
13

164

Page 171

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

2018/19 Emissions
Broxtowe Borough Council’s emissions in scope
935

1000
900

831

Emissions (tCO2e)

800
700

600

499

500
400
300
200
100
0

63

Business Travel

Electricity
Sum of Scope 1

Fleet

Sum of Scope 2

Gas

Sum of Scope 3

14

2009/10 Carbon Management Plan

Reduction target was
originally set at 34% by 2020
Building emissions decreased by
53%
Fleet emission decreased by
21%

4500

4242

4000

-45%

3500
Emissions (tCO2e)

Carbon emissions in
2009/10 were reported to
be 4,242 tCO2e

3000

2328

2500
2000
1500
1000

Business Travel decreased by
50%

500
0

2009/10
Buidlings

2018/19
Fleet

Business Travel

15

Page 172

165

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Scope 1 Emissions
Natural Gas Consumption in Buildings
• Scope 1 emissions arising from
the combustion of natural gas
have been recorded from all
sites operated by the council,
and include a mix of office,
parking,
and
recreational
spaces.

Emissions (tCO2e)
Bramcote & Kimberley Leisure Centres

511

Bramcote Crematorium

258

Offices, admin build

• Based on available data, the
total annual spend on natural
gas
consumption
equals
£112,312.

143

Park Buildings various

935
tCO2e

20

Museums

3
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

16

Scope 1 Emissions
Fleet and Other Equipment
The overwhelming
majority
of
emissions arise from
the running of refuse
trucks/road
sweepers – forming
74% of all fleet
emissions.

Emissions (tCO2e)

Refuse trucks or road sweepers (rigid size)

613

Diesel van Average (up to 3.5 tonnes)

161

Gardening and Grounds Maintenance - diesel

29

Diesel HGV Rigid (>3.5 - 7.5 tonnes)

13

Industrial mobile machinery - gas oil

12

Gardening and Grounds Maintenance - petrol

831
tCO2e

2
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

17

166

Page 173

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Reducing Scope 1 Emissions

Adjust
temperature
set points and
install heating
controls

Install
insulation –
cavity wall,
loft or solid
wall

Upgrade
boilers to a
new more
efficient
model

Switch gas
boilers to
electric, air or
ground source
heat pumps

Switch to
electric
vehicles for
cars and LGVs

18

Scope 2 Emissions
Electricity Consumption in Buildings
Multiple sites have been
aggregated into 8 categories,
and include a mix of offices,
public buildings and facilities,
lighting,
and
recreational
spaces.
The top two highest emitting
sites, account for 64% of all
electricity emissions. These
include: Bramcote & Kimberley
Leisure Centres; and Offices,
admin build / depot offices.

Emissions (tCO2e)
Bramcote & Kimberley Leisure Centres

197

Offices, admin build / depot offices

122

The Council Offices

77

Bramcote Crematorium

50

Park Buildings (various sites)

39

Museums & galleries
Public Conveniences

2

Cemeteries

1

Total annual expenditure on
electricity consumption equals
£214,511

499
tCO2e

9

0

50

100

150

200

250

19

Page 174

167

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Reducing Scope 2 Emissions

Invest in more
energy
efficient
appliances
and systems

Check HVAC
and other
electrical
system set
points,
timings and
controls

Upgrade
lighting to LED
and install
lighting
controls

Invest in
renewables,
such as solar
PV, to supply
electricity
directly to
buildings
20

Scope 2
Grid Decarbonisation
UK grid carbon intensity (kg CO2e/kWh)

0.60
0.50

0.49

0.40

0.30
0.26
0.20
0.10

0.06

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035

0.00

• The UK power sector has
undergone significant changes
in the last The UK plans to have
coal power completely phased
out by 2023, and have offshore
wind supplying 30% of all
electricity by 2030.
• By 2025, it is expected the
emission factor for UK
electricity will approach 0.1
kgCO2e per kWh; and almost
zero by 2050.

Source: BEIS, Annual conversion factor publications

21

168

Page 175

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Tariffs
Green electricity tariffs are those in which
some or all of the electricity purchased from
your supplier is 'matched' by purchases of
renewable energy that your energy supplier
makes on your behalf. This can be through:

•

It is not technically possible for renewable power to
be directed to your buildings without a direct line to a
generator. The electricity consumed will be the same
regardless of the tariff, as it’s delivered from the grid.

•

Purchasing green tariffs sends a signal to your
supplier and the wider industry that you wish to
avoid electricity generated from fossil fuels.

•

For carbon accounting purposes, switching to a green
tariff would bring all of the Scope 2 electricity
emissions to zero if taking a market-based approach,
but would keep electricity emissions the same if
taking a location-based approach (recommended).

Owning renewable energy
generation
Purchasing electricity directly from
renewable energy generators

Buying REGO (Renewable Energy
Guarantee of Origin) certificates

22

Scope 3
Business Travel
•

•

99.8% of all business travel miles
are by petrol or diesel vehicle, 0.2%
of business travel miles are
completed using a low carbon
mode of transport.

Broxtowe encourages employees to
use public transport and there are a
number of expenses claims relating
to train, tram and bus trips.
However, because their data
collection process is not based on
mileage and it was only made
electronic in 2018, there is not
enough data to provide a good

Emissions (tCO2e)
0

10

20

Business Mileage - Average
Petrol Car

Business Mileage - Average
Diesel Car

Page 176

Cycle

0

169

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Reducing Scope 3 Emissions

Online
meetings and
work from
home policy

Encourage
employees to
use low
carbon modes
of transport

24

3
Next Steps

25

170

Page 177

Appendix 1.1

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Climate Action Plan

Phase 1

Scoping
• What does a
climate emergency
mean for the
organisation?
• What are other
councils doing?
• How should your
organisation
proceed?

Phase 2

Carbon footprinting
Option 1
• Scope 1, 2 and
simple 3
Option 2
• Scope 1, 2 and full
3

Phase 3

Phase 4

Target Setting
• What target should
be set?
• Carbon neutrality
and net zero
• Science based
targets

Planning
• Step 1 - Strategy
• Step 2 - Roadmap
• Step 3 - Action Plan

Phase 5

Offsetting
• What can and
should be done to
reach zero carbon
through GHG
removal?

26

Scope 3 Footprinting
• For a deeper understanding of its indirect carbon footprint,
Broxtowe Borough Council could commission a Scope 3 footprint.
This is significant as for many organisations, the majority of their
GHG emissions and cost reduction opportunities lie outside their
own operations.
• This could include looking at the emissions generated from:
purchased goods; water supply and treatment; waste disposal and
treatment; upstream transportation and distribution; staff
commuting; contracted services; leased buildings; and investments.

27

Page 178

171

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 2

Climate Change
Campaign Plan

172

Page 179

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Climate Change Campaign Plan
Objective 1: Develop a communications programme to raise awareness of what the
Council is doing to tackle climate change and reduce its carbon emissions

CCM
C&EO
CCO

Responsibility

Timescales

Measures

Run a series of informal polls to
gauge current level of awareness
and knowledge to help benchmark
improvements

C&EO

August

Increased
awareness

Develop an infographic to illustrate what
we have done so far and what steps we
are taking moving forward

CCM /
C&EO

August

Views and
reactions

Audit existing materials and partner
materials which can be utilised in
promotional campaigns.

C&EO

August

Views and
reactions

Update Green Futures page as a central
point for all updates and news

CCM

February Page views

Update the Green Futures page monthly
with news and achievements

C&EO

Ongoing

Page views

Tasks

Promote overall progress on each strand in the Climate Change Strategy

Action

-

Notes

Status

Produced but has
not been shared
widely – may need
amendments

/greenfutures
/climatechange

Ensure Green Futures is easy to find on
the website

C&EO

August

Increased
page
views and
awareness

Develop a ‘did you know’ campaign to
showcase all the things we have done
in the past and are working on now and
the positive outcomes these have had.

C&EO
with
Steering
Group

August
onwards

Increased
awareness

Various info gathered
to utilise

Provide fact sound bites to help people
understand climate change.

C&EO
with
Steering
Group

August
onwards

Increased
awareness

Various info gathered
to utilise

Include appropriate messages from the
'Did You Know' campaign in the monthly
social media programme.

C&EO /
CCO

Ongoing

Post
performance

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer

Page 180

173

Appendix 2

Promote overall progress on each strand in the Climate Change Strategy

Action

CCM
C&EO
CCO
EM

174

-

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Tasks

Responsibility

Timescales

Measures

Include appropriate messages from
the 'Did You Know' campaign in weekly
Latest News bulletins and other relevant
email bulletins

C&EO /
CCO

Ongoing

Email
performance

Consider establishing a monthly Climate
Change Email bulletin to provide
updates on what we are doing, progress
so far and tips on how local people can
help.

CCM /
C&EO

Email
performance
Septemand
ber
number of
subscribers

Produce a press release outlining
progress so far and future plans

CCM

February

Publication
May 2020
performance

Quarterly press releases on
achievements, events and using
information in the 'Did You Know'
programme

C&EO

Ongoing

Publication
performance

Other press releases as required
for significant developments and
achievements

C&EO

Double page spread in Broxtowe
Matters summer edition

CCM

June

Feedback
and
awareness

Include messages in Housing specific
communications to tenants

C&EO
with EM

September
onwards

Feedback
and
awareness

Dedicated page in Broxtowe Matters
winter edition

CCM /
C&EO

November

Feedback
and
awareness

Email information about Green Futures,
the infographic and how groups can get
involved to stakeholder list

C&EO

Septem- Stakeholders
ber
engaged with

Ongoing

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer
Engagement Manager

Page 181

Notes

Currently awaiting
decision on software
upgrade which may
impact on this

Publication
July 2020
performance
Summer edition
cancelled due to
COVID-19

Status

Appendix 2

CCM
C&EO
CCO

Responsibility

Tasks

Use storytelling to engage residents in what we’re doing and
how they can contribute

Action

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

-

Timescales

Measures

Notes

Status

Speak to CCO
about contacts. Tree
Content
performance giveaway expected
winter 2020

Create content to show the journey of
the fruit trees given away to residents

C&EO

August

Develop a 'totaliser' to use in
communications activity to show
progress on our targets

C&EO

September

Increased
awareness

Develop "Green Futures" graphic
templates to ensure a consistent look
and feel and build the brand

CCM

January

Increased
awareness

Identify and promote national awareness
weeks and campaigns as an opportunity
to promote what we're doing and what
local people can do. Incorporate into Did
You Know campaign.

C&EO

August
onwards

Increased
awareness

Produce a video on wildlife corridors
and wildflower meadows to explain the
changes we’re making to our parks and
open spaces and the benefits, as well
as what residents can do at home.

CCM /
C&EO

TBC

Views and
reactions

Started work on this –
chase up

To discuss with
Environment at catch
up on 4.8.20

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer

Page 182

175

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Objective 2: Use the EAST framework to ‘nudge’ residents and encourage them to
change their behaviour to reduce their carbon footprint

Make being conscious about
recycling an attractive proposition

Make information about recycling easy to find, understand and act upon

Action

CCM
C&EO
CCO
WSSM

176

Tasks

Responsibility

Timescales

Measures

Review website content to make sure
it is easy to find information about
recycling and composting and it is clear

C&EO

October

Increased
page views

Raise awareness of the A-Z of recycling
tool on the website for residents to
check what can and can’t go in the
recycling bin.

C&EO

Increased
October
page views/
onwards
searches

Create a ‘re-use’ directory on the
website of where items can be taken
to be re-used by other groups and
organisations.

C&EO

January
2021

Page views

Review existing recycling publicity
information to ensure that it is clear what
can and cannot be recycled.

C&EO

September

Increased
awareness

Provide a resource pack for community
groups on what they can and can't
recycle and how they can help us
spread the message.

C&EO

Send a leaflet with Council Tax bills, bin
calendars with small changes residents
can make.

C&EO

Investigate options for how we can
'shout out' streets who recycle well and
don’t have any contamination issues
e.g. postcode prize draws, work with
businesses to provide prizes

-

C&EO

Notes

To coincide with new
bin calendars – check
date with WSSM

Initial draft produced
but not finished or
Septem- Stakeholders shared – would be
ber
engaged with good to reference
in next Broxtowe
Matters Nov 2020

March

Increased
awareness

November

Increase in
streets who
don't have
contamination issues

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer
Waste Services Strategy Manager

Page 183

Liaise with WSSM –
was due to happen
March 2020

Status

Appendix 2
Action

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme
Responsibility

Tasks

Create social opportunities to promote recycling

Investigate how we can call out streets
who have regular contamination issues
and ask them to do better.

Ensure that messages about recycling are timely
-

Measures

November

Increase in
streets who
don't have
contamination issues

C&EO

Number of
TBC
for best people parmeasure- ticipating and
ment from achievement
of challenge
stats

Identify local influencers e.g. bloggers,
mums, community groups, Facebook
groups, schools, tenant groups and engage
with them to help us increase participation
in the agreed challenge. Incentivise them
with publicity for taking part.

C&EO

Number of
TBC
for best people parmeasure- ticipating and
ment from achievement
of challenge
stats

Support and promote social initiatives like
‘Meat Free’ Monday, Walk to Work etc.

C&EO /
CCO

Develop and launch a challenge to
create a sense of competition and
shared goal e.g. double your recycling
challenge or 50% recycling rate
challenge.

Notes

Status

CCO has researched
influencers and
produced a list as a
starting point

September
onwards

Views and
reactions

C&EO

Winter

Number of
workshops
run and
number of
attendees

Increase frequency of waste and
recycling email bulletins to monthly to
ensure a regular flow of information about
recycling. Offer a prize for a significant
subscriber milestone to increase
subscribers

C&EO

September
onwards

Increase in
subscribers
and email
performance

Add an Email Me pop up to the Waste
and Recycling pages inviting website
visitors to sign up to this topic and
increase subscribers so the messages
reach a wider audience

CCM

January

CCO producing stats
Increase in
on impact of this so
subscribers
far

Review advisory bin stickers and
consider the best methods and
placement of reminders for residents to
have at home

C&EO

Early
2021

Decrease in
contamination

Develop a campaign which focuses on
the what was in the black bin which could
have been recycled to help reach the
50% target.

C&EO

Early
2021

Increase in
recycling rate

Work with community groups to run
workshops for residents to find out more
about what they can do to help.

CCM
C&EO
CCO

C&EO

Timescales

May need to be
virtual events

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer

Page 184

177

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Objective 3: Use the EAST framework to ‘nudge’ businesses and encourage them to
change their behaviour to reduce their carbon footprint
THIS SECTION NEEDS REVIEWING IN LIGHT OF COVID
Tasks

Timescales

Measures

C&EO

TBC

Increased
awareness

C&EO

TBC

Number of
workshops
run and
number of
attendees

Produce a business resource pack to
help them make small changes and
highlight training opportunities.

C&EO

TBC

Views

Research existing reward schemes or
develop a new business pledge scheme
with bronze, silver and gold standards
which businesses can subscribe to and
promote their achievements. Produce
window stickers for them to promote
their status to customers, along with
other publicity opportunities

C&EO

TBC

Number of
registered
businesses

Investigate ways to identify and promote
businesses who are taking steps to be
more environmentally friendly to share
best practice. Incentivise them with
publicity.

TBC

Increase
in the
number of
businesses
we are
engaging
with

TBC

Increase in
the number
of businesses
we are
engaging with

Ensure messages about
recycling are timely

Run business training sessions with
partners on more sustainable business
practices.

Make being conscious
about recycling an
attractive proposition

Run a series of informal polls to
gauge current level of awareness
and knowledge to help benchmark
improvements

Responsibility

Create social
opportunities to
promote recycling

Make information about recycling
easy to find, understand and act
upon

Action

CCM
C&EO
CCO

178

Consider sending a leaflet or the resource
pack with Business Rates letters

Develop a Trade Waste customer email
newsletter using Email Me to share tips
and information about the correct way to
recycle.
-

C&EO

C&EO

C&EO

August

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer

Page 185

Notes

Completed December
2019 but no further
Email
performance email bulletins have
been sent

Status

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Objective 4: Educate and encourage internal stakeholders to help them reduce their
carbon footprint
Action

Responsibility

Tasks

Make information about recycling easy to find, understand and act upon

Run a series of informal polls to
gauge current level of awareness
and knowledge to help benchmark
improvements

CCM
C&EO
CCO
SD
HRB
WSSM

-

C&EO

Create a framework for employees to
use as a guide for managing hospitality
and events in a sustainable way,
including suggested suppliers and
products. This could be adapted for
Town and Parish Councils and Members
who may be running their own events.

C&EO

Organise a series of training sessions
for employees and Members to learn
more about climate change and ensure
they understand its importance in
service delivery. This will also allow
them to act as ambassadors within the
local community.

SD /
C&EO

Timescales

Measures

Notes

Status

February
to co-incide with
launch of
Increased
camawareness
paign.
Repeat
at agreed
intervals

March

Completed but not
Reduction in shared and hospitality
single use not being offered at
the moment due to
products
COVID

Number of
HOS/Senior
February sessions and
Managers attended a
onwards number of
seminar in early 2020
attendees

Refresher training for key services
e.g. Environment, Customer Services
to ensure the correct messages are
passed on to customers.

WSSM /
HRB

February
onwards

Number
of people
retrained

Progress on this to be
checked with Paul/
Phil

Develop a Members Briefing pack,
highlighting what the Council is doing
and what Members can do. This can
also be adapted and shared with Town
and Parish Councils.

C&EO

September

Reactions

Template produced
but content not yet
added

Create a “Green Futures” intranet
presence to share the work of the
Steering Group, promote achievements
and information about what Employees
can do to help.

CCM

February

Views

Page produced but
not updated recently

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer
Stragetic Director
Head of Revenues and Benefits
Waste Services and Strategy Manager

Page 186

179

Appendix 2

Tasks

Responsibility

Timescales

Measures

Notes

Make being conscious
about recycling an
attractive proposition

Review location and signage around
recycling bins within Council buildings
to ensure it is an easy choice to recycle
the right things

WSSM /
C&EO

March

Reduced
contamination

Progress on this
to be checked with
WSSM

Share the agreed challenge with
Employees to create a sense of
competition and shared goal e.g.
double your recycling challenge or 50%
recycling rate challenge.

Ensure messages about
recycling are timely

Action

Create social
opportunities to
promote recycling

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

CCM
C&EO
CCO
WSSM

180

-

C&EO

TBC
for best
Achievement
measureof challenge
ment from
stats

Regular promotion of internal
achievements, as well as wider
achievements

C&EO

August
onwards

Increased
awareness
- consider
poll to
benchmark

Include appropriate messages from
the 'Did You Know' campaign in all
internal newsletters including Broxtowe
Employee News and Members Matters
email bulletins

C&EO

Ongoing

Email
performance

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer
Waste Services and Strategy Manager

Page 187

May 2020

Status

Appendix 2

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Objective 5: Educate younger generations so thinking about the environment becomes
second nature THIS SECTION REQUIRES MORE DEVELOPMENT
Timescales

Measures

Notes

C&EO /
WSSM

September
for new
school
year

Number
of lessons
delivered

Initial ideas discussed
but needs completing

CCM /
WSSM

June

Increased
number
of schools
engaged with

CCM /
WSSM

September
for new
school
year

Number of
visits taken
place

CCM /
WSSM

SepIncreased
tember
number
for new
of schools
school
engaged with
year

Engage all schools in the agreed
challenge

CCM /
WSSM

Number
TBC
of schools
for best
taking
measurepart and
ment from
achievement
stats
of target

Engage with school 'influencers' e.g.
parents at school gates, PTA, govenors
to encourage them to work with us on
Climate Change

CCM /
CCO /
WSSM

TBC
Increased
for best
number
measureof schools
ment from
engaged with
stats

Work with the Youth Mayor and
Broxtowe Youth Voice on ways to reach
young people and engage them in what
the Council is doing

CCM /
CCO /
WSSM

Develop a short lesson plan and
distribute to all secondary schools,
asking them to deliver it

Make being conscious
about recycling an
attractive proposition

Investigate options for how we can
'shout out' schools who engage and how
we can incentivise them

Create social opportunities to promote recycling

Produce a pack and video to promote
the primary school visits and encourage
take up

Investigate how we can call out schools
who don't engage with us to put social
pressure on them.

Ensure messages
about recycling
are timely
CCM
C&EO
CCO
WSSM

Responsibility

Tasks

Make discussing
Climate Change
easy

Action

-

Corporate Communications Manager
Communications and Engagement Officer
Communications and Content Officer
Waste Services and Strategy Manager

Page 188

March

Status

This section needs
Demographic
more development
monitoring
and ideas

Climate Change Steering Group Meeting Dates
(updates on communications to be provided at each
meeting)

• 14th August 2020

• 9th October 2020

• 10th September 2020

• 13th November 2020

181

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 3

Water Courses
Trent Gateway
Masterplan 2020

182

Page 189

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Trent Gateway Landscape Vision

March 2020

Trent Gateway Landscape Vision
The Vision
• 7RFUHDWHDWKULYLQJULYHUFRUULGRUIRU¿VKZLOGOLIHDQGSHRSOHDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW
DFKLHYHGWKURXJKFROODERUDWLRQDQGHQJDJHPHQWZLWKFRPPXQLWLHVDQGSDUWQHUV

Strategic Objectives
• $FKLHYHDQDWXUDOIXQFWLRQLQJDQGKHDOWK\ULYHUWKURXJKFUHDWLRQRIDKLJKTXDOLW\DQG
ZHOOFRQQHFWHGHQYLURQPHQW
 %ULQJNH\SDUWQHUVWRJHWKHUWRDOLJQLQLWLDWLYHVWKDWDFKLHYHPXOWLSOHRXWFRPHVDQG
WUDQVIRUPWKHULYHULQWKHPRVWVXVWDLQDEOHDQGUHOHYDQWZD\
 3URDFWLYHO\FRRUGLQDWHDQGLQÀXHQFHDFWLYLWLHVWRGHYHORSRSSRUWXQLWLHVDQGVHWDQ
DJHQGDIRUIXWXUHFKDQJH

ii

Page 190

183

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Trent Gateway Landscape Vision
> Contents
> Introduction
> Approach
> Area Overview
> Vision and Strategic Objectives
> Action Zones
> Masterplan
> Case Study Site Proposals
> Next Steps

2
4
6
14
21
29
31
33

> Appendices
> A: Context Mapping
> B: Masterplan
> C: Case Study Site Proposals
> D: Short to Long Term Actions
> E: References

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

1

Introduction

Cromwell Lock and weir

2

184

Page 191

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Introduction
Background

7KH(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\ ($ DQGSDUWQHUVLGHQWL¿HGWKHQHHGWRGH¿QHDVWUDWHJLFODQGVFDSHYLVLRQ
DQGPDVWHUSODQIRUWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LQWKH(DVW0LGODQGVFRYHULQJDNPOHQJWKRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
EHWZHHQ6DZOH\:HLUDQG&URPZHOO:HLU
7KHVFDOHRIWKHDPELWLRQIRUWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVODUJHDQGDLPVWRGHOLYHUDIXQFWLRQLQJZDWHUFRXUVH
WKDWUHGXFHVÀRRGULVNFUHDWHVKDELWDWVFRPSOHPHQWVWKHDLPVRIDZLGHUDQJHRIVWDNHKROGHUVDVZHOODV
VXSSRUWLQJVXVWDLQDEOHJURZWKDQGORFDOHFRQRPLFDJHQGD
,WKDVEHHQLGHQWL¿HGWKDWWKHUHLVWKHQHHGDQGSRWHQWLDOIRUFRQFHUWHGDFWLRQDQGSURMHFWVWRHQKDQFHWKH
FRQQHFWLYHFRUULGRUIRUZLOGOLIHDQGIRUNH\WKUHDWHQHGVSHFLHVZKLFKUHTXLUHSDUWLFXODUDFWLRQ
$ORQJVLGHODUJHURSSRUWXQLWLHVWKHUHLVDUDQJHRIVPDOOHUVFDOHEXWLPSRUWDQWSURMHFWVWKDWZLOOPDNH
DGLIIHUHQFHIRUDUDQJHRIVSHFLHVDQGKDELWDWVHQKDQFLQJWKHFDWFKPHQWIRUZLOGOLIHDQGSHRSOHWR
H[SHULHQFHWKDWULFKDQGYDULHGZLOGOLIHLQWKLVLPSRUWDQWEOXHFRUULGRU
,QUHWXUQLQJWKHULYHUDQGODQGVFDSHEDFNWRDQHDUOLHUVWDWHLQDGGLWLRQWRLPSURYLQJWKHDUHDVZLOGOLIHDQG
LWVKDELWDWVLWLVDLPHGWRFRQQHFWPRUHSHRSOHZLWKWKHLUHQYLURQPHQWDQGWKHLUSDUWLQWKHORQJVWRU\RI
LQWHUFRQQHFWLYLW\EHWZHHQKXPDQDFWLYLW\DQGWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\ODQGVFDSHDQGKRZHDFKKDVVKDSHG
WKHRWKHU

Stakeholder Engagement
7RIDFLOLWDWHSUHSDUDWLRQRIDVXFFHVVIXODQGGHOLYHUDEOHYLVLRQDQGPDVWHUSODQD3URMHFW6WHHULQJ
*URXSZDVIRUPHGZLWKNH\ORFDOVWDNHKROGHUVWRLQIRUPDQGVKDSHLWVGHYHORSPHQW
7KH3URMHFW6WHHULQJ*URXSPHWUHJXODUO\WKURXJKRXWWKHGHYHORSPHQWRIWKHYLVLRQDQG
FRPSULVHGUHSUHVHQWDWLYHVIURP&DQDO 5LYHU7UXVW'HUE\VKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW'HUE\VKLUH
&RXQW\&RXQFLO1RWWLQJKDP&LW\&RXQFLO1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLO1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
:LOGOLIH7UXVW5R\DO6RFLHW\IRUWKH3URWHFWLRQRI%LUGVDQG6HYHUQ7UHQW:DWHU
2WKHUVWDNHKROGHUVLQFOXGH7UHQW5LYHUV7UXVW/RZHU7UHQW (UHZDVK&DWFKPHQW3DUWQHUVKLS
*HGOLQJ%RURXJK&RXQFLO1HZDUN 6KHUZRRG%RURXJK&RXQFLO5XVKFOLIIH%RURXJK&RXQFLO
)RUHVWU\&RPPLVVLRQ1DWXUDO(QJODQG&DQDOVLGH+HULWDJH&HQWUHDQG5LYHU7UHQW-RLQW$QJOHUV
$VVRFLDWLRQ
7KLVUHSRUWLVMXVWWKHVWDUWRIWKHYLVLRQHQJDJHPHQWSURFHVV2QFHWKHYLVLRQLVDJUHHGWKH
SURSRVDOVZLOOQHHGWRVHHNIXUWKHUFRQVXOWDWLRQPRUHGHWDLOHGGHVLJQDQGDSSURSULDWHIXQGLQJ
SULRUWRLPSOHPHQWDWLRQ

7KHYLVLRQDQGDLPVRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\6WHHULQJ*URXSVXSSRUWDQGFRPSOLPHQWWKHDLPVRIWKH
IROORZLQJVWUDWHJLFSODQV
• µ'16WUDWHJLF(FRQRPLF3ODQ9LVLRQ¶DEOXHSULQWIRUHFRQRPLFJURZWKDFURVV'HUE\
'HUE\VKLUH1RWWLQJKDPDQG1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
• µ'()5$<HDU(QYLURQPHQW3ODQ¶ZKLFKVHWVRXWKRZ'()5$)RUHVWU\&RPPLVVLRQ
(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\DQG1DWXUDO(QJODQGµZLOOLPSURYHWKHHQYLURQPHQWRYHUDJHQHUDWLRQE\
FUHDWLQJULFKHUKDELWDWVIRUZLOGOLIHLPSURYLQJDLUDQGZDWHUTXDOLW\DQGFXUELQJWKHVFRXUJHRI
SODVWLFVLQWKHZRUOG¶VRFHDQV¶
• µ(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\H0LVVLRQ¶7DFNOLQJRXUQHJDWLYHLPSDFWDQGFUHDWLQJDEHWWHUSODFH
• µ(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\\HDU$FWLRQ3ODQ($¶
7KLVGRFXPHQWVHWVRXWWKHYLVLRQIRUWKHIXWXUHRIWKHULYHUYDOOH\
,WKDVEHHQDJUHHGE\VWDNHKROGHUVDQGLWLVLQWHQGHGWRDFWDVDFDWDO\VWRYHUWKHQH[WWHQ\HDUVWR
 ,QVSLUHLQYHVWPHQWGHFLVLRQVDQGLPSURYHPHQWVLQWKHDUHD
 *XLGHGHYHORSPHQW
 $VVLVWZLWKHQJDJHPHQW
 6HFXUHIXQGLQJIRUWKHGHOLYHU\RIEOXHJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUH

3

Approach

View north from North Muskham

4

Page 192

185

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Approach

Catchment Overview

$VWKHSURFHVVRIYLVLRQLQJDWDFDWFKPHQWOHYHOLVDQHPHUJLQJSURFHVVWKHDSSURDFKZDVGHYHORSHG
EHWZHHQ$WNLQVWKH(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\DQGSDUWQHUVWKURXJKUHIHUHQFHWRSUHYLRXVOLQHDULQIUDVWUXFWXUH
DQGULYHUFRUULGRUVWXGLHVIHHGEDFNRQVXFFHVVIXODSSURDFKHVIURPSURMHFWVWDNHKROGHUVDQGDUHVSRQVHWR
WKHVSHFL¿FLVVXHVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\

Methodology

)ROORZLQJFRPSOHWLRQRIWKHGHVNVWXG\H[HUFLVHVDVLWHYLVLWZDVXQGHUWDNHQDORQJWKHOHQJWKRI
WKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKURXJKWKHFDWFKPHQWWRJURXQGWUXWK¿QGLQJVDQGXQGHUVWDQGWKHQDWXUHRI
VSHFL¿FIHDWXUHVDQGDUHDVDORQJWKHULYHU

7KHODQGVFDSHYLVLRQKDVEHHQGHYHORSHGZLWKGHOLYHU\LQPLQG
7KHSURFHVVIRUGHOLYHU\LVPDGHFOHDUVRDVQRWWRORVHWKHLQSXWDQGVXSSRUWIURPWKHVWDNHKROGHUVLQ
GHYHORSLQJWKHDJUHHGYLVLRQ7KHPHWKRGRORJ\LVRXWOLQHGEHORZDFURVVVL[EURDGVWDJHV







$FRQWH[WPDSSLQJH[HUFLVHZDVXQGHUWDNHQWRLQIRUPDQDO\VLVRIWKHFDWFKPHQWIHDWXUHV
DQGGHVLJQDWLRQVFRYHULQJ7RSRJUDSK\DQG'UDLQDJH/DQGVFDSHDQG(FRORJ\+HULWDJH
$FFHVVLELOLW\/RFDO&RQWH[W%XLOW)RUPDQG7UDQTXLOOLW\%URDGOLWHUDWXUHDQGSROLF\UHYLHZVZHUH
XQGHUWDNHQFRYHULQJ/RFDO3ODQQLQJ3ROLF\(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\GDWDDQGRWKHU/RFDO3ODQV
1HLJKERXUKRRG3ODQVDQGLQLWLDWLYHV

&DWFKPHQW2YHUYLHZ
9LVLRQDQG6WUDWHJLF2EMHFWLYHV
0DVWHUSODQ
&DVH6WXG\6LWH3URSRVDOV
'HWDLOHG'HVLJQ
,PSOHPHQWDWLRQDQG0DQDJHPHQW

Vision and Strategic Objectives
$ZRUNVKRSZDVKHOGLQ$SULODQGVWDNHKROGHUVZHUHLQYLWHGWRVKDUHWKHLUDPELWLRQVIRU
WKH7UHQW*DWHZD\DQGWRH[SORUHKRZWKHYDULRXVRUJDQLVDWLRQVFDQKHOSVKDSHWKHSURMHFW
)HHGEDFNIURPWKLVZRUNVKRSKDVEHHQUHYLHZHGDORQJVLGHWKH¿QGLQJVRIWKHPDSSLQJDQG
OLWHUDWXUHUHYLHZWRLGHQWLI\FRUUHODWLRQDQGV\QHUJLHVEHWZHHQWKHP
(QJDJHPHQWFRQWLQXHGWKURXJKZKLFKKDVOHGWRDGUDIW9LVLRQDQGVHWRI6WUDWHJLF
2EMHFWLYHVGHYHORSHGE\WKH7UHQW*DWHZD\3URMHFW6WHHULQJ*URXSWKDWKDYHWKHQEHHQUH¿QHG
WKURXJKRXWWKH0DVWHUSODQSURFHVV$OLVWRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\3URMHFW6WHHULQJ*URXSPHPEHUV
LVSURYLGHGDWWKHHQGRIWKLVGRFXPHQW

7KLVGRFXPHQWFRYHUVWKH¿UVWIRXUVWDJHVRIWKHSURFHVVIRUWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\
Scope of Document

Masterplan
'XHWRWKHYDULHGQDWXUHRIWKHVWXG\DUHDWKHQHHGVDQGDSSURDFKUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHWKH
YLVLRQDQGVWUDWHJLFREMHFWLYHVZLOOEHGLIIHUHQWGHSHQGLQJRQWKHORFDWLRQ7RFRPPXQLFDWHDQG
PDQDJHWKLVYDULDWLRQWKHPDVWHUSODQLVRYHUODLGE\DQXPEHURI$FWLRQ=RQHV7KHVHDUHEURDG
DUHDVWKDWKDYHDVLPLODUFKDUDFWHUFRQGLWLRQLVVXHVDQGRSSRUWXQLWLHV
7KHPDVWHUSODQLGHQWL¿HVDUHDVRIODQGOHQJWKVRIULYHURUVSHFL¿FSRLQWVZLWKLQWKHVWXG\DUHD
DURXQGWKH5LYHU7UHQWZLWKLQZKLFKDSURMHFWRUJURXSVRISURMHFWVFRXOGEHGHOLYHUHG

Trent Gateway Area
)RUWKHSXUSRVHRIWKLV9LVLRQDQG0DVWHUSODQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVGHHPHGWRLQFOXGHDNP
DUHDHLWKHUVLGHRIWKH5LYHU7UHQWEHWZHHQ6KDUGORZDQG&URPZHOO:HLUDWRWDOOHQJWKRI
NPFRYHULQJDQDUHDRIKHFWDUHV6RXWKRI6KDUGORZWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\SURMHFWDGMRLQV
WKHµ7UDQVIRUPLQJWKH7UHQW9DOOH\µSURMHFWDUHD

Case Study Sites

7RLOOXVWUDWHKRZWKHYLVLRQPLJKWEHGHOLYHUHGDQXPEHURIFDVHVWXGLHVKDYHEHHQGHYHORSHG
7KHGHWDLOVRIWKHVHFDQEHIRXQGLQWKHDSSHQGLFHVRIWKLVUHSRUW

5

Area Overview

‘Clapper Gate’ on public footpath south of Cromwell Weir

6

186

Page 193

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Area Overview
Cromwell Weir
Muskham

Newark-on-Trent
Trent Gateway Area

Nottingham
Colwick

Long Eaton

Shardlow
Marina

7

Area Overview
Environmental and Social Context
'HVNWRSDQDO\VLVDQGUHVHDUFKRIWKHHQYLURQPHQWDOFRQWH[WKDVEHHQXQGHUWDNHQDQGLV
VXPPDULVHGEHORZ$VVRFLDWHGFRQWH[WPDSSLQJLVSURYLGHGLQ$SSHQGL[$

History and Cultural Context

7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\FRYHUVDQDUHDVKDSHGE\JHRORJ\QDWXUHDQGSHRSOH7KHODQGVFDSHKDV
GHYHORSHGDQGHYROYHGLQUHVSRQVHWRKXPDQFXOWXUDOGHYHORSPHQWRYHUWKRXVDQGVRI\HDUV
1DYLJDWLRQIDUPLQJPLQHUDOH[WUDFWLRQDQGGUDLQDJHZRUNVKDYHPHDQWWKDWPXFKRIWKH
ULSDULDQODQGVFDSHKDVEHHQDOWHUHGZKLFKKDVKDGDQHIIHFWRQWKHQDWXUDOKDELWDW
(DUO\HYLGHQFHRIKXPDQLPSDFWLQWKHDUHDDSSHDUVDIWHU%&LQWKHIRUPRIZRRGODQG
FOHDUDQFHDQGFXOWLYDWLRQRIFURSVZLWKDVLJQL¿FDQWSRSXODWLRQLQWKHDUHDE\%&'XULQJ
WKH0LGGOHDQG%URQ]H$JHODUJHVFDOHZRRGODQGFOHDUDQFHWRRNSODFHFDXVLQJPDMRUÀRRGLQJ
DFURVVWKHDUHD
7KH5RPDQVEURXJKWWUDGHDQGSURVSHULW\WRWKHDUHDZKLFKFRQWLQXHGLQWRWKH'DUN$JHEDVHG
RQH[SORLWDWLRQRILWVQDWXUDOUHVRXUFHVDQGVXLWDELOLW\IRUIDUPLQJ'HYHORSPHQWFRQWLQXHGLQWR
0HGLHYDOWLPHVDVQXFOHDWHGYLOODJHVEHJDQWRIRUP7KH5LYHU7UHQWEHFDPHLQFUHDVLQJO\
LPSRUWDQWDVDUHVRXUFHIRUIRRGDQGSRZHU3URVSHURXVPLOOVDQG¿VKHULHVGHYHORSHGDORQJ
WKHULYHUDQGDUHDVRIULYHUPHDGRZJUDVVODQGVLQFUHDVHG7KHULYHUZDVDSULQFLSDOURXWHIRU
WUDGHDQGWUDYHOPDNLQJWKHFURVVLQJSRLQWVVXFKDVWKHEULGJHDW1HZDUNDQGWKHVHDVRQDO
IHUU\FURVVLQJVLPSRUWDQWWRWKHFRPPXQLWLHVDQGIRUWUDYHOOHUV

'XULQJWKH,QGXVWULDO5HYROXWLRQWKHULYHUFRQWLQXHGWRGHYHORSDVDWUDQVSRUWDWLRQURXWHDQGUHVRXUFHIRU
LQGXVWU\(IIRUWVWRKDUQHVVWKHULYHUOHDGWRGLYHUVLRQVDQGPDQLSXODWLRQRIWKHULYHUFRXUVH&RQQHFWLRQV
ZHUHPDGHZLWKWKHFDQDOQHWZRUNDQGORFNVDQGZHLUVZHUHLQVWDOOHGWRPDQDJHZDWHUOHYHOV
,QPRUHUHFHQWWLPHWKHDUHDKDVEHHQFKDQJHGDJDLQE\WKHDSSHDUDQFHRIJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQDQGFRDO
¿UHGSRZHUVWDWLRQV7KHVHDUHMXVWVRPHRIWKHZD\VLWFDQEHVHHQWKDWKXPDQGHYHORSPHQWDQGDFWLYLW\
KDVVKDSHGWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\,QUHWXUQWKHSRWHQWLDORIWKHULYHUDQGLWVDVVRFLDWHGODQGVKDYHVKDSHG
WKHFXOWXUHRILWVFRPPXQLWLHVERWKLQWULQVLFDOO\WLHGRYHUWLPH
+LVWRULFODQGVFDSHFKDUDFWHULVDWLRQZDVFDUULHGRXWLQE\1RWWLQJKDP&RXQW\&RXQFLODQGWKH
&RXQWU\VLGH&RPPLVVLRQZKLFKPDSVWKHFRXQW\LQFOXGLQJWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\7KLVSURYLGHVGHWDLO
KLVWRULFFRQWH[WDQGGHVFULEHVWKHHYROXWLRQRIWKHODQGVFDSHLQHDFK]RQHVLQFHWKHHQGRIWKH,FH$JHV
$GGLWLRQDOO\WKHUHLVDXWKRULWDWLYHUHVHDUFKDYDLODEOHDERXWWKHDUFKDHRORJ\RIWKH7UHQW9DOOH\ZKLFKLV
OLVWHGLQWKHUHIHUHQFHVLQ$SSHQGL[(

8

Page 194

187

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Area Overview
Topography and Drainage

Landscape

7KURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\H[WHQVLYHKXPDQLQWHUYHQWLRQVVXFKDVJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQ
ÀRRGSURWHFWLRQHPEDQNPHQWVDQGHQJLQHHUHGULYHUEDQNVGRPLQDWHWKHWRSRJUDSK\FUHDWLQJ
DQGUHVWUDLQLQJZDWHUERGLHVWKURXJKRXWWKHÀRRGSODLQ7KHH[FHSWLRQLVDQDUHDRIORZ
H[SRVHGFOLIIVLQWKHDUHDRI*XQWKRUSH:HLU

)RUPXFKRIWKHDUHDWKHODQGVXUURXQGLQJWKH5LYHU7UHQWLVGRPLQDWHGHLWKHUE\DUDEOHIDUPODQG
RUWKHUHVXOWVRISUHYLRXVRURQJRLQJJUDYHODQGVDQGH[WUDFWLRQ7KLVLVFRQWUDVWHGZLWKWKH
XUEDQLVHGVHWWLQJVRI1RWWLQJKDPDQG1HZDUNRQ7UHQW

7KHWRSRJUDSK\RIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\DUHDYDULHVLQHOHYDWLRQIURPDKLJKSRLQWLQWKHYLFLQLW\RI
6DZOH\:HLURIDURXQGP$2'WRDORZSRLQWRIDURXQGP$2'QHDU&URPZHOO7KHQDWXUH
RIODQGIRUPLVPDLQO\ÀRRGSODLQJHQWO\ULVLQJWROHYHOJURXQGWRWKHZHVWDQGHDVWDVWKHULYHU
UXQVVRXWKZHVWWRQRUWKHDVW

7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVORFDWHGZLWKLQ1DWLRQDO&KDUDFWHU$UHD 1&$ 7UHQWDQG%HOYRLU9DOHV
WRWKHQRUWKDQG1&$7UHQW9DOOH\:DVKODQGVWRWKHVRXWK+RZHYHUWKHORFDOFKDUDFWHU
SDUWLFXODUWRWKHULYHUDQGLWVDVVRFLDWHGÀRRGSODLQFKDQJHVVLJQL¿FDQWO\DVWKHULYHUDQGWKH
VXUURXQGLQJODQGWUDQVLWLRQVEDFNDQGIRUWKIURPUXUDOWRXUEDQ

,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHVHPDMRUFRQXUEDWLRQVWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LQFOXGHVDVWULQJRIYLOODJHVDQGVPDOOHU
VHWWOHPHQWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKDQGFRQWULEXWLQJWRWKHFKDUDFWHUDQGFRQWH[WRIWKHDUHD
0RVWRIWKHODQGZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\KDVEHHQVKDSHGE\PDQDQGOLWWOHRIWKHVHPLQDWXUDO
KDELWDWUHPDLQV$OWKRXJKWKHUHDUHKHGJHURZWUHHVDVVRFLDWHGZLWK¿HOGERXQGDULHVWKHUHLV
UHODWLYHO\OLWWOHZRRGODQGFRYHUUHVXOWLQJLQORQJRSHQYLHZV
$UHDVRIKLVWRULFVDQGDQGJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQKDYHEHHQPDGHLQWRZLOGOLIHDQGPDMRUUHFUHDWLRQDO
DVVHWV
2YHUWLPHWKHFRXUVHRIWKH5LYHU7UHQWKDVFKDQJHG7KLVKDVOHIWUHPQDQWVRILWVIRUPHUVHOIDV
IHDWXUHVLQWKHODQGVFDSH
+XPDQLQWHUYHQWLRQVKDYHGLYLGHGDQGGLYHUWHGWKHULYHU&RQVWUXFWLRQRIFDQDOVDQGOLQNLQJ
IHDWXUHVKDYHIXUWKHUDGGHGWRWKHFRPSOH[LW\DQGGLYHUVLW\RIWKHULYHU

Arable farmland dominates much of the riverside
7KHGURSLQHOHYDWLRQLVPDQDJHGWKURXJKZHLUVDQGORFNV7KHULYHULVLQWHUVHFWHGDQG
E\SDVVHGE\DQXPEHURIFDQDOV DQGFXWV ,WGLYLGHVQHDU6WD\WKRUSH3RZHU6WDWLRQUHMRLQLQJ
ZHVWRI:LQWKRUSH
&DQDOVDQGE\SDVVHVLQFOXGH6DZOH\&XW&UDQÀHHW&DQDODQGWKH1RWWLQJKDPDQG%HHVWRQ
&DQDO7ULEXWDULHVLQFOXGHWKH5LYHU6RDU5LYHU(UHZDVK5LYHU'HYRQDQG'RYHU%HFN
$VWKHULYHUSDVVHV1RWWLQJKDPDQG1HZDUNWKHXUEDQUHDOPFORVHVLQRQWKHULYHUDQGWKH
EDQNVEHFRPHKHDYLO\HQJLQHHUHG
The riverine environment provides habitat for wildlife
9

Area Overview
Ecology

5HOHYDQWWRWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVWKH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH/RFDO%LRGLYHUVLW\$FWLRQ3ODQ QG(GLWLRQ
-XO\ ZKLFKFRQWDLQV+DELWDW$FWLRQ3ODQVIRUKDELWDWW\SHVLQFOXGLQJFDQDOVIDUPODQG
JUDVVODQGZRRGODQGULYHUVDQGVWUHDPVDQGXUEDQDQGSRVWLQGXVWULDOKDELWDWV,WDOVRFRQWDLQV
6SHFLHV$FWLRQ3ODQVIRUVSHFLHVLQFOXGLQJ$WODQWLFVDOPRQELUGVEDWVEXWWHUÀLHVRWWHUZDWHU
YROHDQGZKLWHFODZHGFUD\¿VK
)DUPLQJLVE\IDUWKHSULQFLSDOODQGXVHLQWKHDUHDDQGZKLOHLWVYDOXHWRZLOGOLIHLVOLPLWHGLWGRHV
FRQWDLQIHDWXUHVVXFKDVKHGJHURZV¿HOGPDUJLQVSRQGVµXQLPSURYHG¶JUDVVODQGDQGFRSVHV
ZKLFKSURYLGHKDELWDWIRUVSHFLHVVXFKDVIDUPODQGELUGV
7KHULYHUVVWUHDPVDQGDVVRFLDWHGKDELWDWVDUHDVLJQL¿FDQWIHDWXUHRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\
,PSRUWDQWVSHFLHVLQFOXGHZDWHUYROHVSLQHGORDFKZKLWHFODZHGFUD\¿VKDQGRWWHU

Public footpaths in the Trent Gateway include the Trent Valley Way long distance

7KHUHDUHQXPHURXVJUDYHOSLWVDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQWDQGLWVPDLQWULEXWDULHV6RPHKDYHEHHQ
UHVWRUHGWRSURYLGHKDELWDWIRUEUHHGLQJDQGZLQWHULQJELUGV7KLVLQFOXGHV/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGV
QHDU&ROOLQJKDPDPDMRU563%KDELWDWFUHDWLRQSURMHFWRQDZRUNLQJJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQVLWH
ZKHUHUHHGEHGKDVEHHQSODQWHGWRDWWUDFWELWWHUQVWREUHHG,WLVSODQQHGWRH[WHQGWKHUHHGEHGV
LQWKHQH[WSKDVHRIUHVWRUDWLRQ$QDGGLWLRQDOUHHGEHGFRQVWUXFWLRQSURMHFWLVSODQQHGIRUWKH
$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYH
)ORRGSODLQJUD]LQJPDUVKLVWKHPRVWH[WHQVLYHVHPLQDWXUDOKDELWDWDQGLVIRFXVVHGDORQJVRPH
VWUHWFKHVRIWKH5LYHU7UHQWWKURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\

Accessibility

5RDGVIRRWSDWKVDQGF\FOHZD\VSOD\DNH\SDUWLQKRZ7UHQW*DWHZD\IXQFWLRQVIRUHPSOR\PHQWDQG
OHLVXUH
7KHQXPEHUDQGTXDOLW\RIWKHVHOLQNVLQÀXHQFHSHRSOH¶VDELOLW\WRDFFHVVWKHGHVWLQDWLRQVDQGUHVRXUFHV
RIWKHDUHD
:LWKOLPLWHGRSSRUWXQLWLHVWRFURVVWKHULYHUWKURXJKWKHFDWFKPHQWWKHFRQQHFWLYLW\EHWZHHQWKRVHFURVVLQJ
SRLQWVGHWHUPLQHVKRZZHOOWKHDUHDVHUYHVLWVYDULRXVFRPPXQLWLHV
$VXUEDQDUHDVH[SDQGRSSRUWXQLWLHVDUHPDWHULDOLVLQJWRPDNHQHZDQGUHLQIRUFHGOLQNV$WWKHVDPH
WLPHWKHXUEDQH[SDQVLRQLVSXWWLQJJUHDWHUGHPDQGRQWKHH[LVWLQJRQHV
7KHLPSRUWDQFHRIDFFHVVLVH[SUHVVHGLQWKH5LJKWVRI:D\0DQDJHPHQW3ODQ 52:03 
7KHSODQKDVVL[NH\DLPVWKDWLQFOXGH³LQFUHDVHDZDUHQHVVRIDFFHVVLQJWKHFRXQWU\VLGHDQGWKH
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHZLGHUEHQH¿WVDULVLQJIURPLWVXVHVXFKDVOHDGLQJDQDFWLYHDQGKHDOWK\OLIHVW\OH
DQGPDNLQJDSRVLWLYHFRQWULEXWLRQWRWKHORFDOHFRQRP\´7KH3ODQJRHVRQWRVD\³7KHPRVWSRSXODU
DFWLYLWLHVDUHFLWHGDVZDONLQJDQGF\FOLQJDOWKRXJKKRUVHULGLQJFRQWLQXHVWREHDSRSXODUDFWLYLW\LQ
1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH´
3URYLGLQJDFFHVVIRUDOOLVDIRFXVRIWKH52:03ZKLFK³UHFRJQLVHVWKDWWKHSURPRWLRQRIWKHQHWZRUNLV
HVVHQWLDOLQKLJKOLJKWLQJWKHRSSRUWXQLWLHVLQFUHDVLQJXVDJHDQGPD[LPLVLQJWKHSRWHQWLDOULJKWVRIZD\IRU
ERWKUHFUHDWLRQDODQGXWLOLW\W\SHMRXUQH\V´
6RPHRIWKHNH\SUREOHPVIDFHGREVWUXFWLRQVGLI¿FXOW\LQQHJRWLDWLQJVWUXFWXUHVSRRUFRQQHFWLYLW\ EXV\
URDGZDONLQJFURVVLQJ ODFNRIRIIURDGSURYLVLRQIRUF\FOLVWVDQGHTXHVWULDQV SDUWLFXODUO\IRUFLUFXODU
URXWHV OLWWHUDQGFRQWURORIGRJVDQGLOOHJDOPRWRUELNHDFFHVV

10

188

Page 195

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Area Overview
Footpaths

7KHUHLVDGLYHUVHUDQJHRIDFFHVVLEOHVSDFHVDQGURXWHVZLWKLQDQGDURXQGWKH7UHQW
*DWHZD\LQFOXGLQJWKH7UHQW9DOOH\:D\ 79: DZD\PDUNHGORQJGLVWDQFHIRRWSDWK7KH
µ7UDQVIRUPLQJWKH7UHQW9DOOH\3DUWQHUVKLS¶KDYHSODQVWRH[WHQGWKH79:WRH[WHQGWR
PLOHVIURPWKHVRXUFHRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW QHDU6WRNHRQ7UHQW WRWKH+XPEHU,WLVDOUHDG\
HVWDEOLVKHGIRUPLOHVWKURXJK1RWWLQJKDPVKLUHDQG/LQFROQVKLUHDQGOLQNVWKHFLWLHVDQG
WRZQVZKLFKKDYHEXLOWWKHLULQGXVWU\DQGKHULWDJHRQWKH5LYHU7UHQWLQFOXGLQJ1RWWLQJKDP
1HZDUN*DLQVERURXJKDQG6FXQWKRUSH

Cycling

1DWLRQDO&\FOH5RXWH 1&5 UXQVSDUDOOHOZLWKWKH5LYHURQWKHQRUWKVLGHIURP/RQJ(DWRQ
WKURXJK$WWHQERURXJKEHIRUHURXWLQJQRUWKDURXQG1RWWLQJKDP1&5UXQV6RXWKRIWKH
ULYHUIURP:HVW%ULGJIRUGWKURXJK3LHUUHSRQWWRZDUGV5DGFOLIIHRQ7UHQWEHIRUHFRQWLQXLQJ
ZHVWDZD\IURPWKHULYHUWRZDUGV6D[RQGDOHZKHUHLWSLFNVXS1&5ZKLFKUHWXUQVWRZDUGV
WKHULYHUVRXWKZHVWRI1HZDUNRQ7UHQW1&5QRUWKHDVWRI1HZDUNWKHQIROORZVWKH7UHQW
JDWHZD\DUHDWKURXJK+ROPHDQG&ROOLQJKDPEHIRUHKHDGLQJHDVWDQGDZD\IURPWKHULYHU
,Q0DUFKLQUHVSRQVHWRDELGIRUIXQGLQJIURPWKH*RYHUQPHQW¶Vµ7UDQVIRUPLQJ&LWLHV¶
)XQG'HUE\DQG1RWWLQJKDPKDYHUHFHLYHG PIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWIRU7UDQVSRUWIRU
WUDQVSRUWLPSURYHPHQWVZKLFKZLOOLQFOXGHELNHKLUHIRUERWKFLWLHVXSJUDGLQJRIF\FOHOLQNVDQG
F\FOHODQHLPSURYHPHQWVDORQJNH\URXWHVWRHPSOR\PHQWVLWHVSRWHQWLDOO\LQFOXGLQJDQHZ
EULGJHRYHUWKH5LYHU7UHQWWR/DG\%D\
7KHVHLPSURYHPHQWVZLOOEXLOGRQDQHDUOLHUSKDVHRIWKH7UDQVIRUPLQJ&LWLHVVFKHPHZKLFK
KDYHGHOLYHUHGLPSURYHGF\FOHSDWKVWRNH\HPSOR\PHQWVLWHVLQFOXGLQJUHFHQWO\FRPSOHWHG
SDWKVRQ)DUQERURXJK5RDG&OLIWRQ/DQHDQGDORQJWKHFDQDOLQ1RWWLQJKDP

(© Pell Frischmann)

Proposed foot-cycle bridge between Trent Lane and Lady Bay

Boating and Canoeing

IQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKH5LYHU7UHQWPDNHVQDYLJDEOHFRQQHFWLRQVZLWKWKH7UHQWDQG0HUVH\&DQDO7KH
(UHZDVK&DQDODQGWKH5LYHU6RDUZKLFKFRQQHFWVWRWKH*UDQG8QLRQ&DQDO7KHULYHULVQRWFRQWLQXRXVO\
QDYLJDEOHEXWFRQWLQXRXVSDVVDJHLVDFKLHYHGE\GLYHUVLRQVDORQJWKH&UDQÀHHW&XWDQG1RWWLQJKDPDQG
%HHVWRQ&DQDO7KHULYHUSDVVHVQXPHURXVKLVWRULFYLOODJHVVRPHRIZKLFKKDYHPRRULQJVKRZHYHUVRPHRI
WKHYLOODJHVKDYHOLPLWHGRUQRPRRULQJVQHDUWKHPPHDQLQJWKDWDFFHVVIURPWKHULYHUFDQEHGLI¿FXOW
:LWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKHUHDUHDQXPEHURIPDULQDVZKHUHERDWVFDQEHPRRUHGRUIURPZKHUHWKH\FDQ
EHKLUHGDW6DZOH\%HHVWRQ&ROZLFN)DUQGRQDQGWZRDW1HZDUN
7KH5LYHU7UHQWLVHDVLO\QDYLJDEOHGRZQWRWKH&URPZHOOORFNDIWHUZKLFKWKHULYHULVWLGDODQGVKRXOGRQO\
QDYLJDWHGE\H[SHULHQFHGVNLSSHUV
/HLVXUHERDWFUXLVHVDUHDYDLODEOHIURP1RWWLQJKDPDWPRRULQJVQHDUWKHUDFHFRXUVH7KHVHSURYLGHFDVXDO
DFFHVVWRWKHULYHUDVZHOODVUDQJHRIULYHUWULSVDQGHYHQWV
7KURXJKWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKHULYHUDQGFDQDOVDUHDOVRVXLWDEOHIRUFDQRHVDQGND\DNVZKLFKFDQEHXVHG
LQGHSHQGHQWO\RUKLUHGIRURUJDQLVHGWULSVWKURXJKWKHDUHD

Cycling important through out the Trent Gateway for leisure and commuting
11

Area Overview
Angling

0XFKRIWKHDQJOLQJZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVFRQWUROOHGE\QXPHURXVDQJOLQJFOXEVDQGVRFLHWLHV
ZKHUHDFFHVVZLWKRXWPHPEHUVKLSLVOLPLWHGKRZHYHUWKHUHDUHGD\WLFNHWRSSRUWXQLWLHVWKURXJKRXW
WKHDUHD*HQHUDOO\WKHULJKWWR¿VKKDVWREHSDLGIRUEXWVRPHIUHH¿VKLQJLVDYDLODEOHDURXQG
1RWWLQJKDP$FFHVVWRWKHULYHUEDQNVDUHRIWHQUHVWULFWHGE\WKHFOXEVDQGVRFLHWLHV

The river provides a valuable resource for leisure

Water sports

+ROPH3LHUUHSRQW&RXQWU\3DUNKRVWVWKH1DWLRQDO:DWHU6SRUWVFHQWUHZKLFKLQDGGLWLRQWR
KRVWLQJUHJLRQDO1DWLRQDODQG,QWHUQDWLRQDOVSRUWVHYHQWVDOVRSURYLGHVDUDQJHRIZDWHUEDVHG
DQGFRXQWU\VLGHUHFUHDWLRQDODFWLYLWLHV
7KHUHDUHRSHQZDWHUVZLPPLQJRSSRUWXQLWLHVDW+RYHULQJKDPDQG&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUN

© Angling Times

Angling is a major passtime on the River Trent with around 20 Angling clubs
in the Trent Gateway

Country Parks and Nature Reserves

7UHQW*DWHZD\LQFOXGHVQLQHQDWXUHUHVHUYHVPDQDJHGE\WKH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW 1:7 
7KHUHVHUYHVDUHRSHQWRPHPEHUVRIWKHWUXVWSURYLGLQJDFFHVVWRWKHSXEOLFWRH[SHULHQFHDZLGH
UDQJHRIZLOGOLIHDQGKDELWDWW\SHV$GGLWLRQDOO\WKH563%UXQWKH/DQJ¿HOG/RZ¿HOGVUHVHUYHZKHUH
WKH\DUHZRUNLQJZLWK7DUPDFWRFUHDWH+DRIUHHGEHG
7KHUHDUHWZR&RXQWU\SDUNVZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\+ROPH3LHUUHSRQWUXQE\WKH&RXQW\&RXQFLO
DQG&ROZLFNUXQE\WKH&LW\&RXQFLO%RWKDUHDFFHVVLEOHE\SXEOLFWUDQVSRUW

12

Page 196

189

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Area Overview
5 Million people live in the East Midlands within
around one hour drive from Trent Gateway

13

Vision and Strategic Objectives

View across the River Trent, north of Cromwell Weir

14

190

Page 197

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Vision and Strategic Objectives
$YLVLRQDQGSULQFLSOHVWUDWHJLFREMHFWLYHVKDYHEHHQGHYHORSHGWKURXJKFRQVXOWDWLRQEHWZHHQWKH
(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\DQGVWDNHKROGHUVZKRWRJHWKHUIRUPHGWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\3DUWQHUVKLS6WHHULQJ
*URXS
7KHVHDUHWREHXVHGDVSULQFLSOHVWRLQIRUPWKHGLUHFWLRQDQGVXLWDELOLW\RIIXWXUHSURMHFWV

The Vision
• 7RFUHDWHDWKULYLQJULYHUFRUULGRUIRU¿VKZLOGOLIHDQGSHRSOHDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW
DFKLHYHGWKURXJKFROODERUDWLRQDQGHQJDJHPHQWZLWKFRPPXQLWLHVDQGSDUWQHUV

Strategic Objectives

�ro�osed �sh �ass at �o��ic�

• $FKLHYHDQDWXUDOIXQFWLRQLQJDQGKHDOWK\ULYHUWKURXJKFUHDWLRQRIDKLJKTXDOLW\
DQGZHOOFRQQHFWHGHQYLURQPHQW

7KHYLVLRQHPEUDFHVDGHVLUHWRJHQHUDWHDVXVWDLQDEOHHQYLURQPHQWWREHHQMR\HGE\ERWK
SHRSOHDQGZLOGOLIH

 %ULQJNH\SDUWQHUVWRJHWKHUWRDOLJQLQLWLDWLYHVWKDWDFKLHYHPXOWLSOHRXWFRPHVDQG
WUDQVIRUPWKHULYHULQWKHPRVWVXVWDLQDEOHDQGUHOHYDQWZD\

7KURXJKDQDO\VLVDQGFRQVXOWDWLRQVSHFL¿FDUHDVRILPSURYHPHQWDQGLQWHUYHQWLRQKDYHEHHQ
LGHQWL¿HGWRGHOLYHUWKHREMHFWLYHVWRIXO¿OWKHYLVLRQ

 3URDFWLYHO\FRRUGLQDWHDQGLQÀXHQFHDFWLYLWLHVWRGHYHORSRSSRUWXQLWLHVDQGVHW
DQDJHQGDIRUIXWXUHFKDQJH

6RPHRIWKHLGHQWL¿HGDFWLYLWLHVDUHVSHFL¿FDQGIRFXVHGRQDORFDWLRQGHVWLQDWLRQGH¿QHG
DUHDKRZHYHUPDQ\RIWKHPDUHJHQHULFDQGFRXOGEHDSSOLHGDFURVVZLGHDUHDVRIWKH7UHQW
*DWHZD\
,PSURYLQJ¿VKSDVVDJHWKURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\DUHDYLDWKHLQVWDOODWLRQRI¿VK
SDVVHVZLWKLQWKH5LYHU7UHQWZLOOUHFRQQHFW¿VKWRNPRIQDWXUDOPLJUDWLRQSDWKZD\V
LQWRXSVWUHDPUHDFKHVLQ'HUE\VKLUHDQGEH\RQG$KHDOWK\DQGÀRXULVKLQJ¿VKSRSXODWLRQ
SURPRWHVRWKHUZLOGOLIHZLWKLQWKHZLGHUHFRV\VWHPZKLOVWDOVRIDFLOLWDWLQJWKHUHJHQHUDWLRQRI
UHFUHDWLRQDO¿VKLQJDFWLYLWLHV,QVWDOODWLRQRI¿VKSDVVHVZRXOGUHPRYHUHVWULFWLRQWRPLJUDWLRQ
DQGZLOOOLQN¿VKWRQHZVSDZQLQJUHDULQJDQGIHHGLQJKDELWDWVVXSSRUWLQJWKHVXVWDLQDEOH
JURZWKRIWKH8.¶V¿VKSRSXODWLRQV

�nsta��ation o� �sh �asses �i�� reconnect ����� o� nat�ra� �igration �ath�a�s
15

Vision and Strategic Objectives
UHVRXUFHZKLFKVXSSRUWVWKHYLVLRQDQGFDQLQIRUPWKHREMHFWLYHVRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\
7KHSULQFLSOHVRIWKHPDSSLQJRSSRUWXQLWLHVDUH
•
•
•
•

%HWWHUGHJUDGHGKDELWDWWKDWQHHGVWREHLPSURYHG
%LJJHUDUHDVRIH[LVWLQJKDELWDWWKDWFRXOGEHH[SDQGHG
0RUH1HZDUHDVRIKDELWDWWRLQFUHDVHWKHRYHUDOOUHVRXUFH
&RQQHFWHG(QKDQFLQJH[LVWLQJDQGFUHDWLQJQHZFRQQHFWLRQVEHWZHHQH[LVWLQJDQG
SODQQHGDUHDVRIKDELWDW

�eadow isolated on the river side of �ood defences o�ers opportunity to
create more biodiverse habitats
,QDGGLWLRQWR¿VKSDVVHVWKHUHDUHRWKHULQWHUYHQWLRQVZKLFKZRXOGLPSURYHWKHKDELWDW¿VKUHTXLUHWR
EUHHGDQGGHYHORSLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\7KHVHLQFOXGHFUHDWLQJVKHOWHUIURPSUHGDWRU\ELUGVE\SURYLGLQJ
RYHUKHDGFRYHUFUHDWLQJ¿VKIU\UHIXJHVDQGGHYHORSLQJULYHUEDFNZDWHUV7KHVHPD\EHSURYLGHG
WKURXJKWKHFUHDWLRQRIHLWKHUHQJLQHHUHGRUPRUHQDWXUDOLVHGRSWLRQVWRUHDOLVHWKHYLVLRQRIDPRUH
QDWXUDOO\IXQFWLRQLQJULYHUFRUULGRU
7KHULYHUKDELWDWLVQRWRQO\FRPSULVHGRIWKHFKDQQHOEXWDOVRWKHÀRRGSODLQVZKLFKZHUHRQFHUHJXODUO\
FRQQHFWHGWRWKH7UHQW+XPDQLQWHUYHQWLRQKDVUHGXFHGFRQQHFWLYLW\EHWZHHQWKHULYHUDQGLWVÀRRGSODLQ
WKURXJKWKHFUHDWLRQRIÀRRGSURWHFWLRQPHDVXUHVDQGXUEDQGHYHORSPHQWV

Example of the RSPB and gravel abstraction industry collaborating to
create wetland habitat

:KLOVWÀRRGSURWHFWLRQUHPDLQVSDUDPRXQWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\9LVLRQUHFRJQLVHVPXOWLSOHRSSRUWXQLWLHV
IRUWKHULYHUFRUULGRUWREHUHVWRUHGWRKDYLQJDPRUHQDWXUDOO\IXQFWLRQLQJÀRRGSODLQ

7KURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\DUHDWKHUHDUHVHYHUDOORFDWLRQVZKHUHWKHSUHVHQFHRIH[LVWLQJ
ÀRRGHPEDQNPHQWVKDVOHGWRWKHLVRODWLRQRI¿HOGVRQWKHULYHUVLGH7KHVHLVRODWHG¿HOGV
SURYLGHLGHDORSSRUWXQLWLHVWRFUHDWHQHZZHWODQGIHDWXUHVFRQQHFWHGWRWKHULYHU

1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLODQGSDUWQHUVRIWKH%LRGLYHUVLW\$FWLRQ*URXSKDYHSURGXFHG
%LRGLYHUVLW\2SSRUWXQLW\0DSSLQJ %20 IRUWKHFRXQW\7KLVPDSSLQJSURYLGHVDVSDWLDOYLVLRQRIKRZ
1RWWLQJKDPVKLUHFRXOGORRNLQ\HDUV¶WLPHE\IRFXVLQJRQDUHDVZKHUHDFWLRQWRHQKDQFHHQODUJH
H[SDQGDQGOLQNXSKDELWDWVZRXOGKDYHWKHPRVWEHQH¿WIRUWKHFRXQW\¶VELRGLYHUVLW\7KLVLVDYDOXDEOH

)ORRGSODLQIHDWXUHVFRXOGEHGHVLJQHGWRKDYHPXOWLSOHEHQH¿WVVXFKDVVWRULQJZDWHURQWKH
ÀRRGSODLQWRUHGXFHGRZQVWUHDPÀRRGULVNLQFUHDVHGELRGLYHUVLW\WKURXJKWKHFUHDWLRQRIQHZ
RSHQZHWODQGIHDWXUHVVFUDSHVEDFNZDWHUVDQGZHWZRRGODQGDQGSURYLGHQHZYLVWDVLQWKH
ODQGVFDSH

16

Page 198

191

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Vision and Strategic Objectives
7KHUHDUHFRQWLQXLQJSURVSHFWVZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WRGHYHORSQHZDQGHQKDQFHH[LVWLQJZHWODQGV
LQFROODERUDWLRQZLWKWKHJUDYHODEVWUDFWLRQLQGXVWU\7KHVHRSSRUWXQLWLHVFRXOGZRUNZLWKNH\H[LVWLQJ
VLWHVVXFKDVWKH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW¶V$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYHDQGWKH563%/DQJIRUG
/RZ¿HOGV5HVHUYHWRFUHDWHDODUJHULQWHUFRQQHFWHGFRPSOH[RILQODQGZHWODQGVDORQJWKHULYHUFRUULGRU
7KHVHLQODQGZHWODQGVZRXOGEHQH¿WZDGHUVDQGYDULRXVDTXDWLFVSHFLHVUHLQVWDWLQJLPSRUWDQWKDELWDWV
WKDWDUHXQGHUWKUHDWWKURXJKRXWWKH8.
7KHµ%LJJHUDQG%HWWHU¶YLVLRQSXEOLVKHGE\WKH563%SURPRWHVZK\DQGKRZVPDOOFROODERUDWLRQVZLWK
WKHPLQHUDOVDQGDJJUHJDWHVLQGXVWU\FDQFUHDWHYDOXDEOHMRLQHGXSZHWODQGKDELWDWV7KHVHDUHLPSRUWDQW
DWORFDOQDWLRQDODQGLQWHUQDWLRQDOOHYHOV
7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\DUHDDOVRSURYLGHVH[FHOOHQWRSSRUWXQLWLHVWRDFKLHYHWKHUHJLRQ¶VDVSLUDWLRQVIRUEXLOGLQJ
ZLWKQDWXUHWKURXJKWKHSURYLVLRQRIEOXHJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUH
([DPSOHVRIWKLVLQFOXGH
 &UHDWLRQRIPJUDVVYHJHWDWHGPDUJLQVRQSDVWRUDO¿HOGVWRUHGXFHEDQNHURVLRQDQGLPSURYH
KDELWDWFRQQHFWLYLW\
 &UHDWLRQRIPJUDVVYHJHWDWHGPDUJLQVDURXQGKHGJHURZVDQGERXQGDULHVRQDUDEOH¿HOGV

Example of a ‘wet woodland’
 &UHDWLRQRIZHWODQGKDELWDW ZHWZRRGODQGGLWFKHVSRQGVZHWPHDGRZV¿VKUHIXJH 
EHWZHHQÀRRGHPEDQNPHQWVDQGWKH5LYHU7UHQW
 2SSRUWXQLVWLFKHGJHURZWUHHSODQWLQJLQFOXGLQJEODFNSRSODU
 5HWUR¿WRULPSURYHPHQWRIKDELWDWWRZDWHU¶VHGJHLQHQJLQHHUHGVFHQDULRV
 3URYLVLRQRIZRRGODQGSODQWLQJRUKDELWDWFUHDWLRQRQDUHDVRIORZHUTXDOLW\DJULFXOWXUDO
ODQG
,QDGGLWLRQWREHQH¿WVIRUQDWXUHWKHSRWHQWLDOIRU1DWXUDO)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW 1)0 WKURXJK
VWRULQJZDWHURQWKHÀRRGSODLQFDUERQVHTXHVWUDWLRQYLDWKHSODQWLQJRIQHZZRRGODQGVDQG
QRYHOEXLOGLQJGHYHORSPHQWVLQFRUSRUDWLQJQDWXUHDQGVXVWDLQDEOHHQHUJ\FRXOGDFWWRSURYLGH
HFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWDODQGKHDOWKEHQH¿WVIRUORFDOFRPPXQLWLHV
'HYHORSLQJDUDQJHRIKDELWDWIHDWXUHVDQGZLOGOLIHVLWHVDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQWZLOOOHQGUHVLOLHQFH
WRHFRORJLFDOFRPPXQLWLHVDQGLQFUHDVHELRGLYHUVLW\ZLWKLQ1RWWLQJKDPVKLUHDQG'HUE\VKLUHDQG
EH\RQG7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\0DVWHUSODQKDVWKHSRWHQWLDOWRDFWDVDEOXHSULQWWREHDGRSWHG
DFURVVPDQ\RWKHUULYHUFRUULGRUVDQGDVVRFLDWHGWRZQVDQGFLWLHV

Example of inland wetland

17

Vision and Strategic Objectives
7KHDUHDDOUHDG\SURYLGHVDQHWZRUNRISXEOLFULJKWVRIZD\LQFOXGLQJWKH7UHQW9DOOH\:D\DQG
1DWLRQDO&\FOH5RXWHVDQG+RZHYHUWKHUHDUHPDQ\RSSRUWXQLWLHVWRMRLQXSDQG
H[WHQGZKDWLVDOUHDG\WKHUHWRFUHDWHDULFKHUDQGPRUHUHDGLO\DFFHVVLEOHH[SHULHQFH
0XFKRIWKHULYHUEDQNLQUXUDODUHDVLVGLI¿FXOWWRDFFHVVLQWHUPVRIODQGDFFHVVSXEOLF
WUDQVSRUWDQGYLVLWRUSDUNLQJ7KHUHDUHRSSRUWXQLWLHVWRZRUNZLWKODQGRZQHUV¿VKLQJFOXEV
DQGORFDODXWKRULWLHVWRFUHDWHDPRUHFRPSUHKHQVLYHQHWZRUNRIDFFHVVURXWHVDQGZLGHQWKH
FRPPXQLWLHVWKHDUHDVHUYHV
2SSRUWXQLWLHVWRFURVVWKH5LYHU7UHQWDUHOLPLWHG)RUERWKSHGHVWULDQVDQGF\FOLVWVWKH
SHUPHDELOLW\DQGFRQQHFWLYLW\RIWKHDUHDFRXOGEHJUHDWO\HQKDQFHGE\QHZEULGJHVVXFKDV
WKHRQHSURSRVHGEHWZHHQ/DG\%D\RQWKHVRXWKRIWKHULYHUZLWKQHZGHYHORSPHQWVRQWKH
QRUWKDQGUHLQVWDWHPHQWRIKLVWRULFIHUU\FURVVLQJVVXFKDVWKHRQHVDW:LOIRUGDQG&ROZLFN7KLV
PLJKWEHRQSXEOLFKROLGD\VVSHFLDORFFDVLRQVRUDWSDUWLFXODUWLPHVRIWKHGD\WRDLGWKHGDLO\
FRPPXWH

Site of historic ferry crossing
,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHGHVLUHWRJHQHUDWHDVXVWDLQDEOHHQYLURQPHQWIRUZLOGOLIHWKHYLVLRQDOVRUHFRJQLVHV
WKHQHHGIRU7UHQW*DWHZD\¶VLPSURYHGXVHDQGHQMR\PHQWE\SHRSOH,QPDQ\FDVHVWKHEHQH¿WVRI
LPSURYHPHQWVFDQDQGVKRXOGEHV\PELRWLF
,PSURYLQJDQGLQFUHDVLQJWKHRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUSHRSOHWRDFFHVVDQGXVHWKH5LYHU7UHQWLWVDVVRFLDWHG
ZDWHUERGLHVDQGWKHDPHQLW\DIIRUGHGE\WKHODQGUHVRXUFHVZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\FRXOGFRQWULEXWH
JUHDWO\WRWKHORFDOFRPPXQLW\DQGYLVLWRUVLQWHUPVRIKHDOWK¿WQHVVDQGJHQHUDOZHOOEHLQJ
7KHDUHDLQFOXGHVQDWXUHUHVHUYHVUXQE\WKH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVWDQGUHVHUYHVUXQE\WKH
563%7KHVHSURYLGHRSSRUWXQLW\IRUSHRSOHWRZLWQHVVDQGOHDUQDERXWQDWXUHDWFORVHTXDUWHU
:LWKLQWKHVHUHVRXUFHVWKHUHLVSRWHQWLDOWRHQODUJHDQGLPSURYHWKHPWKURXJKEHWWHULQWHUSUHWDWLRQDQG
DFFHVVDVZHOODVSURYLGLQJQHZDQGLPSURYHGYLVLWRUFHQWUHV(YHQWVDQGH[KLELWLRQVLQWKHVHFHQWUHV
FDQEULQJOLIHWRWKHVXEMHFWDQGSURYLGHOHLVXUHDQGHGXFDWLRQDORSSRUWXQLWLHVZKLFKKDYHWKHSRWHQWLDOWR
RSHQXSWKLVQDWXUDOUHVRXUFHWRDZLGHUFURVVVHFWLRQRIWKHFRPPXQLW\

Clapper gate on public footpath south of Cromwell Weir

18

192

Page 199

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Vision and Strategic Objectives
7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVULFKLQKHULWDJHJHRORJLFDOIHDWXUHVDQGQDWXUH,WKDVFKDQJHGGUDPDWLFDOO\
IURPSUHKXPDQWLPHVWKURXJKWRWKHSUHVHQWFUHDWLQJDORQJDQGFRPSOH[VWRU\RIKXPDQLQÀXHQFH
RQWKHODQGVFDSHDQGWKHODQGVFDSH¶VLQÀXHQFHRQFXOWXUH%\HQJDJLQJWKHSXEOLFLQWKLVVWRU\LWFDQ
EHWROGLQDPDQQHUZKLFKFDQHGXFDWHDQGHQWHUWDLQLQHTXDOPHDVXUH,QVHHNLQJIXQGLQJWRGHOLYHU
WKHYLVLRQDQGWKHREMHFWLYHVWKHUHLVDODQGVFDSHZLGHV\QWKHVLVWKDWVKRXOGDOORZWKHSURMHFWVWROLQN
XSFXOWXUHDQGQDWXUHZLOGOLIHKROLVWLFDOO\7KLVZRXOGSUHVHQWDVWURQJHUHQFRXUDJHPHQWWRIXQGHUV
DQGFROODERUDWRUV
,QGLYLGXDOVSULYDWHRUJDQLVDWLRQVDQGRUSXEOLFERGLHVKDYHWKHSRWHQWLDOWRFROODERUDWHDQG
 %HWWHULQWHUSUHWDQGWHOOWKH7UHQW¶VVWRU\VRLWHQJDJHVDZLGHUDXGLHQFHDWDGHHSHUOHYHO
 'HHSHQFRPPXQLW\LQYROYHPHQW
 &UHDWHQHZYLVLWRUDQGH[KLELWLRQIDFLOLWLHVWRVWDJHHYHQWV
 $QLPSURYHGYLVLWRUH[SHULHQFHEULQJLQJSHRSOHFORVHUWRWKHLUHQYLURQPHQWDQGIRVWHULQJD
VHQVHRIFRQQHFWLRQDQGEHORQJLQJ
 7\SLFDOSURMHFWVFRXOGLQFOXGH
 +HULWDJHDQGELRGLYHUVLW\LQWHUSUHWDWLRQRYHUOD\RQWKH7UHQW9DOOH\:D\URXWH
 &UHDWLRQRIVPDOOGLYHUVLRQVDQGFLUFXODUZDONVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH7UHQW9DOOH\:D\
 ,PSURYHPHQWVWRLQWHUSUHWDWLRQDURXQGKLVWRULFIRUGVIHUU\FURVVLQJVDQGKLVWRULFPRQXPHQWV
 )DFLOLWDWLRQDQGHQFRXUDJHPHQWRIDGKRFOHLVXUHXVDJHRIZDWHUHQYLURQPHQWE\WKHZLGHU
SRSXODWLRQ
 ,PSURYHPHQWVWRSHGHVWULDQF\FOHFRQQHFWLYLW\DFURVVWKH5LYHU7UHQWLQFOXGLQJQHZRU
LPSURYHGEULGJHVDQGUHLQVWDWHPHQWRIKLVWRULFIHUU\ERDWFURVVLQJV
7KURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\DUHDWKHUHLVDUDQJHRIZDWHUVSRUWDQGOHLVXUHRSSRUWXQLWLHVRQWKH
ULYHUDQGDGMDFHQWZDWHUERGLHV,PSURYHPHQWVWRDQGH[SDQVLRQRIWKHH[LVWLQJFHQWUHVIRUOHLVXUH
DQGVSRUWLQWKHDUHDDORQJZLWKQHZIDFLOLWLHVWKDWFRXOGHQFRXUDJHDZLGHUVHFWLRQRIVRFLHW\WR
SDUWLFLSDWHLQRXWGRRUDFWLYLWLHVEULQJLQJZLWKLWUHOD[DWLRQJUHDWHUKHDOWKDQG¿WQHVVRSSRUWXQLWLHVDQG
JHQHUDOZHOOEHLQJ:KLOVWQRWH[KDXVWLYHDOLVWRILGHQWL¿HGLPSURYHPHQWVLVLQFOXGHGLQ$SSHQGL['
RIWKLVGRFXPHQW
$VSUHYLRXVO\VWDWHGWKHFKDUDFWHUDQGQDWXUHRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\FKDQJHVDVLWPRYHVGRZQ
VWUHDP7KHUHDUHDQXPEHURITXLWHGLVWLQFWVXEDUHDVWKDWGLIIHUHQWLDWHWKURXJKWKHLUFKDUDFWHU
ODQGXVHDQGFRQGLWLRQ5HFRJQLVLQJWKHVHGLIIHUHQFHVLQDGGLWLRQWRJHQHULFLPSURYHPHQWVDQG
WKDWHDFKDUHDFRXOGEHQH¿WIURPVSHFL¿FLQWHUYHQWLRQVL[µ$FWLRQ=RQHV¶KDYHEHHQLGHQWL¿HGDFURVV
WKHFDWFKPHQWDQRYHUYLHZRIWKHFRQWH[WLVVXHVDQGRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUHDFKLVSURYLGHGDFURVVWKH
IROORZLQJSDJHV

Improvements throughout the Trent Gateway should encourage a wider
section of the community to engage with the landscape and the story of the
River Trent

19

Vision and Strategic Objectives
10 Year targets to deliver the Trent Gateway vision and objectives.

20

Page 200

193

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Action Zones

&&5DWFOLIIHRQ6RDU3RZHU6WDWLRQDFURVV
$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYH ([SORUHG $UUDQ%HH
)OLFNU

View north from Formans Road bridge

21

Action Zones
Action Zone 6

Fiskerton to Winthorpe

Action Zone 5

Fiskerton to Winthorpe

Action Zone 4

Gunthorpe to Fiskerton

Action Zone 3

Colwick to Gunthorpe

Action Zone 2
Attenborough to Colwick

Action Zone 1
Sawley to Attenborough

7KURXJKRXWWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKHUHDUHDQXPEHURITXLWHGLVWLQFWVXEDUHDVWKDWGLIIHUHQWLDWHWKURXJK
WKHLUFKDUDFWHUODQGXVHDQGFRQGLWLRQ5HFRJQLVLQJWKDWHDFKDUHDFRXOGEHQH¿WIURPVSHFL¿FLQWHUYHQWLRQ
6L[$FWLRQ=RQHVKDYHEHHQLGHQWL¿HGDFURVVWKHFDWFKPHQWDQRYHUYLHZRIWKHFRQWH[WLVVXHVDQG
RSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUHDFKLVSURYLGHGDFURVVWKHIROORZLQJSDJHV

22

194

Page 201

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Action Zones

Action Zone 1: Sawley to Attenborough
Key Characteristics and Issues:
6LWXDWHGLQ1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH/HLFHVWHUVKLUHDQG'HUE\VKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLODUHDVWKLVDFWLRQ]RQH
LVGRPLQDWHGE\ZDWHUERGLHVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKKLVWRULFJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQVLWHVQRZUHVWRUHGDVODNHV
DQGSRROVWKDWSURYLGHDPHQLW\DQGHQYLURQPHQWDOKDELWDW7KH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUHPLQHUDOVORFDO
SODQKDVLGHQWL¿HGDVLWHDW0LOO+LOOZHVWRI%DUWRQLQ)DELVRQWKHRSSRVLWHVLGHRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
WR$WWHQERURXJKIRUIXWXUHJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQ7KLVFRXOGERWKSRWHQWLDOO\FUHDWHQHJDWLYHYLVXDODQG
HQYLURQPHQWDOLPSDFWVLQWKHPHGLXPWHUPDQGORQJWHUPRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUZHWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQLQWKH
ORQJWHUP
)URP6KDUGORZWKH5LYHU7UHQWLVQDYLJDEOHDQGWKHDFWLRQ]RQHLQFOXGHV6KDUGORZ6DZOH\DQG%HHVWRQ
0DULQDV3DVVDJHWKURXJKWKHDUHDUHTXLUHVWKHXVHRIWKH&UDQÀHHW%HHVWRQDQG1RWWLQJKDPFDQDOVWR
FLUFXPQDYLJDWHWKHZHLUVDW&UDQÀHHWDQG%HHVWRQ7KHZHLUVKDYHDQHJDWLYHLPSDFWRQQDWXUDOKDELWDWV
SULPDULO\WKRVHIRU¿VK 
7KURXJKWKLVDUHDWKHULYHUDQGDVVRFLDWHGZHWODQGVSURYLGHDZLGHJUHHQFRUULGRUVRXWKRIWKHXUEDQ
HGJH7KLVLQFOXGHVWKH$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYHZKLFKLVDPDMRUOHLVXUHDQGHFRORJLFDOUHVRXUFH
LQWKHDUHDDQGZKHUHVHDVRQDOO\6WDUOLQJPXUPXUDWLRQVFDQEHVHHQ
6RXWKRIWKHULYHUWKH5DWFOLIIH3RZHU6WDWLRQLVDSURPLQHQWODQGPDUNVLWWLQJZLWKLQODUJHO\SRRUTXDOLW\
DJULFXOWXUDOODQG

Attenborough Nature Reserve

'HVSLWHWKHZLGHJUHHQFRUULGRUWKHDUHDHQMR\VUHODWLYHO\ORZWUDQTXLOOLW\GXHWRWKHDGMDFHQWXUEDQ
FRQWH[WURDGFRUULGRUVDQGSRZHUVWDWLRQ3RWHQWLDOO\WKLVPD\EHH[DFHUEDWHGE\WKHGHYHORSPHQWRIWKH
+6UDLOGHYHORSPHQWSODQQHGWRURXWHDFURVVWKHULYHUVRXWKRI/RQJ(DWRQ

�otential Action Zone S�eci�c Interventions:
•
3URYLVLRQRILPSURYHGDFFHVVDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQZLWKLQ$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYHWR
PDLQWDLQDQGLQFUHDVHXVDJHE\DZLGHUSRSXODWLRQWKURXJKDQHQULFKHGH[SHULHQFHOHDGLQJ
WRLPSURYHGZHOOEHLQJDQGKHDOWK
•
:HWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQHQKDQFHPHQWZRUNZLWK6RDU&DWFKPHQW3DUWQHUVKLSRQZHWODQG
KDELWDWHQKDQFHPHQW
•
&UHDWLRQRIJUDVVODQGDQGZHWODQGKDELWDWVDORQJHDVWEDQNRI5LYHU7UHQWRQWKHÀRRGSODLQ
RSSRVLWH$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYHWRLQFUHDVHELRGLYHUVLW\DQGKDELWDWW\SHDVSDUWRI
WKH0LOO+LOOPLQHUDOVH[WUDFWLRQVFKHPH
•
(QKDQFHGZHWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQWRUHLQIRUFHJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUHDORQJ5LYHU(UHZDVK
OHDGLQJWR7RWRQ)LHOGV1DWXUH5HVHUYH
•
)LVKSDVVDW6DZOH\:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJHRIPLJUDWRU\¿VKDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW
•
)LVKSDVVDW7KUXPSWRQ:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJHRIPLJUDWRU\¿VKDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW

�iew across Sawley �arina towards Ratcli�e �ower Station

23

Action Zones
Action Zone 2: Attenborough to Colwick
Key Characteristics and Issues:
6LWXDWHGZLWKLQ1RWWLQJKDP&LW\DQG1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLODUHDVWKHFKDUDFWHURIWKLVDFWLRQ
]RQHFKDQJHVIURPUXUDOWRPRVWO\XUEDQULYHUFRQWH[WZLWKSUHGRPLQDQWO\HQJLQHHUHGULYHUEDQNVDVLW
FRPHVLQWRWKHFLW\0XFKRIWKHQRUWKHUQULYHUEDQNRIIHUVKLJKSRWHQWLDOIRUXUEDQUHGHYHORSPHQW
:LWKLQWKLVDFWLRQ]RQHWKHUHDUHDUHDVRIUHODWLYHO\KLJKGHSULYDWLRQ
0XFKRIWKHJUHHQVSDFHLVJLYHQRYHUWRVSRUWVDQGUHFUHDWLRQJURXQGVZLWK0HDGRZ/DQHDQG&LW\
*URXQGIRRWEDOOSLWFKHVDQG7UHQW%ULGJH&RXQW\&ULFNHWJURXQGFORVHWRWKHULYHUDWWLPHVDWWUDFWLQJODUJH
QXPEHUVRIYLVLWRUV
7KH%HHVWRQ&XWFDQDODUPOLQNVWRWKHFLW\FHQWUHDQGE\SDVVHVWKHXQQDYLJDEOHVHFWLRQRIWKH5LYHU
7UHQWEHWZHHQ7UHQW%ULGJHDQG%HHVWRQ:HLU:KLOVWWKHULYHURIIHUVSRWHQWLDOIRUDPHQLW\WKURXJKWKH
]RQHWKHUHLVDJHQHUDOODFNRIWUDQTXLOOLW\WKURXJKWKHDUHDKRZHYHUWKLVFRXOGEHLPSURYHGDQGLQFUHDVHG
WRWKHZLGHUDUHDLQFRQWUDVWWRWKHPRUHGHQVHO\GHYHORSHGDUHDV
0XFKRIWKHULYHUFRXUVHLVVHUYHGE\WKH7UHQW9DOOH\:D\/RQJ'LVWDQFH)RRWSDWKEXWWKHUHDUHJDSVLQ
DFFHVVLELOLW\WRWKHULYHUVLGHQHFHVVLWDWLQJSHGHVWULDQVDQGF\FOLVWVWRYHQWXUHDZD\IURPWKHULYHULQWRWKH
GHYHORSHGDUHDVWRWKHVRXWK

View from Trent Field towards ‘Waterside’ development

Towards Nottingham from eastern end of Beeston Cut
�otential Action Zone �peci�c Interventions:
 ,PSURYHGVXUIDFLQJDQGSURYLVLRQRIVHDWLQJDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQDORQJµ%LJ7UDFN¶D
VKDUHGSHGHVWULDQDQGF\FOHSDWKOLQNLQJ%HHVWRQ0DULQDDQG9LFWRULD(PEDQNPHQW
WRPDNHLWPRUHLQFOXVLYHDQGHQFRXUDJHLQFUHDVHGXVDJH7KLVFRXOGEHH[SDQGHGWR
LQFOXGH+ROPH3LHUUHSRQW*UDQWKDP&DQDO%DUWRQDQG&OLIWRQ:RRGDQG&ROZLFN
 (QKDQFHGDQGSURPRWHGZDONLQJURXWHVEHWZHHQWKH5LYHU7UHQWDQG1RWWLQJKDPFLW\
FHQWUHWRHQFRXUDJHDZLGHUSRSXODWLRQWRXVHWKHULYHUDQGWKHUHE\OLIWZHOOEHLQJ
 1HZULYHUVLGHJUHHQFRUULGRUDQGSHGHVWULDQF\FOHURXWHRQQRUWKVLGHRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
WKURXJK1RWWLQJKDPDVGHYHORSPHQWSURJUHVVHVWRHQFRXUDJHSK\VLFDODFWLYLW\DQG
ZHOOEHLQJ
 &RQWLQXDWLRQRIWKH*UDQWKDP&DQDOUHVWRUDWLRQLQFOXGLQJUHIXUELVKPHQWRIORFNJDWHV
DQGSRWHQWLDOZKDUIPDULQDWKHUHE\UHLQIRUFLQJKLVWRULFFRQWH[WDQGZLGHQLQJKHULWDJH
DZDUHQHVV
 $UFKDHRORJLFDOLQYHVWLJDWLRQHQJDJHPHQWDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQRI&OLIWRQ3LOH6HWWOHPHQW
 5HWUR¿WKDELWDWWRZDWHU¶VHGJHDORQJHQJLQHHUHGULYHUEDQNVDQGUHWDLQZDOOVWRFUHDWH
DUHDVRIVORZHUZDWHUDQGLPSURYH¿VKKDELWDW
 &UHDWLRQRIJUDVVODQGDQGZHWODQGKDELWDWVDORQJWKHULYHUFRUULGRULQWKHÀRRGSODLQ
WRLQFUHDVHELRGLYHUVLW\DQGKDELWDWW\SHDQGUHLQIRUFHJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUHWKURXJK
XUEDQDUHDV

24

Page 202

195

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Action Zones
Action Zone 3: Colwick to Gunthorpe
Key Characteristics and Issues:
7KLV$FWLRQ=RQHLVSULPDULO\VLWXDWHGLQ1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH&RXQW\&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUNLQ1RWWLQJKDP
&LW\&RXQFLOSURYLGHVDQDWXUDOHQYLURQPHQWFORVHWRWKHFLW\,WKDVDVLQJOHDUHDRIKLJKHUJURXQG
ORFDWHGQRUWKRI5DGFOLIIHRQ7UHQWDQGJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQDUHDVUHVWRUHGIRUOHLVXUHXVHVDQGHFRORJLFDO
IHDWXUHVZKLFKKDYHJLYHQULVHWRWKH&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUN ZLWK'HVLJQDWHG%DWKLQJ:DWHU WKH1DWLRQDO
:DWHUVSRUWV&HQWUHDQG6N\ODUNV1DWXUH5HVHUYHDW+ROPH3LHUUHSRQWDQG1HWKHU¿HOG/DJRRQV
&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUNDQGWKH1DWLRQDO:DWHUVSRUWV&HQWUH VLWXDWHGDFURVVWKHULYHUIURPHDFKRWKHU 
ERWKDWWUDFWKLJKYLVLWRUYROXPHVKRZHYHUWKHUHLVQRSXEOLFDFFHVVIURPVLWHWRVLWH
+ROPH/RFNDQG6OXLFHVVLWEHWZHHQ+ROPH3LHUUHSRQWDQG&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUN$¿VKSDVVKDVEHHQ
GHVLJQHGDQGLVSURSRVHGIRUFRQVWUXFWLRQDWWKLVORFDWLRQRQWKH&RXQWU\3DUNVLGHRIWKHULYHU
7KHUHLVDQRWDEOHLQFUHDVHLQWUDQTXLOOLW\DVWKHULYHUKHDGVQRUWKDZD\IURP1RWWLQJKDP)XUWKHUQRUWK
WKHULYHUWUDYHOVWKURXJKODUJHDUDEOH¿HOGVVLWWLQJEHKLQGÀRRGHPEDQNPHQWVZLWKLVRODWHGSDVWRUDOODQG
RQWKHULYHUVLGH
7KHUHDUHULYHUVLGHVHWWOHPHQWVDW5DGFOLIIHRQ7UHQWDQG%XUWRQ-R\FH7KHDJULFXOWXUDOODQGLVSRRU
TXDOLW\QRUWKRI5DGFOLIIHRQ7UHQW
:KLOVWWUDQTXLOOLW\LQFUHDVHVOHQJWKVRIULYHUEDQNDUHLQDFFHVVLEOHWRWKHSXEOLF SDUWLFXODUO\WRWKHVRXWK RU
UHTXLUHORQJHUZDONVWRDFFHVVWKHULYHUIURPWKHQHDUHVWURDG
7KHUHDUHQRURDGRUSHGHVWULDQULYHUFURVVLQJVEHWZHHQ/DG\%D\%ULGJHDQG*XQWKRUSH+LVWRULFDOO\
WKHUHZHUHIRUGDQGULYHUIHUU\FURVVLQJVDW6WRNH%DUGROSKDQG%XUWRQ-R\FH

Holme Lock and Sluices

Potential Action Zone Speci�c Inter�entions:
 ,QFUHDVHRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUYLVLWRUVDW&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUNLQFOXGLQJSURYLVLRQRI9LVLWRU
&HQWUHDQGOLQNSXEOLFDFFHVVWRSURSRVHG¿VKSDVV
 &UHDWH¿VKSDVVDW6WRNH%DUGROSK:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJHRIPLJUDWRU\¿VKDORQJWKH
5LYHU7UHQW
 ([SORLWZHWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQHQKDQFHPHQWRSSRUWXQLWLHVDFURVV5LYHU7UHQWÀRRGSODLQ
RQWKHULYHUVLGHRIWKHÀRRGGHIHQFHVEHWZHHQ1HWKHU¿HOG/DJRRQVDQG*XQWKRUSHWR
LQFUHDVHKDELWDWH[WHQWVDQGTXDOLW\
 ([SORLWRSSRUWXQLWLHVWRFUHDWHZRRGODQGKDELWDWWROLQNDQGH[WHQGH[LVWLQJZRRGODQG
EHWZHHQ(DVW%ULGJIRUGDQG5DGFOLIIHRQ7UHQWWRUHLQIRUFHJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUH
 5HVWRUDWLRQRIIHUU\FURVVLQJDW6WRNH6KHOIRUGRQEDQNKROLGD\VDQGGHVLJQDWHG
ZHHNHQGV

Position of historic ford at Burton Joyce
25

Action Zones
Action Zone 4: Gunthorpe to Fiskerton
Key Characteristics and issues:
%HWZHHQ*XQWKRUSHDQG)LVNHUWRQWKHULYHUWUDYHOVWKURXJKODUJHRSHQDUDEOH¿HOGVSXQFWXDWHG
ZLWKDIHZKHGJHURZWUHHVDQGVSDUVHEXLOWGHYHORSPHQW7KURXJKRXWWKLV]RQHPXFKRIWKH
DJULFXOWXUDOODQGLVRIDJRRGTXDOLW\
7KHUHLVDFRQWLQXRXVGHVLJQDWHGULJKWRIZD\RQWKHQRUWKEDQNRIWKHULYHU$QHVFDUSPHQW
DORQJWKHVRXWKHUQVLGHRIWKHULYHUFRQWDLQVYLHZVIURPWKHULYHUVLGHDQGDOVRSURYLGHVHOHYDWHG
YLHZSRLQWV
7KHUHLVDEUHDNLQULYHUVLGHDFFHVVQHDU5$)6\HUVWRQ/RFNVDQGZHLUVVLWXDWHGDW
*XQWKRUSHDQG+D]HOIRUGDQGWKH1RWWV&RXQW\6DLOLQJ&OXEHDVWRI+RYHULQJKDPSURYLGHD
OHLVXUHGHVWLQDWLRQ$GGLWLRQDOO\WKLV]RQHLQFOXGHV6WRNH)LHOG%DWWOH*URXQGZKLFKLVWKHRQO\
5HJLVWHUHG%DWWOH¿HOGLQ1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
7KHUHDUHQRULYHUFURVVLQJVDIWHU*XQWKRUSHXQWLO1HZDUNRQ7UHQW7KHUHDUHKLVWRULFIRUGDQG
ULYHUIHUU\FURVVLQJVDW)LVNHUWRQ

View along Church Lane byway
towards Fiskerton

View across remnant hedgerows and
enclosed pasture north of Gunthorpe

Gunthorpe Weir and exposed geology

View north from the edge of Fiskerton

Potential Action Zone Specifc Interventions:
 &UHDWLRQRI¿VKSDVVHVDW*XQWKRUSH:HLUDQG+D]HOIRUG1RUWK:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJH
RIPLJUDWRU\¿VKDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW
 ([SORLWRSSRUWXQLWLHVVRXWKZHVWRIWKHULYHUWRFUHDWHZRRGODQGZHWODQGDQGJUDVVODQG
KDELWDWVRQWKHÀRRGSODLQEHWZHHQ*XQWKRUSHZHLUDQG+D]HOIRUG/RFN
 3RWHQWLDOWRFUHDWHZHWODQGKDELWDWVDVWKHULYHUPHDQGHUVEHWZHHQ(DVW6WRNHDQG
)LVNHUWRQDQGWRWKHZHVWRIWKHULYHUEHWZHHQ+D]HOIRUG:HLUDQG+RYHULQJKDP

26

196

Page 203

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Action Zones
Action Zone 5: Fiskerton to Winthorpe
Key Characteristics and Issues:
7KURXJKWKLV]RQHWKH5LYHU7UHQWVSOLWVLQWRDQDYLJDEOHVHFWLRQWKURXJK1HZDUNRQ7UHQWDQGDQ
XQQDYLJDEOHVHFWLRQSDVW.HOKDP7KHUHDUHORQJVHFWLRQVRILQDFFHVVLEOHULYHUEDQNRQWKHVRXWKVLGH
EHWZHHQ)LVNHUWRQDQG)DUQGRQDQGRQWKHZHVWHUQDUPSDVW.HOKDP
7KHUHDUHODUJHDUDEOH¿HOGVZLWKIHZKHGJHURZWUHHVEHWZHHQWKHWZRDUPVRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
6WD\WKRUSH3RZHU6WDWLRQDQG%ULWLVK6XJDUSURYLGHQRWDEOHLQGXVWULDOODQGPDUNVZLWKKLJKYLVXDOLPSDFW
DQG.HOKDP+DOODVZHOODVWKHVSLUHRI6W0DU\0DJGHOHQH&KXUFKDUHQRWDEOHKHULWDJHODQGPDUNV
7KHUHDUHODUJHDUHDVRIH[SRVHGULYHUEDQNSURQHWRHURVLRQ7KLVZHVWHUQDUPRIWKHULYHULVUHQRZQHG
IRULWVJRRG¿VKLQJ
)RUPXFKRIWKLV]RQHWKHULYHULVWUDQTXLO7KHFDOPDQGVWLOOQHVVUHGXFHLQWKHXUEDQDUHDVVXFKDVDW
WKH%ULWLVK6XJDU)DFWRU\WKH6WD\WKRUSH3RZHU6WDWLRQDQG1HZDUNRQ7UHQWVXEXUEV
1HZDUNRQ7UHQWFRQWDLQVDUHDVRIGHSULYDWLRQ7KHWRZQFRQWDLQVDPL[RIKHULWDJHDQGOHLVXUH
RSSRUWXQLWLHVDQGKDVDSRSXODUDFFHVVLEOHULYHUIURQWDJH
5LYHUFURVVLQJVLQWKLV]RQHDUHUHVWULFWHGWRWKHHDVWRI1HZDUNRQ7UHQWYLDWKHIRRWEULGJHVRXWKRI.LQJV
0DULQDWKH$WKH*UHDW1RUWK5RDGDQGWKH$DW:LQWKRUSH7KHUHXVHGWREHDIRUGDQGULYHUIHUU\
FURVVLQJDW.HOKDP

View along bankside footpath near Farndon Marina
Potential Action Zone Speci�c Inter�entions:
 ,PSURYHOHLVXUHDQGDFFHVVRSSRUWXQLWLHVZLWKLQµLVODQG¶DUHDZHVWRI1HZDUN
RQ7UHQW
 &UHDWLRQRID¿VKSDVVDW$YHUKDP:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJHRIPLJUDWRU\¿VK
DORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQW
 7KHUHLVSRWHQWLDOIRUKDELWDWLPSURYHPHQWVEHWZHHQWKH6WD\WKRUSH3RZHU
VWDWLRQVLWHDQGWKH0DUORFN'\NHQRUWKRI)LVNHUWRQDQGWKHDUHDZLWKLQWKH
ULYHUPHDQGHUZHVWRI)DUQGRQQRUWKRIWKH)DUQGRQ0DULQD
 6HHNRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUZRRGODQGHQKDQFHPHQWDURXQG6PHDWRQV/DNHV

View from Trent Lane towards British Sugar and Parish Church of St
Mary Magdalene

27

Action Zones
Action Zone 6: Winthorpe to Besthorpe
Key Characteristics and Issues:
7KLV]RQHLQFOXGHVODUJHDUHDVRIZHWODQGKDELWDWRQERWKVLGHVRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW7KHUHDUHULJKWVRI
ZD\DORQJWKHPDMRULW\RIERWKVLGHVRIWKHULYHUDQG2SHQ$FFHVVODQGDW+ROPH7KHWLGDOH[WHQWRI
WKHULYHULVDW&URPZHOO:HLUZHVWRI&ROOLQJKDP%HWZHHQKHUHDQGWKH+XPEHUHVWXDU\WKHULYHULV
QDYLJDEOHEXWRQO\E\PRUHH[SHULHQFHGVDLORUV
7KHUHDUHVRPHDUHDVRIJUD]LQJDORQJWKHULYHUHGJHZLWKKLJKTXDOLW\DJULFXOWXUDOODQGEHWZHHQ1RUWK
0XVNKDPDQG&URPZHOO7KHUHDUHQRFXUUHQWULYHUFURVVLQJVLQWKLV]RQHKLVWRULFDOO\WKHUHZHUHIRUG
DQGULYHUIHUU\FURVVLQJDW1RUWK0XVNKDPDQG&URPZHOO

View towards Holme from the site of the Muskham Ferry
7ZR563%QDWXUHUHVHUYHV/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGVDQG%HVWKRUSHDGGWRWKHOHYHOVRIWUDQTXLOOLW\
ZKLFKDUHUHODWLYHO\KLJKFRPSDUHGWRWKHVXUURXQGLQJDUHD
)XWXUHJUDYHOH[WUDFWLRQDFWLYLW\DQGDFWLYLW\LVSODQQHGIRUWKHDUHDSURYLGLQJSRWHQWLDOIRUIXWXUH
FROODERUDWLRQEHWZHHQQDWXUHJURXSVDQGFKDULWLHVDQGWKHPLQHUDOVDQGDJJUHJDWHVLQGXVWU\

View across Cromwell Lock and weir

View from ���B Lan�ford Low�elds towards Cromwell Weir

�otential Action Zone �peci�c Inter�entions:
 %XLOGDYLHZLQJWRZHUDQGELUGKLGHDW563%/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGVWREHDEOHWRYLHZWKH
UHVHUYHDQG5LYHU7UHQW XSVWUHDPDQGGRZQVWUHDP LQLWVHQWLUHW\ZLWKRXWGLVWXUELQJWKH
KDELWDWDQGZLOGOLIH
 ,QVWDOODZHEFDPWRUHFRUG6DOPRQMXPSLQJDW&URPZHOOZHLU3RVVLEOHFLWL]HQVFLHQFH
SURMHFWJHWWLQJSXEOLFWRUHFRUGQXPEHUVWKH\VHH2SSRUWXQLW\WRLQVSLUHDQGHGXFDWHWKH
SXEOLFDERXWWKHHFRV\VWHPDQGHFRORJ\RIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
 &UHDWHD¿VKSDVVDW&URPZHOO:HLUWRIDFLOLWDWHSDVVDJHRIPLJUDWRU\¿VKDORQJWKH5LYHU
Trent
 7KHUHLVSRWHQWLDOIRUJUDVVODQGDQGZHWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQWRWKHHDVWRIWKHULYHUEHWZHHQ
:LQWKRUSHDQG&URPZHOO:HLUDQGWRWKHZHVWRIWKHULYHUWRMXVWVRXWKRI&DUOHWRQRQ7UHQW
 (QKDQFHWKHZHWODQGKDELWDWDURXQG%HVWKRUSH1DWXUH5HVHUYHDQGWKHJUDVVODQGKDELWDW
QRUWKRIWKHUHVHUYH
 )DFLOLWDWHVSHFLDOHYHQWVWRUHHQDFWWKHIHUU\FURVVLQJDW0XVNKDP)HUU\WRDWWUDFWYLVLWRUV
WRXVHWKHULYHUIRUUHFUHDWLRQDQGDWWUDFWWKHPWRWKH563%/DQJIRUGDQG1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
:LOGOLIH7UXVW%HVWKRUSH1DWXUH5HVHUYHVLWHV

28

Page 204

197

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Masterplan

29

Masterplan
As a high-level visual aid, the Trent Gateway area has been graphically represented across three A3 plans. These plans are subdivided to show the extents of the six action
zones described in this report.
The plans are intended to work on two levels:
•
•

Firstly, they act as a high-level indicator of the potential to enhance or create one of the three, key, habitat types
�econdly, the plans show locations where an intervention could have speci�c bene�ts. The latter are indicated by a series of coloured icons which are keyed in the
legend.

�here potential pro�ects and interventions have previously been discussed, the plans include a letter at speci�c locations which is also explained in the key.
The �iver Trent, its tributaries, other signi�cant water bodies and areas of urban development, have been indicated for context and orientation.
The plans are intended to be high level. They do not intend to detail all the potential and positive interventions that could be made which are too numerous to articulate. Instead,
the plans serve to bring to life the full scope of which interventions could have the most positive impact on the natural resources of the area and in ways which would lift how
people interact with it for leisure, health and education.
Full size copies of the masterplan can be found in appendix B of this report.

River Cole through Glebe Farm Recreation Ground

30

198

Page 205

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Case Study Site Proposals

31

Case Study Site Proposals
Three sites have been selected as case studies to illustrate the type of interventions
that could be made and how they could beneft the Trent Gateway area. These
case studies are not intended to be priority projects and it is not intended that they
should be seen as any more deserving than other interventions indicated in this
report. The intention is that they provide a favour of what might be achieved and
what resource might be required to do so.
The three Case studies are:
•
•
•

Improved visitor experience and destination at RSPB Langford Lowfelds and
Colwick Country Park
Access and interpretation at Attenborough Nature Reserve
Habitat creation in the food plain

Each case study is discussed in detail in Appendix C of this report.

32

Page 206

199

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Next Steps
7KHQH[WVWHSVIRUWKHSURMHFWDUHIRUWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\3DUWQHUVKLS6WHHULQJ*URXSWR
FRQWLQXHWRZRUNWRJHWKHUIDFLOLWDWHGE\WKH(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\WRVKDUHDQGFRPPXQLFDWH
WKH9LVLRQ6WUDWHJLF2EMHFWLYHVDQG0DVWHUSODQWRDZLGHUDXGLHQFHLGHQWLI\IXQGLQJ
PHFKDQLVPVDQGGHOLYHUSK\VLFDOLPSURYHPHQWVRUDFWLYLW\RQWKHJURXQG

Funding

7KLVUHSRUWWKH0DVWHUSODQDQG&DVH6WXG\6LWHSURSRVDOVZLOOEHXVHGDORQJZLWKDVXPPDU\
EURFKXUHWRDFFHVVIXQGLQJVWUHDPVDQGSRWHQWLDODSSOLFDWLRQURXWHVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKVLQJOH
RUPXOWLSOHDVSHFWVRIWKHYLVLRQDFURVVÀRRGULVNDFFHVVLELOLW\KHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ
ELRGLYHUVLW\KHULWDJHLQWHUSUHWDWLRQDQGRWKHUV
7KH3DUWQHUVKLS6WHHULQJ*URXSZLOOH[SORUHWKHSRWHQWLDOIRUJUDQWVPDWFKIXQGLQJDFURVV
RUJDQLVDWLRQVWRGHOLYHUSURMHFWVWKDWFRXOGQRWEHGHOLYHUHGRUIXQGHGLQGLYLGXDOO\
,QGLYLGXDOO\RULQFROODERUDWLRQPHPEHUVRIWKH3DUWQHUVKLS6WHHULQJ*URXSZLOO
•
• 3UHSDUHRUHQFRXUDJHIXQGLQJDSSOLFDWLRQVWRDSSURSULDWHIXQGVIRUH[DPSOHWKH
1DWLRQDO/RWWHU\%XVLQHVVDQG/RFDO(FRQRP\)XQGV
•
• (PEHGWKHRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUGHOLYHU\RIWKH9LVLRQLQORFDODXWKRULW\&RPPXQLW\
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH/HY\RU6HFWLRQLQLWLDWLYHV
•
• 3URPRWHWKH9LVLRQWRSULYDWHGHYHORSHUVRUEXVLQHVVHVWRHQFRXUDJHELRGLYHUVLW\
RIIVHWWLQJRUFRQWULEXWLRQWRLQLWLDWLYHV
•
• ,GHQWLI\DQDSSURSULDWHRUJDQLVDWLRQWRWDNHRZQHUVKLSRIFDWFKPHQWZLGHLQLWLDWLYHVLQ
RUGHUWRFROODWHIXQGLQJIURPPXOWLSOHDJHQFLHVWRIDFLOLWDWHGHOLYHU\RILQLWLDWLYHV

7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\3DUWQHUVKLS6WHHULQJ*URXSLVIRUPHGRIUHSUHVHQWDWLYHVIURPWKHIROORZLQJ
RUJDQLVDWLRQ
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\
&DQDODQG5LYHU7UXVW
%HHVWRQ&DQDOVLGH+HULWDJH&HQWUH
*HGOLQJ%RURXJK&RXQFLO
%UR[WRZH%RURXJK&RXQFLO
1DWXUDO(QJODQG
1RWWLQJKDP&LW\&RXQFLO
1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLO
'HUE\VKLUH&RXQW\&RXQFLO
1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW
'HUE\VKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW
563%
6HYHUQ7UHQW:DWHU
7UHQW5LYHUV7UXVW
7UHQW$QJOHUV-RLQW&RXQFLO

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

33

200

Page 207

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendices

Appendix A
Baseline Mapping

Colwick Sluices

December 2019

Page 208

201

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Overview

Nottingham
Nottingham

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir
and Ma
rina
Marina

Beeston
Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

Thrumpton Hall
Thrumpton
Hall
Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
Station
Station

M1

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies

Overview

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Country
Colwick
Country Pa
Park
rk

National
National
Watersports
Wa
tersports Centre
Centre

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club
RAF Syerston
Syerston

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend
River Trent and other waterbodies

202

Page 209

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Overview

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Nature Reser
Reserve
ve
North Muskham
Bleasbyy
Bleasb
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station

Stoke Field
Field
British Sugar
Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies

NC

R6

NCR67

Accessibility

Nottingham

Sawley W
Weir
eir
and Marina

Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature Reser
Reserve
ve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

NC

5
R1

Thrumpton Hall
Thrumpton
M1

Ratclife
Rat
clife Power
Power
Station

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Trent Valley Way
National Cycle Route
National Cycle Network Link
Public Bridleway
Public Footpath
Local Nature Reserve
Country Park
CROW Access Land
Allotment / Growing Space
Sports Pitch
Play Space
Public Park or Garden

Page 210

203

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Accessibility

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Country Park
Colwick

National
Watersports
Wat
ersports Centre
Centre
NC

Notts County
County
Sailing Club

Gunthorpe

RAF Syerston

R1
5

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

NCR

48

8
NCR4

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Trent Valley Way
National Cycle Route
Byway Open
National
Cycle
toNetwork
All TrafficLink
Public Bridleway
Public Footpath
Local Nature Reserve
Country Park
CROW Access Land
Allotment / Growing Space
Sports Pitch
Play Space
Public Park or Garden

Accessibility

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Nature Reser
Reserve
ve
North Muskham
Bleasbyy
Bleasb
Kelham

FFiskerton
iskerton

RSPB
Langford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

NC

R6
4

Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station

Stoke Field
Field
British Sugar
NCR48

Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend
River Trent and other waterbodies
Trent Valley Way
National Cycle Route
National Cycle Network Link
Byway Open to All Traffic
Public Bridleway
Public Footpath
Local Nature Reserve
RSPB Reserve
Country
Park
CROW Access Land
Allotmen t / Growing
Space
Growing Space
Allotment
Sports Pitch
Play Space
Public Park or Garden

204

Page 211

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Agricultural Land Classification

Nottingham
Nottingham

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir
and Ma
rina
Marina

Beeston
Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

Thrumpton Hall
Thrumpton
Hall
Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
Station
Station

M1

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Urban and Non-Agricultural
Grade 2 - Very Good
Grade 3 - Good to Moderate
Grade 4 - Poor

Agricultural Land Classification

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Country
Colwick
Country Pa
Park
rk

National
National
Watersports
Wa
tersports Centre
Centre

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club
RAF Syerston
Syerston

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Urban and Non-Agricultural
Grade 2 - Very Good
Grade 3 - Good to Moderate
Grade 4 - Poor

Page 212

205

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Agricultural Land Classification

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve
North Muskham
North
Bleasby
Bleasby
Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford
Lang
ford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station
Station

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
British Sugar
British
Sugar
Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Urban and Non-Agricultural
Grade 2 - Very Good
Grade 3 - Good to Moderate

Heritage Context

Nottingham
Nottingham

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir
and Ma
rina
Marina

Beeston
Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

Thrumpton Ha
Thrumpton
Hallll
M1

Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
SStation
tation

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend
River Trent and other waterbodies

^

Church
Grade I Listed Building
Grade II* Listed Building
Grade II Listed Building
Conservation Area
Registered Park & Garden
Scheduled Monument
Woodpasture and Parkland

206

Page 213

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Heritage Context

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Coun
Colwick
Country
try Pa
Park
rk

National
National
Watersports
Wa
tersports Centre
Centre

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

RAF Syerston
Syerston

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies

^

Church
Grade I Listed Building
Grade II* Listed Building
Grade II Listed Building
Conservation Area
Registered Park & Garden
Scheduled Monument
Ancient and Semi-Natural Woodland
Planted Ancient Woodland Site
Woodpasture and Parkland
Registered Battlefield

Heritage Context

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve
North Muskham
North
Bleasby
Bleasby
Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford
Lang
ford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station
Station

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
British Sugar
British
Sugar
Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies

^

Church
Grade I Listed Building
Grade II* Listed Building
Grade II Listed Building
Conservation Area
Registered Park & Garden
Scheduled Monument
Ancient and Semi-Natural Woodland
Woodpasture and Parkland
Registered Battlefield

Page 214

207

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Index of Multiple Deprivation
16346

27013

16346

21747
South Derbyshire District

Derbyshire County
Erewash District

5228 28201

21934

21243

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir 20258
and Marina
Marina

20236

3827

11485

19340

11732

31482

9173

30047

31247
32001
Broxtowe District 28697
25280
31509
18950

25947

15099

31582

24728

20089

18406

26139
18980

28170

30141

12550

8915
17405

15585

5190
3903

3899
4294

2772

5768

28586
29594

5563

32696

31257

28233

32231

31248

28027

30338

31843
27365

31432

6233

1816

2627

16424

18202

4522

3640

19684
21461

21111
4082

7273

9198
30746

32703
5567

5802

Nottinghamshire County

27197

Wilford
Wilford

157

3944

1438

21361

1184

3233
7257
9901

5899
7345
10590

10001

4249
22376618 1048
8213 8424

5362

17109

2914

3672
7462 3259
Nottingham
No
ttingham
3873 1062

City of Nottingham

11587

20405

21919

22091

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Rushcliffe District

203 3516

11725

4865

11522

Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
SStation
tation

3388

2834
20533

20780

24576

1967

27644

7317

14451

16250

7711
16198
3784 3072
1830
3590 2344
5431
564 2481
4080 6407
3395876

14193

9822

5027

15576

Thrumpton Hall
Thrumpton
Hall

24980

6007

9810

Attenborough
Attenborough
27877
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Leicestershire County
North West Leicestershire District

22019

19492

10254

Beeston
Beeston

21641

M1

2118

26354

20635

14571

18130

24980

19492
28062

24912

22312

27826

8966
21185

29184

17294
11509

12043

6362

32246 29695

5267

22354 11803
29931

26183

32152

22808
30007

30588

30325

28776

15673

23254
30210
14740

20073
16501
16670

2145
29216

20686

31816

30966

26046

[

27520
30586
22415
18131
32466
22086
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS32756
User 32005
Community
19298

28577

Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

County Boundary
District / Borough Boundary
River Trent and other waterbodies
1-10% (Most Deprived)
11-20%
21-30%
31-40%
41-50%
51-60%
61-70%
71-80%
81-90%
91-100% (Least Deprived)
Notes:
The Index of Multiple Deprivation ranks each small area in England from 1 (most deprived area) to 32,844 (least deprived area).
The numbers shown illustrate the rank of each area within England whilst the colour represents the rank of each area within the geographic extent of the map (dark red most deprived, dark green least deprived).
More information can be found in the guidance note: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015

Index of Multiple Deprivation
7462
4249

7257

3233

9901

1184 1184
10182
17491
2079
157 707
21853
10890
14243
2787
1048
16510

2237 6618
8213 8424

3944
4596
3640
City of Nottingham
1816
9198

3455

1438 7273

28027

30338

10537
15904 12881

12873

14673
21671

18079

19560

25492

25097
21449

25404
25196

20103

17793

25217 9731

11701

22874
15747

6189

29010

25212

Gedling District

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

23276
9994

Newark and Sherwood District
31409

30508

28024
27737

Colwick Country
Colwick
Country Pa
Park
rk
7233

24287

31843
26046

28174

17727
11027

5563

2627

31257

27365

9420

14378

8601

19684

27027

National
Na
tional
Watersports Centre
Watersports
Centre

Nottinghamshire County

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

RAF Syerston
Syerston

30966
31816

27520

29565

18131
32756

29985

27572
32005

21836

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

Rushcliffe District

18942

32541
24551

[

30661
27781

26990

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe,
31576GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend
County Boundary
District / Borough Boundary
River Trent and other waterbodies
1-10% (Most Deprived)
11-20%
21-30%
31-40%
41-50%
51-60%
61-70%
71-80%
81-90%
91-100% (Least Deprived)
Notes:
The Index of Multiple Deprivation ranks each small area in England from 1 (most deprived area) to 32,844 (least deprived area).
The numbers shown illustrate the rank of each area within England whilst the colour represents the rank of each area within the geographic extent of the map (dark red most deprived, dark green least deprived).
More information can be found in the guidance note: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015

208

20329

30114

Page 215

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Index of Multiple Deprivation
18279

18658

25492
31140

Cromwell
Cromwell

15777

18279

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

24457

25212
16400

North
No
rth Muskham

28174

Bleasby
Bleasby

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station
Station

Nottinghamshire County

15777

31032

Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford Lowfelds
Langford
Lowfelds

Newark and Sherwood District

Rushcliffe District

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
British Sugar
British
Sugar
21836

Farndon
Farndon

19071

3858

25174

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

6811

20329

8741

18109

22360

21558

11507

3280

5214

17783

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

17098

12944

23144
North Kesteven District

[

19481

4826

Lincolnshire County

4811

12236
1723

Sourc
GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
22e:29Esri,
5 DigitalGlobe,
31376
Scale at A3 1:50,000

Sheet 3 of 3

Legend
County Boundary
District / Borough Boundary
River Trent and other waterbodies
1-10% (Most Deprived)
11-20%
21-30%
31-40%
41-50%
51-60%
61-70%
71-80%
81-90%
91-100% (Least Deprived)
Notes:
The Index of Multiple Deprivation ranks each small area in England from 1 (most deprived area) to 32,844 (least deprived area).
The numbers shown illustrate the rank of each area within England whilst the colour represents the rank of each area within the geographic extent of the map (dark red most deprived, dark green least deprived).
More information can be found in the guidance note: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015

Topography and Drainage
80

40

40

60

60
50

60

70

30 30

30

30
40
40

30
30 30

30
30

30

30
30
30 30
30
30
40
40
30

70

30

40

M1

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

40 30 30
30

40
30

30
30

80
80
80

30
30
30

30

30

30

30
30

30

30

30 30
30

60
40

30

30

40
40

30

Station
Station

40
40

80

30

30
30

40

30

30

30

30

30

40

30

30

30

60

40
40

60
60
50

40

50

50

30

30
30
30

40

40
40

40
30

30 40
30

30

60
60 50
50
30

30

Wilford
Wilford

50
30

40

30

60
30

30

60

80
50

40 60
30
60

30
30

30
30
30 30 30

50

30

60

80 90

70
60

Nottingham
Nottingham

70

40
50

40
60

90

70

80
50 70

30

50

30
30 30

30

50

80 70

30

30

50

30
30

30

60 50

70
70

30

30

30

30

40

80

30
30

30

30
30
30

30

60

Thrumpton Ha
Thrumpton
Hallll
70

30

30

Beeston
Beeston

Clifton
on Village
illage

50

40

60

30

Attenborough
A
ttenborough
Nature30
Nature
Rese
Reserve
rve

30

60
50

70

30
30 30

30
30
30
30
30 30 30
30 30

60

30

30
30

30

70

40

50

40
50

50

30

30Ratclife
Ratclife Power
Power

30
30

50

30

30

30
30 30
30

60

30 30
30

30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30

30 30

30

30

30

30

30eir
Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
30
and Marina
Marina
30

30
50
60

30

30

30

30

30

70
50

70

40 30

40
30 30

30

30
30

30

40

40

30
30

60

50

50
30 30

40

60

50

40

30 30

70

90

80
70

60

30
70
30
30
50
30
40
80
40
30 Community
30 Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar
30
60
30

[

30
40

Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
10m Contours
Flood Defences
Authorised Landfill Site
Historic Landfill Site
Flood Zone 3
Flood Zone 2

Page 216

209

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Topography and Drainage
40

40 40

50
30

40

50
30 40
30

60
80

60
40

50

40

30
30

30 30

110
100

90

90

40

90

80
80
80
60
60
40
70
50 30

70
50
40 40 60

30

80
30

70 60

20

20
20

30

20

50
30
20
20
20 20

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce
20

20 20

20

20

30

30

20

20
20 20 20
20
20
20
20 20
20
20 20
20
20

20

30

National
Na
ti
onal
20
Watersport20
Watersports
s Centre
Centr20
e
20

30
20

30
20

20
20
30

40

20

30

30

30 30
30

40

40

20

20

20

20

20

Notts County
Notts
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe
20

20

30

20
20

20
30

60

40

50

40

40

50

50

50

70

70 60

60

50

60

40

40

30 30

40

30

50

40
40

40

40
50

50

50

50

50

50

60

50

40

40

RAF Syerston
Syerston

70

30
40

70 60

50 60

20

70

60

30 20

30

20

20
20

40
30

40

20

20

20

20

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent40

40
30

20

20

40 40

20

Colwick Coun
Colwick
Country
try Pa
Park
rk

20

60

40 50
40
40
30 40
30

50

50

30
40

20

20 20

60

50

60

60
70

90

80

90

80

50
80
70

50

50

80 7060
90

90

80
70

50
50

30

40

30

[

30
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe,
GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
30
1 of 3
Sheet 2

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
10m Contours
Flood Defences
Authorised Landfill Site
Historic Landfill Site
Flood Zone 3
Flood Zone 2

Topography and Drainage
50 40

40

50

50

40

50
40
40
20

30

50

40

20 20
20

20

40
20
20

40

50

20
20

60

40

20

20
20

50

60

40

20

50

60

70

20

30

20

Cromwell
Cromwell

20
50

40

40
40

30

3.35

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
r0ve
0 0

North Muskham
North
Bleasby
Bleasby
Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford
Lang
for0d Lowfelds
L0owfelds

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Powe
Pow
er Station
tation
70

30

20

60

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
50

60

30

20

50

40

30
30 30

20 20

Farndon
Farndon

20

20
20

20
20

20
20

0

British Sugar
British
Sugar

20 20

40

20
50

0
00

20

20

20

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

20
20

20
20

30

20
30

20

[

20
20 30
30
30
20
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe,
GeoEye,
30Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
40
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend
River Trent and other waterbodies
10m Contours
Flood Defences
Authorised Landfill Site
Historic Landfill Site
Flood Zone 3
Flood Zone 2

210

Page 217

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Tranquillity

Nottingham
Nottingham

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir
and Ma
rina
Marina

Beeston
Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

Thrumpton Hall
Thrumpton
Hall
Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
Station
Station

M1

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

Tranquillity

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Country
Colwick
Country Pa
Park
rk

National
National
Watersports
Wa
tersports Centre
Centre

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club
RAF Syerston
Syerston

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

Page 218

211

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Tranquillity

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve
North Muskham
North
Bleasby
Bleasby
Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford
Lang
ford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station
Station

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
British Sugar
British
Sugar
Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

Tranquillity

Nottingham
Nottingham

Sawley
Saw
ley W
Weir
eir
and Ma
rina
Marina

Beeston
Beeston
Attenborough
Attenborough
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve

Clifton Village
Clifton
Village

Wilford
Wilford

Thrumpton Ha
Thrumpton
Hallll
M1

Ratclife
Ra
tclife Power
Power
SStation
tation

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 1 of 3

Legend
River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

212

Page 219

Scale at A3 1:50,000

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Tranquillity

Burton Joyce
Burton
Joyce

Colwick Coun
Colwick
Country
try Pa
Park
rk

National
National
Watersports
Wa
tersports Centre
Centre

Notts
No
tts County
County
Sailing Club
Sailing
Club

Gunthorpe
Gunthorpe

RAF Syerston
Syerston

Radclife on Trent
Radclife
Trent

[
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 2 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

Tranquillity

Cromwell
Cromwell

Besthorpe
Besthorpe
Nature
Na
ture Rese
Reserve
rve
North Muskham
North
Bleasby
Bleasby
Kelham
Kelham

Fiskerton
Fiskerton

RSPB
Langford
Lang
ford Lowfelds
Lowfelds

Staythorpe
Staythorpe
Power
Pow
er Station
Station

Stoke Field
Stoke
Field
British Sugar
British
Sugar
Farndon
Farndon

Winthorpe
Winthorpe

Newark-on-Trent
Newark-on-Trent

[

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Sheet 3 of 3

Legend

Scale at A3 1:50,000

River Trent and other waterbodies
Higher Tranquillity
Lower Tranquillity
Notes:
Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0
National Tranquillity Mapping Data 2007 developed for the Campaign to Protect Rural England and Natural England by Northumbria University.
OS Licence Number 100018881

Page 220

213

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

Appendix B
Masterplan

214

Page 221

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 222

215

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

216

Page 223

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix C
Case Study Site Proposals

�SP� �an��ord �o��elds

Case Study 1a

��proved �isitor ��perience and �estination at �S�� �angford �ow�e�ds
/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGVLVDSDUWQHUVKLSSURMHFWEHWZHHQ7DUPDFDQGWKH563%VKRZFDVLQJ
ODUJHZHWODQGKDELWDWFUHDWLRQDVSDUWRIWKHUHVWRUDWLRQRIDVDQGDQGJUDYHOTXDUU\
RQWKHEDQNVRIWKH5LYHU7UHQW7KLVLVKDELWDWFUHDWLRQRQDKXJHVFDOH$VLJQL¿FDQW
IHDWXUHRIWKHUHVHUYHLVLWVUHHGEHGEXWLWDOVRKDVZLOGÀRZHUULFKPHDGRZVDUHDVRI
GHQVHWKRUQ\VFUXEDQGDVPDOOPDWXUHZRRGODQG7KLVH[SDQVLYHUHVHUYHLVLQKDELWHG
ZLWKYDULRXVVSHFLHVRIZLOGOLIHLQFOXGLQJELWWHUQVEURZQKDUHVEHDUGHGWLWVPDUVK
KDUULHUVDYRFHWVZLQWHULQJZLOGIRZODQGKDVVHDVRQDOVWDUOLQJPXUPXUDWLRQV:RUN
FDUULHGRXWGXULQJDQGDGGHGDIXUWKHUKDRIZHWODQGKDELWDWWRWKHVLWH,Q
WLPHWKLVZLOOVXFFHHGWRUHHGEHGEXWIRUWKHQH[WIHZ\HDUVZLOOSURYLGHH[FHOOHQWKDELWDW
IRUZDGLQJELUGV:LWKWKHTXDUU\VHWWRH[SDQGRYHUWKHQH[WIHZGHFDGHVWKHUHVHUYH
WRRZLOORQO\JHWELJJHU
7KHKDELWDWVDW/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGVDUHFRQVWDQWO\GHYHORSLQJDVWKHVLWHFRQWLQXHV
WRHVWDEOLVK3DUWVRIWKHVLWHKDYHRQO\MXVWEHHQUHVWRUHGDQGSURYLGHODUJHDUHDVRI
EDUHPXGVXUURXQGHGE\GHHSZDWHULQWLPHWKHVHZLOOGHYHORSLQWRUHHGEHGEXWWKLV
SURFHVVZLOOWDNHDQXPEHURI\HDUV7KHUHVHUYHLVH[SHFWHGWRH[SDQGLQVL]HRYHUWKH
QH[WIHZGHFDGHVIROORZLQJ7DUPDF¶VGHYHORSPHQWRIWKHDUHDEHWZHHQWKHZHVWRIWKH
H[LVWLQJZRUNVDQGWKHULYHU)ROORZLQJWKHSULQFLSOHVRIWKH563%%LJJHUDQG%HWWHU
GRFXPHQWWKHUHZLOOEHRSSRUWXQLWLHVWRFUHDWHPRUHUHHGEHGVFUDSHVZHWZRRGODQG
DQGSRWHQWLDOO\DQDUHDRIÀRRGSODLQZHWJUDVVODQGDQGDEUDLGHGEDFNZDWHUFKDQQHO
FRQQHFWHGWRWKH5LYHU7UHQWZKLFKZLOOEHQH¿WDQGDGGWRWKHH[LVWLQJPRVDLFRI
KDELWDWV
7RLQFUHDVHWKHRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUWKHYLVLWRUVRI/DQJIRUG/RZ¿HOGVWRREVHUYHWKHYDVW
DUHDRIUHVHUYHWKHUHLVDQDVSLUDWLRQWRFUHDWHDYLHZLQJWRZHUDQGELUGKLGHVRWKDWWKH\
ZRXOGEHDEOHWRVHHDFURVVWKHZKROHVLWHPXFKRIZKLFKLVQRWDFFHVVLEOHE\IRRWRU
YLVLEOHIURPJURXQGOHYHO,QDGGLWLRQWKHWRZHUZRXOGSURYLGHORQJGLVWDQFHYLHZVXSDQG
GRZQVWUHDPRIWKHULYHU
7KHWRZHUKLGHZRXOGVWDQGDWDURXQGPWDOODQGFRXOGEHFRQVWUXFWHGZLWKD
JDOYDQLVHGVWHHOIUDPHDQGFODGZLWKZRRGHQEDWWHQV
:KHQVWXG\LQJWKHVXUURXQGLQJFRQWH[WWKHYLVLWRUZLOOEHDEOHWRREVHUYHWKH
QHLJKERXULQJYLOODJHVDQGWKHLUWRZHULQJFKXUFKVSLUHV7KHVHVSLUHVDUHYLVXDOPDUNHUV
ZLWKLQWKHLPPHGLDWHFRQWH[WVLWWLQJWDOOZLWKLQDIDLUO\OHYHODQGORZO\LQJODQGVFDSH

Concept design for observation tower and hide

Page 224

217

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Concept design for observation tower and hide

:LWKWKHVSLUHVEHLQJVRSURPLQHQWZLWKLQWKHODQGVFDSHWKH
DUFKLWHFWXUDOYLVLRQORRNVWRWDNHLQVSLUDWLRQIURPWKHVHODQGPDUNVDQG
EHFRPHDFRQWHPSRUDU\DGGLWLRQWRWKHODQGVFDSH
%\PDSSLQJRXWNH\YLHZVWKDWVXUURXQGWKHPDUVKODQGVRSSRUWXQLWLHV
IURPYLHZLQJGHFNVZHUHGLVFRYHUHGGHFLSKHULQJWKHVLWXDWLRQDQG
GLUHFWLQJWKHSRVLWLRQRIWKHORRNRXWVZLWKLQWKHVWUXFWXUH$VHULHVRI
GLUHFWLRQDOODQGLQJVZHUHGHYHORSHGZLWKDPLQGWRRSHQXSWKHVWUXFWXUH
WRKLJKOLJKWDQGIUDPHNH\YLHZV7KHODQGLQJVKDYHEHHQGHYHORSHG
WRORRNRXWSULPDULO\RYHUWKH5LYHU7UHQWWRWKHZHVWRIWKHVLWHWKH
QHLJKERXULQJYLOODJHVDQGWKHLPPHGLDWHPDUVKODQGUHVHUYH

:KDWPLJKWLWFRVW"
2EVHUYDWLRQWRZHUELUGKLGH
6WHHOIUDPHWLPEHUFODGGLQJ





3UHOLPLQDULHV#
&RQWLQJHQF\#




 
 

Total




£221,760

%\RSHQLQJXSWKHVWUXFWXUHZLWKLQWKHVHVSHFL¿FDUHDVYLVLWRUVZLOOEH
HQFRXUDJHGWRSDUWDNHRQDMRXUQH\XSWKURXJKWKHVWUXFWXUHSDVWHDFK
YDQWDJHSRLQWXQWLOPDNLQJWKHLUZD\WRWKHWRSZKHUHWKH\ZLOO¿QGD
VHPLVKHOWHUHGGHFNZLWKDSDQRUDPLFYLHZ7KHWRSGHFNSURYLGHVDQ
DUHDRIVKHOWHUDQGDQXQFRYHUHGDUHDWRZDWFKELUGVRYHUKHDG
%\WDNLQJLQVSLUDWLRQIURPNH\YLHZVFRQWH[WDQGWKHORFDOVSLUHV
WKHGHVLJQVHHVDKROLVWLFDSSURDFKWRJHQHUDWHDNH\ODQGPDUNZLWK
DUFKLWHFWXUDOPHULWWRDGGWRWKLVODQGVFDSHIRUWKH563%DQGLWVYLVLWRUV
WRHQMR\

Current extents of the site. It is anticipated that the
site will extend towards the river in coming years.
7KHFRVWDERYHLVDQLQGLFDWLYHSULFHIRUEXGJHWDU\SXUSRVHVEDVHG
RQDFRQFHSWGHVLJQ,WLQFOXGHVPDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ$¿QDO
FRVWZRXOGEHUDWL¿HGIROORZLQJGHWDLOGHVLJQDQGWHQGHU

Views across the reserve

218

Page 225

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Case Study 1b

Improved Visitor Experience and Destination at Colwick Country Park
&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUNLVDDFUHVZRRGODQGJUDVVODQGDQGODNHORFDWHGZLWKLQ
WKHRXWVNLUWVRI1RWWLQJKDPLWLVRZQHGDQGPDQDJHGE\1RWWLQJKDP&LW\&RXQFLO
DQGDWWUDFWVYLVLWRUVIURPWKHFLW\DQGIXUWKHUD¿HOG,QDGGLWLRQWRKRVWLQJHYHQWV
VXFKDVZHHNO\3DUNUXQV RYHUUXQQHUV DQGWKHDQQXDOµ'HWRQDWHIHVWLYDO¶
ZKLFKDWWUDFWVDURXQGYLVLWRUVWKHUHLVDOVRDQDGYHQWXUHFHQWUHWKDW
ZRUNVZLWKVFKRROVLQWKHFLW\DQGDFURVVWKHFRXQW\RIIHULQJKLJKURSHFOLPELQJ
ZDWHUEDVHGDFWLYLWLHVDQGDVXPPHUFDPSSURJUDPPH7KH3DUNKROGVRXWGRRU
¿OPVKRZVDQGKRVWVUHOLJLRXVIHVWLYDOV%RWKDWWUDFWLQJKXQGUHGVRISHRSOH2WKHU
DWWUDFWLRQVLQFOXGHRSHQZDWHUVZLPPLQJPRGHOERDWFOXEDQJOLQJDQGDZLOGOLIH
JURXS5LYHUWULSVDUHUXQIURPWKHDGMDFHQW0DULQD
7KHORFDOFDWFKPHQWDUHDIRUWKHSDUNLVPDGHXSRISUHGRPLQDQWO\RI$VLDQDQG
(DVWHUQ(XURSHDQFRPPXQLWLHV+RXVLQJLVPDLQO\WHUUDFHGSURSHUWLHVZLWKQR
JDUGHQVRUJUHHQVSDFHPDNLQJWKHSDUNDYLWDOFRPPXQLW\UHVRXUFH
7KHSDUNDWWUDFWVKLJKQXPEHUVRIYLVLWRUVDQGLVWKHRQO\3DUNLQWKH1RWWLQJKDP
GLVWULFWZKHUH%%4VFDQEHKHOGLQWKHVXPPHU
,WKDVEHHQSURSRVHGWKDWWKH&RXQWU\3DUNORRNVWRGHYHORSKRZLWHQJDJHVZLWK
LWVYLVLWRUVDQGFRPPXQLW\WKURXJKWKHGHVLJQRIDEUDQGQHZYLVLWRUHGXFDWLRQ
FHQWUHDQGFDIHDQGWKURXJKWKHLPSURYHPHQWRIWKHH[LVWLQJIDFLOLWLHV
7KHFHQWUHZRXOGEHPXOWLIXQFWLRQDOSURYLGLQJDFHQWUHIRUHGXFDWLRQDVSDFH
WRWHOOWKHVWRU\RIWKH5LYHU7UHQWLQWHUPVRILWVQDWXUDOKHULWDJHDQGLWVKLVWRULF
IHDWXUHVDQGDUFKLWHFWXUHDQGFRXOGEHDYDLODEOHIRUKLUHDVDQHYHQWVVSDFH

Colwick Country Park

+ROPH6OXLFHVDGMDFHQWWR&ROZLFN&RXQWU\3DUNLVDQ(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\DVVHW
ZKLFKFRQWUROVZDWHUOHYHOVRQWKH5LYHU7UHQW7KHDVVHWIRUPVWKHODUJHVWVLQJOH
UHVWULFWLRQWR¿VKSDVVDJHRQWKH5LYHU7UHQW7KH($LVFXUUHQWO\GHVLJQLQJRQH
RIWKHODUJHVW¿VKSDVVHVWRE\SDVVWKHVOXLFHV7KH¿VKSDVVZLOOSURYLGHDGGHG
LQWHUHVWIRUYLVLWRUVWRWKHSDUNSURYLGLQJWKHPZLWKWKHDELOLW\WRREVHUYH¿VK
SDVVLQJDWFORVHTXDUWHUVDQGIRFXVLQRQWKHHQYLURQPHQWDQGZLOGOLIHLQWKHDUHD
,WLVKRSHGWKDWWKH¿VKSDVVZLOOEHDQDGGHGDWWUDFWLRQWREULQJSHRSOHWRWKH
&RXQWU\3DUNYLVLWRUFHQWUHZKHUHWKH\FDQEHHGXFDWHGDERXWDQGEHEURXJKW
GLUHFWO\LQWRXFKZLWKWKHHFRORJ\DQGZLOGOLIHRIWKHULYHU
7KHYLVLWRUFHQWUHFRXOGEHVLWHGDWVHYHUDOORFDWLRQVWKURXJKRXWWKHVLWHEXWLQLWLDO

VWXGLHVVXJJHVWDIDYRXUDEOHORFDWLRQZRXOGEHHLWKHUQHDUWKHH[LVWLQJHQWUDQFHDQGFDUSDUNWRH[SORLWH[LVWLQJVHUYLFHV
DQGSDUNLQJRUDGMDFHQWWRWKHQHZ¿VKSDVVORFDWLRQWRSURYLGHDIRFDOSRLQWDFURVVWKHODNHZKHQHQWHULQJWKHVLWHIURP
WKHURDGDFFHVV
7KHDUFKLWHFWXUDOHVVHQFHWRWKHVFKHPHVHHVDMHWWLQJVKHGOLNHVWUXFWXUHVOLSSLQJRXWWRZDUGVWKHODNH7KHH[R
VNHOHWRQVWUXFWXUHKROGVKRVWWRGHFNHGDUHDVIRUWKHRSSRUWXQLW\RIDZLGHUDQJHRIXVHOLNHSRQGGLSSLQJSODWIRUPVWRWKH
H[WHUQDOFDIpSDWLR:LWKWKHVWUXFWXUHµÀRDWLQJRXWIURPWKHVKRUH¶VROLGVSDWLDOPDVVHVUHPDLQSUHVHQWRQODQGWRKRVWD
ZLGHUDQJHRIIXQFWLRQVOLNHJDOOHU\VSDFHVDQGHGXFDWLRQDOURRPV7KHYLVLWRUFHQWUHKXEKDVEHHQGHVLJQHGLQPLQGRI
EHLQJDSODFHRIOHDUQLQJDQGUHFUHDWLRQDQGFROOHFWLYHO\IRUWKHFRPPXQLW\:LWKFDIpIDFLOLWLHVDORQJVLGHWKHHGXFDWLRQDO
URRPVDQGVPDOOJDOOHU\VSDFHVWKHKXEZLOODOORZYLVLWRUVDQGWKHFRPPXQLW\WROHDUQDERXWWKHKLVWRU\RIWKH5LYHU7UHQW
ZLWKWKHRSSRUWXQLW\WRUHOD[DQGWDNHWKHVFHQHU\LQRYHUWKHSDUN¶VODNH

Page 226

219

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Concept design for Visitor Centre

,W¶VSRWHQWLDOSRVLWLRQWRZDUGVWKHVRXWKHDVWHUO\FRUQHURIWKHODNHOLQNVWKHYLVLWRUFHQWUHZLWKWKHSURSRVHG
¿VKSDVV7KLVJLYHVRSSRUWXQLW\IRUYLVLWRUVWRH[SORUHDQGOHDUQDERXWWKH¿VKSDVVJDLQLQJDIXUWKHULQVLJKW
LQWRQRWRQO\WKH5LYHU7UHQW¶VSDVWEXWLWVIXWXUHWRR7KHYLVLWRUFHQWUHFRXOGEHDFDWDO\VWIRUHQFRXUDJHPHQW
RIHQJDJHPHQWZLWKFRPPXQLWLHVDQGWKHULYHUWKURXJKLQWHUSUHWDWLYHDQGHQJDJHPHQWSURJUDPPHVGXULQJ
WKHSURSRVHGGHVLJQSURFHVV

:KDWPLJKWLWFRVW"
9LVLWRU&HQWUH P 
WLPEUHIUDPHLQVXODWHGPHWDO
FODGGLQJSDQHOVRUJOD]LQJ





3UHOLPLQDULHV#
&RQWLQJHQF\#




 
 

Total




£3,990,000

Existing entrance and
potential site for visitor
centre
Alternative site for visitor
centre

�ite for ne� �s� pass

7KHFRVWDERYHLVDQLQGLFDWLYHSULFHIRUEXGJHWDU\SXUSRVHVEDVHG
RQDFRQFHSWGHVLJQ,WLQFOXGHVPDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ$¿QDO
FRVWZRXOGEHUDWL¿HGIROORZLQJGHWDLOGHVLJQDQGWHQGHU

220

Page 227

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Case Study 2

Provision of Improved Access and Interpretation
Within Attenborough Nature Reserve
$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH5HVHUYHLVRQHRIWKHPRVWLPSRUWDQWVLWHVIRUZLOGOLIHLQWKH(DVW
0LGODQGV7KH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH:LOGOLIH7UXVW 1:7 KDYHPDQDJHGWKHVLWHXQGHU
OLFHQFHIURPDQGLQSDUWQHUVKLSZLWKWKHRZQHUV&HPH[8.VLQFH,WZDVWKH¿UVW
ZLOGOLIH7UXVWUHVHUYHLQ1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
7KHVLWHH[WHQGVWRRYHUKHFWDUHVRIKDELWDWDQGDFWVDVDFDWDO\VWWRFRQQHFW
SHRSOHDQGZLOGOLIH7KH7UXVWDQGLWVYROXQWHHUVZRUNWRUHVWRUHDQGFUHDWHQDWXUDO
KDELWDWVDQGPDLQWDLQDFFHVVDQGIDFLOLWLHVIRUWKHEHQH¿WRIZLOGOLIHDQGYLVLWRUVDOLNH
'XHWRWKH7UXVW¶VLQWHUYHQWLRQZLWKWKHVXSSRUWRIWKHSXEOLFWKHVLWHZDVVDYHGIURP
EHLQJGHYHORSHGDVDODQG¿OOIRUµGXPSDVK¶IURPWKHORFDOFRDO¿UHGSRZHUVWDWLRQ
7KLVZRXOGKDYHUHVXOWHGLQWKHORVVRIDVLJQL¿FDQWUHVRXUFHWRERWKQDWXUHDQGWKH
FRPPXQLW\
)URPLWVHDUO\GD\VWKHVLWHFORVHO\VLWXDWHGWRWKHFLW\KDVEHHQSRSXODUIRUELUG
ZDWFKLQJ¿VKLQJDQGZDONLQJZLWKURXWHVHVWDEOLVKHGDURXQGWKHODJRRQVDQG
PDLQWHQDQFHFDUULHGRXWE\YROXQWHHUJURXSV

,PSURYHPHQWVLQLWLDOO\UHTXLUHGDUH
 ([WHQGWKHYLVLWRUFHQWUHLQLWVFXUUHQWORFDWLRQDQGGHYHORSWKHDUHDDURXQGWKHYLVLWRU
&HQWUHDFFHVVEULGJHWRFUHDWHDQLPSURYHGIDFLOLW\IRUYLVLWRUVWRVLWSLFQLFREVHUYH
ZLOGOLIHDQGIRUHGXFDWLRQLQWHUSUHWDWLRQLQIRUPDWLRQ
 ([WHQGWKHQHWZRUNRIIRRWSDWKVWRWKHVRRQWREHFUHDWHGUHHGEHGDUHDDQGLPSURYH
VXUIDFLQJRIH[LVWLQJURXWHVWRSURYLGHPRUHDFFHVVWRDZLGHUYLVLWRUEDVH
 3URYLGHVLJQDJHDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQDURXQGWKHVLWHWRLPSURYHWKHOHJLELOLW\DQG
LQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKHZLOGOLIHURXWHVDQGWUDLOV
 &UHDWLRQRIUHHGEHGQHDUWKHYLVLWRUFHQWUH

,QWKH$WWHQERURXJK1DWXUH&HQWUHZDVRSHQHGRQWKHVLWH7KLVKRXVHVIDFLOLWLHV
LQFOXGLQJPHHWLQJURRPVHGXFDWLRQIDFLOLWLHVLQWHUDFWLYHGLVSOD\VDQDWXUHVKRSDQGD
FDIp
:KLOVWUHFRJQLVHGDVDQLPSRUWDQWUHVRXUFHIRUQDWXUHDQGWKHFRPPXQLW\LWKDVEHHQ
GLI¿FXOWWRUDLVHIXQGVIRULPSURYHPHQWVDQGH[WHQVLRQEHFDXVHWKHWUXVWGLGQRWRZQ
WKHVLWHDQGFRXOGQRWJXDUDQWHHLWVIXWXUH7KHYLVLWRUFHQWUHZDVGHVLJQHGWRFRSHZLWK
YLVLWRUVD\HDUEXWWKLVQRZH[FHHGV
5HFHQWO\WKH1:7VXFFHVVIXOO\UDQDIXQGUDLVLQJFDPSDLJQWREX\WKHVLWHIURP&HPH[
8.%HIRUHYDFDWLQJWKHVLWH&HPH[ZLOOEHUHPRYLQJWKHUHPQDQWVRILWVLQIUDVWUXFWXUH
DQGZRUNLQJZLWKWKH(QYLURQPHQW$JHQF\ZLOOEHFUHDWLQJDQDUHDRIUHHGEHGWRZDUGV
WKHQRUWKHUQHQGRIWKHVLWHZKHUHLWSUHYLRXVO\GLVSDWFKHGDJJUHJDWHVYLDUDLO
1RZWKDWWKHIXWXUHRIWKHVLWHKDVEHHQVHFXUHG1:7FDQSODQIRUWKHIXWXUHDQGWKH
LPSURYHPHQWVUHTXLUHGWRDFFRPPRGDWHWKHLQFUHDVLQJOHYHORIYLVLWRUVDVZHOODV
SURYLGLQJDEHWWHUYLVLWRUH[SHULHQFH

Page 228

221

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Concept design for picnic/education area

Final area of reinstatement
to create new reed bed
habitat
Proposed site for visitor
centre over�ow and outdoor
education area

Existing visitor centre to be
extended

Proposed area for reed bed
development adjacent to
visitor centre

:KDWPLJKWLWFRVW"

Picnic/outdoor education area
6LWHFOHDUDQFH P 

6HOIELQGLQJJUDYHODUDH P 
5HVLQERXQGJUDYHODUHD P 
3DYHGSDWKWR9LVLWRUFHQWUH P 
7HJXODVW\OHEORFNVUDQGRPVL]H
.HUEVHGJLQJ P  


 



 

Furniture

Rates for footpath and interpretation improvements

6HUSHQWLQHVW\OHEHQFKHV PORQJ [  
7LPEUHVWHHOEHQFKHV PORQJ [
 
3LFQLFEHQFKHV[



,QWHUSUHWDWLRQLQIRUPDWLRQGLVSOD\
 
3UHOLPLQDULHV# 


&RQWLQJHQF\#




)RRWSDWK6HOIELQGLQJJUDYHOPZLGH
WLPEUHHGJH SHUP 

 
)RRWSDWKWDUPDFPZLGH
QDUURZFRQFUHWHNHUE SHUP 

,QWHUSUHWDWLRQERDUG HDFK 

 
%DVLFZRRGHQEHQFK HDFK 

 

Total

£221,760

7KHFRVWDERYHLVDQLQGLFDWLYHSULFHIRUEXGJHWDU\SXUSRVHVEDVHGRQDFRQFHSWGHVLJQ,WLQFOXGHVPDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ$¿QDOFRVWZRXOGEHUDWL¿HGIROORZLQJGHWDLOGHVLJQDQGWHQGHU

222

Page 229

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Case Study 3

Habitat Creation in the Flood Plain
7KHODQGVFDSHVWUXFWXUHZLWKLQWKHÀRRGSODLQDIIHFWV
• 7KHYLVXDODSSHDUDQFHDQGKRZLWLVSHUFHLYHGE\WKHORFDOFRPPXQLW\DQGYLVLWRUV
• 7KHFKDUDFWHURIWKHDUHD
• +RZWKHULYHULVDFFHVVDQGXVHG
• 7KHQDWXUDOSURFHVVHVDQGHFRORJ\RIWKHULYHU
• 7KHDELOLW\RIWKHDUHDWRFRSHZLWKÀRRGLQJDQGGURXJKW
• 7KHDELOLW\RIWKHDUHDWRDFFRPPRGDWHFOLPDWHFKDQJH
• 7KHDELOLW\WRSURYLGHVXVWDLQDEOHGUDLQDJHV\VWHPVWKDWFDQDIIHFWODQGGRZQVWUHDP

7KH5LYHU7UHQWDVLWÀRZVWKURXJKWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\KDVFKDQJHGFRXUVHDQGFKDUDFWHU
RYHUWLPHGXHWRQDWXUDOSURFHVVHVEXWDOVRGXHWRKXPDQDFWLYLW\7KHULYHUDQGODQGKDV
EHHQDGDSWHGIRUWUDQVSRUWDVDVRXUFHRISRZHUIRUIDUPLQJDVDVRXUFHRIPLQHUDOVDQGIRU
UHFUHDWLRQ&RQVHTXHQWO\PXFKRIWKHQDWXUDOKDELWDWKDVEHHQORVWGXHWRHQJLQHHUHGULYHU
EDQNVULYHUFRXUVHGLYHUVLRQVODQGFOHDUDQFHIRUIDUPLQJEXLOGLQJGHYHORSPHQWDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
RIULYHUGHIHQFHVWRSURWHFWSURSHUW\

© Copyright Simon Mortimer

New Woodland Creation planted approximately 25 years ago on agricultural
land
$FURVVWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\WKHUHDUHPDQ\RSSRUWXQLWLHVWRUHLQVWDWHWKHKDELWDWVWKDWKDYH
EHHQORVWDQGWRHQODUJHDQGMRLQXSWKRVHDUHDVWKDWVWLOOH[LVW
7KHWKUHHSULQFLSOHKDELWDWW\SHVWKDWKDYHEHHQLGHQWL¿HGIRUDWWHQWLRQDUH
• :HWODQGFRPSULVLQJRIRSHQZHWODQGIHDWXUHVJUDVVODQGDQGRUZRRGODQG
• :RRGODQGDQGKHGJHURZV
• *UDVVODQG

© Copyright Alan Reid

7KH7UHQW*DWHZD\PDVWHUSODQLGHQWL¿HVWKHNH\DUHDVZKHUHKDELWDWFUHDWLRQZRXOGEH
EHQH¿FLDO)XUWKHURSSRUWXQLWLHVDQGJUDQXODULW\FDQEHIRXQGLQWKH1RWWLQJKDPVKLUH
%LRGLYHUVLW\$FWLRQ3ODQ

Example of wet woodland

Page 230

223

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Large Scale tree planting

2QFHODUJHVFDOHWUHHSODQWLQJVWDUWVWRPDWXUHLWSURYLGHVPXOWLSOHEHQH¿WVLQFOXGLQJ
• 1DWXUDOKDELWDWIRUZLOGOLIH
• 1DWXUDOÀRRGPDQDJHPHQW 1)0 WKURXJKVWRUDJHRIZDWHURQWKHÀRRGSODLQZKLFKZLOO
EHQH¿WODQGDQGSHRSOHIXUWKHUGRZQVWUHDP
• &DUERQVHTXHVWUDWLRQ7KHDPRXQWRIFDUERQVHTXHVWHUHGYDULHVRQWKHWUHHVSHFLHV
DJHDQGFRQGLWLRQEXWRQHWUHHFRXOGVHTXHVWHUDURXQGMXVWXQGHULE .J RYHU
\HDUV
• 3URGXFWLRQRIVXVWDLQDEOHEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOV
7KHW\SHRIZRRGODQGFUHDWHGVKRXOGEHWDLORUHGWRWKHVSHFL¿FVLWHFRQGLWLRQV:KHUHFRQGLWLRQV
SHUPLWWKHFUHDWLRQRIZHWZRRGODQGZRXOGEHGHVLUDEOHDVWKLVW\SHRIZRRGODQGKDVJUHDWO\
GHFUHDVHGLQUHFHQWWLPHVDQGLVFRQVLGHUHGDWKUHDWHQHGKDELWDW

Reinstatement of hedgerows and use of hedgerows to connect
areas of scrub and woodland

© Copyright Jonathan Wilkins

Example of wet grassland
0XFKRIWKHODQGLGHQWL¿HGLVRZQHGE\SULYDWHODQGRZQHUV7KHLUEX\LQDQGFRRSHUDWLRQZLOOEH
NH\WRWKHVXFFHVVRIUHDOLVLQJWKHYLVLRQDQGREMHFWLYHVRIWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\0DQ\ODQGRZQHUV
ZLOODOUHDG\EHFDUU\LQJRXWHQYLURQPHQWDOHQKDQFHPHQWWKURXJKVWHZDUGVKLSVFKHPHVRUVLPLODU
LQLWLDWLYHV7KURXJKWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\REMHFWLYHVWKHSDUWQHUVKLSZLOOORRNWRKHOSMRLQXSH[LVWLQJ
LQLWLDWLYHVDQGHQFRXUDJHPRUHFKDOOHQJLQJWDUJHWVVRWKDWWKHVXPRIWKHSDUWVLVJUHDWHUWKDQ
WKHZKROH$GGLWLRQDOO\WKHUHPD\EHRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRUODQGWREHSXUFKDVHGWRFUHDWHODUJHUDUHDV
RIKDELWDWDQGFDUU\RXWPRUHGUDPDWLFLQWHUYHQWLRQVVXFKDVFUHDWLRQRIZLOGOLIHVLWHVZKLFKZLOO
SURYLGHUHVLOLHQFHWRHFRORJLFDOFRPPXQLWLHVDQGLQFUHDVHELRGLYHUVLW\

:KHUHKHGJHURZVKDYHEHHQUHPRYHGRUKDYHEHFRPHJDSSHGRYHUWLPHUHLQVWDWHPHQWFDQ
SURYLGHOLQHDUJUHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUHZKLFKZLOOEHQH¿WLQVHFWVELUGVDQGPDPPDOVSURYLGLQJ
WKHPZLWKQHVWLQJIHHGLQJUHVWLQJSURWHFWLRQDQGFRPPXWLQJURXWHV:KHUHKHGJHURZVFDQ
OLQNH[LVWLQJDUHDVRIYHJHWDWLRQVXFKDVVFUXEDQGZRRGODQGWKHYDOXHEHFRPHVHYHQJUHDWHU
*HQHUDOO\FRPSOHWLQJUHLQVWDWLQJKHGJHURZVZLOOPDNHOLWWOHGLIIHUHQFHWRWKHSURGXFWLYLW\RIWKH
ODQGEXWZLOOGRPXFKWRLQFUHDVHWKHELRGLYHUVLW\DQGKDELWDWYDOXHRIWKHODQG

2SSRUWXQLWLHVZLOOLQFOXGH
• /DUJHVFDOHWUHHSODQWLQJ
• 5HLQVWDWHPHQWRIKHGJHURZVDQGXVHRIKHGJHURZVWRFRQQHFWDUHDVRIVFUXEDQG
ZRRGODQG
• 1DWXUDOKDELWDWIHDWXUHVEHWZHHQÀRRGSURWHFWLRQVWUXFWXUHVDQGWKHULYHUEDQN
• 5HLQVWDWHPHQWRIYHJHWDWLRQDORQJWKHULYHUEDQNHGJH
• &UHDWLRQRIJUDVVYHJHWDWHGPDUJLQVRQSDVWRUDO¿HOGVWRUHGXFHEDQNHURVLRQDQGLPSURYH
KDELWDWFRQQHFWLYLW\
• &UHDWLRQRIJUDVVYHJHWDWHGPDUJLQVDORQJKHGJHURZVDQGERXQGDULHVRQDUDEOH¿HOGV
© Copyright Evelyn Simak

Example of native hedgerow

�atural habitat creation between �ood protection structures and the
river bank

Creation of grass/vegetated margins on pastoral �elds to
reduce bank erosion and improve habitat connectivity

%DFNZDWHUVSURYLGHDYDOXDEOHKDELWDWIRU¿VKGXULQJWKHLUGHYHORSPHQWE\FUHDWLQJORZÀRZDUHDV
UHTXLUHGE\VPDOO¿VKDQGIU\IRUUHVWLQJDZD\IURPWKHPDLQÀRZRIWKHULYHU

Creation of grass/vegetated margins along hedgerows and
boundaries in arable �elds

&RQVWUXFWLRQRIÀRRGSURWHFWLRQIHDWXUHVDORQJWKH5LYHU7UHQWKDYHGRQHPXFKWRSURWHFWSURSHUW\
DQGSHRSOH+RZHYHULQVRPHFDVHVWKHVWUXFWXUHVKDYHOHIWDUHDVRI¿HOGLVRODWHGDQGODUJHO\
XQXVDEOHRULQHI¿FLHQWIRUIDUPLQJ0DQ\RIWKHVHDUHDVZRXOGEHVXLWDEOHIRUFUHDWLRQRIZHWODQG
IHDWXUHVVXFKDVVFUDSHVEDFNZDWHUDQGZRRGODQG

,QDGGLWLRQWRYHJHWDWLQJWKHULYHUEDQNWKHYHJHWDWLRQRIDPVWULSRIODQGFDQJUHDWO\
LQFUHDVHKDELWDWSURYLVLRQDQGFRQQHFWLYLW\SDUWLFXODUO\ZKHQLWFRQQHFWVKHGJHURZVRUDUHDV
RIZRRGODQG9HJHWDWLRQFDQEHZLOGÀRZHUVVFUXESODQWLQJWUHHSODQWLQJRUDFRPELQDWLRQ
7KHURRWV\VWHPVZLOODFWWRUHWDLQWKHULYHUEDQNDQGUHGXFHQLWUDWHUXQRII

$PZLGHPDUJLQDORQJKHGJHURZVDQG¿HOGERXQGDULHVFDQJUHDWO\LQFUHDVHWKHELRGLYHUVLW\
RIWKHKHGJHURZE\DOORZLQJDULFKXQGHUVWRUH\WRGHYHORSZKLFKLQWXUQZLOOHQFRXUDJHD
ZLGHUUDQJHRILQVHFWVDQGELUGVWRFRORQLVHWKHKHGJH7KHPDUJLQSURYLGHVDEXIIHUWR
SURWHFWWKHKHGJHIURPWKHDSSOLFDWLRQRIKHUELFLGHVDQGSHVWLFLGHV

© Copyright Shaun Ferguson

Backwater of the River Great Ouse

© Copyright Trevor Harris

:HWE\SDVVFKDQQHOVFDQEHFUHDWHGZKLFKFDQEHSHUPDQHQWO\FRQQHFWHGWRWKHULYHUFKDQQHO
RUUHVWULFWHGWRZKHQZDWHULVDWKLJKHUOHYHOV7KHVHFKDQQHOVFDQHQDEOHDGLYHUVLW\RIKDELWDWWR
GHYHORS

Reinstatement of vegetation along the river bank

/RQJVWUHWFKHVRIWKHULYHUKDYHOLWWOHRUQRYHJHWDWLRQDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKHULYHUEDQN$UHDVRIWKH
EDQNQHHGWREHNHSWFOHDUIRUPDLQWHQDQFHSXUSRVHVKRZHYHUWKHODFNRIYHJHWDWLRQFDQUHVXOW
LQJUDGXDOHURVLRQRIWKHEDQN3ODQWLQJDORQJWKHEDQNFDQSURYLGHVWDELOLVDWLRQLQDGGLWLRQWR
HQKDQFLQJWKHHFRORJLFDOKDELWDW2YHUKDQJLQJYHJHWDWLRQSURYLGHVSURWHFWLRQDQGVKDGHIRU¿VK
$GGLWLRQDOO\LQDUHDVRILQWHQVHIDUPLQJDYHJHWDWHGVWULSDORQJWKHULYHUFDQUHGXFHQLWUDWHUXQRIIIURP
WKH¿HOGV

224

�ild �owers in the �eld margin of an arable �eld

Grassland creation

0XFKRIWKHUXUDOODQGZLWKLQWKH7UHQW*DWHZD\LVVSHFLHVSRRUSDVWXUHRUDJULFXOWXUDO¿HOG
2SSRUWXQLWLHVWKURXJKRXWWKHDUHDDUHSUHVHQWWRFUHDWHQHZVSHFLHVULFKJUDVVODQGVDQG
PHDGRZVZKLFKDUHQDWLRQDOO\FRQVLGHUHGWREHKDELWDWVXQGHUWKUHDWDQGWKHUHIRUHDSULRULW\
,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHHFRORJLFDODQGJHQHUDOHQYLURQPHQWDOEHQH¿WVWKHHQKDQFHPHQWDQG
FUHDWLRQRI%OXH*UHHQLQIUDVWUXFWXUHRQWKHÀRRGSODLQVZLOODOVRFUHDWHQHZYLVWDVLQWKH
ODQGVFDSHSRWHQWLDOO\HQKDQFLQJWKHYDOXHRIWKHDUHDGUDZLQJLQYLVLWRUVIURPWKHZLGHUDUHD
DQGFRQWULEXWLQJWRWKHDUHD¶VHFRQRP\

Page 231

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Example of lack of vegetation along river bank leading to gradual
erosion of the bank

Example of pasture extending to waters edge - potential nitrates run-o�
into watercourse with limited biodiversity and habitat

Example of historic hedgerow gapped over time that would bene�t from
gapping up to increase connectivity and biodiversity

Long extents of engineerd river bank - low biodiversity and diminished
habitat

�emnant �eld isolated by �ood defen�e

Long extents of engineerd river bank - low biodiversity and diminished
habitat

:KDWPLJKWLWFRVW"
Indicative rates for large scale environmental enhancement
0L[HGQDWLYHKHGJHURZSODQWLQJ
'RXEOHURZJXDUGVSODQWHG SHUP 

 

1DWLYHZRRGODQGSODQWLQJ
PFHQWUHVJXDUGVSODQWHG SHU+D





:LOGÀRZHUPHDGRZVHHGLQJ
&XOWLYDWLRQDQGVHHGLQJ SHU+D



 

6WDQGDUG1DWLYHWUHHSODQWLQJ
FPJLUWKFPVLQJOHVWDNH HDFK
4XHUFXVUREXU 2DN  


%HWXODSHQGXOD %LUFK  


3UXQXVDYLXP &KHUU\  







5LYHUEDFNZDWHUFUHDWLRQ
DVVXPHVPFKDQQHOPZLGHPGHHS
DULVLQJVUHWDLQHGRQVLWH 

 

Page 232

7KHVHFRVWVDUHSURYLGHGDVDQLQGLFDWLYHSULFHIRUEXGJHWDU\
SXUSRVHVDQGZRXOGYDU\DFFRUGLQJWRTXDQWLW\JURXQGFRQGL
WLRQVSODQWLQJVSHFL¿FDWLRQDQGDFFHVV
7KHFRVWVGRQRWLQFOXGH
• 'HVLJQ
• 6XUYH\DQGDUFKDHRORJLFDOLQYHVWLJDWLRQV
• 3ODQQLQJFRQFHQW
• 3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
• 0DLQWHQDQFH

225

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

Appendix D
Long and Short Term Actions

226

Page 233

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Long and Short Term Actions
The following actions have been compiled based on the outputs of workshops and meetings of
the Trent Gateway Working Group and contributions from the Working Group Partners. It is not
intended that this should be a definitive list but is a snap shot in time of a range of actions that would
contribute to delivery of the Trent Gateway Vision and Strategic Objectives.
Each action is shown with an indicative cost range as follows:
££££
£££
££
£

>£1million
>£500k
>£100k
<£100k

Key to Lead Partners:
AT – Angling Trust
CRT – Canal & River Trust
EA – Environment Agency
LA – Local Authority
LEP – Local Enterprise Partnership
Notts BAG – Biodiversity Action Group
NTU – Nottingham Trent University
NWT – Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust
RSPB – Royal Society for the Protection of Birds
TRT – Trent Rivers Trust

Short Term Projects (1-5 years)

Page 234

227

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Short Term Projects (1-5 years)

Short Term Projects (1-5 years)

228

Page 235

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Short Term Projects (1-5 years)

Medium Term Projects (5-10 years)

Page 236

229

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Medium Term Projects (5-10 years)

Long Term Projects (10-20+ years)

230

Page 237

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.

Appendix E
References

Page 238

231

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

References

Environment Agency eMission2030
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/environment-agency-sets-net-zero-emissions-aim

Additional photographs curtesy of:

Environment Agency 5 Year Action Plan EA2025

© Copyright Simon Mortimer and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/2390354

D2N2 Strategic Economic Plan-Vision 2030
http://www.d2n2lep.org/SEP

© Copyright Jonathan Wilkins and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/2977442

‘A Green Future’ DEFRA 25 Year Environment Plan
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/
file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf

© Copyright Alan Reid and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/5850709

Nottinghamshire Local Biodiversity Action Plan (2nd Edition July 2018)
National Character Area 48: Trent and Belvoir Vales to the north
National Character Area NCA 69 Trent Valley Washlands to the south
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-character-area-profiles-data-for-local-decisionmaking/national-character-area-profiles
Nottinghamshire Rights of Way Management Plan (ROWMP) 2018-2026
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/media/129245/rightsofwaymanagementplan20182026.pdf

© Copyright Evelyn Simak and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/4512456
© Copyright Shaun Ferguson and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/2176241
© Copyright Trevor Harris and licensed for reuse under this Creative Commons Licence.
https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/5469820

The ‘Bigger and Better’ vision - published by the RSPB
http://ww2.rspb.org.uk/Images/biggerandbetter_tcm9-401346.pdf
Nottinghamshire Landscape Guidelines 1997 - Nottingham County Council / Countryside Commission
Trent Valley Landscapes: the archaeology of 500,000 years of change
https://g.co/kgs/kJBQyN
Trent Valley Palaeolithic Project
https://www.dur.ac.uk/research/directory/view/?mode=project&id=286
Trent Valley Geoarchaeology
https://web.archive.org/web/20061014194100/http://www.tvg.bham.ac.uk/
Historic aggregate extraction
https://archaeologydataservice.ac.uk/archives/view/aitv_eh_2007/
Nottinghamshire LWS Handbook
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/media/2322555/notts-lws-handbook-part-1-draft-july-2018.pdf

232

Page 239

Appendix 3

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

© Environment Agency 2020
All rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.
All photographs taken by Atkins unless otherwise noted.

Page 240

233

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 4

Environment and
Climate Change
Committee
November 2019

234

Page 241

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 242

235

Appendix 4

236

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 243

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 244

237

Appendix 4

238

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 245

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 246

239

Appendix 4

240

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 247

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 248

241

Appendix 4

242

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 249

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 250

243

Appendix 4

244

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 251

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 252

245

Appendix 4

246

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 253

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 254

247

Appendix 4

248

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 255

Appendix 4

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Page 256

249

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 5

Green Futures
Resource Pack

250

Page 257

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures

A climate change resource
pack for Community Groups

www.broxtowe.gov.uk
Page 258

251

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures - A climate change resource pack for Community Groups

Overview
Climate Change is one of the most important issues we face, not just locally but
nationally and worldwide. Thank you for wanting to help with the campaign.
In July 2019, the Council declared a ‘Climate Change Emergency’ and
committed to becoming carbon neutral by 2027.
Our Green Futures campaign launched in February 2020 as part of our efforts
to reach this target as an organisation and as a Borough.
There will lots of projects and initiatives taking place as part of the campaign to
help us move towards this target, as well as raise awareness.
We are also asking individuals, community groups, schools and businesses to
take collective responsibility for raising awareness and making changes to how
they do things that will reduce their carbon footprint.
This pack has been designed to help you understand why climate change
is important, what the Council is doing to tackle it and how you as groups,
businesses or individuals can do your bit.
It includes promotional material that you can use through your own channels, as
well as practical steps which you can take or encourage others to take.

-1-

252

Page 259

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

What is climate change?
Climate Change isn’t new. It’s been happening for years but scientists are
increasingly concerned about the rate at which climate change is occurring.
In the last 100 years we have seen 1°C of warming, which is already causing
serious impacts. Climate scientists predict that past 2°C of warming the
consequences of climate change will drastically affect our current way of life.
These impacts will be felt not only by us but our children, grandchildren and
future generations.

It’s vital that we act now before it’s too late.

-2-

Page 260

253

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures - A climate change resource pack for Community Groups

What is the Council
doing?
Since 2009, we’ve been working
with the Carbon Trust to reduce CO2
emissions.

Between 2005 and 2017,
there was a 25.4% reduction
in CO2 emissions within the
Borough. That’s a reduction
5.9 to 4.4 tonnes per capita.
Other Projects
We’ve also undertaken 60 projects as part of our Carbon Management Plan
including:
•

Rationalisation of buildings

•

Introduction of solar panels on Council buildings

•

LED lighting

•

More accurate metering

•

Reduction in printing devices and encouraging online channels

•

Installation of combined heat and power units

•

Reduction in business mileage by over 40% over the last 10 years.that we
only have a limited supply of equipment so the kit will be allocated on
a first come, first served basis.

-3-

254

Page 261

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

At our parks and open spaces:
• Seats and picnic tables made from recycled plastic.
• Rubber safety surfacing made from shredded recycled car tyres.
• Old bark is re-used at allotment sites and used as a soil conditioner.
• Shred tree prunings and use these as walkways within woodland areas.
• Larger logs as used to create habitat piles for insects in woodland areas.
• Planted more wildflower meadows to encourage local wildlife.

In our Council homes:
• Solar power systems fitted at three of our Independent Living Schemes.
• 420 Council homes have been improved with external wall insulation.
• Over 1,300 Council homes have been improved with new SEDBUKA
rated efficient boilers.
• The Council supports the award winning, Warmer Homes on prescription
scheme helps low income residents with cold-sensitive long-term health
conditions to achieve affordable warmth.

Transport:
• 28 electric vehicle charging points
have been installed in car parks in
Beeston, Eastwood, Kimberley and
Stapleford.
• 32,000 litres less fuel was used by our
refuse fleet in 2017/18New electric
vans were introduced in 2019.

-4-

Page 262

255

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures - A climate change resource pack for Community Groups

What you can do
Whether its cutting down on how much plastic you use or taking the bus rather
than driving to work, there are lots of small changes we can all make to make a
difference and the more of us make small changes, the bigger impact it will have!
Not only are these changes better for the environment, they can also help you
to save money and improve your physical and mental health.

Getting Started
A good place to start is by completing the WWF Carbon Footprint Tool to assess
what your current footprint is so you can measure how much you’ve reduced it by.
The tool also gives tips to help you reduce your carbon footprint in specific
areas.

Try it out at www.footprint.wwf.org.uk

-5-

256

Page 263

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Travel
• Broxtowe has great public transport links so wherever you can, take the
bus, tram, train or cycle.
• Why not try the Last Mile Challenge? Park further away from your
destination or get off a stop early and walk the last mile.
• Try a staycation or to take one less air trip this year.
• There are a range of local journey planning services to help you plan
your journey using public transport instead of your car such as Sustans
www.sustrans.org.uk or www.ridewise.org.uk
• Broxtowe also has 28 electric vehicle charging points so if you’re
thinking about a new car, why not make the switch to electric?

At Home
• Help us reach a 50% recycling rate in Broxtowe by making sure you put
the right things in the right bin! Around 15% of waste put in the general
waste bin could be recycled.
• Switching your energy supplier could help save you money and make
you home more energy efficient.
• Switching off lights and devices when they’re not in use
• Switch to energy efficient light bulbs
• Planting trees or wildflowers in your garden can help support wildlife.

-6-

Page 264

257

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures - A climate change resource pack for Community Groups

Food and drink
• Try to reduce how much meat you
eat – its better for the environment
and can help your waistline and
bank balance! Meat-Free Monday’s
are a great way to introduce more
vegetarian or vegan meals – recipes
ideas can be found at https://www.
meatfreemondays.com/
• Making a meal plan and shopping
list means your less likely to overbuy
and waste food. It can also help you
to make the most of your leftovers for
another day or tasty lunch for work.
• Eating locally and seasonally means less transportation costs and
energy use to get your food to your plate. You could also try growing
your own fruit and vegetables.
• Switch to re-usable containers, bottles and coffee cups. You can also
buy re-usable food bags rather than plastic ones or clingfilm.
• Home composting saves money, energy, water and provides free garden
compost year after year. Visit www.broxtowe.gov.uk/composting
for more information.

Lifestyle
• Swap make up remover wipes
and cotton wool for flannels or
reusable bamboo cotton pads
• Make sure you take a re-usable
shopping bag out with you
• Buy less or focus on quality
items, second hand or recycled
items.
• Support and buy from
companies who are more
environmentally friendly and
sustainable
-7-

258

Page 265

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Getting involved
Printable posters
It’s quick and easy to put up a poster in your
workplace, shop window or noticeboard with tips on
reducing your carbon footprint.

Social Media
These graphics can be used on your social media
accounts to help spread the message and share your
commitment to tackling climate change, along with
the suggested messages.

Click to download the A4
poster (pdf)

• Help give Broxtowe a #greenfuture by doing your bit
to reduce your carbon footprint www.broxtowe.gov.
uk/greenfutures
• We’ve joined Broxtowe Borough Council’s
#GreenFutures campaign to become carbon neutral
by 2027 www.broxtowe.gov.uk/greenfutures
• We’re doing our bit for @broxtowebc’s #GreenFutures
campaign to make Broxtowe carbon neutral by 2027
– see how you can help at www.broxtowe.gov.uk/
greenfutures

Presentation
You can use and adapt our presentation in meetings,
lessons, workshops and events

Click to download the
Facebook graphic (jpeg)

Click to download the
Twitter/newsletter
graphic(jpeg)

-8-

Page 266

259

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Green Futures - A climate change resource pack for Community Groups

Useful resources
If you’re look for other ideas try:
• Energy Saving Trust - Independent advice and information on energy eficiency
and renewable energy generation. Visit the Energy Saving Trust website (opens
in a new window)
• Everybody’s Talking about climate change - Get advice and practical information
about taking action on climate change in your community. Visit the Everybody’s
Talking about climate change website (opens in a new window)
• Carbon Trustor Business Link - environment and eficiency - Find out how your
workplace can reduce carbon emissions. Visit the Carbon Trustor Business Link environment and eficiency website (opens in a new window)
• Eco Schools- Find out how your school can reduce carbon emissions. Visit the
Eco Schools website (opens in a new window)
• 2050 Tool - Try the The Department for Energy and Climate Change’s (DECC) tool
to help bring down carbon emissions to 20% by 2050. Visit the 2050 tool (opens
in a new window)
• Recycle your waste – find out more on our recycling pages
• WWF has a range of classroom resources for children to teach them

-9-

260

Page 267

Appendix 5

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Broxtowe Borough Council
Foster Avenue, Beeston,
Nottingham, NG9 1AB
Tel: 0115 917 7777
www.broxtowe.gov.uk

Follow Broxtowe with social media
www.broxtowe.gov.uk/socialmedia

Sign up for the latest news, events, updates and more, all direct
to your inbox by subscribing to our Email Me Service at
www.broxtowe.gov.uk/emailme

www.broxtowe.gov.uk
Page 268

261

Appendix 6

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Appendix 6

Carbon Neutral
Infographic

262

Page 269

Appendix 6

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Br o xto we Bo r o u g h Co u n ci l

carbon

by 2027

How we are
working to be

Green Futures

In July 2019, the Council declared a 'Climate Change
Emergency' and committed to becoming carbon
neutral by 2027.

What have we done so far?

since 2009 we have . . .

25.4%
reduction in
CO˜ emissions
between 2005
and 2017

Been working with
the Carbon Trust to
reduce CO° emissions.
Reduction of 5.9 to 4.4 tonnes per
capita within the Borough

Undertaken 60 projects as part of our
Carbon Management Plan including:
Redesign of
refuse rounds to

reduce fuel usage
Green Futures

Introduction of solar panels
on Council buildings

Rationalisation
of buildings

Broxtowe Borough Counci l

I ‘m an electric van

More accurate metering

Improvements to our feet
including electric vehicles

Reduction in
printing devices

and finding ways to
extend the life of vehicles

and encouraging
online channels

LED lighting
Installation of
combined
heat and
power units

Why is it important?
Climate Change is one of the most
important issues we face, not just locally
but nationally and worldwide.
There is clear evidence to show that climate
change is happening and impacting on the
planet. If we don’t act now, these impacts
will become more severe and widespread.
You can read more about what the causes of
climate change are and its impacts at

www.gov.uk/guidance/climate-change-explained

Page 270

263

Appendix 6

Climate Change and Green Futures Programme

Creation of a new Committee
focused on taking action
on the Environment and
Climate Change.

Developed a Climate
Change Strategy and

Action Plan

Established a Climate

Declared a

Climate Change
Emergency.

Change Steering Group

to lead on 15 key areas.

Currently working with the
Carbon Trust to determine
the current baseline

What can YOU do?
Whether it’s cutting down on how much
plastic you use or taking the bus rather
than driving to work, there are lots of small
changes we can all make to make a difference and
the more of us make small changes, the bigger
impact it will have!
Read more about some of
the things you can do to
help us ensure we protect
the environment and have
a Green Future at

www.broxtowe.gov.uk
/greenfutures

264

Page 271

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

CLEAN AND GREEN BULKY WASTE COLLECTION
1.

Purpose of report
To seek approval from Members to use funding from the Clean and Green
initiative to reduce the lead time for the bulky waste collection service.

2.

Background
Due to Covid-19 restrictions it has not been possible to safely undertake any
Waste Day Events throughout the summer. The free collections scheduled for
one week in December 2020 and one week in January and February 2021 will
still be able to take place as these can be delivered with Covid-19 measures in
place.
The Councils bulky waste service was suspended for 8 weeks between March
and July 2020. Following the reintroduction of the service the demand has
increased and at the time of writing this report the lead time for a collection on
the residual bulky waste service is around 6 weeks. Appointments for an
electrical collection are generally available on the next scheduled collection
day.
Within the scope of the Clean & Green initiative there is a budget allocation of
£15,500 for the provision of bulky waste collections through Waste Day and/or
the free kerbside collection. Currently no budget has been spent.
It is therefore proposed to use the Clean and Green budget to fund resources
to reduce the lead time for the bulky waste collection service. This will provide
a better service for residents as well as enabling residents to use the Councils
service rather than having to potentially consider other collectors who may not
be licenced to collect waste.
Further information is shown in the appendix.

3.

Financial implications
Any financial implications can be contained within budgets.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that where required the funding allocated
to the Clean and Green budget be used reduce the lead time of the bulky waste
service.
Background papers
Nil

Page 273

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

APPENDIX 1
1. Bulky Waste Service
The bulky waste collection service was temporarily suspended at the onset of
COVID-19. However, the service was reintroduced prior to and in support of
the reopening of Nottinghamshire County Council’s Household Waste and
Recycling Centre’s.
Whilst there was an initial influx in calls received upon recommencing the
service in July 2020 the extended lead time is a more recent situation. The
exact reason why there has been an increase in demand is not known but it is
not unique to our borough with other Nottinghamshire District Councils
reporting a similar experience.
2. Reducing the lead time
It is not currently possible to accommodate additional collection days within
the working week as all resources are allocated on the provision of the
mainstream services. Therefore, should the current level of demand continue
it will be difficult to bring the lead time for the bulky waste service down until
December 2020 when the free week will be implemented.
A reduced lead time can only be achieved by undertaking additional
collections on a Saturday when vehicles and staff are available. Based on a
7.5 hour day the figures in Table 1 below shows the approximate staffing cost
per team to deliver a bulky waste collection service on a Saturday.
Table 1: Staffing cost per bulky waste team

Staff Member

Overtime Rate
per hour (£)

Team leader
Loader
Total

16.57
14.34

Total On
Cost
(31.8%) (£)
21.83
18.90

Total Cost for
the day per
team (£)
163.72
141.75
305.47

There are also additional fuel costs but these would be difficult to project as it
would be dependent upon where bookings were made in the Borough
In budgetary terms around £7500 is allocated to the provision of the free
weeks in December 2020, January 2021 and February 2021. Therefore, there
are ample funds available to be used to reduce the lead time on the bulky
waste service.
Should it become apparent that Waste Day events can be safely provided
before the end of March 2021 then any remaining budget could be allocated
to the provision of these events.

Page 274

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

A further benefit to providing additional Saturday collections is that this can be
programmed in to the existing processes so does not require any additional
back office support.
3. Benefits of reducing the lead time
There is no evidence to correlate the lead time in the bulky waste service with
an increase in fly tipping. However, logic suggests that where a resident can
book an appointment, sooner rather than later, they are less likely to consider
other options for the removal of their items which may result in waste being
collected by an unlicensed waste carrier and the waste being fly tipped.
Operatives that receive the calls for the bulky waste service have reported
that residents have declined the service when informed of the lead time and
indicated that they will make alternative arrangements for the disposal of their
items.
4. Recommendation
Members are asked to approve the use of the Clean and Green budget to
reduce the lead time on the bulky waste service.

Page 275

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

IMPROVING THE BOROUGH RECYCLING RATE AND PROVIDING
MORE OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS TO RECYCLE
1.

Purpose of report
To inform Members of the opportunities and ways to improve recycling in the
Borough and seek approval for a change in the delivery of the kerbside textile
collection service.

2.

Background
The Council currently provides a number of different opportunities for residents
to recycle. The Councils recycling rate in 2019/20 was 38.75%. This was
below the Council’s target of 41% as set out in the Environment Business Plan
2020-2023.
The trend over recent years has been a stagnation of the recycling rate.
However, in March 2020 Members approved a new role within the recycling
team to help meet the Corporate Priority of increasing recycling and
composting. The new role will engage with and educate residents on recycling
and good waste management practices.
In 2018 the Governments published Our Waste Our Resources: A Strategy for
England. The strategy sets out a number of different measures aimed at
increasing recycling and promoting good waste management practice. The
Environment Bill which will legislate the measures within the strategy is
currently at its second reading in the parliamentary process.
Further information is contained in the appendix on the opportunities for
recycling in the Borough and how the Borough’s recycling rate may be
improved.

3.

Financial implications
Any financial implications of current services can be met within existing
budgets. Any financial implications resulting from The Environment Bill will be
brought to Committee for Members to approve.

Recommendation
The Committee asked to:
1. NOTE the information relating to the ways recycling will be improved, and
2. CONSIDER the adoption of Option 1 or Option 2 with regards the kerbside
textile collection service and RESOLVE accordingly.
Background papers
Nil

Page 277

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020
APPENDIX 1

The appendix provides information on the current opportunities in the Borough for
residents to recycle and how this will be improved.
New Recycling Role
Increasing the recycling rate is a priority for the Council. One route to achieve an
improved performance will be throgh a campaign of communication and education.
Recent waste analysis shows that 15% of the residual waste stream could be
recycled through existing kerbside collection schemes.
If all this material was collected for recycling the residents of the Borough would
achieve a recycling rate in excess of 50%. Therefore, the initial focus on any
campaign should be on educating and encouraging residents to recycle all the
materials which the Council can currently collect.
The Council showed its commitment to the corporate priority of increasing recycling
and composting in March 2020 when Members approved the creation of a new
recycling role. Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19 emergency the appointment to
this role has been delayed. However, with a relaxation of the lockdown measures it
is envisaged that the role will be advertised in the near future.
It is intended to appoint to post for an initial two-year and monitor the progress
towards achieving the Council’s target of increasing the recycling rate.
Whilst COVID-19 may have affected the appointment to role, and, also potentially
how we achieve improvements in recycling under the new normal conditions, it has
not affected the over-arching purpose of the role.
The remit of the role will be to work with existing members of the environment team,
both office and frontline employees, as well as engaging with residents. The role will
work closely with the new Communications Officer on promoting the Green Future
agenda with the aim of:






An increased presence within schools (either virtually or face to face).
COVID secure face to face interaction with the public in order to improve
awareness of recycling and contamination
Target resources to low performing areas to improve recycling and waste
management practices. This will include working with Housing
Associations, Nottingham University and the Housing Department
Work with the front line collection crews with regards to the reporting of
recycling and contamination issues. This will involve provision of on-site
advice and assistance to enable residents to improve recycling behaviour
Look to improve methods of communication that will yield improved
recycling performance

Page 278

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Kerbside Textile Collection Service
In November 2014 the Council introduced a kerbside collection of textiles. The
service requires residents to put out their unwanted textiles in plastic bags. The
bags are then picked up by the glass collection team and put in a separate
compartment on the vehicle.
As shown in Table 1 the tonnage of textiles collected each year has historically been
low. However, despite the low tonnage the operatives still need to check for bags
being left out which delays operations.
Table 1: Tonnage of textiles collected
Year

Annual Total

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21 (April to June)

3.6
7.7
9.02
3.74
6.56
5.78
0.58

Monthly
average
0.72
1.18
0.75
0.31
0.55
0.48
0.19

Residents are provided with other opportunities for recycling their textiles such as
donating to charity. Such charities often rely on these donations in order to generate
their income.
In contrast to textiles the amount of glass collected each year has grown year on
year. Table 2 shows the amount of glass collected in the corresponding years since
the kerbside textile collection was introduced.
Table 2: Tonnage of glass collected
Year

Annual Total

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21 (April to July)

1567
1694
1697
1218
1810
2016
888

Monthly
average
130
141
141
143
150
168
222

When analysed further, the average amount of glass collected each month between
April and July 2019 and April and July 2020 is 154 tonnes and 222 tonnes
respectively. This is an increase of 44%.

Page 279

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Whilst the increase in the amount collected is positive in terms of income generation,
an increase of this magnitude is difficult to sustain within the existing infrastructure.
Consequently, in order to be able to complete collections within the working day it
has been necessary to deploy additional resources to assist the team as well as use
a different vehicle from within the fleet. The different vehicle has a quicker bin lifting
system and can hold more glass before needing to be emptied.
Unfortunately, as a result of having to change the vehicle it was necessary to
suspend the kerbside textile collection service; the vehicle does not have any
designated textile storage compartment. The service remains suspended.
Glass collection is a popular service and even if tonnages reduce to pre COVID-19
levels, due to the operation complexities, a change in the collection method for
textiles will be necessary.
Two options are therefore proposed: Option 1:
Make the service a bookable service with a monthly date being available for
collections. The benefits of this option are as follows:









It will allow the kerbside textile service to continue
It will give residents a dedicated collection day
In time this can become an automated booking service
It will allow the compartment to be removed from glass collection vehicle
thereby enabling more tonnage to be collected and the reduction in vehicle
mileage and associated emissions
It will provide a more efficient and robust textile service in that it the service
would not need to be suspended should a similar COVID-19 type scenario
arise again
Will reduce missed collection reports and associated back office and front
office time dealing with these reports

The negative points of this option are as follows:



There would be a cost to change the back office systems to make the booking
service automated but this can be accommodated within existing budgets.
There would be a possible delay in implementation pending the availability of
the back office service provider to undertake the necessary upgrade work

Option 2:
Cease the kerbside textile service allowing resident to recycle their textiles through
other available means. The benefits of this option are as follows:



There are already multiple charities that provide kerbside collections
It will potentially allow charities to receive additional items which may
potentially increase the income they rely upon for their sustainability

Page 280

Environment and Climate Change Committee


14 September 2020

Will reduce the associated back office and front office time dealing with the
administration of the service.

The negative of this method are as follows:


Would have a small negative impact on the Councils recycling rate. However,
this is expected to be negligible due to the amounts collected

Residents would be informed of any change in the collection system in November
2020 when the new collection calendars are distributed. Any change would also be
supported with associated press release, social media and website promotion.
Kerbside collections
The recyclables collected through the kerbside collections schemes form the bulk of
the opportunities for residents to recycle. During COVID-19 the amount of material
collected through the schemes has increased significantly.
Table 3 below shows the tonnages collected between April and June 2020/21
compared to the respective months the previous year.
Table 3: Tonnage of materials collection between April and July 2019/20 and
2020/21
Material

Dry Recyclables
Garden
Glass

April – June April –
2019/20
2020/21
(tonnes)
(tonnes)
1411
1523
2195
2631
447
644

June Percentage
Increase
7.9%
19.8%
44%

The increase is undoubtedly as a result of COVID-19 measures, such as residents
being at home during lockdown and having a good clear out or the temporary closure
of the County Councils Household Waste and Recycling Centres.
The number of garden waste subscribers has already surpassed the previous year
by 929 (as at 3 August 2020).
It is anticipated that maintaining this positive position will be a challenge and will
require the Council to increase its marketing and promotion of the service. The new
recycling role in partnership with the Corporate Communications team will help to
deliver this requirement along with additional educational material.
The recycling rate between April and June 2019/20 was 41.39% compared to
42.09% for the corresponding period in 2020/21. Whilst the improvement is
welcomed there are a number of operational impacts that need to be noted. For
example, the increase in garden waste and in particular glass has resulted in the
need for additional resources to support the collection team. Should Members agree
to approve the change to the textile service the removal of the textile compartment
will help allow additional tonnage to be collected. In addition, the residual waste
collected through the black lidded bins has also increased by 13.48% when

Page 281

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

comparing April to June 2019/20 and 2020/21. This is an increase of 811 tonnes,
though it has been noted that the tonnages have started to reduce to pre COVID-19
levels.

Our Waste Our Resources: A Strategy for England
In 2018 the Government published Our Waste Our Resources: A Strategy for
England. The strategy contains a number of measures with the aim of improving
recycling. Some of measures could have a direct effect on the Council and the
delivery of its services
The Environment Bill which will legislate for the measures within the strategy is
currently in the House of Commons within the parliamentary process. The main
measures which will influence recycling and effect the Council are outlined below.
Collection of common set of recyclables including food waste
The strategy aims to improve recycling rates by ensuring a consistent set of dry
recyclable materials are collected from all households and businesses across the
Country. This common set of materials also extends to food waste.
A consultation on the implementation of a common set of dry recyclables is due in
2020 with an expected timeline for implementation of 2023. From the information
provided, the Council appears to already collect the items listed in the common set of
materials although clarification is still required with reference to what plastics would
be included in the common set of items.
The expected timeline for the implementation of weekly food waste collection is
2023. A consultation with regards to food waste is due in 2020.
A weekly collection of food waste will have significant implications for the Council in
terms of the budget and resources needed to deliver the service. Members will be
informed of the consultation and updated accordingly including on how the
Government proposes the additional burden of introducing such scheme will be met.
Research undertaken by Measurement Evaluation and Learning in 2014 suggested
that around 38.7% of the black lidded residual bin is food waste. Assuming all this
food waste could and was collected as part of a food waste collection then based on
2019/20 figures the Council’s recycling rate would be in the region of 61%.
As indicated at the last Committee home composting can also play a part in
addressing food waste. The new National Waste and Resources Strategy is in the
final stages of consultation; it is likely that national guidance will be published in early
2021 and a further report will be brought to Committee at that stage.
Drinks Return Scheme
A drinks return scheme entails consumers being charged a deposit up-front when
they buy a drink in a single-use container. This can be redeemed when the empty
container is returned. In international schemes consumers can either return

Page 282

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

containers through a reverse vending machine or manually to a retailer/outlet to
redeem the deposit value.
A consultation on the implementation of a drinks return scheme is due in 2020 with
an expected timeline for implementation in 2023. The proposal is to include cans,
glass bottles and plastic bottles.
It is not currently known how the scheme will be implemented and whether local
authority involvement will be part of the process. However, this could have an
implication for the Borough in terms of materials taken away from the kerbside
collection currently provided resulting in a negative impact on the income of the
Council.

.

Page 283

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7a
Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT – REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN
PROGRESS – ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE
1.

Purpose of Report
To report progress against outcome targets identified in the Environment and
Climate Change Business Plan, linked to Corporate Plan priorities and
objectives, and to provide an update as to the latest key performance
indicators.

2.

Background
The Corporate Plan 2020-2024 was approved by Council on 4 March 2020.
Business Plans linked to the five corporate priority areas of Housing, Business
Growth, Environment, Health and Community Safety are subsequently
approved by the respective Committees each year.

3.

Performance Management
As part of the Council’s performance management framework, each Committee
receives regular reports during the year which review progress against their
respective Business Plans. This will include a detailed annual report where
performance management is considered following the year-end.
This report is intended to provide this Committee with an overview of progress
towards Corporate Plan priorities from the perspective of the Environment and
Climate Change Business Plan. It provides a summary of the progress made to
date on key tasks and priorities for improvement in 2020/21 and the latest data
relating to Critical Success Indicators (CSI) and Key Performance Indicators
(KPI). This summary is detailed in appendix 1.
The content of this report is based upon data required to demonstrate progress
with the Business Plan. The Council is currently reviewing its corporate
performance reporting arrangements, including the content of regular reports to
Committees. Members are invited to comment upon the format, level and
content of data provided for future reports.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to NOTE the progress made in achieving the Key
Tasks and Actions in the Environment and Climate Change Business Plan
2020/23, in addition to performance in relation to the current CSI and KPI for
2020/21.
Background papers
Nil

Page 285

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020
APPENDIX 1

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
1.

Background - Corporate Plan
The Corporate Plan for 2020-2024 was approved by Cabinet on 4 March 2020.
This plan sets out the Council’s priorities to achieve its vision to make “A
Greener, Safer and Healthier Broxtowe where everyone prospers.” Over the
period, the Council will focus on the priorities of Housing, Business Growth,
Community Safety, Health and Environment.
The Corporate Plan prioritises local community needs and resources are
directed toward the things they think are most important. These needs are
aligned with other local, regional and national plans to ensure the ambitions set
out in our Corporate Plan are realistic and achievable.

2.

Business Plans
Business Plans linked to the five corporate priority areas, including Housing,
were approved by the Full Council on 4 March 2020, following
recommendations from the respective Committees in January/February 2020.
The Council’s priority for Environment and Climate Change is to “protect the
environment for the future”. Its objectives are to:




Develop plans to reduce the Borough’s carbon emissions to net zero by
2027 and start implementing them (En1)
Invest in our parks and open spaces (En2)
Increase recycling and composting (En3)

The Business Plans detail the projects and activities undertaken in support of
the Corporate Plan for each priority area. These cover a three-year period and
are revised and updated annually. Detailed monitoring of progress against key
tasks and outcome measures in the Business Plans is undertaken regularly by
the relevant Committee. This will include a detailed annual report where
performance management and financial outturns are considered together
following the year-end as part of the Council’s commitment to closely align
financial and performance management.
3.

Performance Management
As part of the Council’s performance management framework, this Committee
receives regular reports of progress against the Environment and Climate
Change Business Plan. This report provides a summary of the progress made
to date on key tasks and priorities for improvement in 2020/21 (as extracted
from the Pentana Risk performance management system). It also provides the
latest data relating to Critical Success Indicators (CSI) and Key Performance
Indicators (KPI).

Page 286

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

The Council monitors its performance using the Pentana Risk performance
management system. Members have been provided with access to the system
via a generic user name and password, enabling them to interrogate the
system on a ‘view only’ basis. Members will be aware of the red, amber and
green traffic light symbols that are utilised to provide an indication of
performance at a particular point in time.
The key to the symbols used in the Pentana Risk performance reports is as
follows:
Action Status Key
Icon

Status

Description

Completed

The action/task has been completed

In Progress

The action/task is in progress and is currently
expected to meet the due date

Warning

The action/task is approaching its due date (and/or
one or more milestones is approaching or has
passed its due date)

Overdue

The action/task has passed its due date

Cancelled

This action/task has been cancelled or postponed

Performance Indicator Key
Icon

Performance Indicator Status
Alert
Warning
Satisfactory
Unknown
Data Only

Page 287

Environment and Climate Change Key Tasks and Priorities for Improvement 2020/21
Status

Code

Action Title

Action Description

Completed

COMS
Produce DEFRA Annual Annual task relating to
1821_14.1 Air Quality Status report the Climate Change plan

Page 288

In Progress ENV
1518_04

Implement Key Actions in Develop, improve and
Green Infrastructure
promote Green and Blue
infrastructure in the
Strategy
Borough incorporating
strategic actions in
Green Futures
programme

Completed

ENV
1620_03

Implement the actions
identified within the
Waste Strategy

Completed

ENV
1620_04

Franchises and licensing Franchises and licensing
within Parks and Open
within Parks and Open
Spaces
Spaces

In Progress ENV
Apply a strategic
1720_01.2 approach to tree
management and
planting

Implement the actions
identified within the
Waste Strategy

Work with partners, land
owners and other
agencies to plant 2,000
trees per year. Work with
volunteers as part of the
Clean and Green
initiative to achieve this
outcome.

Progress

Due Date

Comments

100%

Jun-2020

The latest Air Quality Report 2020 was submitted to
DEFRA in June 2020. Awaiting feedback.

10%

Mar-2022

Working on various projects with external agencies.

100%

Mar-2020

The Council’s Waste Strategy is due for revision in 2020.
The new strategy will set new actions and take into
account the implications the Government’s ‘Our Waste
Our Resources: A Strategy for England’.

100%

Mar-2020

10%

Dec-2023

Currently assessing design options for 2020/21
schemes. Working on ‘free tree’ event for early 2021 with
small ornamental trees for gardens.

Status

Code

Page 289

Action Title

Action Description

Progress

Due Date

In Progress ENV
1821_03

Improve Play Areas and
Parks & Open Spaces

Ensure sites are Health
& Safety and DDA
Compliant

30%

Mar-2023

Preparing external funding bid for refurbishment of play
area at Dovecote Lane Recreation Ground Beeston. The
refurbishment of Swiney Way Play area to commence in
September. Site specific improvement works undertaken
at various play areas.

In Progress ENV
2023_01

Implementation of the
Clean and Green
Initiative

Implement a range of
initiatives aimed at
making Broxtowe a
Cleaner and Greener
place for residents and
visitors to the Borough.

20%

Mar-2021

Activities to be delivered as part of the Clean and Green
initiative have been delayed due to COVID-19. Initiatives
have been planned for later in the year will be reported
to Committee in due course.

In Progress ENV
2023_02

Introduction of new staff
within the recycling
section

Aim of educating our
residents on recycling,
reducing contamination
and increasing the
Council recycling rate.

10%

Mar-2023

The appointment to role has been delayed due to
COVID-19. With the ease of lock down restrictions it is
envisaged that the post will be advertised shortly.
Funding of the role for one year has been secured from
Nottinghamshire County Council as part of a partnership
approach to increase recycling and reduce the amount of
residual waste produced.

Increase in the Council’s
recycling rate and
improved awareness of
how to reduce waste

Comments

In Progress ENV
2023_03

Identify areas of new
Green Space for public
use

Increase the total area of
publically accessible
green space in Broxtowe

5%

Mar-2023

Options currently being considered.

In Progress ENV
2023_05

Implement actions
deriving from the
Governments ‘Our
Waste, Our Resource: A
Strategy for England’

Increase in the Council’s
recycling rate and
increased awareness of
climate change and
waste and recycling
issues.

5%

Mar-2020

No direct actions have yet been required but response to
consultation as part of a joint Nottinghamshire approach
has been submitted. Consultations on some of the
measures proposed are scheduled for 2020. Members
will be consulted and the Council will submit their
response accordingly. The Environment Bill which will
legislate for the measures within the Strategy is still in
the parliamentary process.

Status

Code

In Progress GREEN
0912_14c

Action Title

Action Description

Further develop sites
with Local Nature
Reserve Status

Maintain existing121
hectares of land
identified as Local Nature
Reserves and investigate
possible additional sites
as opportunities arise
with new housing
development and the
acquisition of additional
open space

Progress
15%

Due Date
Mar-2022

Comments
One Local Nature Reserve Management plan updated.
Sites continue to be maintained as Local Nature
Reserves. Working with developers on possible land
transfers as part of housing developments.

Page 290

Environment and Climate Change Critical Success Indicators 2020/21
Status

Code / Name

Frequency

2018/19
Achieved

2019/20
Achieved

2020/21
Q1

2020/21
Target

Notes

Page 291

Green

CPLocal_03 Energy
consumption across all
operational sites - total kWh
gas and electric ('000)

Annually

6,845

7,039

n/a

8,114

Reported annually.

Green

NI 192 Percentage of
household waste sent for reuse,
recycling and composting

Quarterly

38.48%

38.75%

42.09%

40.2%

Amber

NI 195a Cleanliness of the
streets and open spaces within
the Borough (levels of litter)

Three
surveys a
year

96%

96%

n/a

97%

Surveys conducted three times a year. The
first survey will be during Q2.

Amber

PSData_09 Parks achieving
Broxtowe Parks Standard %

Annually

92%

96%

n/a

98%

Data not yet available - survey in progress.

Red

SSData_01 Reduce the number
of fly tipping incidents

Annually

359

267

n/a

342

Recycling rate in Q1 is historically higher than
year-end figure. However due to COVID-19
and lockdown measures above average
amounts of recyclables have been collected
resulting in an increase in Q1 recycling than
the previous year (41.57%).

There was a particular increase in fly tipping
in April 2020 compared to April 2019 but
levels in May and June 2020 reflect similar
levels to the corresponding months in 2019.
The closure of the Household Waste and
Recycling Centres during lockdown could
have attributed to the increase. However
these sites are now open and the levels of fly
tipping appear to be reducing.

Environment and Climate Change Key Performance Indicators 2020/21
Status

Code / Name

Frequency

2018/19
Achieved

2019/20
Achieved

2020/21
Q1

2020/21
Target

Notes

Page 292

Green

BV82a(ii) Tonnes of
Household Waste Recycled

Quarterly

8,018

8,006

2,265

10,000

Total amount of recyclables collected in Q1 has
increased by 439 tonnes compared to the
previous year. This equates to a 24% increase
that was contributed to by the measures
implemented due to COVID-19.

Green

BV82b(ii) Tonnes of
household waste composted

Quarterly

7,461

7,778

2,878

8,000

Total amount of recyclables collected in Q1 has
increased by 300 tonnes compared to the
previous year. This equates to a 12% increase
that was attributed to the measures
implemented due to COVID-19.

Green

BV84a Household waste
collected per head, in kilos

Quarterly

357

361

107

386

There has been an increase in Q1 compared to
the previous year (94kg) due to the increase in
the overall tonnage collected which can be
mainly attributable to COVID-19.

Green

NI 191 Residual household
waste per household (Kgs)

Quarterly

493

496

141

512

There has been an increase in Q1 compared to
the previous year (123kg) due to the increase
in the overall tonnage collected which can be
mainly attributable to COVID-19.

Green

NI 195b Levels of detritus on
the public highway

3 x Year

96%

96%

n/a

96%

Surveys conducted three times a year. The first
survey will be in Q2.

Data Only

PSData_08 Trees planted

Annually

1,618

2,012

-

2,500

Trees will be planted during the winter of
2020/21 with events in National Tree Week 28
November to 6 December 2020.

Green

PSLocal_02 Green Flags /
Community Green Flags

Annually

5

5

n/a

5

Awaiting notification. Awards delayed due to
COVID-19

Page 293

Status

Code / Name

Frequency

2018/19
Achieved

2019/20
Achieved

Data Only

SSData_10 Clean and Green
events undertaken

Quarterly

-

-

-

20

Data Only

WMData_03b Garden waste
subscriptions

Quarterly

19,664

20,094

20,000

20,042

Green

WMData_03c Income
generated by Garden Waste
Subscriptions

Quarterly

£661,000

£701,108

£746,317

£727,000

Target for the year exceeded.

Green

WMData_06a Income
generated through Trade
Waste (0,00s)

Quarterly

£579,475

£584,773

£430,028

£608,000

Trade Waste services income is the Q1 figure
shown on the ledger at the time of writing. This
does not provide an accurate picture of the
income. This figure will be lower once all the
implications of businesses not requiring the
service throughout the lockdown and the issue
of outstanding bills is resolved. A more
accurate income figure will be able to be
provided in future reports.

Data Only

WMData_08 Income
generated through
Environmental Services

Quarterly

£44,719

£64,462

£66,117

£190,000

2020/21 Target is the total for all Environment
Income.

Data Only

WMData_10 Savings through
re-use of bins

Quarterly

£11,971

£5,152

£1,494

£12,000

2020/21
Q1

2020/21
Target

Notes
New indicator 2020/21. Undertaking of events
have been delayed due to COVID-19.
Estimate. It is expected the target will be
exceeded by quarter 2 2020/21.

137 bins have been reclaimed which were
deemed suitable for reuse in quarter 1.

This page is intentionally left blank

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

PRIDE IN PARKS – PLAY AREA AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE
IMPROVEMENTS
1.

Purpose of report
To update Members on the Pride in Parks initiative.

2.

Background
Since April 2018 funding has been allocated to undertake improvements to the
Borough owned play areas that were identified as high priority sites in the Play
Strategy and to the Town and Parish Council’s that maintain their own parks and
outdoor recreational facilities to enable improvement and renovation works to be
undertaken at these sites.
This report provides an update on progress made on the 2020/21 Pride in Parks
Initiative.

3.

Financial Implications
The 2020/21 Capital Programme includes an allocation of £199,000 to fund three
schemes. Further details are provided in the appendix.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to NOTE the progress on the schemes identified in
the 2020/21 capital programmes as part of the Pride in Parks Initiative.
Background papers
Nil

Page 295

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020
APPENDIX

Schemes 2020/21
All the High Priority Schemes within the Borough Play Strategy have now been funded
and work undertaken to address the issues. The next phase of works concentrates on
the schemes identified as Medium Priority where works need to be undertaken in the
period 2020-23. In the 2020-21 Capital Programme there is £199,000 allocated for 3
schemes.
i)

Dovecote Lane Recreation Ground, Beeston

Consultation was undertaken during the summer and a scheme to fully refurbish this
very popular play area with new modern climbing units and a full range of equipment
for younger children and new rubber surfacing has been designed. A bid has been
submitted to FCC Community Foundation for £73,500 with an allocation of £50,000
from the Council’s Capital Programme and £5,000 from United Living, giving a total
scheme value of £128,500. A decision is expected in December 2020 with a
proposed start date early in 2021.
ii)

Swiney Way Open Space, Chilwell

A scheme to replace the very outdated equipment at this small area that is specifically
for younger children and also provide a full rubber surface. The scheme at a cost of
£42,000 has been designed and orders placed. The scheme, funded from the
Council’s Capital Programme, is due to commence this month.
iii)

Play Area Improvements

A number of play areas, whilst not requiring a full refurbishment, do require some
remedial works. The Play Strategy identified that priorities may change during the
period of the strategy due to issues such as increased usage of sites, vandalism and
equipment failure. This budget recognises these changes and allows for the site
specific issues to be addressed without undertaking a full refurbishment of the
particular site. Remedial works are now in progress and have included work at
Beeston Fields Recreation Ground, Beeston, Sandy Lane Open Space, Bramcote,
Inham Nook Recreation Ground, Chilwell and Queen Elizabeth Park, Stapleford.
The works costing £42,000 are funded from the Council’s Capital Programme.

Page 296

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Chief Executive

AIR QUALITY ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2020
1.

Purpose of report
To advise members of the response from the Department of Food
Environment and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) on this authority’s latest Air Quality
Annual Status Report (ASR).

2.

Detail
At the meeting of this committee on 15 June 2020, members approved the Air
Quality Annual Status Report 2020 for submission to DEFRA.
DEFRA requires all local authorities in England to produce an Annual Status
Report in respect of air quality. The production of an ASR is intended to aid
local transparency, increase accessibility of air quality to the wider public
audience and encourage buy-in to delivering air quality improvement
measures by those best placed to assist (e.g. directors of public health,
transport managers etc.).
The Council has now received a response from DEFRA which is shown in the
appendix. The response is very positive and recognises elements of good
practice, including what it describes as the Council’s active engagement in
monitoring air quality within the borough.
The response concludes by stating:
Overall the report is detailed, concise, satisfies the criteria of relevant
standards and continues to be an example of good practice. The Council
should continue their good work and submit an Annual Status Report in 2021.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to NOTE the response from DEFRA in respect of the
2020 Air Quality Annual Status Report.
Background papers
Nil

Page 297

This page is intentionally left blank

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020
APPENDIX

Annual Status Report
The Report sets out the Annual Status Report, which forms part of the Review &
Assessment process required under the Environment Act 1995 and subsequent
Regulations.

Broxtowe Borough Council currently has one AQMA, in Trowell, for exceedances in the
NO2 annual mean. The AQMA has an AQAP which was first published in 2008, but the
Council continue to publish updates within their ASR (as agreed with the LAQM
Helpdesk). The M1 and the A52 are the major sources of emissions in the borough, being
the main connecting roads from Nottingham to Derby, and are heavily used by
commuters. The remaining AQMA is associated with traffic emissions from the M1
motorway.

In 2019, the Council carried out passive NO2 monitoring across a network of 43 diffusion
tubes. There were no exceedances of the annual mean NO2 objective in the borough in
2019, with the highest measured concentrations inside the remaining AQMA being 31
µg/m3, and 33 µg/m3 measured outside the AQMA, at site 17 in Church Street. NO2
concentrations continue to demonstrate a downward trend throughout the borough since
2013.

QA/QC procedures have been applied for bias adjustment (using a national factor). The
Council have performed distance corrections with calculations provided. No annualisation
was required. The report provides good detailed discussion of local PM2.5 issues and the
measures the Council have in place to tackle PM2.5.
On the basis of the evidence provided by the local authority the conclusions reached are
acceptable for all sources and pollutants, with the provisos listed in the commentary
below. Following the completion of this report, Broxtowe Borough Council should submit
an Annual Status Report in 2021.

Page 299

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Commentary
The report is very well written, detailed, and provides the information specified in the
Guidance. The following comments are made:

1. The Council have provided a very detailed discussion of the NO2 trends within the
borough. In addition to this they discuss the trends in relation to locations as well
as providing NO2 concentrations alongside this. This is extremely useful and this
approach to data discussion is encouraged in future reports.

2. The Council have continued to see no exceedances of national air quality
objectives in 2019 and concentrations in the Trowell AQMA continue to fall. The
Council have stated that they plan to implement further measures to ensure NO2
concentrations are below the AQOs and will not revoke the AQMA until it is
consistently below 36 µg/m3 for three or more consecutive years. Should NO2
concentrations be below 36 µg/m3 in 2020 (marking 3 years of compliance), it is
advised for the Council to consider undertaking another detailed assessment to
evaluate whether revocation of the AQMA is appropriate. However, in saying this,
it should be noted there may be implications from the current Covid-19 situation on
air quality within the borough. Therefore, concentrations next year may skew long
term NO2 trends within the borough and this should be considered.
3. It is promising to see that the Council are continuing to review their monitoring
locations and discontinue sites where the annual air quality levels are below the
objective. The Council have stated that rather than decommission sites they will
relocate tubes to new areas within the borough to identify potential ‘hotspot’ or
‘problem’ areas.

This is encouraging to see as it demonstrates the Council’s

active engagement in monitoring air quality within the borough.
4. Alongside providing a detailed discussion of priorities the Council wish to address
in the coming year, they also discuss the challenges and barriers to
implementation they anticipate facing. This is good to see, and the Council are
encouraged to continue including this in future ASRs.
5. Overall the report is detailed, concise, satisfies the criteria of relevant standards
and continues to be an example of good practice. The Council should continue
their good work and submit an Annual Status Report in 2021.

Page 300

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

This commentary is not designed to deal with every aspect of the report. It highlights a number of issues that
should help the local authority either in completing the Annual Status Report adequately (if required) or in
carrying out future Review & Assessment work.
Issues specifically related to this appraisal can be followed up by returning the attached comment
form to Defra, Welsh Assembly Government, Scottish Government or DOE, as appropriate.
For any other queries please contact the Local Air Quality Management Helpdesk:
Telephone:
0800 0327 953
Email:
LAQMHelpdesk@uk.bureauveritas.com

Page 301

Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Appraisal Response Comment Form
Contact Name:
Contact Telephone number:
UKLAQMAppraisals@aecom.com

Contact email address:

Comments on appraisal/Further information:

Page 302

Agenda Item 8
Environment and Climate Change Committee

14 September 2020

Report of the Strategic Director

WORK PROGRAMME
1.

Purpose of report
To consider items for inclusion in the Work Programme for future
meetings.

2.

Background
Items which have already been suggested for inclusion in the Work
Programme of future meetings are given below. Members are asked to
consider any additional items that they may wish to see in the
Programme.
23
November
2020

1 February
2021

June 2021
Date tbc

 Performance Management – Review of Business Plan
Progress – Environment
 Garden Waste Charges 2021/22 Subscription Fee
 Clean and Green Update
 Climate Change and Green Futures Update
 Free Tree Giveaway
 Trade Waste Fees and Charges
 Funding stream availability for housing improvements
 Management of Watercourses
 Business Plans and Financial Estimates 2020/21 –
2022/23 – Environment
 Pride in Parks Update
 Clean and Green Update
 Broxtowe Parks Standard
 Climate Change and Green Futures Update
 Transport and Fleet Strategy Update
 Air Quality action plan update
 Performance Management –Review of Business Plan
Outturn
 Climate Change and Green Futures update
 Clean and Green Update

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to CONSIDER the Work Programme and
RESOLVE accordingly.
Background papers:
Nil

Page 303

This page is intentionally left blank

